

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2018                                                                                 EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 1 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


 Agenda  


   


1. Convene Closed Session 5:30 p.m. 


1.1. Roll Call  


1.2. Public Comments prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda 


   


2. Closed Session Items  


2.1. Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments 


Information for possible action 


2.2. Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
(Govt. Code Section 54957) 


Information for possible action 


2.3. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt. 
Code Section 54957.6) 


SCCS Negotiator Parks will provide an update to and 
receive direction from the Trustees regarding negotiations 
with the GSCFT for 2018-19. 


2.4. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt. 
Code Section 54957.6) 


SCCS Negotiator Parks will provide an update to and 
receive direction from the Trustees regarding negotiations 
with the SCCCE for 2018-19. 


2.5. Conference With Real Property Negotiators 
(Govt. Code Section 54956.8) 


Property: 133 Mission Street, Santa Cruz, CA              
Property Negotiator: Patrick Gaffney                                    
Negotiating Parties: SCCS/Burroughs                                        
Under Negotiation: Term of Lease 


   


3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 


3.1. Welcome and Pledge of Allegiance  


3.2. Agenda changes, additions or deletions  


   


1/503







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2018                                                                                 EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 2 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 


Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are 
valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools Board Bylaw 
protocols, Trustees will not comment on Public 
Comments during this time. 


   


5. Superintendent's/Students’ Reports  


5.1. Superintendent's Report  


5.2. Students’ Reports  


   


6. Board Members' Reports  


6.1. Board Members' Reports  


6.2. Board President's Report  


   


7. Approval of Minutes  


7.1. Minutes 9-12-18 Reviewed  


   


8. General Public Business  


   


8.1. Consent Agenda Non-Contract Items: 
These matters may be passed by one roll 
call motion.  


 


8.1.1. Personnel Actions - Certificated  


8.1.2. Personnel Actions - Classified  


8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Bids & Quotes  


8.1.4. Warrant Register  


8.1.5. Budget Transfers  


8.1.6. Gift  


2/503







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2018                                                                                 EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 3 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.1.7. Disposition of Surplus Property  


8.1.8. Community Advisory Committee (CAC) 
Member Approval: Julie Lattin 


 


8.1.9. Resolution 11-18-19 GANN Limits Revised  


8.1.10. Out of State Travel: Special Education  


8.1.11. 4th Quarter Investment Report  


8.1.12. Revised Classified Job Description: Campus 
Supervisor 


 


   


8.2. Consent Agenda: General Contracts & 
Agreements 


 


8.2.1. Education Services/Curriculum: MAP/CPAA 
Assessment Purchase Contract  


 


8.2.2. Education Services/Special Education: Out 
of State Non Public School – Alpine 
Academy 


 


8.2.3. Education Services/Special Education: Out 
of State Non Public School – Logan River 
Academy 


 


8.2.4. Business Services: MOU between 
SCCS/Cabrillo College/SCCAL 


 


8.2.5. Business Services: Consultant Service 
Agreement: Jerene Lacey  


 


8.2.6. Business Services/Facilities: Proposal & 
Contract: MBS Engineering: Natural Bridges 
HeadStart – gas leak repair 


 


8.2.7. Business Services: Kleinfelder Proposal for 
DSA Closeout 


 


   


8.3. Consent Agenda: Bond Projects 
Contracts, Agreements, Proposals, Bids 
& Change Orders 


 


3/503







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2018                                                                                 EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 4 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.3.1. Change Order #2: Andy’s Roofing – 
Branciforte MS roofing project 


 


8.3.2. Change Order #1: Andy’s Roofing – Mission 
Hill MS & Gault ES re-roofing projects 


 


8.3.3. Change Order #2: Andy’s Roofing – Mission 
Hill MS & Gault ES re-roofing projects 


 


8.3.4. Contract Amendment: Belli Architecture – 
HHS MPR Music modernization 


 


8.3.5. Change Order #1: CRW Industries: 
Branciforte Small Schools Lunch Shelter & 
Playground Structure 


 


8.3.6. Change Order #2: CRW Industries: Natural 
Bridges Gym modernization  


 


8.3.7. Career Technical Education Grant 
Submission: Authorization to Proceed 


 


8.3.8. Quote: Mobilflex: Security Grills for Harbor 
HS locker improvement project 


 


8.3.9. Change Order #1: OC McDonald: Santa 
Cruz HS piping replacement – new boiler 
room 


 


8.3.10. Proposal & Contract: PSR Electric: Natural 
Bridges modernization 


 


   


8.4. Report of Closed Session Actions  


8.4.1. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session  


   


8.5. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  


   


8.5.1. Educational Services  


8.5.1.1. Staff Report: Summer Professional 
Development 


A report on the professional development opportunities 
available for staff during the summer break  


4/503







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2018                                                                                 EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 5 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.5.1.2. Staff Report: California Assessment of 
Student Performance and Progress 
(CAASPP) Test Results & CAASPP Sample 
Problems 


Staff will present information from the results of the 


statewide student assessment system, providing 


information regarding individual student proficiency as well 


as trends in school and district proficiency data.   


   


8.5.2. Business Services  


8.5.2.1. Staff Report: Long Term Debt Report Staff will provide updated information 


8.5.2.2. New Business: SecurAll: Hardware for 
District Card Access Security System 


Recommendation: Approve hardware purchase 


   


8.5.3. Human Resources There are no items to be transacted and/or discussed 
for Human Resources on September 26, 2018 


   


8.5.4. Governance/Superintendent  


8.5.4.1. New Business: Resolution 08-18-19 in 
Support of City of SC Measure G 


Recommendation: Approve Resolution 08-18-19 


8.5.4.2. New Business: Resolution 09-18-19 in 
Support of City of SC Measure H 


Recommendation: Approve Resolution 09-18-19 


8.5.4.3. New Business: Resolution 10-18-19 in 
Support of LGBQT+ Month 


Recommendation: Approve Resolution 10-18-19 


8.5.4.4. New Business: Board Policy Updates – First 
and/or Final Reading 


Recommendation: Approve board policies for first and/or 
final reading 


8.5.4.5. Discussion: Possible Items for Future 
Meeting Agendas 


At the May 23, 2018 Governance Session, the Board of 
Education agreed that each board meeting agenda would 
include an opportunity for discussion of future agenda 
items. 


   


9. Adjournment  


   


10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  


   


11. Closed Session Action Report (if 
necessary) 


 


   


12. Adjournment  


 


5/503







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2018                                                                                 EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 6 of 7 


The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html or may be viewed at the District 
Office, Superintendent’s Office, Room 303, 405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, CA.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting 
as any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in 
open session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be 
considered in closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Nancy 
Lentz by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Nancy Lentz por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 


 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on October 3, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting on October 17, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


3. The Regular Meeting on November 7, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


4. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on November 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the Harbor 
High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


5. The Regular Meeting on December 12, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6. The Regular Meeting on January 16, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on January 23, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High 
School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


8. The Regular Meeting on February 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


9. The Regular Meeting on February 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


10. The Regular Meeting on March 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


11. The Regular Meeting on March 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


12. The Regular Meeting on April 17, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6/503







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2018                                                                                 EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 7 of 7 


13. The Regular Meeting on May 15, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


14. The Regular Meeting on June 12, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


15. The Regular Meeting on June 19, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 


7/503







Minutes 9-12-18 Reviewed


Separator Page


8/503







 


 


    
 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING  


OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


September 12, 2018 
 
 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Vestal called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 5:31 p.m. in the Board Room of the 
Santa Cruz County Office of Education, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   
None 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Vestal called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:33 p.m. in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty Deedee Perez-Granados Cynthia Ranii  Jeremy Shonick    
Patty Threet  Deb Tracy-Proulx  Claudia Vestal 
 
Student Representative Selvartham, Soquel High School 
Absent: Student Representative Rodriguez, Costanoa High School 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Vestal welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Regular Meeting 
of the Board of Education. 
 
Vote on Interdistrict Transfer Appeal Hearing for Student #1 
The Board of Education reviews each hearing packet with respect and carefully considers each situation and 
family.  If the voting result tonight does not allow your student to enroll in Santa Cruz City Schools, our staff is 
here to help you transition to your new district/school. 
 
Hearing for Student #1: MSP (Perez-Granados/Ranii) 5-0-2, the Board of Education upheld the denial of the 
Interdistrict transfer for this student.  Board Members Coonerty and Tracy-Proulx abstained from casting a 
vote, as they were not present for the Closed Session hearing. 
 
 
Agenda Changes 
None 


9/503







 


 


 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 


None 
   


SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
Superintendent’s Report 
Superintendent Munro reported attending the following meetings/workshops/trainings since the board 
meeting on August 29, 2018: Bay Sci Leadership Team Meeting; County Secondary Superintendents’ Meeting 
regarding Career/Technical Education; Santa Cruz County College Commitment Steering Committee Meeting; 
the review of embargoed CAASPP results with SCCS Principals; the Greater Opportunities for Adult Learning 
(GOAL) Board Meeting.  The Superintendent had the pleasure of meeting with Board Members Perez-
Granados and Shonick to discuss the November Study Session providing a Curriculum Open House and is 
looking forward to the September 18 Board Member Candidate Orientation.  Superintendent Munro met with 
Jane Barr from Eden Housing to discuss workforce housing.  Community and partnership meetings included a 
meeting with Pacific Collegiate School President Tom Morrell and PCS Principal Simon Fletcher, a meeting with 
the Santa Cruz Education Foundation President and Vice President and collaboration with the City of Santa 
Cruz Parks and Recreation staff to revise the SCCS/City of Santa Cruz MOU.  Opportunities to visit, connect and 
communicate within the district were provided by Back to School Nights at many sites, as well as the District 
Strategic Communications meeting and follow-up conversations.  
  
Student Representative’s Report 
Student Selvaratham shared that students at Soquel High School are primarily focusing on planning the 
Homecoming event at this time. 
 


BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 
Board Members’ Reports 
Board Member Tracy-Proulx welcomed Student Selvaratham and thanked him for his service to the 
community. 
 
Board Member Ranii welcomed Student Selvaratham and commended the Soquel High School staff for a very 
successful diversity training.  Dr. Ranii acknowledged the work of district teachers who are piloting an English 
Language project this year.  Dr. Ranii attended the Westlake Back to School Night and enjoyed it very much. 
 
Board Member Perez-Granados welcomed Student Selvaratham and shared that she was looking forward to 
the Harbor High School 50th Anniversary/Open House on Friday. 
 
Board Member Threet welcomed Student Selvaratham and looks forward to his student perspective.  Ms. 
Threet attended Soquel and Santa Cruz High School sporting events, and was excited to see large cheer 
squads, large marching bands and many students connected to their school in a positive way.  Ms. Threet had 
the opportunity to tour the improvement projects currently under way at the Santa Cruz HS gymnasium and 
the Soquel HS tennis courts.  It is wonderful to see bond measure dollars at work.  During a visit to Santa Cruz 
HS, it was a pleasure to see the great pride Principal Kline takes in the students.  Trustee Threet is looking 
forward to the Harbor HS Anniversary/Open House. 
 
Board Member Coonerty welcomed Student Selvaratham and Assistant Superintendent Coito to the District. 
 
 


10/503







 


 


Board President’s Report 
Board President Vestal attended the Implicit Bias workshop – a follow-up meeting to the Culturally 
Responsible Organizations workshop sponsored by the Thrive Organization and the Youth Violence Prevention 
Task Force.  The content and the attendees were both impressive – many service organizations and 
city/county departments were present and the training offered a wonderful opportunity to connect with many 
different organizations serving our community.  Schools Plus is hosting a recognition for grant recipients on 
September 29 and Board President Vestal encouraged folks to attend.   


 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 


1. MSP (DPG/PT) 6-0-1, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of the Meeting on August 29, 2018. 
Dr. Coonerty abstained from voting, as she was not present at the meeting. 
 


GENERAL PUBLIC BUSINESS 
Consent Agenda 
Board Members Shonick and Coonerty had questions and comments on several items on the Consent Agenda 
and Superintendent Munro and Mr. Gaffney provided the information they required to vote on these matters.  
Trustee Shonick requested that Item 8.3.6. Proposal: Phil Allegri Electric: Harbor HS locker improvements 
security, be pulled from the Consent Agenda for a separate discussion and vote.  Ms. Threet moved approval 
of the Consent Agenda, minus Item 8.3.6. Proposal: Phil Allegri Electric: Harbor HS locker improvements 
security.  The remaining items on the Consent Agenda were Item 8.3.1. Personnel Actions – Certificated; Item 
8.1.2. Personnel Actions – Classified; Item 8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Bids & Quotes; Item 8.1.4. Warrant Register; 
Item 8.1.5. Disposition of Surplus Property; Item 8.1.6. PE Waiver Request-Santa Cruz HS; Item 8.1.7. PE 
Waiver Request-Harbor HS; Item 8.1.8. Resolution 07-18-19 GANN Limits; Item 8.2.1. Superintendent: 
Agreement: SCCS/City of Santa Cruz: Commission for Prevention of Violence Against Women; Item 8.2.2. 
Superintendent: Contract: Clifford Moss-District Strategic Communications support; Item 8.2.3. Educational 
Services: Contract: UCSC Work Study for Advancement Via Individual Determination (AVID); Item 8.2.4. 
Educational Services/Soquel HS: CSA-Sue Pariss; Item 8.2.5. Educational Services: Contract-Nancy Redding-
reading instruction; Item 8.2.6. Educational Services/Special Education: Agreement for Professional Services-
Maria Ballard; Item 8.2.7. Educational Services/Special Education: Agreement for Professional Services-
Jennifer Jaeger; Item 8.2.8. Educational Services/Special Education: Agreement for Professional Services-
SpeechRighter; Item 8.2.9. Educational Services/Special Education: Non Public School Master Contract-OASIS; 
Item 8.2.10. Business: Agreement Amendment: Wenger & Associates-extend term for consulting on Student 
Information System to June 30, 2019; Item 8.2.11. Change Order #2: Landscape Structures-Bay View ES PIP 
Playground; Item 8.3.1. Proposal: American Compliance Services-Bay View ES and DeLaveaga ES new 
classrooms asbestos soil sampling; Item 8.3.2. Change Order #1: Andy’s Roofing Company-Branciforte MS 
reroofing project; Item 8.3.3. Change Order #1: CRW-Natural Bridges Gymnasium; Item 8.3.4. Change Order 
#2: Ifland Survey-Branciforte SS modernization; Item 8.3.5. Proposal: Mid Pacific Engineering-Soquel HS 
concession building inspections.  Dr. Perez-Granados seconded the motion.  The motion was passed by the 
following roll call vote: 
 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Ranii – Yes Shonick – Yes   
  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx-Yes  Vestal – Yes 
 
Student Selvaratham did not make a voting recommendation on this matter. 
 
 
 


11/503







 


 


Closed Session Items 
8.4.1.  Report of Closed Session Actions 


1. The Board of Education heard information regarding the Interdistrict Transfer Appeal of 
Student #1 to prepare for a vote in Open Session. 


2. The Board of Education did not hear any information regarding 
Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, Retirements, Resignations & 
Appointments. 


3. Ms. Parks did not have any information to report to the Board of Education regarding 
Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint.  


 
ITEMS of BUSINESS to be TRANSACTED and/or DISCUSSED 


8.5.1.1. Staff Report: Interdistrict Transfers/Open Enrollment 
Student Services Director O’Meara reported to the Trustees on this matter.  In accordance with 
an agreement between the Governing Board and the board of another district, a permit 
authorizing attendance of a student outside his/her district of residence may be issued upon 
approval of both the district of residence and the district of proposed attendance.  Specific 
application guidelines for approval/denial of inter-district transfers are monitored directly 
through the office of Director of Student Services.  Applications for Open Enrollment (Intra-
District Transfers) are processed through the Student Services Department, with similar 
guidelines and protocols.  Inter-district Transfers and instances of Open Enrollment have a 
direct impact on K-12 enrollment at each site, and are monitored carefully by the Student 
Services Department.  The Trustees were provided with information on the numbers of 
students who received Intradistrict and Interdistrict transfers from 2015-16 to the start of the 
2018-19 school year.  Board Members asked questions and made comments regarding the data 
provided.  This report was informational in nature and no actions were taken by the Board of 
Education regarding this matter. 


 
8.5.1.2. PUBLIC HEARING: Textbook Sufficiency in the Elementary and Secondary Districts  


In order to be eligible to receive instructional materials funds, Section 60119 (a)(1) of the 
Education Code requires the Governing Board of each Local Educational Agency to hold an 
annual public hearing.  Public participation is encouraged.  The purpose of the hearing is to 
make a determination, through a resolution, as to whether each pupil in the district has or 
will have prior to the end of the fiscal year, sufficient textbooks or instructional materials in 
specified subjects that are aligned to the academic content standards.  These are to be 
consistent with the content and cycles of the curriculum frameworks adopted by the 
California State Board of Education.  This Public Hearing fulfills the compliance requirement 
relating to state program laws and regulations for the fiscal year 2018-19.  
Open: Board President Vestal opened this Public Hearing at 7:14 p.m. 
Public Comments: None 
Close: Board President Vestal closed this Public Hearing at 7:15 p.m. 


  
8.5.1.3. New Business: Resolutions 02-18-19 Elementary District and 03-18-19 Secondary District 


Textbook Sufficiency 
 Ms. Coito shared that a new process document was used this year to check in with each site to 


confirm materials sufficiency.  If necessary, extra textbooks were ordered to accommodate 
increased numbers of students.  Ms. Tracy-Proulx moved approval of Resolution 02-18-19 for 
the Elementary District Textbook Sufficiency and Resolution 03-18-19 for the Secondary District 


12/503







 


 


Textbook Sufficiency.  Dr. Coonerty seconded the motion.  The motion was approved by the 
following roll call vote: 


  Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Ranii – Yes Shonick – Yes 
    Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx-Yes  Vestal – Yes 
   


Student Selvaratham recommended a yes vote on this matter. 
  
8.5.2.1. Staff Report: Workforce Housing Feasibility 


Mr. Gaffney, along with Nancy Pinkston, Director of Real Estate Development with DCG 
Strategies, and Mark Farrell, Senior Financial Advisor with Dale Scott Company, presented the 
updated information to the Trustees.   Using the SCCS Employee Housing Survey from February 
2017, the best available site for this project was determined to be 313 Swift Street, Santa Cruz, 
CA.  A preliminary design of studio, one bedroom and two bedroom units was developed.  
Construction cost estimates were refined.  Conversations were held with Swift Street neighbors 
about a possible June 2019 project start date the City of Santa Cruz and community leaders 
regarding potential support from the November 2018 Ballot Measure H.  Estimated project 
costs, financing costs, a 30-year cash flow summary, project renderings and estimated next 
steps were shared with the Trustees.  Board Members asked questions, made comments and 
discussed this potential project. 
   
Public Comments:  GSCFT President Carlson stated for the record that the GSCFT is 
unequivocally in favor of this project housing both certificated and classified staff members. 
 
Although the report did not require official action by the Board, Mr. Gaffney did ask for a 
consensus about proceeding with next steps.  The Board Members agreed that the 
recommended next steps, including financing and development plans and permit and program 
requirements, should be taken.   


 
8.5.2.2. Staff Report: Opening Enrollment 


Mr. Gaffney reported to the Trustees regarding this matter.  Reported information reflected 
attendance by site on August 31, the 10th day of the school year, and the numbers represented 
the “head count” on that day.  Enrollment Counts include Special Day Class, absences, and 
students with no class during the period the count was performed.  The comparison of the 
8/31/18 attendance to the projected enrollment and to October 2017 CBEDS enrollment was 
summarized: Elementary Schools -115 students under budget projection and 236 students less 
than 2017 CBEDS; Secondary Schools - 83 students over budget projection and 117 students 
more than 2017 CBEDS.  The total district “head count” was 32 students under budget 
projection and 119 students less than 2017 CBEDS.  The Trustees asked questions, made 
comments and discussed the report information.   
 
Public Comments: GSCFT President Carlson shared that it would be helpful if the demographer 
would gather enrollment predictions from our feeder district demographers and factor this into 
our projections. 
 
This report was informational in nature, and no actions were taken by the Board of Education 
regarding this matter.   


 


13/503







 


 


 
8.5.2.3. New Business: Unaudited Actuals 2017-18 


Mr. Gaffney reported to the Trustees regarding this matter.  Mr. Gaffney reported that the 
Unrestricted Fund Balance for the district at the time the unaudited actuals were recently 
completed was greater than the projected balance in June 2018.  The balance was affected by a 
variety of issues: carry-over of donations and grants; professional development and special 
education reimbursements and decreased costs, etc.  The difference between the projected 
balance and the unaudited actuals is approximately 4%.  The district has language in the 
bargaining unit contracts to come back to the table and discuss these funds if the difference 
exceeds 2% - so meetings with the unions will be arranged.  A variety of additional next steps 
will be implemented by Business Services to ensure a more accurate estimate moving forward, 
including; more meetings with site personnel to review budgets and expenditures/carry-overs, 
monthly meetings with Business Directors to review budgets, adjusting the practice of 
“booking” revenue associated with reimbursements and a continued goal of less than a 2% 
variance between estimated balance and unaudited actuals balance.  Superintendent Munro 
shared that the District Administration would send an email to the Board Members in the near 
future with a timeline detailing these next steps.  Board Members asked questions, made 
comments and discussed the matter. 
 
Public Comments: GSCFT President Carlson thanked Pat for contacting her last Friday regarding 
this issue and for the commitment to honor the contract language for a new discussion.   Ms. 
Carlson shared that the most recent teacher survey revealed that 26% of our teachers are 
seriously exploring leaving the profession to find a career that provides a salary that keeps pace 
with the cost of living.  SCCCE President Brown shared that many of the classified workers make 
$13-14/hr. and work several jobs to live in Santa Cruz County.  Ms. Brown credited Mr. Gaffney 
for including the contract language to address variances larger than 2% and thanked both Mr. 
Gaffney and Ms. Parks for the collaborative setting of negotiations conversations. 
 
MSP (Tracy-Proulx/Perez-Granados) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the unaudited 
actuals for 2017-18.  Student Selvaratham abstained from making a recommendation on this 
matter. 


 
8.5.2.4. New Business: Proposal-Phil Allegri Electric-Harbor High School locker improvements security 


Board Member Shonick requested moving this item from the Consent Agenda for a separate 
discussion and vote.  Construction Project Facility Manager Garcia reported that this is a “pilot 
program” for the district to consider whether a more sophisticated security system will deter 
the number and severity of incidents at our school sites.  SCCS will determine the benefits vs. 
deficits of such a system and this knowledge will inform a larger discussion in the future.  Dr. 
Coonerty moved approval of the item and Ms. Tracy-Proulx seconded the motion.  The motion 
was approved by the following roll call vote: 


  Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Ranii – Yes Shonick – Yes 
    Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx-Yes  Vestal – Yes 
   


Student Selvaratham recommended a yes vote on this matter. 
 


 
 


14/503







 


 


8.5.3.1. New Business: Resolution 04-18-19 Administrator Appreciation Week, October 222-26, 2018 
Ms. Parks recommended approval of this annual resolution acknowledging our district 
administrators.  Ms. Threet moved approval and Dr. Ranii seconded the motion.   The motion 
was approved by the following roll call vote: 


  Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Ranii – Yes Shonick – Yes 
    Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx-Yes  Vestal – Yes 
   


Student Selvaratham recommended a yes vote on this matter. 
 


8.5.3.2. New Business: Resolution 05-18-19 Teacher Appreciation Week, May 6-10, 2019 
Ms. Parks recommended approval of this annual resolution acknowledging our district teachers.  
Ms. Threet moved approval and Dr. Perez-Granados seconded the motion.   The motion was 
approved by the following roll call vote: 


  Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Ranii – Yes Shonick – Yes 
    Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx-Yes  Vestal – Yes 
   


Student Selvaratham recommended a yes vote on this matter 
 


8.5.3.3. New Business: Resolution 06-18-19 Classified Employee Appreciation Week, May 20-24, 2019 
Ms. Parks recommended approval of this annual resolution acknowledging our district classified 
employees.  Dr. Perez-Granados moved approval and Ms. Threet seconded the motion.   The 
motion was approved by the following roll call vote: 


  Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Ranii – Yes Shonick – Yes 
    Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx-Yes  Vestal – Yes 
   


Student Selvaratham recommended a yes vote on this matter 
 
*Note: Student Selvaratham left the meeting at this time – 9:07 p.m. 
 
8.5.4.1. Information Item: Superintendent’s Goals 2018-19 


Superintendent Munro is committed to an open agenda and communication with Trustees, 
District Staff and the greater Santa Cruz school community as the district team works diligently 
to engage students’ hearts and minds - every student, every day.  Her report detailed goals and 
objectives for the 2018-19 school year.  Each of the following district goals was addressed by 
Superintendent Munro with a lengthy list of action items for district personnel:  
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
No actions were taken by the Board of Education regarding this matter. 


15/503







 


 


 
 
8.5.4.2. Discussion: Possible Items for Future Meeting Agendas 


The Trustees would like Mr. Gaffney to return at a future date to provide an update on the 
variance of the projected and actual unrestricted reserve fund balance. 


 
9.  Adjournment of Meeting 


As there was no further business to come before the Board of Education, Board President 
Vestal adjourned this Regular Meeting at 9:17 p.m. 


 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on September 26, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting on October 3, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


3. The Regular Meeting on October 17, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


4. The Regular Meeting on November 7, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


5. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on November 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High 
School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6. The Regular Meeting on December 12, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting on January 16, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


8. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on January 23, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High 
School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


9. The Regular Meeting on February 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


10. The Regular Meeting on February 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


11. The Regular Meeting on March 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


12. The Regular Meeting on March 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


13. The Regular Meeting on April 17, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


14. The Regular Meeting on May 15, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


15. The Regular Meeting on June 12, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


16. The Regular Meeting on June 19, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 
 


 


 


16/503







 


 


 


 


* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 
recording: 


 
 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Claudia Vestal, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


17/503







Personnel Actions - Certificated


Separator Page


18/503







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


  


  


  


AGENDA ITEM:                    Certificated Personnel Actions 


  


DATE:                                   September 26, 2018 


  


FROM:                                  Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 


  


THROUGH:                          Kris Munro, Superintendent 


  


  


  


  


Recommendation: 


We recommend the Board of Trustees approve the certificated personnel actions as 


submitted. 


  


Background: 


The attached certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance with District policy, 


California Education Code and the negotiated contract.  


 


This work is done in support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 


  


Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college 


and career opportunities. 


  


Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 


development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


  


Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 


groups within the SCCS student community. 


  


Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 


effective teaching. 


 


  


 


19/503







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.1 


 2018-2019 APPOINTMENTS: 


  


Certificated: 


  


Dana Cooper, 1.0 RTI Coordinator at Mission Hill Middle.  Dana’s educational background 


includes a BA in Theatre Arts from CSU Fresno.  Dana holds a Clear Single Subject Teaching 


Credential for Foundational Level Mathematics and an English Learners Authorization.  Her 


status is Probationary 1 and she has eight years of teaching experience. 


 


2018-2019 EXTRA WORK ASSIGNMENTS: 


 


Certificated: 


 


Ann Cleveland, Music Enrichment Provider, Westlake Elementary, 9/4/18 - 1/31/19, not to exceed 


140 hours 


 


Elizabeth Cochran, ELPAC Testing, Curriculum, Intervention and Assessment, 9/1/18 - 6/9/19, not 


to exceed 440 hours 


 


Bassel Faltas, After School Swim Lessons, Harbor High, 9/10/18 - 6/7/19, not to exceed 15 hours 


 


Victoria Finder, ELPAC Testing, Curriculum, Intervention and Assessment, 9/1/18 - 6/9/19, not to 


exceed 420  hours 


 


Virginia Hartman, Home & Hospital Teacher, Bay View Elementary, 8/22/18 - 6/7/19, not to 


exceed 100 hours 


 


Therese Johannesson, Music Enrichment Provider, Monarch Elementary, 9/26/18 - 3/27/19, not 


to exceed 100 hours 


 


Lizann Keyes, ELPAC Testing, Curriculum, Intervention and Assessment, 9/1/18 - 6/9/19, not to 


exceed 365  hours 


 


Rhonda Levine, ELPAC Testing, Curriculum, Intervention and Assessment, 9/1/18 - 6/9/19, not to 


exceed 335  hours 


 


Patty Matteis, ELPAC Testing, Curriculum, Intervention and Assessment, 9/1/18 - 6/9/19, not to 


exceed 320  hours 


 


20/503







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.1 


2018-2019 EXTRA WORK ASSIGNMENTS (continued): 


 


Certificated: 


 


Judith Meyer, After School Learning Center, Harbor High, 9/5/18 - 6/7/19, not to exceed 52 hours 


 


Ruth Smith, ELPAC Testing, Curriculum, Intervention and Assessment, 9/1/18 - 6/9/19, not to 


exceed 180 hours 


 


Noreen Winkler, ELPAC Testing, Curriculum, Intervention and Assessment, 9/1/18 - 6/9/19, not to 


exceed 500  hours 


 


21/503







Personnel Actions - Classified


Separator Page


22/503







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           


 


AGENDA ITEM:        Classified Personnel Actions 


  


MEETING DATE:      September 26, 2018    


 


FROM:                   Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 


  


THROUGH:            Kris Munro, Superintendent   


  


  


Recommendation: 


We recommend the Board of Trustees approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 


    


Background: 


The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, 


SCCCE Agreement and the Merit Rules. 


 


This work is done in support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 


 


Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 


career opportunities. 


  


Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 


development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


  


Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 


groups within the SCCS student community. 


  


Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 


effective teaching. 


 


  


  


 


  


  


23/503







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


  


CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS 


  


Reviewed by Classified Personnel Director: Keneé Houser 9/19/2018 


 


 •Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments• 


Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular): 


Ferrell, Laurie, Occupational Therapist - WL, 4.8hrs/10mo, effective, 8/24/18  


Huerta, Elva, School Bus Driver - TR, 40hrs/9mos, effective 8/19/18 


Layne, Sean, School Bus Driver - TR, 40hrs/9mos, effective 9/10/18 


Mendez, Felipe, Paraeducator-SPED - SQ, 25hrs/9mos, effective 9/13/18 


Pimentel, Josefina, Campus Safety Supervisor - SQ, 40hrs/9mos, effective 9/10/18   


Reber, Michelle, Food Service Worker I - SQ, 17.5hrs/9mos, effective 9/10/18 


Rosalba, Laura, Paraeducator-Afterschool Programs - BM, 10hrs/9mos, effective 8/21/18 


Vargas, Alexis, Paraeducator, 7.5hrs/9mos, Paraeducator Academic Intervention, 7.5hrs/9mos, 


and Yard Duty, 4.5hrs/9mos, - GA, effective 8/21/18  


Wong, Daisy, Food Service Worker I - MH, 17.5hrs/9mos, effective 9/05/18 


Re-Hired:  


Barnes, Linda, Paraeducator - 18.5hrs/9mos - SMSC, effective, 9/10/18 


Promotion: 


Robinson, Ashley from L/O Primary Intervention Student Asst. - BV, 15hrs/9mos to Behavior 


Technician - SPED, 26hrs/9mos, effective, 8/21/18  


Sihler, Kris, from School Bus Drive,  40hrs/10mos, to Trainer/Lead School Bus Driver - TR,  


40hrs/11mos, effective 9/11/18 


Reclassification: 


Trinchero, Suzanne - 40 hrs/12mos, from Senior Accountant to Supervisor-Finance, FI, effective 


7/1/18 


Demotion:  


None 


Increase/Reduction in FTE - Months/Hours of Service: 


Buckley, Trevor, Associate Mental Health Specialist Intern - SC, increase  from 15hrs/9mos to 


26hrs/9mos, effective 8/22/18  


DeMarco, Roxana, Yard Duty - WL,  from 4.64hrs/9mos to 5.06hrs/9mos, effective 8/3/18 


24/503







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


Higgins, Tamara, Career Development Specialist-HH, from 19hrs/9mos to 12 hrs/9mos, effective 


8/21/18    


Kimpton, Reyena, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention-SS, increase from 15 hrs/9mos to 19.5 


hrs/9/mos, effective 8/21/18  


Ramirez, Denise, Yard Duty Monitor-WL, increase from 1.68 hrs/9mos to 2.1 hrs/9mos  


Taylor, Kiefer, Accompanist - SQ, decrease from 12.5hrs/9mos to 11hrs/9mos, effective 8/21/18 


Additional FTE/Position:  


Vega, Israel, Behavior Technician - PBIS - BV , 15hrs/9mos - BV, effective 9/4/18  


39-Mo Reinstatement: 


None 


39-Mo Reinstatement w/Increase in FTE:  


None 


63-Mo Reinstatement: 


None 


Transfer:  


Chacanaca, Robert, Campus Safety Supervisor, from SQ to BMS, effective, 8/21/18  


Transfer W/Increase FTE: 


None 


Provisional Assignments (not to exceed 90 working days):  


None 


Leave of Absence:  


None 


Separation from Service: 


Chen, Christine, Health Office Asst. 15hrs/9mos - WL, resignation, effective 7/27/18 


Lazo, Irwing, Health Office Asst. 10hrs/9mos and Attendance Technician - 30hrs/9mos - SMSC, 


resignation, effective 9/11/18 


Ledesma, Shane, Office Assistant - 15 hrs/12mos - HR, resignation, effective 8/17/18 


Manako, Annie, Paraeducator - 7.5hrs/9mos and Paraeducator-Academic Intervention 


7.5hrs/9mos - BV, resignation, effective 9/13/18 


Morales,  Anna, Paraeducator - Academic Intervention - DL, 15hrs/9mos, resignation, effective 


8/30/18  


Perez, Katya, Paraeducator - After School Programs - MH, resignation, effective 6/7/18 


Poynter, Barbara, Day Custodian - BV, 40hrs/12mos, leave exhausted, effective 8/28/18 


25/503







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


Rosalba, Laura, Paraeducator - Afterschool Programs - BM,  10hrs/9mos, resignation, effective 


9/6/18  


Talagtag, Shirley - Library/Media Asst - SC - 17.5hrs/9mos, resignation, effective 6/11/18 


Retirement: 


Ericksen, Cynthia, Food Service Worker III - FS, 32.5hrs/9mos, effective 12/29/18 


 


•Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes: • 


New Temporary Employees/EWA: 


Baxley, Leda, Temp Paraeducator - HH, effective 9/18/18 


Davis, Paige, Temp Paraeducator - HH, effective 8/22/18 


Lu, Yucheng, Temp Paraeducator - HH, effective 8/22/18 


Shulman, Brian, Temp Yard Duty - WL, effective 9/5/18 


Stuart, Emily, Temp Paraeducator - HH, effective 9/5/18 


Walls, April, Substitute/Temp Paraeducator - Site & Dept. to vary, effective 9/11/18 


Existing Temporary Employees/EWA: 


Waters, Sierra, Campus Supervisor - HH, not to exceed 76hrs, 8/15/18 to 6/7/19  


Existing Regular Employees/EWA: 


Ashton, Gerri, Paraeducator-Special Education - SE , not to exceed 50hrs, 8/30/18 to 6/7/19 


Garcia, Joanna, School Administrative Assistant II - HH, not to exceed 15hrs, 9/6/18 to 6/7/19 


Ledbetter, Dorothee, BSS-Library/Media Ass’t - CU, not to exceed 750hrs, 6/11/18 6/15/19 


Martinez, Manuel, Warehouse Worker FNS -  FS,  not to exceed 100hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19  


Martinez-Garzia, Perla, Behavior Technician- PBIS - GA, not to exceed 144hrs, 8/22/18 to 6/5/19 


Morris, Megan, Behavior Technician SPED - SE, not to exceed 15hrs, 8/16/18 to 6/9/19 


Navaroli, Gina, Central Kitchen Coordinator - FS, not to exceed 110hrs, 7/1/18 to 8/30/18 


Navaroli, Gina, Central Kitchen Coordinator - FS, not to exceed 15hrs, 7/1/18 to 8/17/18 


Netto, John, Delivery Driver FNS - FS, not to exceed 50hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Nolazco, Guadalupe, Health Office Assistant - SS, not to exceed 15hrs, 8/1/18 to 9/30/18  


Perez, Ricardo, Night Custodian - MO, not to exceed 180hrs, 7/16/18 to 6/30/19  


Robinson, Ashley, Behavior Technician SPED - SE, not to exceed 110hrs, 8/8/18 to 6/6/19 


Sliney, Lisa, Health Office Assistant - SS, not to exceed 15hrs, 8/1/18 to 9/30/18 


Struckmeyer, Hailie, Behavior Technician SPED - SE, not to exceed 15hrs, 8/16/18 to 6/6/19  


Vienna, Lori, Health Office Assistant - SS, not to exceed 15hrs, 8/1/18 to 9/30/18  


Limited Term Retiree (not to exceed 960 hours per Government Code 21153): 


26/503







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


Young, Jacqueline, Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 100hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Webber, Melissa, Payroll Technician - BS, not to exceed 100hrs, 7/2/18 to 12/31/18 


Whitley, Priscilla, Food Service Worker I - FS, not to exceed 25hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Out of Class: 


None 


 


•Employment Actions Concerning Exempt Assignments from the Classified Service• 


Stipend: 


None  


Playground Recess Coach, Yard Duty, Child Care: 


Dew, Christopher, Playground Recess Coach - BV, not to exceed 550hrs, 8/22/18 to 6/6/19 


Stephens, Debra, Yard Duty - BV, not to exceed 275hrs, 08/22/18 to 6/6/19 


•Eligibility Lists Established• 


Paraeducator (bilingual)  


Paraeducator - Special Education 


Textbook Media Assistant  


Behavior Technician - Special Education 


27/503







Purchase Orders, Bids & Quotes Warrant Register


Separator Page


28/503







1DODD_ATJEUB-AA7F81CA55A44C4584171853D868129E8 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3 


    


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 


AGENDA ITEM: Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids  
 
MEETING DATE: September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:   Patrick Gaffney, Asst. Supt., Business Services 
 
THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the purchase orders, quotes and bids 
as submitted. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A detailed report is attached, listing purchase orders, quotes and bids that require Board 
approval prior to release to vendors.  The following definitions are provided to clarify the 
differences between purchase orders, quotes and bids: 
 


Purchase Orders: For purchases routine in nature and over $2,500 but under the amount 
required for a quote. 


 
Quotes:  When purchases will be $6,500 to $15,000 for contracted work or 


$12,000 to $90,200 for materials/supplies, several vendors are 
contacted for written quotations.  This process, though not as rigorous 
as a bid, insures that the District has involved more than one vendor 
and will secure a competitive price. 


 
Bids:  A formal process including advertising to notify prospective bidders, 


distribution of written specification regarding the work or materials, 
and compliance with legal guidelines for bidding, must be followed for 
contracted work projected to cost $15,000 and over, or for materials 
and supplies in the sum of $90,200 or over.  Bids are solicited from a 
wide pool of prospective vendors, thus assuring that when the award is 
made to the lowest responsible bidder, the District receives the best 
price available. 


29/503







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


September 26, 2018 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


 
M:\1DODD_ATJEUB-35E4D9C509C24F0DB6ECE5152036CC43.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  


 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


19-00812 Harbor High $3,125.35 Activate Learning Textbooks.  Lottery. 


19-01091 Soquel High $40,000.00 BSN Sports Open Order for Athletic 
Uniforms/Supplies.  Measure O. 


19-00900 Gault $6,000.00 Bay Area Glad CSA for Professional 
Development.  Title I. 


19-00920 Harbor High $579,900.43 Belli Architectural Project Amendment – Architect, 
DSA Fees, Reimbursements & 
Construction Mgmt.  Bond, 
Measure A. 


19-01017 IT 9,687.45 Blackboard Inc. Mass Notification System.  
Unrestricted. 


19-00874 


19-00875 


Soquel High $2,269.65 


$2,839.76 


$5,109.41 


CDWG Epson Powerlite. 


Elmo Document Camera.  
Unrestricted. 


19-00889 Ed Services $3,377.00 CSLA Conference Registration for eight 
(8).  Unrestricted. 


19-00169 Various $3,000.00 Clean Team Assoc. Change Order for Homeless 
Camp Clean ups.  Ongoing Maint. 


19-00895 Various $21,833.00 Coast Paper  Open Order for Cleaning 
Supplies.  Unrestricted. 


19-00894 CAI $10,037.50 Curriculum Assoc. i-Ready Student Licenses and 
Webinar.  Unrestricted. 


19-01067 Bay View $3,391.29 Dilbeck & Sons Confirming for Payment – Dry 
Rot Repairs.  Deferred Maint. 


19-00341 District Office $2,850.00 E-3 Systems Change Order to cover additional 
Cabling.  Building Fund. 


19-01089 Santa Cruz High $5,620.92 EAI Education Fifty (50) Calculators.  Title I. 


19-00885 Soquel High $2,617.99 Follett Textbooks.  Lottery. 


19-00897 Natural Bridges $167,000.00 Fresh Start Painting Gym Modernization Phase I – 
Painting.  Bond, Measure B. 


19-00873 Harbor High $3,533.45 Henry Schein Inc. Medical Equipment.  Career 
Technical Education. 


19-00899 Finance $5,000.00 Jerene Lacey CSA for Finance Consultant 
Services.  Unrestricted. 


30/503







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


September 26, 2018 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


 
M:\1DODD_ATJEUB-35E4D9C509C24F0DB6ECE5152036CC43.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  


 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


19-00896 Superintendent $20,000.00 Carolyn Post CSA Coaching Services for 
Superintendent and Trustees.  
Unrestricted. 


19-00912 Facilities $5,000.00 Register Pajaronian Open Order for Bond 
Advertising.  Bond, Measure A & 
B. 


19-01079 Santa Cruz High $3,000.00 Rio Grande Open Order for Jewelry supplies. 
Lottery. 


19-00911 Transportation $10,000.00 San Jose Charters Open Order for Football 
Transportation.  Unrestricted. 


19-01090 Soquel High $5,909.16 School Outfitters 200 Folding Chairs for the Multi-
Purpose Room.  Facility Use 
Fees. 


19-00600 Various $2,500.00 School Site Solutions Reimbursables for Bond 
Consulting Services.  Bond, 
Measures A & B. 


19-00919 Harbor High $7,500.00 Schutt Reconditioning Open Order for Football 
Reconditioning.  Unrestricted. 


19-00826 Santa Cruz High $5,659.31 Wenger Corp. Chairs, Chair Cart, Desks for 
Music Class.  Capital Facilities 
Fund. 


19-00173 Various $20,950.00 Sycamore Farms Change Order for Goat Weed 
Abatement.  Ongoing Maint. 


19-01092 Various $30,000.00 UCSC AVID Tutors – Work Study 
Program.  Title I. 


19-01093 Finance $414,093.76 US Bank  2018 Certificates of Participation 
– 2010 Refinancing Project.  
Building Fund – Elementary and 
Secondary. 


31/503







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


September 26, 2018 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


 
M:\1DODD_ATJEUB-35E4D9C509C24F0DB6ECE5152036CC43.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  


 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


19-01068 


19-01070 


19-01071 


19-01074 


19-01075 


19-01087 


Harbor High 


DeLaveaga 


Westlake 


Adult Ed 


DeLaveaga 


Santa Cruz High 


$3,279.89 


$3,389.00 


$1,799.00 


$3,668.00 


$1,795.00 


$5,279.00 


$19,209.89 


Western Design Confirming for Payment – Carpet 
Installation.  Deferred Maint. 


60104 Special Ed. $132,780.00 Alpine Academy Out-of-State NPS for basic ed, 
mental health counseling and 
residential placement services 
for a new student during the 
2018-19 school year. Special Ed. 


60113 Special Ed. $129,821.16 Logan River Academy Out-of-State NPS for basic ed., 
mental health counseling, 
speech/language therapy and 
residential placement services 
for a new student during the 
2018-19 School year.  Special Ed. 


 


32/503







Budget Transfers


Separator Page


33/503







  


                        


                      


  AGENDA ITEM: 
8.1.5  
M:\1DODD_ATJEUB-206F9AA15B02432BBF0523782704A6DD.docx 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Budget Transfers  
 
MEETING DATE:   September 26, 2018 
  
FROM:               Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent of Business 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve 2018-2019 budget transfers dated 
from 8/1/18 through 8/31/18, BE#173274– 179856.  The report follows.  Hard copy of the 
report is available for public review at the Board Meeting. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Ed Code 42600 requires that the Board approve budget transfers that are made between major 
expense object codes, or from reserves. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
  


34/503







35/503







36/503







37/503







38/503







39/503







40/503







41/503







42/503







43/503







44/503







45/503







46/503







47/503







48/503







49/503







50/503







51/503







52/503







53/503







54/503







55/503







56/503







57/503







58/503







59/503







60/503







61/503







62/503







63/503







Gift


Separator Page


64/503







Kris Munro 


Superintendent of 


Schools 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


133 Mission Street, Suite 100, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 | (831) 429-3410 ext. 220 | kmunro@sccs.net 


 


Board of Trustees 


Sheila Coonerty, Deedee Perez-Granados, Cindy Ranii, Jeremy Shonick, Patricia Threet, Deborah Tracy-Proulx, Claudia Vestal 


 


 ` 


 


 


 


 


 
Santa Cruz Education Foundation       September 27, 2018 
Post Office Box 8501 
Santa Cruz, CA 95061-8501 
 
Dear Partners in Education, 
 
On behalf of Santa Cruz City Schools and its Board of Trustees, I would like to thank you for the recent 
generous donation of $3,420.00 to be applied towards Kids Explore After School during the 2018-19 school 
year. 
 
The support of dedicated parents, staff, community members, non-profits and businesses continues to help 
Santa Cruz City Schools provide outstanding opportunities for both students and staff. 
 
Your gift is tax deductible as a charitable contribution to an educational organization, as defined by the 
Internal Revenue Code Sections 170(a) and (b) (1) (A) (ii). 
 
We receive many inquiries from the public asking if Santa Cruz City Schools is a 501(c) or a charitable  
non-profit organization.  In fact, the District is neither of these, because, as a political subdivision of the 
State of California, it is a government entity.   
 
Once again, thank you for supporting public education. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
           
          AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.6. 


65/503







Disposition of Surplus Property


Separator Page


66/503







      AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.7 
M:\1DODD_ATJEUB-2FC877EF7B654D3E8174956627A79F46.DOC 


 
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Disposition of Surplus Property  
 
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, 
Business Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property on the attached 
list(s) in accordance with Board Policy 3270 and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Education Code Section 17545(a) provides that the Board of Education may sell for cash any 
personal property belonging to the District if the property is not required for school purposes, 
or if it should be disposed of for the purpose of replacement, or if it is unsatisfactory or not 
suitable for school use. (b) The governing board may choose to conduct any sale of personal 
property authorized under this section by means of a public auction conducted by employees 
of the district or other public agencies, or by contract with a private auction firm. The board 
may delegate to the district employee responsible for conducting the auction the authority to 
transfer the personal property to the highest responsible bidder upon completion of the 
auction and after payment has been received by the district.  
 
Section 17546(a) If the governing board, by a unanimous vote of those members present, finds 
that the property, whether one or more items, does not exceed in value the sum of two 
thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500), it may be sold at private sale without advertising, by 
any employee of the district empowered for that purpose by the board. (b) Any item or items 
of property having previously been offered for sale pursuant to Section 17545, but for which 
no qualified bid was received, may be sold at private sale without advertising by any employee 
of the district empowered for that purpose by the board.  (c) If the board, by a unanimous vote 
of those members present, finds that the property is of insufficient value to defray the costs of 
arranging a sale, the property may be donated to a charitable organization deemed 
appropriate by the board, or it may be disposed of in the local public dump on order of any 
employee of the district empowered for that purpose by the board. 
 
Per Ed Code 60530(b), instructional materials may be destroyed by any economical means, 
provided that no instructional material shall be destroyed until 30 days after the governing 
board has given notice to all persons who have filed a request for such notice. 
 


67/503







SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 


MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 26, 2018 
 


SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST 
 


Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  


                 
SITE:  MISSION HILL MIDDLE SCHOOL 


        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 


 


1. Two four drawer filing cabinets None   10 years Broken 0 


       
     Total 0 


  
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 


       


68/503







Community Advisory Committee (CAC) Member


Approval: Julie Lattin


Separator Page


69/503







 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.8. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 


AGENDA ITEM:  Community Advisory Committee (CAC) Member Approval 
 
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 


FROM:  Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 


THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 


RECOMMENDATION: 


Approve parent Julie Lattin for membership in the Community Advisory Committee (CAC) for 
the 2018-19 and 2019-20 school years. 


 
BACKGROUND: 


The CAC serves as an advisory body to the North Santa Cruz County Special Education Local 


Planning Area (SELPA) Governance Council and the SELPA Director.  Membership on the CAC is 


for two consecutive school years. 


FISCAL IMPACT:  


None 


 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


70/503







Resolution 11-18-19 GANN Limits Revised


Separator Page


71/503







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.9 
M:\1DODD_ATJEUB-7535B61CE7EF4E6281E684751F982A26.DOCX 


 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 


 
AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution # 11-18-19:  Approval of Gann Limit Calculations for 2017-18 and  
      2018-19 – REVISED RESOLUTION 
 
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:     Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution # 11-18-19, adopting the recalculated Gann Limit for fiscal year 2017-18 and the 
Gann Limit calculation for 2018-19. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On September 12, 2018, the Board of Trustees approved Resolution # 7-18-19, adopting the Gann Limit 
and approving Gann Limit recalculations for 2017-18 and calculations for 2018-19 for the District.  It was 
later discovered that the Resolution contained a typographical error, stating that “the appropriations in 
the Budget for the 2017-18 and 2018-19 fiscal years do not exceed the limitations imposed by 
Proposition 4.”  The Resolution should have stated that the appropriations “do exceed” those 
limitations.  The Resolution has been edited and is submitted again for the Board’s formal approval.  
There is no penalty for the District having exceeded the Gann Limitations.  It is merely a statement of 
facts. 
 
In November 1979, the California electorate passed Proposition 4, commonly referred to as the "Gann 
Amendment," to the California Constitution.  The Gann Amendment requires each government agency 
and school district in California to adopt an expenditure limitation based upon its appropriations in 
1978-79, adjusted by the annual changes in the consumer price index and annual changes in population.  
This is a routine resolution presented to the Board annually since the passage of Proposition 4.  When 
the State Legislature enacted Senate Bill 98 and Assembly Bill 198 in 1989 to implement Proposition 98, 
the legislation also amended the statutes governing how to calculate appropriations limits and the State 
aid subject to those limits.  
 
The worksheet recalculates the prior year (2017-18) Gann Limit based on actual ADA and revenues, and 
calculates the current year 2018-19 Gann Limit based on projected ADA and budgeted revenues.   
 


 2017-18 2018-19 
Preliminary Gann Appropriations Limit $58,719,542 $59,692,997 
Appropriations Subject to Gann Limit $59,434,164  


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
See above. 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


72/503







 REVISED  


AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.3 
M:\1DODD_ATJEUB-6C9EB7E3B91844A09FB570F6C6F22F4F.DOC 


 A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE 
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 RESOLUTION # 11-18-19 
 RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE GANN LIMIT AND 
  APPROVING GANN LIMIT RECALCULATIONS FOR 2017-18  
 AND CALCULATIONS FOR 2018-19 
 FOR THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
  
WHEREAS, in November of 1979, the California electorate did adopt Proposition 4, commonly called the Gann 
Amendment, which added Article XIII-B to the California Constitution; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the provisions of that Article establish maximum appropriation limitations, commonly called "Gann 
Limits," for public agencies, including school districts; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the District must establish a revised Gann limit for the 2017-18 fiscal year and a projected Gann limit 
for the 2018-19 fiscal year for the Santa Cruz City School District in accordance with the provisions of Article XIII-B 
and applicable statutory law; and 
 
WHEREAS, Government Code Section 7902.1 provides that school districts may increase their Gann Limits under 
specified circumstances; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that this Board does provide public notice that the attached calculations and 
documentation of the Gann limits for the 2017-18 and 2018-19 fiscal years for the Santa Cruz City Elementary 
School District are made in accordance with applicable constitutional and statutory law; 
 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Board does hereby declare that the appropriations in the Budget for the 
2017-18 and 2018-19 fiscal years do exceed the limitations imposed by Proposition 4; 
 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Superintendent provide copies of this resolution along with the 
appropriate attachments to interested citizens of the Santa Cruz City School District. 
 
ADOPTED this 26th day of September, 2018, by the Board of Education of Santa Cruz City Schools by the following 
roll call vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT OR NOT VOTING:         


 
  


_____________________________________________________ 
President of the Governing Board of Santa Cruz City Schools 


Attested to: 
 


 
 


_______________________________________________ 
Secretary of the Governing Board of Santa Cruz City Schools 


73/503







74/503







75/503







76/503







Out of State Travel: Special Education


Separator Page


77/503







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.10. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Out-of-State Travel  –  Special Education Assessment 
 
MEETING DATE: September 26, 2018 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve out-of-state travel for the Special Education Director to travel to Utah to visit five 
students who are placed in residential treatment programs due to their special education 
needs. The purpose of the visit is to monitor progress of said students and ensure 
implementation of each students’ Individualized Education Program (IEP). 


 
BACKGROUND: 
In accordance with Board Policy 3350; all out-of-state travel for which reimbursement will be 
claimed requires Board approval. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Total expenses associated with this trip will be paid for out of Special Education Administrative 
funds.  Every effort will be made to contain these costs. 
 
Itemized receipts are required for reimbursement. 
 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 


Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 


Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community.  
 


 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


78/503







4th Quarter Investment Report


Separator Page


79/503







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.9 
 
1DODD_ATJEUB-D5311AD5CC564D0B8728DB21B29D6EC8 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Investment Report for the Quarter Ending 6/30/18  
 
MEETING DATE: September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:   Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Accept the 4th Quarter Investment Report for 2018-19. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
SB564, effective January 1, 1996, requires local governments in California, including school 
districts, to make quarterly reports to the Governing Board on the investments of the agency. 
 
District cash for all funds is on deposit with and is invested by the Santa Cruz County Auditor-
Controller.  The report of interest rates for the period 7/1/17 through 6/30/18 is attached.  The 
Quarterly Investment Report from the Santa Cruz County Treasurer's Office is an insert to the 
Board agenda book.  
 
The quarterly interest rate that applies to all funds has been: 
 


   1st Q 2nd Q 3rd Q 4th Q   


  2011-12 0.542% 0.501% 0.449% 0.426%   


  2012-13 0.398% 0.374% 0.317% 0.293%   


  2013-14 0.324% 0.334% 0.384% 0.396%   


  2014-15 0.409% 0.425% 0.498% 0.517%   


  2015-16 0.623% 0.585% 0.676% 0.723%   


  2016-17 0.777% 0.764% 0.912% 0.965%   


  2017-18 0.977% 1.081% 1.307% 1.456%   


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The table above shows the interest rates in all funds since 2011-12. The interest earned year to 
date through the 4th Quarter of 2017-18 was $1,254,874. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


80/503







81/503







82/503







83/503







84/503







85/503







86/503







87/503







88/503







89/503







90/503







91/503







92/503







93/503







94/503







95/503







96/503







97/503







98/503







99/503







100/503







101/503







102/503







103/503







104/503







105/503







106/503







107/503







108/503







109/503







110/503







111/503







112/503







Revised Classified Job Description: Campus Supervisor


Separator Page


113/503







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.12 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Campus Safety Supervisor Job Description Revised   
      
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approval of revised job description.   
 
Background: 
This job description was revised to include essential duties and responsibilities as Campus 
Safety Supervisor that were inadvertently omitted from the approved job description in April 
2018.   The revised description includes duties that were in original job description and support 
the sites’ needs. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None 
 
 
This work is in support of the following District Goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management.  


114/503







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


CAMPUS SAFETY SUPERVISOR 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Site Administrator and/or Principal, provide campus security and monitor              
student behavior at assigned school site; serve as first responders in medical and non-medical situations,               
arguments, altercations, conflicts and classroom and school campus disorder and disruptions; ensure            
student compliance with school and District rules and procedures.  
 


ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  
● Provide for the safety and supervision of students on campus; serve as first responders to               


campus emergency situations including physical altercations and confrontations, anti-social,         
illegal or violent behaviors and medical and physical hazards; respond to fire and burglar alarms. 


● Supervise assigned areas of campus; ensure students are safe, orderly and within assigned             
areas; escort and direct authorized visitors to desired destinations; respond to student behavior             
issues in classrooms; monitor campus parking lots; secure campus perimeter. 


● Monitor designated areas including lunch areas, walkways, restrooms, parking lots and adjacent 
areas before, during and after school hours; ensure students park in designated student parking 
spaces and lots; monitor and direct campus traffic; place traffic barriers to guide traffic; monitor 
traffic and student activity during school events.  


● Investigate and report unusual, suspicious or criminal activities; notify students for detention and             
Saturday school; provide campus supervision at throughout the entire school day. 


● Assist with escorting staff and students to the office upon request, including students and staff               
who are injured; check on students who are not in class during designated periods and follow up                 
on reason for being out of class; direct tardy students to go to appropriate school office. 


● Escort delinquent students to and from administration offices; retrieve students as requested by             
administrators. 


● Review substitute teacher list daily; ensure assigned substitute teachers able to enter classroom;             
follow-up with substitute teachers throughout the day. 


● Assist in Health Office to monitor sick or injured students. 
● Support students with positive school attendance by following up with students and families.  
● Check license plates for identification of vehicles on campus; ensure all campus vehicles are              


provided and display assigned parking permits.  
● Operate computer to respond to emails; utilize database to review and record students in              


detention and Saturday school; operate a two-way radio as assigned; drive a vehicle to conduct               
work. 


● Supervise detention and other student interventions as needed. 
● Support site Administrators to prepare and carry out safety drills; restock safety supplies. 


 
 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and two years in campus safety              
monitoring and supervision. 


 


Campus Safety Supervisor Page 1 of 3 
 


115/503







 


 
Licenses and other Requirements 


● Valid Class C California Driver's License. 
● Valid First Aid and CPR Certificate and/or verification that such certification is in progress. 


 
Knowledge of:  


● Basic methods of individual and group supervision. 
● Basic interests, attitudes and emotional development of adolescents. 
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Health and safety regulations. 
● Conflict resolution methods and techniques. 
● Operation of a computer and assigned software. 
● Basic first aid and CPR procedures. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy. 
● Basic report preparation techniques. 


 
Ability to: 


● Patrol and supervise campus activities to ensure the well-being and safety of students and staff in                
non-classroom activities. 


● Ensure student compliance with school and organizational policies and regulations. 
● Investigate occurrences of property damage and suspicious or criminal activity. 
● Learn, apply and explain organizational policies, rules and regulations related to parking and             


security of buildings and grounds. 
● Prevent or address student conflicts and fights. 
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others. 
● Understand and follow oral and written instructions. 
● Prepare incident reports. 
● Maintain confidentiality of student and staff information. 
● Determine appropriate action within clearly defined guidelines. 
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing. 
● Observe health and safety regulations. 
● Physically capable to respond quickly to emergencies. 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Outdoor environment. 
● Seasonal heat and cold or adverse weather conditions. 
● Driving a vehicle to conduct work. 


 
 


Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an                 
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may             
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Seeing to monitor student activities. 
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a vehicle. 
● Sitting, standing and walking for extended periods of time.  
● Lifting and carrying heavy objects. 


Campus Safety Supervisor Page 2 of 3 
 


116/503







 


● Physically capable to respond quickly to emergencies. 
● Reaching overhead and above shoulders.  
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching. 


 


Hazard: 


● Potential physical hazards involved in intervening in fights and other anti-social, illegal and violent              
behavior. 


● Contact with dissatisfied or abusive individuals. 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 04/10/18 


Approved by Governing Board: 04/25/18 


Salary Range:  26 


 


Campus Safety Supervisor Page 3 of 3 
 


117/503







Education Services/Curriculum: MAP/CPAA Assessment


Purchase Contract


Separator Page


118/503







                         


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Assessment and Progress Monitoring Tools 
      
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the contract for the Northwest Evaluation Association (NWEA) Measure of Academic 
Progress (MAP). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
At SCCS, we are using the Response to Intervention (RtI) framework to provide a systematic 
approach for meeting every child’s academic and social-emotional needs. As part of the RtI 
framework, it is essential that we have universal screeners for both math and English. A 
universal screener is an assessment given to all students for the purpose of providing an 
objective check or measure of each student’s level of learning. In addition, it is also essential 
that we have objective and valid progress monitoring tools for measuring student growth and 
progress throughout the year. We are currently in year two of using NWEA’s Measure of 
Academic Progress (MAP) nationally normed academic assessment for math and reading. 
 
The primary counterpart to MAP is the CPAA - Children's’ Progress Academic Assessment. The 
CPAA is shorter and more primary oriented assessment that will measure growth over the year. 
The CPAA is to be given three times a year in Kinder and first grade. 
 
MAP Growth Assessment System: 
● Targeted Students -  


○ Kindergarten - 1st Grade are taking the NWEA Children’s Progress Academic 
Assessment (CPAA) 


○ 2nd - 10th Grades are taking the MAP Growth Assessments in Reading and Math 
○ 2nd - 5th Grades in TWI program will take MAP Growth in Spanish  
○ MAP Growth Science is optional for middle and high school 
○ MAP Growth Spanish Math Supplement for Newcomers (English Learners that have 


lived in the US for less than 3 years and have little to no English language proficiency). 
 


● Number of students served = 6,000 
 
● CPAA/MAP Purpose and Goals 


○ Provide schools with a universal screener as well as a progress monitoring nationally 


norm referenced tool for determining their students’ current skills and areas of 


readiness to learn new skills. 


119/503







                         


 


○ Provide valuable and meaningful data that teachers can immediately use to help inform 


instruction to meet specific areas of student need. 


○ Empower students to set clear and purposeful goals based on data to track their 


growth and progress. 


○ Give teachers, schools, and the district data points on the effectiveness of Tier 1 


instructional practices - practices which provide all our students with foundational skills 


prior to intervention. 


 


● MAP Strengths 
○ The type of actionable, accurate data about each student and class that a teacher will 


get from MAP has great potential to impact instruction, as well as impact each 
student’s ability to better understand their own level of learning and make realistic 
goals for growth. 


○ MAP Growth assessments not only assess Math and Reading, but they also assess 
Language and Science. 


○ MAP Growth assessments are also available in Spanish, which means our Newcomers 
and students in our primary language programs would be able to access them. 


○ MAP Growth provides many different data report types specifically for the district, 
teacher, and student/parent.   


○ MAP Growth assessments also align with the Common Core State Standards (CCSS) and 
have a report that predicts CAASPP scores. In speaking with other local districts using 
MAP, they say the CAASPP predictions are very accurate. 


 
● MAP Successes  


○ All schools (elementary, middle, and high) have completed one year of CPAA/MAP 
testing and we are continuing to refine the assessment administration. 


○ Teachers and PLCs are using MAP data to varying degrees. This is going to be an area of 
focus for this school year. 


○ MAP data is being used by RtI Coordinators and schools to ensure all students are 
making academic progress, and if not, moving students to interventions to provide 
more support. 


 
● Areas of Needed Improvement 


○ Internet bandwidth is better, but still not quite what we need it to be.  This causes 
Chromebooks to be slow and only one to two classes can take the assessments at a 
time. 


○ On-site tech support is desired because of the number of technology issues that arise 
when testing. 


○ On-going training for all teachers, PLCs, and administrators so they can access the 
reports and know how to use them. 


 
 
 
 


120/503







                         


 


● Evaluation Criteria  
○ We are developing the process for evaluating CPAA and MAP. We will use the student 


growth data collected from MAP as well as get teacher and RtI Coordinator input.  
○ We will know MAP is successful if teachers are using it to inform instruction and 


students increase their growth in reading and math as measured by MAP.  
○ Because MAP is new, we will be revisiting its implementation and its effectiveness 


throughout this school year as well as throughout 2019-20. We will actively refine our 
testing process as well as our processes for analyzing and acting upon the MAP Growth 
data to impact student learning over the next 3 years.  At that time, we will make a 
final determination regarding MAP’s effectiveness, assuming that there are no major 
issues or reasons for discontinuing its use. 


 
● Data from MAP 


○ MAP returns useful data in several key ways: overall proficiency (which correlates well 
with CAASPP) and growth, which compares the amount of growth our students achieve 
compared with expected growth based on the norm referenced group. 


○ MAP has a strong CAASPP correlation, and we are using this to predict the percent of 
students that are going to “Meet” or “Exceed” the standard on CAASPP.  In elementary 
and middle, this prediction tool was very accurate. The graphs below indicate the 
correlation between the 2017-18 MAP Reading and Mathematics results and the 2017-
18 CAASPP results: 


 


 


121/503







                         


 


 
 


○ The metrics below are metrics we are using to monitor student achievement in 
specific, key academic years. While we monitor the individual growth of each student, 
we monitor our three academic strategic focus areas (academic literacy, mathematics, 
and English Learner progress) at each of the following grade spans:  


■ 3rd Grade Reading 
■ 5th Grade Math 
■ 8th Grade Reading 
■ 8th Grade Math 
■ 10th Grade Reading 
■ 10th Grade Math 


 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
CPAA = $11,340 
MAP Growth K- 2 Reading & Math = $3,402 
MAP Growth Reading & Math = $53,595 
MAP Science = $1,000 
MAP Growth Spanish Math Supplement = $125 
Total $69,462 to be paid from LCFF Funding Source (Unrestricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools’ students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 


122/503







123/503







Education Services/Special Education: Out of State Non


Public School – Alpine Academy


Separator Page


124/503







AGENDA ITEM: 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract  –  Nonpublic School 
 
MEETING DATE: September 26, 2018 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached out-of-state Nonpublic School contract for new services through the 
2018-2019 regular school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the identity of 


disabled pupils, the student’s name has been omitted.   


 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for:  Basic Education ($36,300.00), Individual/Family Counseling 
($37,440.00) and Residential Placement Services ($59,040.00) for a student in Special 
Education who requires these services that could not be provided in District programs.  Services 
will be rendered by Alpine Academy and are mandated in the student’s IEP.  Service Period:  
August 23, 2018 through June 30, 2019. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $132,780.00.  Funded by Special Education - Restricted 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 


 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 
 
 
 


                                                                                                                       


125/503







126/503







127/503







128/503







129/503







Education Services/Special Education: Out of State Non


Public School – Logan River Academy


Separator Page


130/503







AGENDA ITEM: 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract  –  Nonpublic School 
 
MEETING DATE: September 26, 2018 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached out-of-state Nonpublic School contract for new services through the 
2018-2019 regular school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the identity of 


disabled pupils, the student’s name has been omitted.   


 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for:  Basic Education ($32,616.76), Individual/Family Counseling 
($21,003.40), Speech/Language Therapy ($2,585.00) and Residential Placement Services 
($73,616.00) for a student in Special Education who requires these services that could not be 
provided in District programs.  Services will be rendered by Logan River Academy and are 
mandated in the student’s IEP.  Service Period:  August 22, 2018 through June 30, 2019. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $129,821.16.  Funded by Special Education - Restricted 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 


 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 
 
 


           


131/503







132/503







133/503







134/503







135/503







Business Services: MOU between SCCS/Cabrillo


College/SCCAL


Separator Page


136/503







 
    


AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.4 
1DODD_ATJEUB-E64E6FD68E0A4662B4CD904D9CF0B22F 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Approve Memorandum of Understanding between the Cabrillo 
Community College District, Santa Cruz Coast Athletic League 
and Santa Cruz City Schools for 2018-19 


 
MEETING DATE: September 26, 2018 
 
FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Memorandum of Understanding between the Cabrillo Community College 
District, Santa Cruz Coast Athletic League and Santa Cruz City Schools for 2018-19. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In order to cover athletic facility needs while school facilities are undergoing 
renovations, Cabrillo College, the Santa Cruz Coast Athletic League (SCCAL) and Santa 
Cruz City Schools have proposed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to share use 
of athletic facilities.  For the 2018-19 fiscal year, Cabrillo will waive facility rental fees for 
the annual SCCAL Football Jamboree, the annual Basketball Championship, the Girls 
Volleyball Tournament, and Soquel High Boys and Girls water polo games.  SCCS will 
waive facility rental fees for Cabrillo to use the gyms at Santa Cruz High and Soquel High 
during December and January when Cabrillo’s gym is undergoing bleacher installation.  
The MOU specifies the insurance coverage to be provided by each entity, including 
“additional insured” language and includes a mutual indemnification clause applying to 
all parties.  The MOU addresses scheduling of athletic coordinators and custodial 
services staff at events, payment of personnel costs, equipment and communication 
responsibilities to coordinate practice times and usage.  An estimated budget will be 
created and costs will be tracked. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Savings of approximately $4,160 in facility rental fees  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding 
metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 


community. 


137/503







138/503







139/503







140/503







Business Services: Consultant Service Agreement:


Jerene Lacey


Separator Page


141/503







1DODD_ATJEUB-74DF9549696E4FF28EC814694259DC0E.docx 


AGENDA ITEM 8.2.5 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 


AGENDA ITEM: Approve Consultant Services Agreement with Jerene Lacey for Assistance 


with Year-End Close & Other Finance Office Matters 


MEETING DATE: September 26, 2018 


FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services    


THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Consultant Service Agreement with Jerene Lacey for assistance with year-end close 
and other Finance Office matters. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Jerene Lacey is a past Finance Director of SCCS, and is well acquainted with Digital Schools and 
the District’s budget.  The Finance Office requires her assistance with closing the books for 
2017-18 and with other Finance Office matters. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Total cost is not to exceed $5,000.00, to be paid from the General Fund (Unrestricted). 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 


142/503







143/503







144/503







Business Services/Facilities: Proposal & Contract: MBS


Engineering: Natural Bridges HeadStart – gas leak repair


Separator Page


145/503







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.6. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: MBS Engineering Proposal and Standard Contract Terms for Gas 
Regulator Vault Leak Repair at Natural Bridges Head Start 


      
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the MBS Engineering proposal and standard contract terms for the gas regulator vault 
leak repair at Natural Bridges Head Start School.  
 
Background: 
Previous gas investigations at all sites were conducted in August and a leak in the gas regulator 
vault was detected at the Natural Bridges Head Start School. This proposal is for the immediate 
repair of the leaks for safety reasons. The repair is currently in process.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
$12,643.42, Building Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 
 


146/503







Company Name Santa Cruz City School District Bid Date 9/4/18


Billing Address 536 Palm Street Local Contact Trevor Miller


City, State, ZIP Santa Cruz, CA Title Director of Facility Services


Access Phone 831.429.3904 Contact # 831.429.3904


Quote For Contact Email trevormiller@sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us


Quotation# 18-0904HS


MB Contact Dan Whaley


Phone # 925.334.7200


Type SB


SCOPE OF WORK:


DESCRIPTION OF JOB SERVICES:
a.   Potholing of Gas Regualtor Vault and Demolition
        i.    Potholing to expose piping in area using hand digging and removal of conrete vault (crane truck)


        ii.    Potholing of downstream 1.5" gas piping (very corroded). MBS will hand dig to expose 20 LF of downstream piping downstream of regulator vault.


        iii.    Potholing and locating of 1" CTS branch line to building connection (using Heath Sure Lock locator and tracer wire).


        iv.    MBS Crew - 8 Hours


b.   Replacement of Current Underground Piping
        i.   Removal of existing steel branch line inside regualtor vault. Remove gas regulator, manual shut-off valve, and connection to 1" CTS Plastic line connection.


        ii.    Removal of downstream 1.5" corroded piping (20 LF)


        iii.    Installation of 1-1/2" MDPE transition tied into underground main line. (1) Steel Weld.


        iv.  Installation fo 1-1/2" Tee for new connection to 1" CTS Line.  Install (2) 1" Tansition Risers to above grade. Install new gas pressure regulator 


             and manual shut-off valve above grade. Provide enclosure for regulator assembly above ground. Connect to existing 1" orange CTS line underground.


        v. MBS to install new 1-1/2" MDPE line to replace corroded downstream piping with tracer wire and gas bury tape and new 1-1/2" underground isolation valve. 


        vi. MBS to run pressure test (15# for 15 minutes) and leak test. New components to be tested and commissioned before use.


        vii. Superintendent and Foreman - 8 Hours  


ASSUMPTIONS, CLARIFICATIONS, AND EXCLUSIONS:
a.      Drawings are excluded.


b.      Permits, fees, and bonds are excluded.


c.      The natural gas systems will be shut down and the gas appliances must be turned off. 


d.      It will be each site’s responsibility to relight gas appliances.


e.      MBS is not responsible for any leaks downstream of our work.


f.       MBS is not responsible for any gas appliance(s) that will not relight after shutdown.


g.       Travel time included in price. 


            


APPLICABLE LAW 
This contract shall be governed by the laws of Santa Cruz County, The State of California, and any applicable Federal Law. 


INSURANCE 
A current insurance certificate for MBS will be on file with Santa Cruz City School District and will be listed as additional insured.


MBS performed an evaluation of the gas regulator vault located at Head Start school. A gas leak was detected at this location during our Gas Leak 


Detection surveys performed in August. The piping and system components were found to be in very poor condition. MBS is proposing to pothole the 


area to expose all underground piping and replace the corroded piping in the area, while bringing the gas regualtor above ground. 


Head Start - Gas Regulator Vault Leak


12893 Alcosta Boulevard, Suite K 
San Ramon, CA 94583
Office: 925.334.7200
Fax:     925.365.1618
License# 990872 l SB 2003043
www.MBS.Engineering 


147/503







Service Name Local Contact Trevor Miller


Service Address Title Director of Facility Services


City, State, ZIP Santa Cruz, CA 95060 Contact # 831.429.3904


Qty


1


1-1/2" MDPE Gas Piping, 1-1/2" MDPE Fittings, 1-


1/2" Straigh Steel to PE Transition, (2) 1" 


Transition Risers, (1) 1" Gas Pressure Regulator, 


(1) 1" Threaded Manual Shut-Off Valve, Tracer 


Wire, Gas Bury Tape, 1-1/2" Isolation Valve, Valve 


Box, Gas Enclosure


Materials


1 MBS Crew Labor 


1


MBS Utility Grade F-550 Series Trucks, 185 CFM 


Air Compressor, Hand Tools, Digging Tools, 


Welder/Generator, Welding Tools, McElroy Butt-


Fusion Machine, Electrofusion Processor


Equipment


Payment Terms are Net 15 upon completion. TOTAL $12,643.42


Signature: _________________________________________


Print  Name: _________________________________________


Date: _________________________________________


P.O. Number: _________________________________________


This offer expires 30 days from date on proposal 


Thank you for this opportunity.


255 Swift St.


Head Start


Description


$3,156.85


$7,760.92


$1,725.65


Isolation Valve Installation and Leak Investigation


Cost


1" CTS Piping 
(Branch Line)


1.5" Upstream 
Piping


1.5" Downstream 
Corroded Piping


Digitally signed by Trevor Miller 
DN: cn=Trevor Miller, o=Santa Cruz 
City Schools, ou=Facilities, 
email=trevormiller@gmail.com, c=US 
Date: 2018.09.13 16:33:19 -07'00'


148/503







149/503







150/503







151/503







152/503







Business Services: Kleinfelder Proposal for DSA


Closeout


Separator Page


153/503







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.7. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Kleinfelder Proposal for Special Inspection and Testing Services for 
the Division of State Architects (DSA) closeout of the DeLaveaga 
Elementary School Kindergarten Shade Structure Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the Kleinfelder proposal for special inspection and testing services for DSA closeout of 
the DeLaveaga Elementary School kindergarten shade structure project.  
 
Background: 
This proposal is for professional services. Kleinfelder was the independent Laboratory of Record 
on this project two years ago. The DSA reviewer has requested additional inspections and 
amended documents to close out the kindergarten shade structure project at DeLaveaga 
Elementary School.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
$2,500.00, LCFF Base (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 
 


154/503







20172150.001A/SAL18C84320 Page 1 of 1 September 17, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


40 Clark Street, Unit J, Salinas, CA 93907     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


 
 
 
 
September 17, 2018 
Proposal No. 20172150.001A 
 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA  95060 
(831) 429-3904 
 
Attention:   Mr. Trevor Miller, Director of Facility Services 


trevormiller@sccs.net 
 
 
SUBJECT: Change Order for Special Inspection and Materials Testing Services 
  De Laveaga Elementary School Shade Structure  


(DSA File #44-42; Appl #01-116086) 
1145 Morrissey Boulevard, Santa Cruz, CA 95065 


 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
Kleinfelder is presenting the enclosed change order for De Laveaga Elementary School Shade 
Structure project, with the above referenced DSA number. The DSA reviewer recently 
responded to our closeout documents from two years ago with comments requiring response.  
Additional inspections as well as amended closeout documents will be necessary to close out 
the project.  Our estimated fee for the work is $2,500.  We have attached a new work order for 
this work.  Please execute the attached as authorization to proceed.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
KLEINFELDER, INC. 
 
 
 
Andrea M. Traum, PE Stephanie Sanchez 
Senior Project Manager Project Controls Specialist 
 
 
Attachments:  Work order No. SAL18W84321 
 


155/503







20172150.001A Page 1 of 1 


EXHIBIT 1: WORK ORDER NO: SAL18W84321 


 
Issued Pursuant to Master Services Agreement (Date of Execution: September 14, 2016) 
 
Effective Date: September 17, 2018 by and between Kleinfelder, Inc. (KLEINFELDER) and Santa Cruz City 
Schools (CLIENT). 
 
CLIENT Office: (Location) Soquel, CA    KLEINFELDER Project No: 20172150.001A 
 
 
      Work Order Type:  Time and Material 
     Fixed Price 
     Other (describe):        
 
CLIENT Reference No:           
 
KLEINFELDER Office: 40 Clark Street, Salinas, CA 
 
KLEINFELDER Contact:  Andrea Traum 
 
1. SCOPE OF WORK: Additional inspections and revised DSA final documents for project closeout. 
 
2. LOCATION/CLIENT FACILITY INVOLVED: De Laveaga Elementary School Shade Structure, 


1145 Morrissey Boulevard, Santa Cruz, CA 95065 
 
3. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE: FROM: August 10, 2018 TO: August 10, 2019 
 
4. AUTHORIZED FEES: $2,500 
 
5. SPECIAL PROVISIONS:       
 
 
 
NOTICE TO PROCEED IS GIVEN ON (DATE):       
 
 
CLIENT ______________________________________  KLEINFELDER, INC. 
 
By ____________________________________  By  ___________________________________ 
 
Name ____________________________________  Name  Eric Hinzel 
 
Title ____________________________________  Title  VP, Area Manager 
 
Dated ____________________________________  Dated  September 17, 2018 
 


156/503







Change Order #2: Andy's Roofing – Branciforte MS


roofing project


Separator Page


157/503







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Change Order #2 for Andy’s Roofing Company, Inc. for Additional 
Repairs for the Branciforte Middle School Re-Roof Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve change order #2 for Andy’s Roofing Company, Inc. for additional repairs for the 
Branciforte Middle School re-roof project. 
 
Background: 
This change order includes additional charges for adding a layer of coverboard at the 
woodshop. The previously approved contract amount was $1,092,400.00, change order # 1 for 
$25,773.46 was approved on 9/12/18, and the new total contract, including this change order, 
will be $1,119,867.03. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Change Order #2  1,693.57  (0.15% increase of the contract amount) 
Measure A Bond Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 
 


158/503







-----------xxxxxxxx Trevor Miller
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
xxxxx
xxxx
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx


Digitally signed by Trevor Miller 
DN: cn=Trevor Miller, o=Santa Cruz 
City Schools, ou=Facilities, 
email=trevormiller@gmail.com, 
c=US 
Date: 2018.09.13 16:37:56 -07'00'


159/503







160/503







161/503







Andys Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro, California 94577
Phone: (510) 777-1100
Fax: (510) 777-1102


Project: 3531 - Campus Reroofing at Branciforte MS
315 Poplar Avenue


Santa Cruz, California 95062


Gutter nailer at Wood Shop Covered Walkway
TO: JD Engquist (Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.) 


 
FROM: JD Engquist (Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.)


2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro, California 94577


DATE INITIATED: 06/28/2018 STATUS: Open


LOCATION: DUE DATE: 07/01/2018


COST CODE: REFERENCE:


COST IMPACT: Yes (Unknown) SCHEDULE IMPACT: 1 days


DRAWING NUMBER: SPEC SECTION:


LINKED DRAWINGS:


RECEIVED FROM:


COPIES TO:
Christopher Garcia (Santa Cruz City School District), Roger Miller (Eagle Project Management), Trevor Miller (Santa Cruz City School District),
David Peartree (Belli Architectural Group)


Question from JD Engquist (Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.) at 09:41 AM on 06/28/2018
The interior gutter fascia/nailer at the Wood Shop covered walkway is 1" higher than the existing deck, which will leave a 1/2" lip after our specified
roofing installation. In order for the roof to drain properly into that gutter, we see two options: 1. We can add 1 loose-laid layer of 1/2" perlite coverboard
beneath the specified, mechanically-attached 1/2" Dens Deck prime, or 2. We can cut 1/2" off the fascia and proceed with the specified application.
However, if we cut the fascia, the gutter becomes very shallow. We recommend the first option. Please advise.


Awaiting an Official Response


 
All Replies:


BY DATE COPIES TO
 


Andys Roofing Co., Inc. Page 1 of 1 Printed On: 06/28/2018 09:41 AM


 
  


RFI #7


18002.002-001 RFI-0007 (R 00) Gutter nailer at Wood Shop Covered Walkway 06-28-2018.pdf -- 06-28-2018 17:18 1 of 1


18002.002-001 RFI-0007 (R 00) Gutter nailer at Wood Shop Covered Walkway Response 07-03-2018.pdf -- 07-03-2018 14:10 1 of 1


Solution #1 is acceptable.


Kelsey Andresen 7/03/18


162/503







Change Order #1: Andy's Roofing – Mission Hill MS &


Gault ES re-roofing projects


Separator Page


163/503







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Change Order #1 for Andy’s Roofing Company, Inc. 
for Additional Repairs for the Mission Hill Middle School and Gault 
Elementary School Re-Roof Projects 


      
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve change order #1 for Andy’s Roofing Company, Inc. for additional repairs for the 
Mission Hill Middle School and Gault Elementary School re-roof projects. . 
 
Background: 
This change order includes additional charges for dry rot repairs caused by termite damage and 
water leaks, and the installation of additional underlayment on a time and materials basis, as 
well as additional charges for changing the color of the clay tile as requested by the architect to 
better match the historic roof style. The previously approved contract amount was 
$1,775,700.00 and the new total contract, including this change order, will be $1,877,706.20. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Change Order #1  $102,006.20 (5.74% increase of the contract amount) 
Measure A & B Bond Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 
 


164/503







165/503







Andys Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro, California 94577
Phone: (510) 777-1100
Fax: (510) 777-1102


Project: 3528 - Mission Hill MS-Tile
425 King Street


Santa Cruz, California 95060


Prime Contract Potential Change Order #001:  Install Newport Blend color
tile in lieu of specified Red Clay color


TO: Santa Cruz City School District
536 Palm Street
Santa Cruz California, 95060


FROM: Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro California, 94577


PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 001 / 0 CONTRACT: 1 - Mission Hill MS-Tile Prime Contract  


REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:    CREATED BY: JD Engquist  (Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.)
STATUS: Pending - In Review   CREATED DATE: 6/14 /2018 


REFERENCE:   PRIME CONTRACT
CHANGE ORDER:


None  


FIELD CHANGE: No    


LOCATION:   ACCOUNTING
METHOD:


Amount Based  


SCHEDULE IMPACT: 0 days   PAID IN FULL: No  


    TOTAL AMOUNT: $3,335.75


 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: Install Newport Blend color tile in lieu of specified Red Clay color
 
CHANGE REASON: Client Request
 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)
This is our cost to install Boral Newport Blend 1-piece S tile in lieu of the specified Red Clay color.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
PCO 1 backup.pdf   
 
 
 


 
Andys Roofing Co., Inc. page 1 of 1 Printed On: 6/14/ 2018  02 :10 PM  


     


 


PCO #001


The cost for the change in color should not included and installation variations.
Price above should only reflect cost of tile.


We recommend acceptance of this request to provide Newport Blend.


Neal Sellers
Bartos Architecture
6.22.18


166/503







PCO 1


Cost to install Boral Newport Blend 1-piece S tile 
in lieu of the specified Red Clay color


Cost Proposal Breakdown hours
1.  Straight Time Wages - Labor $0.00 0
2.  Overtime Wages - Labor $0.00 0
3.  Double Time Wages-Labor $0.00 0
3.  Str. Time Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00
4.  O.T. Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00


ACTUAL 5.  Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes $0.00
COSTS 6.  Materials $2,603.00


7.  Sales Taxes $240.78
8.  Rental Charges
9.  Insurance $0.00
10. Royalties
11. Permits
12. Equipment $0.00
13. Cost of Extra Work (1-13) $2,843.78
14. Mark-up $426.57
15. Bonds $65.41
16. Total Change $3,335.75


Material Breakdown
137 Newport Blend $144.00 $19,728.00
137 Red Clay -$125.00 -$17,125.00


$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$2,603.00
Equipment Breakdown
3/4 ton truck $16.95 $0.00
freight $260.30 $0.00


$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$0.00


Page 1


167/503







Andys Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro, California 94577
Phone: (510) 777-1100
Fax: (510) 777-1102


Project: 3529 - Mission Hill MS-Single Ply
425 King Street


Santa Cruz, California 95060


Prime Contract Potential Change Order #002:  Repair dry rot and termite
damage on a T&M basis


TO: Santa Cruz City School District
536 Palm Street
Santa Cruz California, 95060


FROM: Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro California, 94577


PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 002 / 0 CONTRACT: 1 - Mission Hill MS-Single PLy Prime Contract  


REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:    CREATED BY: JD Engquist  (Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.)
STATUS: Pending - In Review   CREATED DATE: 7/31 /2018 


REFERENCE:   PRIME CONTRACT
CHANGE ORDER:


None  


FIELD CHANGE: No    


LOCATION:   ACCOUNTING
METHOD:


Amount Based  


SCHEDULE IMPACT: 2 days   PAID IN FULL: No  


    TOTAL AMOUNT: $11,463.39


 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: Repair dry rot and termite damage on a T&M basis
 
CHANGE REASON: Existing Condition
 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)
Attached are our signed Time and Material tags, material receipts, and back up for the dry rot and termite damage repairs we completed on a T&M
basis.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
PCO 2 Material Receipts.pdf    PCO 2 Signed T&M Tags.pdf    PCO 2 backup.pdf   
 
 
 


 
Andys Roofing Co., Inc. page 1 of 1 Printed On: 7/31/ 2018  01 :55 PM  


     


 


PCO #002


We recommend acceptance of this request as a value added item to this project.


Neal Sellers
Bartos Architecture
9.10.18


168/503







PCO 2 (MHMS KEE Roof)


Dry rot and termite damage repair, to be completed on T&M


Cost Proposal Breakdown hours
1.  Straight Time Wages - Labor $6,980.38 85
2.  Overtime Wages - Labor $0.00 0
3.  Double Time Wages-Labor $0.00 0
3.  Str. Time Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00
4.  O.T. Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00


ACTUAL 5.  Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes $0.00
COSTS 6.  Materials $1,883.60


7.  Sales Taxes $0.00
8.  Rental Charges
9.  Insurance $0.00
10. Royalties
11. Permits
12. Equipment $908.74
13. Cost of Extra Work (1-13) $9,772.71
14. Mark-up $1,465.91
15. Bonds $224.77
16. Total Change $11,463.39


Material Breakdown
1 Lumber - 6/25/18 $202.75 $202.75
1 Lumber - 7/3/18 $860.35 $860.35
1 Lumber - 7/12/18 $347.57 $347.57
1 Lumber - 7/13/18 $472.93 $472.93


$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$1,883.60
Equipment Breakdown


42.5 3/4 ton truck $16.95 $720.38
1 freight $188.36 $188.36


$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$908.74


Page 1


169/503







170/503







171/503







172/503







173/503







174/503







Andys Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro, California 94577
Phone: (510) 777-1100
Fax: (510) 777-1102


Project: 3528 - Mission Hill MS-Tile
425 King Street


Santa Cruz, California 95060


Prime Contract Potential Change Order #002:  Install additional layer of
self-adhered underlayment


TO: Santa Cruz City School District
536 Palm Street
Santa Cruz California, 95060


FROM: Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro California, 94577


PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 002 / 1 CONTRACT: 1 - Mission Hill MS-Tile Prime Contract  


REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:    CREATED BY: JD Engquist  (Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.)
STATUS: Pending - In Review   CREATED DATE: 6/14 /2018 


REFERENCE:   PRIME CONTRACT
CHANGE ORDER:


None  


FIELD CHANGE: No    


LOCATION:   ACCOUNTING
METHOD:


Amount Based  


SCHEDULE IMPACT: 3 days   PAID IN FULL: No  


    TOTAL AMOUNT: $10,201.95


 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: Install additional layer of self-adhered underlayment
 
CHANGE REASON: Client Request
 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)
Attached is our final Time and Material cost to install an additional layer of Owner-supplied self-adhered underlayment (Garland AquaShield) over entire
deck, per RFI 1.1 response.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
PCO 2.1 Signed T&M Tags.pdf    PCO 2.1 backup.pdf   
 
 
 


 
Andys Roofing Co., Inc. page 1 of 1 Printed On: 8/3/ 2018  11 :40 AM  


     


 


PCO #002


As requested, this change was recorded on Time and Materials as documented on attachments. 
We recommend acceptance of this request.


Neal Sellers
Bartos Architecture
9.10.18


175/503







PCO 2.1


Install additional layer of Owner supplied SA underlayment 
(Garland AquaShield) over entire deck, per RFI 1.1 response,
directed to track on T&M


Cost Proposal Breakdown hours
1.  Straight Time Wages - Labor $7,883.72 96
2.  Overtime Wages - Labor $0.00 0
3.  Double Time Wages-Labor $0.00 0
3.  Str. Time Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00
4.  O.T. Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00


ACTUAL 5.  Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes $0.00
COSTS 6.  Materials $0.00


7.  Sales Taxes $0.00
8.  Rental Charges
9.  Insurance $0.00
10. Royalties
11. Permits
12. Equipment $813.60
13. Cost of Extra Work (1-13) $8,697.32
14. Mark-up $1,304.60
15. Bonds $200.04
16. Total Change $10,201.95


Material Breakdown
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$0.00
Equipment Breakdown


48 3/4 ton truck $16.95 $813.60
freight $0.00 $0.00


$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$813.60


Page 1


176/503







177/503







Andys Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro, California 94577
Phone: (510) 777-1100
Fax: (510) 777-1102


Project: 3528 - Mission Hill MS-Tile
425 King Street


Santa Cruz, California 95060


Prime Contract Potential Change Order #004:  Repair dry rot and termite
damage on a T&M basis


TO: Santa Cruz City School District
536 Palm Street
Santa Cruz California, 95060


FROM: Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro California, 94577


PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 004 / 0 CONTRACT: 1 - Mission Hill MS-Tile Prime Contract  


REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:    CREATED BY: JD Engquist  (Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.)
STATUS: Pending - In Review   CREATED DATE: 7/31 /2018 


REFERENCE:   PRIME CONTRACT
CHANGE ORDER:


None  


FIELD CHANGE: No    


LOCATION:   ACCOUNTING
METHOD:


Amount Based  


SCHEDULE IMPACT: 6 days   PAID IN FULL: No  


    TOTAL AMOUNT: $31,535.78


 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: Repair dry rot and termite damage on a T&M basis
 
CHANGE REASON: Existing Condition
 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)
Attached are our signed Time and Material tags, material receipts, and back up for the dry rot and termite damage repairs we completed on a T&M
basis.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
PCO 4 Material Receipts.pdf    PCO 4 Signed T & M Tags.pdf    PCO 4 backup.pdf   
 
 
 


 
Andys Roofing Co., Inc. page 1 of 1 Printed On: 7/31/ 2018  01 :49 PM  


     


 


PCO #004


We recommend acceptance of this request as a value added item to this project.


Neal Sellers
Bartos Architecture
9.10.18


178/503







PCO 4 (MHMS Tile)


Dry rot and termite damage repair, to be completed on T&M


Cost Proposal Breakdown hours
1.  Straight Time Wages - Labor $20,119.91 245
2.  Overtime Wages - Labor $0.00 0
3.  Double Time Wages-Labor $0.00 0
3.  Str. Time Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00
4.  O.T. Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00


ACTUAL 5.  Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes $0.00
COSTS 6.  Materials $4,262.22


7.  Sales Taxes $0.00
8.  Rental Charges
9.  Insurance $0.00
10. Royalties
11. Permits
12. Equipment $2,502.60
13. Cost of Extra Work (1-13) $26,884.72
14. Mark-up $4,032.71
15. Bonds $618.35
16. Total Change $31,535.78


Material Breakdown
1 Lumber - 6/21/18 $679.20 $679.20
1 Lumber - 6/25/18 $1,128.04 $1,128.04
1 Lumber - 6/28/18 $389.69 $389.69
1 Lumber - 7/7/18 $242.26 $242.26
1 Lumber - 7/21/18 $929.18 $929.18
1 Lumber - 7/23/18 $279.96 $279.96
1 Lumber - 7/25/18 $566.11 $566.11
1 Lumber - 7/26/18 $47.78 $47.78


$4,262.22
Equipment Breakdown


122.5 3/4 ton truck $16.95 $2,076.38
1 freight $426.22 $426.22


$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$2,502.60


Page 1


179/503







180/503







181/503







182/503







183/503







184/503







185/503







186/503







187/503







188/503







REPRINT


X


OSBORNE LUMBER CO., INC.
P.O. BOX 1740


8100 ENTERPRISE DR.
NEWARK, CA 94560-6740
PHONE: (510) 793-3837


PAGE NO 1


ANDY'S ROOFING
***COD ACCOUNT***


WILL CALL
RAMONE 408.593.0077
JOB: MISSION HILL SCHOOL


4242 PO # 4242


513.33


CASH/CHECK/BANKCARD KM 7/25/18 2:12000


TED FOGARTY


CITY OF NEWARK


6


480280INVOICE:


TOT WT: 0.20


2.73


566.11


50.05


516.06


510-777-1100


TF


514


7/24/18


480280


7/26/18


** AMOUNT CHARGED TO STORE ACCOUNT ** 566.11


5911


¶^bÂÂ5911000480280I31001Q¸


CUST NO:


SOLD TO: SHIP TO:


JOB NO: PURCHASE ORDER: REFERENCE: TERMS: CLERK: DATE / TIME:


TAXABLE
NON-TAXABLE
SUBTOTAL


TAX AMOUNT


TOTAL


TAX:


Received By


DEL. DATE:


ORDER:


DUE DATE:


SALESPERSON:


TERMINAL:


LINE SHIPPED ORDERED UM SKU DESCRIPTION SUGG UNITS PRICE/ PER EXTENSION


1


2 4 4 PC 21020WRCP 2x10x20 WRC STK FJ PRIMED S1S2E 133.33 2050.00 /MF 273.33


3


4 16 16 EA MI MILL TO SAMPLE PATTERN 16 15.00 /EA 240.00


5 TO NET 16PC TOTAL


6


7 1 1 EA TAX AB-1492 CALIFORNIA 1% LUMBER TAX 1 2.73 /EA 2.73 N


Total Dimensional Lumber:   133.33/BF


189/503







Andys Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro, California 94577
Phone: (510) 777-1100
Fax: (510) 777-1102


Project: 3530 - Gault ES
1320 Seabright Avenue


Santa Cruz, California 95062


Prime Contract Potential Change Order #001:  Install Newport Blend color
tile in lieu of specified Red Clay color


TO: Santa Cruz City School District
536 Palm Street
Santa Cruz California, 95060


FROM: Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro California, 94577


PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 001 / 0 CONTRACT: 1 - Gault ES Prime Contract  


REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:    CREATED BY: JD Engquist  (Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.)
STATUS: Pending - In Review   CREATED DATE: 6/14 /2018 


REFERENCE:   PRIME CONTRACT
CHANGE ORDER:


None  


FIELD CHANGE: No    


LOCATION:   ACCOUNTING
METHOD:


Amount Based  


SCHEDULE IMPACT: 0 days   PAID IN FULL: No  


    TOTAL AMOUNT: $5,161.89


 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: Install Newport Blend color tile in lieu of specified Red Clay color
 
CHANGE REASON: Client Request
 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)
This is our cost to install Boral Newport Blend 1-piece S tile in lieu of the specified Red Clay color.
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
PCO 1 backup.pdf   
 
 
 


Andys Roofing Co., Inc. page 1 of 1 Printed On: 6/14/ 2018  02 :25 PM  


     


 


PCO #001


The cost for the change in color should not included and installation variations.
Price above should only reflect cost of tile.


We recommend acceptance of request to provide Newport Blend.


Neal Sellers
Bartos Architecture
6.22.18


Provide


190/503







PCO 1


Cost to install Boral Newport Blend 1-piece S tile 
in lieu of the specified Red Clay color


Cost Proposal Breakdown hours
1.  Straight Time Wages - Labor $0.00 0
2.  Overtime Wages - Labor $0.00 0
3.  Double Time Wages-Labor $0.00 0
3.  Str. Time Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00
4.  O.T. Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00


ACTUAL 5.  Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes $0.00
COSTS 6.  Materials $4,028.00


7.  Sales Taxes $372.59
8.  Rental Charges
9.  Insurance $0.00
10. Royalties
11. Permits
12. Equipment $0.00
13. Cost of Extra Work (1-13) $4,400.59
14. Mark-up $660.09
15. Bonds $101.21
16. Total Change $5,161.89


Material Breakdown
212 Newport Blend $144.00 $30,528.00
212 Red Clay -$125.00 -$26,500.00


$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$4,028.00
Equipment Breakdown
3/4 ton truck $16.95 $0.00
freight $402.80 $0.00


$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$0.00


Page 1


191/503







Andys Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro, California 94577
Phone: (510) 777-1100
Fax: (510) 777-1102


Project: 3530 - Gault ES
1320 Seabright Avenue


Santa Cruz, California 95062


Prime Contract Potential Change Order #002:  Install additional layer of
self-adhered underlayment


TO: Santa Cruz City School District
536 Palm Street
Santa Cruz California, 95060


FROM: Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro California, 94577


PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 002 / 1 CONTRACT: 1 - Gault ES Prime Contract  


REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:    CREATED BY: JD Engquist  (Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.)
STATUS: Pending - In Review   CREATED DATE: 6/14 /2018 


REFERENCE:   PRIME CONTRACT
CHANGE ORDER:


None  


FIELD CHANGE: No    


LOCATION:   ACCOUNTING
METHOD:


Amount Based  


SCHEDULE IMPACT: 4 days   PAID IN FULL: No  


    TOTAL AMOUNT: $13,100.77


 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: Install additional layer of self-adhered underlayment
 
CHANGE REASON: Client Request
 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)
Attached is our final Time and Material cost to install an additional layer of Owner-supplied self-adhered underlayment (Garland AquaShield) over entire
deck, per RFI 1.1 response. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
PCO 2.1 Signed T&M Tags.pdf    PCO 2.1 backup.pdf   
 
 
 


 
Andys Roofing Co., Inc. page 1 of 1 Printed On: 8/3/ 2018  11 :42 AM  


     


 


PCO #002


As requested, this change was recorded on Time and Materials as documented on attachments. 
We recommend acceptance of this request.


Neal Sellers
Bartos Architecture
9.10.18


192/503







PCO 2.1


Install additional layer of Owner supplied SA underlayment 
(Garland AquaShield) over entire deck, per RFI 2.1 response,
directed to track on T&M


Cost Proposal Breakdown hours
1.  Straight Time Wages - Labor $11,168.60 136
2.  Overtime Wages - Labor $0.00 0
3.  Double Time Wages-Labor $0.00 0
3.  Str. Time Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00
4.  O.T. Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00


ACTUAL 5.  Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes $0.00
COSTS 6.  Materials $0.00


7.  Sales Taxes $0.00
8.  Rental Charges
9.  Insurance $0.00
10. Royalties
11. Permits
12. Equipment $0.00
13. Cost of Extra Work (1-13) $11,168.60
14. Mark-up $1,675.29
15. Bonds $256.88
16. Total Change $13,100.77


Material Breakdown
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$0.00
Equipment Breakdown
3/4 ton truck $16.95 $0.00
freight $0.00 $0.00


$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$0.00


Page 1


193/503







194/503







Andys Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro, California 94577
Phone: (510) 777-1100
Fax: (510) 777-1102


Project: 3530 - Gault ES
1320 Seabright Avenue


Santa Cruz, California 95062


Prime Contract Potential Change Order #005:  Repair dry rot and termite
damage on a T&M basis


TO: Santa Cruz City School District
536 Palm Street
Santa Cruz California, 95060


FROM: Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro California, 94577


PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 005 / 0 CONTRACT: 1 - Gault ES Prime Contract  


REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:    CREATED BY: JD Engquist  (Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.)
STATUS: Pending - In Review   CREATED DATE: 7/31 /2018 


REFERENCE:   PRIME CONTRACT
CHANGE ORDER:


None  


FIELD CHANGE: No    


LOCATION:   ACCOUNTING
METHOD:


Amount Based  


SCHEDULE IMPACT: 4 days   PAID IN FULL: No  


    TOTAL AMOUNT: $27,206.67


 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: Repair dry rot and termite damage on a T&M basis
 
CHANGE REASON: Existing Condition
 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)
Attached are our signed Time and Material tags, material receipts, and back up for the dry rot and termite damage repairs we completed on a T&M
basis.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
PCO 5 backup.pdf   
 
 
 


Neal Sellers (Bartos Architecture)   Santa Cruz City School District   Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.
1730 South Amphlett Blvd, Suite 225   536 Palm Street   2161 Adams Avenue
San Mateo California 94402   Santa Cruz California 95060   San Leandro California 94577
         
         
         


SIGNATURE DATE   SIGNATURE DATE   SIGNATURE DATE
 
Andys Roofing Co., Inc. page 1 of 1 Printed On: 7/31/ 2018  01 :58 PM  


     


 


PCO #005


We recommend acceptance of this request as a value added item to this project.


Neal Sellers
Bartos Architecture
9.10.18


195/503







PCO 5 (Gault ES)


Dry rot and termite damage repair, to be completed on T&M


Cost Proposal Breakdown hours
1.  Straight Time Wages - Labor $18,395.34 224
2.  Overtime Wages - Labor $0.00 0
3.  Double Time Wages-Labor $0.00 0
3.  Str. Time Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00
4.  O.T. Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00


ACTUAL 5.  Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes $0.00
COSTS 6.  Materials $2,432.16


7.  Sales Taxes $224.97
8.  Rental Charges
9.  Insurance $0.00
10. Royalties
11. Permits
12. Equipment $2,141.62
13. Cost of Extra Work (1-13) $23,194.09
14. Mark-up $3,479.11
15. Bonds $533.46
16. Total Change $27,206.67


Material Breakdown
1 Lumber - 6/29/18 $730.68 $730.68
1 Lumber - 7/2/18 $1,097.63 $1,097.63
1 Lumber - 7/3/18 $282.30 $282.30
1 Lumber - 7/9/18 $145.02 $145.02
1 Lumber - 7/9/18 $25.39 $25.39
1 Lumber - 7/9/18 $42.19 $42.19
1 Lumber - 7/14/18 $108.95 $108.95


$2,432.16
Equipment Breakdown


112 3/4 ton truck $16.95 $1,898.40
1 freight $243.22 $243.22


$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$2,141.62


Page 1


196/503







197/503







198/503







199/503







200/503







201/503







202/503







203/503







204/503







205/503







Change Order #2: Andy's Roofing – Mission Hill MS &


Gault ES re-roofing projects


Separator Page


206/503







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Change Order #2 for Andy’s Roofing Company, Inc. 
for Additional Roofing Material and HVAC Equipment Repair for 
the Mission Hill Middle School and Gault Elementary School Re-
Roof Projects 


      
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve change order #2 for Andy’s Roofing Company, Inc. for additional roofing material and 
HVAC equipment repair for the Mission Hill Middle School and Gault Elementary School re-roof 
projects.  
 
Background: 
This change order includes additional charges for the installation of additional roofing material 
at parapet walls, repair of rooftop HVAC equipment, painting of rooftop vents to prevent rust, 
fabrication of new chimney cap, and repair and repainting of smoke hatches. The previously 
approved contract amount was $1,775,700.00, change order # 1 for $102,006.20, and the new 
total contract, including this change order, will be $1,964,405.93. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Change Order #2  $86,699.73 (4.6% increase of the contract amount) 
Measure A & B Bond Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 
 


207/503







208/503







Andys Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro, California 94577
Phone: (510) 777-1100
Fax: (510) 777-1102


Project: 3528 - Mission Hill MS-Tile
425 King Street


Santa Cruz, California 95060


Prime Contract Potential Change Order #001:  Install Newport Blend color
tile in lieu of specified Red Clay color


TO: Santa Cruz City School District
536 Palm Street
Santa Cruz California, 95060


FROM: Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro California, 94577


PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 001 / 0 CONTRACT: 1 - Mission Hill MS-Tile Prime Contract  


REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:    CREATED BY: JD Engquist  (Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.)
STATUS: Pending - In Review   CREATED DATE: 6/14 /2018 


REFERENCE:   PRIME CONTRACT
CHANGE ORDER:


None  


FIELD CHANGE: No    


LOCATION:   ACCOUNTING
METHOD:


Amount Based  


SCHEDULE IMPACT: 0 days   PAID IN FULL: No  


    TOTAL AMOUNT: $3,335.75


 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: Install Newport Blend color tile in lieu of specified Red Clay color
 
CHANGE REASON: Client Request
 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)
This is our cost to install Boral Newport Blend 1-piece S tile in lieu of the specified Red Clay color.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
PCO 1 backup.pdf   
 
 
 


 
Andys Roofing Co., Inc. page 1 of 1 Printed On: 6/14/ 2018  02 :10 PM  


     


 


PCO #001


The cost for the change in color should not included and installation variations.
Price above should only reflect cost of tile.


We recommend acceptance of this request to provide Newport Blend.


Neal Sellers
Bartos Architecture
6.22.18


209/503







PCO 1


Cost to install Boral Newport Blend 1-piece S tile 
in lieu of the specified Red Clay color


Cost Proposal Breakdown hours
1.  Straight Time Wages - Labor $0.00 0
2.  Overtime Wages - Labor $0.00 0
3.  Double Time Wages-Labor $0.00 0
3.  Str. Time Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00
4.  O.T. Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00


ACTUAL 5.  Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes $0.00
COSTS 6.  Materials $2,603.00


7.  Sales Taxes $240.78
8.  Rental Charges
9.  Insurance $0.00
10. Royalties
11. Permits
12. Equipment $0.00
13. Cost of Extra Work (1-13) $2,843.78
14. Mark-up $426.57
15. Bonds $65.41
16. Total Change $3,335.75


Material Breakdown
137 Newport Blend $144.00 $19,728.00
137 Red Clay -$125.00 -$17,125.00


$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$2,603.00
Equipment Breakdown
3/4 ton truck $16.95 $0.00
freight $260.30 $0.00


$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$0.00


Page 1


210/503







Andys Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro, California 94577
Phone: (510) 777-1100
Fax: (510) 777-1102


Project: 3529 - Mission Hill MS-Single Ply
425 King Street


Santa Cruz, California 95060


Prime Contract Potential Change Order #002:  Repair dry rot and termite
damage on a T&M basis


TO: Santa Cruz City School District
536 Palm Street
Santa Cruz California, 95060


FROM: Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro California, 94577


PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 002 / 0 CONTRACT: 1 - Mission Hill MS-Single PLy Prime Contract  


REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:    CREATED BY: JD Engquist  (Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.)
STATUS: Pending - In Review   CREATED DATE: 7/31 /2018 


REFERENCE:   PRIME CONTRACT
CHANGE ORDER:


None  


FIELD CHANGE: No    


LOCATION:   ACCOUNTING
METHOD:


Amount Based  


SCHEDULE IMPACT: 2 days   PAID IN FULL: No  


    TOTAL AMOUNT: $11,463.39


 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: Repair dry rot and termite damage on a T&M basis
 
CHANGE REASON: Existing Condition
 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)
Attached are our signed Time and Material tags, material receipts, and back up for the dry rot and termite damage repairs we completed on a T&M
basis.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
PCO 2 Material Receipts.pdf    PCO 2 Signed T&M Tags.pdf    PCO 2 backup.pdf   
 
 
 


 
Andys Roofing Co., Inc. page 1 of 1 Printed On: 7/31/ 2018  01 :55 PM  


     


 


PCO #002


We recommend acceptance of this request as a value added item to this project.


Neal Sellers
Bartos Architecture
9.10.18


211/503







PCO 2 (MHMS KEE Roof)


Dry rot and termite damage repair, to be completed on T&M


Cost Proposal Breakdown hours
1.  Straight Time Wages - Labor $6,980.38 85
2.  Overtime Wages - Labor $0.00 0
3.  Double Time Wages-Labor $0.00 0
3.  Str. Time Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00
4.  O.T. Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00


ACTUAL 5.  Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes $0.00
COSTS 6.  Materials $1,883.60


7.  Sales Taxes $0.00
8.  Rental Charges
9.  Insurance $0.00
10. Royalties
11. Permits
12. Equipment $908.74
13. Cost of Extra Work (1-13) $9,772.71
14. Mark-up $1,465.91
15. Bonds $224.77
16. Total Change $11,463.39


Material Breakdown
1 Lumber - 6/25/18 $202.75 $202.75
1 Lumber - 7/3/18 $860.35 $860.35
1 Lumber - 7/12/18 $347.57 $347.57
1 Lumber - 7/13/18 $472.93 $472.93


$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$1,883.60
Equipment Breakdown


42.5 3/4 ton truck $16.95 $720.38
1 freight $188.36 $188.36


$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$908.74


Page 1


212/503







213/503







214/503







215/503







216/503







217/503







Andys Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro, California 94577
Phone: (510) 777-1100
Fax: (510) 777-1102


Project: 3528 - Mission Hill MS-Tile
425 King Street


Santa Cruz, California 95060


Prime Contract Potential Change Order #002:  Install additional layer of
self-adhered underlayment


TO: Santa Cruz City School District
536 Palm Street
Santa Cruz California, 95060


FROM: Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro California, 94577


PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 002 / 1 CONTRACT: 1 - Mission Hill MS-Tile Prime Contract  


REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:    CREATED BY: JD Engquist  (Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.)
STATUS: Pending - In Review   CREATED DATE: 6/14 /2018 


REFERENCE:   PRIME CONTRACT
CHANGE ORDER:


None  


FIELD CHANGE: No    


LOCATION:   ACCOUNTING
METHOD:


Amount Based  


SCHEDULE IMPACT: 3 days   PAID IN FULL: No  


    TOTAL AMOUNT: $10,201.95


 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: Install additional layer of self-adhered underlayment
 
CHANGE REASON: Client Request
 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)
Attached is our final Time and Material cost to install an additional layer of Owner-supplied self-adhered underlayment (Garland AquaShield) over entire
deck, per RFI 1.1 response.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
PCO 2.1 Signed T&M Tags.pdf    PCO 2.1 backup.pdf   
 
 
 


 
Andys Roofing Co., Inc. page 1 of 1 Printed On: 8/3/ 2018  11 :40 AM  


     


 


PCO #002


As requested, this change was recorded on Time and Materials as documented on attachments. 
We recommend acceptance of this request.


Neal Sellers
Bartos Architecture
9.10.18


218/503







PCO 2.1


Install additional layer of Owner supplied SA underlayment 
(Garland AquaShield) over entire deck, per RFI 1.1 response,
directed to track on T&M


Cost Proposal Breakdown hours
1.  Straight Time Wages - Labor $7,883.72 96
2.  Overtime Wages - Labor $0.00 0
3.  Double Time Wages-Labor $0.00 0
3.  Str. Time Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00
4.  O.T. Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00


ACTUAL 5.  Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes $0.00
COSTS 6.  Materials $0.00


7.  Sales Taxes $0.00
8.  Rental Charges
9.  Insurance $0.00
10. Royalties
11. Permits
12. Equipment $813.60
13. Cost of Extra Work (1-13) $8,697.32
14. Mark-up $1,304.60
15. Bonds $200.04
16. Total Change $10,201.95


Material Breakdown
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$0.00
Equipment Breakdown


48 3/4 ton truck $16.95 $813.60
freight $0.00 $0.00


$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$813.60


Page 1


219/503







220/503







Andys Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro, California 94577
Phone: (510) 777-1100
Fax: (510) 777-1102


Project: 3528 - Mission Hill MS-Tile
425 King Street


Santa Cruz, California 95060


Prime Contract Potential Change Order #004:  Repair dry rot and termite
damage on a T&M basis


TO: Santa Cruz City School District
536 Palm Street
Santa Cruz California, 95060


FROM: Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro California, 94577


PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 004 / 0 CONTRACT: 1 - Mission Hill MS-Tile Prime Contract  


REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:    CREATED BY: JD Engquist  (Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.)
STATUS: Pending - In Review   CREATED DATE: 7/31 /2018 


REFERENCE:   PRIME CONTRACT
CHANGE ORDER:


None  


FIELD CHANGE: No    


LOCATION:   ACCOUNTING
METHOD:


Amount Based  


SCHEDULE IMPACT: 6 days   PAID IN FULL: No  


    TOTAL AMOUNT: $31,535.78


 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: Repair dry rot and termite damage on a T&M basis
 
CHANGE REASON: Existing Condition
 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)
Attached are our signed Time and Material tags, material receipts, and back up for the dry rot and termite damage repairs we completed on a T&M
basis.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
PCO 4 Material Receipts.pdf    PCO 4 Signed T & M Tags.pdf    PCO 4 backup.pdf   
 
 
 


 
Andys Roofing Co., Inc. page 1 of 1 Printed On: 7/31/ 2018  01 :49 PM  


     


 


PCO #004


We recommend acceptance of this request as a value added item to this project.


Neal Sellers
Bartos Architecture
9.10.18


221/503







PCO 4 (MHMS Tile)


Dry rot and termite damage repair, to be completed on T&M


Cost Proposal Breakdown hours
1.  Straight Time Wages - Labor $20,119.91 245
2.  Overtime Wages - Labor $0.00 0
3.  Double Time Wages-Labor $0.00 0
3.  Str. Time Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00
4.  O.T. Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00


ACTUAL 5.  Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes $0.00
COSTS 6.  Materials $4,262.22


7.  Sales Taxes $0.00
8.  Rental Charges
9.  Insurance $0.00
10. Royalties
11. Permits
12. Equipment $2,502.60
13. Cost of Extra Work (1-13) $26,884.72
14. Mark-up $4,032.71
15. Bonds $618.35
16. Total Change $31,535.78


Material Breakdown
1 Lumber - 6/21/18 $679.20 $679.20
1 Lumber - 6/25/18 $1,128.04 $1,128.04
1 Lumber - 6/28/18 $389.69 $389.69
1 Lumber - 7/7/18 $242.26 $242.26
1 Lumber - 7/21/18 $929.18 $929.18
1 Lumber - 7/23/18 $279.96 $279.96
1 Lumber - 7/25/18 $566.11 $566.11
1 Lumber - 7/26/18 $47.78 $47.78


$4,262.22
Equipment Breakdown


122.5 3/4 ton truck $16.95 $2,076.38
1 freight $426.22 $426.22


$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$2,502.60


Page 1


222/503







223/503







224/503







225/503







226/503







227/503







228/503







229/503







230/503







231/503







REPRINT


X


OSBORNE LUMBER CO., INC.
P.O. BOX 1740


8100 ENTERPRISE DR.
NEWARK, CA 94560-6740
PHONE: (510) 793-3837


PAGE NO 1


ANDY'S ROOFING
***COD ACCOUNT***


WILL CALL
RAMONE 408.593.0077
JOB: MISSION HILL SCHOOL


4242 PO # 4242


513.33


CASH/CHECK/BANKCARD KM 7/25/18 2:12000


TED FOGARTY


CITY OF NEWARK


6


480280INVOICE:


TOT WT: 0.20


2.73


566.11


50.05


516.06


510-777-1100


TF


514


7/24/18


480280


7/26/18


** AMOUNT CHARGED TO STORE ACCOUNT ** 566.11


5911


¶^bÂÂ5911000480280I31001Q¸


CUST NO:


SOLD TO: SHIP TO:


JOB NO: PURCHASE ORDER: REFERENCE: TERMS: CLERK: DATE / TIME:


TAXABLE
NON-TAXABLE
SUBTOTAL


TAX AMOUNT


TOTAL


TAX:


Received By


DEL. DATE:


ORDER:


DUE DATE:


SALESPERSON:


TERMINAL:


LINE SHIPPED ORDERED UM SKU DESCRIPTION SUGG UNITS PRICE/ PER EXTENSION


1


2 4 4 PC 21020WRCP 2x10x20 WRC STK FJ PRIMED S1S2E 133.33 2050.00 /MF 273.33


3


4 16 16 EA MI MILL TO SAMPLE PATTERN 16 15.00 /EA 240.00


5 TO NET 16PC TOTAL


6


7 1 1 EA TAX AB-1492 CALIFORNIA 1% LUMBER TAX 1 2.73 /EA 2.73 N


Total Dimensional Lumber:   133.33/BF


232/503







Andys Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro, California 94577
Phone: (510) 777-1100
Fax: (510) 777-1102


Project: 3530 - Gault ES
1320 Seabright Avenue


Santa Cruz, California 95062


Prime Contract Potential Change Order #001:  Install Newport Blend color
tile in lieu of specified Red Clay color


TO: Santa Cruz City School District
536 Palm Street
Santa Cruz California, 95060


FROM: Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro California, 94577


PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 001 / 0 CONTRACT: 1 - Gault ES Prime Contract  


REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:    CREATED BY: JD Engquist  (Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.)
STATUS: Pending - In Review   CREATED DATE: 6/14 /2018 


REFERENCE:   PRIME CONTRACT
CHANGE ORDER:


None  


FIELD CHANGE: No    


LOCATION:   ACCOUNTING
METHOD:


Amount Based  


SCHEDULE IMPACT: 0 days   PAID IN FULL: No  


    TOTAL AMOUNT: $5,161.89


 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: Install Newport Blend color tile in lieu of specified Red Clay color
 
CHANGE REASON: Client Request
 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)
This is our cost to install Boral Newport Blend 1-piece S tile in lieu of the specified Red Clay color.
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
PCO 1 backup.pdf   
 
 
 


Andys Roofing Co., Inc. page 1 of 1 Printed On: 6/14/ 2018  02 :25 PM  


     


 


PCO #001


The cost for the change in color should not included and installation variations.
Price above should only reflect cost of tile.


We recommend acceptance of request to provide Newport Blend.


Neal Sellers
Bartos Architecture
6.22.18


Provide


233/503







PCO 1


Cost to install Boral Newport Blend 1-piece S tile 
in lieu of the specified Red Clay color


Cost Proposal Breakdown hours
1.  Straight Time Wages - Labor $0.00 0
2.  Overtime Wages - Labor $0.00 0
3.  Double Time Wages-Labor $0.00 0
3.  Str. Time Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00
4.  O.T. Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00


ACTUAL 5.  Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes $0.00
COSTS 6.  Materials $4,028.00


7.  Sales Taxes $372.59
8.  Rental Charges
9.  Insurance $0.00
10. Royalties
11. Permits
12. Equipment $0.00
13. Cost of Extra Work (1-13) $4,400.59
14. Mark-up $660.09
15. Bonds $101.21
16. Total Change $5,161.89


Material Breakdown
212 Newport Blend $144.00 $30,528.00
212 Red Clay -$125.00 -$26,500.00


$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$4,028.00
Equipment Breakdown
3/4 ton truck $16.95 $0.00
freight $402.80 $0.00


$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$0.00


Page 1


234/503







Andys Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro, California 94577
Phone: (510) 777-1100
Fax: (510) 777-1102


Project: 3530 - Gault ES
1320 Seabright Avenue


Santa Cruz, California 95062


Prime Contract Potential Change Order #002:  Install additional layer of
self-adhered underlayment


TO: Santa Cruz City School District
536 Palm Street
Santa Cruz California, 95060


FROM: Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro California, 94577


PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 002 / 1 CONTRACT: 1 - Gault ES Prime Contract  


REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:    CREATED BY: JD Engquist  (Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.)
STATUS: Pending - In Review   CREATED DATE: 6/14 /2018 


REFERENCE:   PRIME CONTRACT
CHANGE ORDER:


None  


FIELD CHANGE: No    


LOCATION:   ACCOUNTING
METHOD:


Amount Based  


SCHEDULE IMPACT: 4 days   PAID IN FULL: No  


    TOTAL AMOUNT: $13,100.77


 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: Install additional layer of self-adhered underlayment
 
CHANGE REASON: Client Request
 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)
Attached is our final Time and Material cost to install an additional layer of Owner-supplied self-adhered underlayment (Garland AquaShield) over entire
deck, per RFI 1.1 response. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
PCO 2.1 Signed T&M Tags.pdf    PCO 2.1 backup.pdf   
 
 
 


 
Andys Roofing Co., Inc. page 1 of 1 Printed On: 8/3/ 2018  11 :42 AM  


     


 


PCO #002


As requested, this change was recorded on Time and Materials as documented on attachments. 
We recommend acceptance of this request.


Neal Sellers
Bartos Architecture
9.10.18


235/503







PCO 2.1


Install additional layer of Owner supplied SA underlayment 
(Garland AquaShield) over entire deck, per RFI 2.1 response,
directed to track on T&M


Cost Proposal Breakdown hours
1.  Straight Time Wages - Labor $11,168.60 136
2.  Overtime Wages - Labor $0.00 0
3.  Double Time Wages-Labor $0.00 0
3.  Str. Time Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00
4.  O.T. Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00


ACTUAL 5.  Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes $0.00
COSTS 6.  Materials $0.00


7.  Sales Taxes $0.00
8.  Rental Charges
9.  Insurance $0.00
10. Royalties
11. Permits
12. Equipment $0.00
13. Cost of Extra Work (1-13) $11,168.60
14. Mark-up $1,675.29
15. Bonds $256.88
16. Total Change $13,100.77


Material Breakdown
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$0.00
Equipment Breakdown
3/4 ton truck $16.95 $0.00
freight $0.00 $0.00


$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$0.00


Page 1


236/503







237/503







Andys Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro, California 94577
Phone: (510) 777-1100
Fax: (510) 777-1102


Project: 3530 - Gault ES
1320 Seabright Avenue


Santa Cruz, California 95062


Prime Contract Potential Change Order #005:  Repair dry rot and termite
damage on a T&M basis


TO: Santa Cruz City School District
536 Palm Street
Santa Cruz California, 95060


FROM: Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.
2161 Adams Avenue
San Leandro California, 94577


PCO NUMBER/REVISION: 005 / 0 CONTRACT: 1 - Gault ES Prime Contract  


REQUEST RECEIVED FROM:    CREATED BY: JD Engquist  (Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.)
STATUS: Pending - In Review   CREATED DATE: 7/31 /2018 


REFERENCE:   PRIME CONTRACT
CHANGE ORDER:


None  


FIELD CHANGE: No    


LOCATION:   ACCOUNTING
METHOD:


Amount Based  


SCHEDULE IMPACT: 4 days   PAID IN FULL: No  


    TOTAL AMOUNT: $27,206.67


 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER TITLE: Repair dry rot and termite damage on a T&M basis
 
CHANGE REASON: Existing Condition
 
POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION: (The Contract Is Changed As Follows)
Attached are our signed Time and Material tags, material receipts, and back up for the dry rot and termite damage repairs we completed on a T&M
basis.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
PCO 5 backup.pdf   
 
 
 


Neal Sellers (Bartos Architecture)   Santa Cruz City School District   Andy's Roofing Co., Inc.
1730 South Amphlett Blvd, Suite 225   536 Palm Street   2161 Adams Avenue
San Mateo California 94402   Santa Cruz California 95060   San Leandro California 94577
         
         
         


SIGNATURE DATE   SIGNATURE DATE   SIGNATURE DATE
 
Andys Roofing Co., Inc. page 1 of 1 Printed On: 7/31/ 2018  01 :58 PM  


     


 


PCO #005


We recommend acceptance of this request as a value added item to this project.


Neal Sellers
Bartos Architecture
9.10.18


238/503







PCO 5 (Gault ES)


Dry rot and termite damage repair, to be completed on T&M


Cost Proposal Breakdown hours
1.  Straight Time Wages - Labor $18,395.34 224
2.  Overtime Wages - Labor $0.00 0
3.  Double Time Wages-Labor $0.00 0
3.  Str. Time Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00
4.  O.T. Wages/Salaries - Supv. Pers. $0.00


ACTUAL 5.  Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes $0.00
COSTS 6.  Materials $2,432.16


7.  Sales Taxes $224.97
8.  Rental Charges
9.  Insurance $0.00
10. Royalties
11. Permits
12. Equipment $2,141.62
13. Cost of Extra Work (1-13) $23,194.09
14. Mark-up $3,479.11
15. Bonds $533.46
16. Total Change $27,206.67


Material Breakdown
1 Lumber - 6/29/18 $730.68 $730.68
1 Lumber - 7/2/18 $1,097.63 $1,097.63
1 Lumber - 7/3/18 $282.30 $282.30
1 Lumber - 7/9/18 $145.02 $145.02
1 Lumber - 7/9/18 $25.39 $25.39
1 Lumber - 7/9/18 $42.19 $42.19
1 Lumber - 7/14/18 $108.95 $108.95


$2,432.16
Equipment Breakdown


112 3/4 ton truck $16.95 $1,898.40
1 freight $243.22 $243.22


$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00


$2,141.62


Page 1


239/503







240/503







241/503







242/503







243/503







244/503







245/503







246/503







247/503







248/503







Contract Amendment: Belli Architecture – HHS MPR


Music modernization


Separator Page


249/503







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Amendment to the Belli Architectural Group 
Agreement for Branciforte Middle School 


      
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the amendment to the Belli Architectural Group agreement for the music/MPR 
classroom modernization phase 1 project at Branciforte Middle School.  
 
Background: 
The Board previously approved a Master Agreement for Architectural Services with Belli 
Architectural Group on 12/14/16. An initial amendment to the agreement with Belli for this site 
was approved by the board on 6/13/18. This revised amendment reflects refined plans and 
construction costs for the Branciforte Middle School modernization phase 1 projects.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
$447,500.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 2.61% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
  
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 
 


250/503







251/503







252/503







253/503







254/503







255/503







Change Order #1: CRW Industries: Branciforte Small


Schools Lunch Shelter & Playground Structure


Separator Page


256/503







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.5. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Change Order #1 for CRW Industries, Inc. for Upgraded Restroom 
Partitions for the Branciforte Small Schools Relocation of 
Playground and Lunch Shelter Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve change order #1 for CRW Industries, Inc. for upgraded restroom partitions for the 
Branciforte Small Schools relocation of playground and lunch shelter project. 
 
Background: 
This change order includes additional charges for upgraded restroom toilet partitions. The 
district is installing gender neutral restrooms, where possible. The upgraded series of partitions 
are more expensive because they are larger and provide more privacy than the original 
partitions specified. The previously approved contract amount was $257,779.00 and the new 
total contract, including this change order, will be $259,425.89. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Change Order #1 $1,646.89 (0.63% increase of the original contract amount) 
Measure B Bond Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
  
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 
 


257/503







DATE:  9/10/2018


Job Number: 5267 CONTRACTOR: CRW Industries Inc


  DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE:


ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT COST EXTENSION


QUANTITY 
HOURS RATE EXTENSION QUANTITY UNIT COST EXTENSION


1 $1,404.00 1,404.00$     $118.00 -$  -$             


1,404.00$     -$  -$             


 MATERIAL $1,404.00


 LABOR $0.00


 EQUIPMENT $0.00


SUBTOTAL DIRECT COSTS $1,404.00


FEE ON DIRECT COSTS (15%)


PRIME CONTRACTOR SUBTOTAL $1,614.60


5% FEE ON SUBCONTRACTOR DIRECT COSTS $0.00


SUBCONTRACTOR SUBTOTAL $0.00


1,614.60$           


BOND ( not to exceed 2% of sub total) 32.29$  


TOTAL 1,646.89$    


PREPARED & SUBMITTED BY:  


COMPANY:  TITLE:


B40 SS Lunch Shelter/Playground


PCO #:  1


PCO  - COST PROPOSAL  -  PRIME CONTRACTOR


MATERIAL (sales tax included) LABOR (fully encumbered) EQUIPMENT (attach invoice)


Upcharge for Series 2082G.67 toilet partitions in lieu of Series 1082 toilet partitions. 


SUBTOTALS:  


$210.60


Sub Contractor Costs from Attached Cost Proposal(s)


PCO SUBTOTAL


Bill Burr


CRW Pres


Cost Proposal
258/503







259/503







260/503







Change Order #2: CRW Industries: Natural Bridges Gym


modernization


Separator Page


261/503







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.6. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Change Order #2 for CRW Industries, Inc. for 
Replacement Volleyball Poles for the Natural Bridges Gym 
Modernization Phase 1 Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve change order #2 for CRW Industries, Inc. for replacement volleyball poles for the 
Natural Bridges gym modernization phase 1 project. 
 
Background: 
This change order includes additional charges for the replacement of two (2) volleyball poles in 
the Natural Bridges Gym. The existing steel poles are too heavy for children to use safely, new 
aluminum poles will provide easier and safer set up and breakdown for site users. The 
previously approved contract amount was $435,467.28 and the new total contract, including 
this change order, will be $437,397.98. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Change Order #2  $1,930.70 (0.44% increase of the contract amount) 
Measure B Bond Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 
 


262/503







263/503







264/503







265/503







266/503







Career Technical Education Grant Submission:


Authorization to Proceed


Separator Page


267/503







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.7 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 


AGENDA ITEM: Career Technical Education Facilities Program Applications for Santa Cruz 
High School  


 
MEETING DATE: September 28, 2018 
 
FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Supt., Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve development and submittal of Career Technical Education Facilities Program 
Applications for Santa Cruz High School.  
 
BACKGROUND: 


  The Voters of the State of California passed Proposition 51 in November, 2016. $500,000,000 (five    
hundred million) for Career Technical Education Facilities (CTEF) was included in the ballot 
language.  


  The District’s comprehensive high school facilities continue to be in need of renovation and/or 
modernization in order to continue to provide facilities that support instruction for high labor 
demand career sectors.  


  Santa Cruz High School has current and ongoing Career Technical Education programs on campus 
which need facility modernization, reconfiguration or expansion. The District will apply for funding 
under the state of California’s Career Technical Education Facilities program.  


  Funding applications are competitive and are based on a point system. The first round via 
Proposition 51 (“Cycle 5”) of competitive applications is due by 19 October 2017. Additional cycles 
will be held over time.  


  The following projects will be submitted in the appropriate application “cycle” based upon logical 
sequencing of projects. 


  This list may be augmented in future board agendas. These projects may also be re-combined as 
necessary in order to create the most logical scope/locations. 


Applications currently under development with submittal to the state required by October 19 are in 
relation to a proposed are: 


   Santa Cruz High School 


 Re-submittal of Arts Media and Entertainment Facility 


 Re-submittal of Information Technology Center 


 Modernization and Reconfigurations of Bicycle Shop Facility 


 Modernization and Reconfiguration of Auto Facility 


The applications are submitted separately per CTEFP guidelines requirements and allow for up to 


$3,000,000 state grants per sector application for new Construction, and 1,500,000 per sector for 


Modernizations. 


268/503







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.7 
 


CTEFP Applications Project List 


SCHS: New CTE Facility – Santa Cruz High School Institute of Technology and Design 


New CTE facility project to include the following sectors. Each sector will entail a separate funding 
application for this project.  


Information and Communication Technology: Pathways:  Information Support and Services, 
Networking, Software and Systems Development, Games and Simulation. 


Arts Media and Entertainment: Pathways Design, Visual and Media Arts, Performing Arts, 
Production and Managerial Arts, Game Design and integration 


Potential scope of project for new facility includes but is not necessarily limited to the following:  
classrooms (Animation/Graphic Design/Video Production) server room, printing room, prototyping 
laboratory, mechatronics/robotics laboratory, video studio, video production room, sound room, 
fabrication lab, and required ancillary spaces.  Required support functions, such as stairs, elevators, 
restrooms, utility will be included. 


 


Equipment 


New current technology equipment needed for the instruction of the following sectors in a new 
facility. These applications may be combined/consolidated with the above. 


Information and Communication Technology: Pathways:  Information Support and Services, 
Networking, Software and Systems Development, Games and Simulation:  


Arts Media and Entertainment: Pathways Design, Visual and media Arts, Performing Arts, 
Production and Managerial Arts, Game Design and integration. 


 


SCHS Modernization and Reconfiguration of Unit G or H – Auto Facility 


Transportation: Pathway:  Operations, Structural Repair and Refinishing, Systems Diagnostics and 
Service. 
 
Improvements needed to improve, modernize, reconfigure and expand the Auto Shop. Will include 
classrooms, necessary ancillary support spaces and overall facility life cycle and safety 
improvements 


 


SCHS Equipment for Auto Facility 


New current technology equipment needed for the instruction of the following sector in a 
modernized and reconfigured Auto facility. 


Transportation: Pathway:  Operations, Structural Repair and refinishing, Systems Diagnostics and 
Service. 


 


SCHS Modernization and Reconfiguration of Unit H or G – Bicycle Shop Facility 


Transportation: Pathway:  Structural Repair and Refinishing, Systems Diagnostics and Service. 


Improvements needed in Building H necessary to improve, modernize, reconfigure and expand the 
Bicycle Shop. Will include necessary ancillary support spaces and overall facility life cycle and safety 
improvements. 


269/503







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.7 
 


Equipment for Bicycle Shop Facility 


New current technology equipment needed for the instruction of the following sector in a 
modernized and reconfigured Bicycle Shop facility. 


Transportation: Pathway:  Structural Repair and Refinishing, Systems Diagnostics and Service. 


Modernization and Reconfiguration of Unit H or G – Bicycle Shop Facility. 


Transportation: Pathway:  Structural Repair and Refinishing, Systems Diagnostics and Service 


Improvements needed in Building H necessary to improve, modernize, reconfigure and expand the 
Bicycle Shop. Will include necessary ancillary support spaces and overall facility life cycle and safety 
improvements. 


 


 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
Measure A Bond Funds will provide a match to any grant received (Restricted) 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


 


270/503







Quote: Mobilflex: Security Grills for Harbor HS locker


improvement project


Separator Page


271/503







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.8. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Security Grills for the Harbor High School Student Locker Project 
      
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the Mobilflex quote for security grills for the Harbor High School student locker 
project.  
 
Background: 
This quote is for metal security grills to enclose and protect the new lockers as part of the 
student locker project at Harbor High School.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
$28,337.82, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.09% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 
 


272/503







NEW-YORK LONDON PARIS
TORONTO QUEBEC MEXICO


|
|


|
|


TEL 1.  800.  216.  (FLEX)  3539
FAX 1.  800.  254.  (FLEX)  3539


:
:


FOLDING  &  ROLLING  CLOSURES  MANUFACTURER
MobilFlex


6 1 ' "10 mm mm48019 ' "Clear AnodizedS-126 Brick 8 3 25211/415


831-429-3906


FAX:


536 PALM STREET


SANTA CRUZ


95060


PUBLIC SCHOOL HARBOR


DON’T HESITATE TO CALL US IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS.


ATT:


TEL:


CO.:


CALIFORNIA


PROJECT:


LOCATION:


CITY: SANTA CRUZ


MOBILFLEX   IS   NOW   MAKING   HIGH   QUALITY   ROLLING   CLOSURES


ADR:


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


STATE: CALIFORNIA


IF THE ABOVE MEETS YOUR NEEDS PLEASE SIGN AND SEND A PURCHASE ORDER.


FINISH


DESCRIPTION:


LENGTH HEIGHT


TRICIA HAYES


PROPOSAL-


CLIENT’S ORDER # MobilFlex #MAR 2, 2018


SUPPLY ONLY F.O.B. FACTORY


SANTA CRUZ ,
CALIFORNIA


TO BE DETERMINEDPAYMENT TERMS SHIPPING DATE 5 Days


25 998


NET


USD  $


Accepted by : DateSANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


SHIP TO:


DATE :


REVISED MAY 1 2018


MODELQTY


 Standard R 14” included
 Stainless steel hardware included
 Bi-part separator keyed standard locks


Support and pockets not included                                          Thank you and have a great day!
MobilFlex cylinders included      Special locks (Best, Medeco ...) not included


AYMERIC LACHAUT


Project Manager


Proposal
NO:


Project
15899794183


PRICE:


Via:


NOTES:


SUPPLY & DELIVER


SUPPLY & INSTALL 1 TRIP TO JOB SITE


NO TAXES INCLUDED


aymericlachaut@mobilflex.com


UNITED STATES


UNITED STATES


273/503







Change Order #1: OC McDonald: Santa Cruz HS piping


replacement – new boiler room


Separator Page


274/503







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.9. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Deductive Change Order #1 for O.C. McDonald Co., Inc. for 
Changes to the Boiler and Art Rooms for the Santa Cruz High 
School Piping Replacement Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve change order #1 for O.C. McDonald Co., for changes to the scope of work in the boiler 
and art rooms for the Santa Cruz High School piping replacement project. 
 
Background: 
This change order includes additional charges for the demolition of plumbing fixtures and 
installation of a new sink basin and water heater in the boiler room as well as the replacement 
of six faucets and a stainless steel countertop in the art room. In conjunction with a credit for 
the deletion of the underground water line replacement portion of the project, this change 
order will result in a decrease in the overall project cost. The previously approved contract 
amount was $244,000.00 and the new total contract, including this change order, will be 
$241,813.00. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Change Order #1 -$2,187.00 (0.89% decrease of the original contract amount) 
Measure A Bond Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
  
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 
 


275/503







276/503







Page 1 of 1


September 12, 2018 OCM Job #08025
COR #01 Rev. 1


Bartos Architecture
1730 S. Amphlett Blvd., Suite 225
San Mateo, CA 94402 Tel: (650) 340-1221


Cell: (417) 861-9733
Attn: Neal Sellers E-Mail: ns@bartosarchitecture.com


Re: Santa Cruz High School
Domestic Water Piping Replacement


Subj.: Plumbing as Directed by Neal Sellers


Gentlemen:


We respectfully request a change order in the amount of Two Thousand Six Hundred
Thirty Seven Dollars and 00/Cents ($2,637.00) to demo toilet, sink and janitor sink in
boiler room; cap all plumbing lines in bathroom; install new sink basin in boiler room; and
furnish and install 40-gallon water heater.


Should you have any questions or comments, please contact the undersigned.


Respectfully submitted,
O.C. McDonald Co., Inc.


Bob Russell
Project Manager


HLD/BR


Cc: Job Folder


277/503







1. Project 2. COR No. 01 Rev. 1


3. Change Order Requested by: 4. Date


5. Owner & Architect - Engineer Change Order Request No.


6. Material 604.00$


7. Equipment


8. Material / Equipment Total 604.00$


9. Tax (Santa Clara County) @ 9.000% 54.36$


10. Overhead % of Material and Equipment 15.00% 98.75$


11. Material Profit -$


12. 8 Hours @ 97.68$ per hour 781.44$


13. 8 Hours @ 103.80$ per hour 830.40$


14. Hours @ per hour -$


15. Hours @ per hour -$


16. Hours @ per hour -$


17. Hours @ per hour -$


18. Hours @ per hour -$


19. Hours @ per hour -$


20. Labor Total 1,611.84$


21. Overhead % of Labor 15.00% 241.78$


22. Labor Profit -$


23. Equipment Rental -$


24. Subcontracts: Air / Water Balance


25. Insulation


26. Temperature Controls


27. Rigging


28.


29. Subcontracts Total -$


30. Overhead % of Subcontracts 15.00% -$


31. Subcontract Profit -$


32. Permit and Fees -$


33. Indirect Costs for this Change Order Request -$


34. Change Order Request Subtotal (Items 6 - 31) 2,610.73$


35. Bond Premium 1.00% 26.11$


36. Total Price of Change Order Request 2,637$


37. Time Extension Required: Days


38. Submitted by: Date


39. For Cost Breakdowns See Attached 7 Sheets


Santa Cruz HS Domestic Water Piping Replacement


CHANGE ORDER REQUEST CALCULATION SHEET


Local 62 JM


Local 62 FM


O.C. McDonald Co., Inc.


1150 West San Carlos Street


San Jose, CA 95126


Tel: (408) 295-2182 • Fax: (408) 295-0626


www.ocmcdonald.com


Bob Russell July 26, 2018


Bartos/Owner 07/24/18


As Directed


278/503







C.M,DonRLD 


  


PROJECT COST ESTIMATE BID DATE 


QNTY. 	 DESCRIPTION 	
MATERIAL 	 LABOR. 


UNIT 	EXTENSION 	UNIT 	EXTENSION 


(\J'2J 	Je & 
 c& tt 	(d -to dati o -10i Lt t 	I-  


M' L 	 s7& 	i 	b6i La-r  


I 	•De4 	 1cap 	 -° 	 _____ _____ 


Do  


Ate 0 


I 


-Vop 	 it- _____  


/ 


lco- 


279/503







sc-,s 0302-5 
PROJECT 


wrm,fl900jflfOIfl( 


COST ESTIMATE 
2-5-( 


BID DATE 


NTY, 	 DESCRIPTION 
MATERIAL LABOR. 


UNIT EXTENSION UNIT 1EXTENS 


iJe- 	( 


-t 
__ 


280/503







I W ei  
PACE SUPPLY CORP 


up 	605 LAURELWOOD RD p,t SANTA CLARA CA 95054 
PHONE#: 408-550-8700 


**QUOTATION** 


	


TO: 0 C MCDONALD CO INC 	 DATE: 	07/24/18 	NO. 809523 
TO DATE: 08/23/18 


P0 BOX 26560 	 JOB: Florestone 
SAN JOSE, CA 95159 


FOB: 	ORIGIN 
PREP. BY MARK FOSTER JR 


WE ARE PLEASED TO QUOTE YOU ON THE FOLLOWING MATERIAL 


PAGE: 1 


Qty 	Part Number 	Description 	 Price. .. Extended 


1 	 ===> 


FLRFM 	 FLOOR MOUNT UTILITY SINK FLORESTO 	62.00 	62.00 


62.00 


QUOTATION TOTALS 	 62.00 


281/503







23½" 


11/1" 	
119/l6flH 


223A" 
r 


18¼" 


Florestone 
Model FM 
Utility Sink 


23W' x 223/8" x 35½ 


Weight: 
FM-1 (1/Box): 	30 lbs. 
FM-3 (3/Box): 	85 lbs. 
Capacity 	 20 gallons 


Architect's 
Specifications 


Furnish and install Utility Sink Model FM 
as manufactured by Florestone Products 
Co. Floor mounted sink to come with 
four (4) heavy duty molded legs and the 
hardware to attach legs to the sink, and 
drain plugs with hardware. 


Color will be white and will be resistant 
to fading and abrasion. 


Unit to have 1½" drain opening. 


Optional and Accessories 


FM Accessory Kit 


Set of Legs (4) - Heavy duty molded legs 


I 
14%" 


Adj. 


Height 


34½" to 


35½" 


Standards  


l.A.P M.O. Listed File 2647 
ANSI-Z-124.6-97 


CSA Test • Warnock Hersey Listed: 	w 
cAN/csA-B45.0 - cAN/csA-B45.5 	UI 


---FLORE STONE 
A Spec Above. 


Inside Tray Dimensions: 181/411  x 22W' 


 


FLORESTONE PRODUCTS CO., INC. 


2851 Falcon Drive' Madera, CA 93637 


T. 559.661.4171 • T. 800.446.8827 


F. 559.661 .2070 • florestone.com  


282/503







PACE SUPPLY CORP suppiq 630 QUINN AVE SAN JOSE CA 9511 ' 2 
PHONE#: 408-861-4100 


* * Q U 0 T A T I 0 N * * 


	


TO: 0 C MCDONALD CO INC 	 DATE: 	07/25/18 	NO. 810212 
TO DATE: 08/24/18 


P0 BOX 26560 	 JOB: HEATER / LOU 
SAN JOSE, CA 95159 


FOB: 	ORIGIN 
PREP. BY MARK FOSTER 


WE ARE PLEASED TO QUOTE YOU ON THE FOLLOWING MATERIAL 


PAGE: 1 


Qty 


	


	Part Number 	Description 	 Price. . . Extended 


1 	 ===> 


ASWNLN40NT2 	GN40T2-3-6 40 GAL NG TALL ULN 20 	504.00 	504.00 
RECORD SERIAL#___________________________ 


504.00 


QUOTATION TOTALS 	 504.00 


283/503







y$cif(€441 3*uidard 
Residential Line 


GN - Ultra Low NOx Natural Gas Water Heaters 
FEATURES 


Complies with NAECA requirements —effective April 16. 
2015, and Federal Energy Conservation Standards, in accordance with 


the Energy Policy and Conversation Act, (EPCA), as amended. 
ULTRA-LOW NOx BURNER - Complies with Southern California 
SCAQMD 2008 Rule 1121 and Northern California BMQMD 2009 lOngiJ 
NOx emissions requirements. 
VAPORSHIELD TECHNOLOGY - Shuts off gas and air supply to 
heater to prevent prolonged vapor bum in combustion chamber should 
accidental or unattended ignition of flammable vapors occur outside the 
water heater. 


• PIEZO IGNITER —Affords push button pilot lighting in lieu of matches. 
* MAINTENANCE FREE - No periodic cleaning of combustion air inlet 


necessary under normal conditions. 
STANDARD THERMOCOUPLE - Design provides for use of either 
factory supplied thermocouple or standard replacement thermocouple. 


• SELF-CLEANING - Turbulence inducing cold water inlet-tube 
engineered to diminish hard water area sediment deposits. 
NON-CFC FOAM INSULATED - Saves energy and reduces fuel 
costs by maximizing heat retention. 


• HEAVY GAUGE STEEL TANK - For extra years of trouble-free 
service. 


• GLASS-LINED TANK - Inner tank glass-lined with Dura-Gl@sl and 
fired at 1600° F for optimum protection from the effects of corrosion. 


• MAGNESIUM ANODE ROD - To protect tank life. 
• FACTORY INSTALLED DIELECTRIC HOT AND COLD 


WATER CONNECTIONS - 3/4' NPT water connections to extend tank 
life and for easier installations. 
BRASS DRAIN VALVE - Durable to prevent unintentional breakage. 
FACTORY INSTALLED HEAT TRAPS - Reduces standby heat loss 
in water piping. 


• TEMPERATURE AND PRESSURE RELIEF VALVE - Factory 
provided I & P Valve can be relocated from side to optional top opening. 
FACTORY INSTALLED ENERGY CUT-OFF SYSTEM - 
Automatic thermostat with built-in gas pressure regulation also incorporates 
energy cutoff switch to prevent abnorrn&y high water temperature for added 
safety. 
DESIGN CERTIFIED BY CSA INTERNATIONAL - To meet or 
exceed ANSI requirements. Tested in accordance with D.O.E. test 
procedures and meets or exceeds the energy efficiency requirements of 
ASHRAE and all state energy efficiency standards. 


* CHOICE OF 6 OR 12 YEAR LIMITED TANK WARRANTY—
Includes 6 or 12 Year Limited Warranty on Component Parts. 


Amieai Svohwa~d 
561 New York Drive, Pomona, California 91768 


(800) 900-9063 (909) 392-0230 FAX (909) 392-730; 


AMSTO-4.UU' 


284/503







SPECIFICATIONS AND APPLICATION DATA 


MODEL NUMBER 


TALL 


FIRST 
HOUR 


RATING 
GALLONS GALLONS 


BTU 
INPUT 


NAT&LP 
GAS 


GPH 
REC AT 
9'  


RISE 
ENERGY 
FACTOR 


R 
FACTOR 


VENT 
DIAM 


A 


JACKET 
DLA,M 


B 


DIMENSIONS IN INCHES 


HEIGHT TO 


TOP OF 	TOP OF 	SIDE 	TOP OF 
HEATER 	WATER 	T&P 	VENT 


C 	D 	E 	F 


WTR 
SPREAD 
_G 


APROX. 
SHIP WGT 


(LBS) 
GN30T1-3-6 30 72 35,000 33 0.63 8 3 165/16 587/8 603/8 53 62 1/8 - 142 
GN40T1-3-6 40 71 40.000 38 0.62 8 3 185/16 591/8 605/8 527/8 623/8 160 
GN50T1-3-6 50 84 40,000 38 0.61 8 3 205/16 573/4 591/4 511/8 61 187 
GN3OT2-3-6 


_ 
30 


_ 
70 


_ 
35,000 


_ 
33 


_ 
0.64 


_ 
16 


_ 
3 


_ 
185/16 587/8 


_ 
603/8 


_ 
53 


_ 
621/8 155 


GN40T2-3-6 


_ _ 
40 


_ _ 
72 


_ _ 
40.000 


_ _ 
38 


_ _ 
0.64 


_ _ 
16 


_ _ 
3 


_ _ 
205/16 591/8 


_ _ 
605/8 


_ _ 
527/8 


_ _ 
623/8 180 


GN5OT2-3-6 
_ 


_50 
_ 


_93 
_ 


_40.000 
_ 


_38 
_ 


_0.62 
_ 


_16 
_ 


_3 
_ 


_223/8 573/4 
_ 


_591/4 
_ 


_511/8 
_ 


_61 8 194 
LOW BOY 


GN301-2-3-6 30 1 	64 35,000 33 1 	0.63 1 	16 1 	3 1 205/16 1 	47114 1 	483/4 41 509/16 8 141 
GN401-2-3-6 1 	40 1 	68 1 	37,000 35 1 	0.63 16 1 	3 1 223/8 1 	49 1 	50 112 1 423/8 	1 525/16 1 	8 1 	174 - 	GNGOL2.3-6 1 	50 1 	82 1 	40,000 38 1 	0.60 16 1 	3 1243/8 1 	495/8 1 	511/8 1 423/4 	1 52 7/8 1 	8 1 	225 


Recovery capacity based on actual performance tests 


For 12 year models, change the model number suffix from 


"6" to "12". Example: GN40T1 -3-12 


All models meet SCAQMD 2008 Rule 1121 and Northern 


California BAAQMD 2009 1 Ong/J NOx emissions 


requirements. 


All models comply with NAECA requirements 


• Recovery capacity based on actual performance tests. 


• All models are certified at 300 PSI test pressure and 150 PSI 


working pressure. 


* Dimensions and specifications subject to change without 


notice in accordance with our policy of continuous product 


improvement. 
.- co' 	r.tr'rl Tup I & P Outlet see dimension C 


SAMPLE SPECIFICATION 


Water heater shall be AMERICAN STANDARD mxf Cl, 	 navng a storage caoacriy of 


gallons. operate on Natural Gas with a BTU input of 	 and a recovery rate of ________ gallons 	 015 


per hour at 901  F temperature rise. Water heater tank interior shaft be glass lined with Dura.GlasM,  furnished 	
CIP 


with Magnesium anode rod and insulation shalt be non-CFC foam. Water heater shall be CSA certified 


ow  
10, ,rbl 


561 New York Drive, Pomona, California 91768 
1(800) 900 9063 (909) 392.0230 • Fax (909) 392-7302 


285/503







Page 1 of 1


August 2, 2018 OCM Job #08025
COR #03


Bartos Architecture
1730 S. Amphlett Blvd., Suite 225
San Mateo, CA 94402 Tel: (650) 340-1221


Cell: (417) 861-9733
Attn: Neal Sellers E-Mail: ns@bartosarchitecture.com


Re: Santa Cruz High School
Domestic Water Piping Replacement


Subj.: Art Room Faucets & SS Top


Gentlemen:


We respectfully request a change order in the amount of Two Thousand Ninety Six
Dollars and 00/Cents ($2,096.00) to replace six (6) faucets and install new stainless steel
top at the Art Room per direction from Chris Garcia.


Should you have any questions or comments, please contact the undersigned.


Respectfully submitted,
O.C. McDonald Co., Inc.


Bob Russell
Project Manager


HLD/BR


Cc: Job Folder


We recommend acceptance of this District request.


Neal Sellers
Bartos Architecture
8/6/18


286/503







1. Project 2. COR No. 03


3. Change Order Requested by: 4. Date


5. Owner & Architect - Engineer Change Order Request No.


6. Material 1,240.00$


7. Equipment


8. Material / Equipment Total 1,240.00$


9. Tax (Santa Clara County) @ 9.000% 111.60$


10. Overhead % of Material and Equipment 15.00% 202.74$


11. Material Profit -$


12. 2.25 Hours @ 97.68$ per hour 219.78$


13. 2.25 Hours @ 103.80$ per hour 233.55$


14. Hours @ per hour -$


15. Hours @ per hour -$


16. Hours @ per hour -$


17. Hours @ per hour -$


18. Hours @ per hour -$


19. Hours @ per hour -$


20. Labor Total 453.33$


21. Overhead % of Labor 15.00% 68.00$


22. Labor Profit -$


23. Equipment Rental -$


24. Subcontracts: Air / Water Balance


25. Insulation


26. Temperature Controls


27. Rigging


28.


29. Subcontracts Total -$


30. Overhead % of Subcontracts 15.00% -$


31. Subcontract Profit -$


32. Permit and Fees -$


33. Indirect Costs for this Change Order Request -$


34. Change Order Request Subtotal (Items 6 - 31) 2,075.67$


35. Bond Premium 1.00% 20.76$


36. Total Price of Change Order Request 2,096$


37. Time Extension Required: Days


38. Submitted by: Date


39. For Cost Breakdowns See Attached 3 Sheets


Santa Cruz HS Domestic Water Piping Replacement


CHANGE ORDER REQUEST CALCULATION SHEET


Local 62 JM


Local 62 FM


O.C. McDonald Co., Inc.


1150 West San Carlos Street


San Jose, CA 95126


Tel: (408) 295-2182 • Fax: (408) 295-0626


www.ocmcdonald.com


Bob Russell August 2, 2018


Bartos/Owner 08/01/18


287/503







ç2/ 	OV)2 


	No! cDOflflLDLOIfl(. 


PROJECT 
	


COST ESTIMATE 
	


BID DATE 


ONTY. DESCRIPTION 
MATERIAL LABOR. 


UNIT EXTENSION UNIT EXTENSIOr 


'j- dtr.w 	Ct -Or 	CIL -s 	6C4PC'4..  


&- I 	 A-r4 w L,  


(qz. 52 75 


ç4o( - 


288/503







Bob Russell 


From: 
	


Lou Nava 


Sent: 
	


Wednesday, August 1, 2018 8:13 AM 


To: 
	


Bob Russell 


Subject: 
	


RE: SC High and marine mammal 


The cost of these are 142.00 each 


&(i' 
Lou Nava 


Purchasing Manager 


main: 	(408) 295-2182 x312 


cell: 	(408) 591-0617 


fax: 	(408) 295-0626 


address: 1150 W San Carlos St. 


San Jose CA 95126 


O.C.ffIDOAAt.0 compnny, II1C, 
S  


From: Bob Russell 


Sent: Wednesday, August 01, 2018 7:22 AM 


To: Lou Nava <lnava@ocmcdonald.onmicrosoft.com> 


Cc: Dave Hughes <dhughes@ocmcdonald.com> 
Subject: RE: SC High and marine mammal 


Lou, please provide price and cut sheet for change order. 


Bob Russell 


Project Manager 


cell: (408) 640-3296 


eIt
iiwl~"0 


1 


289/503







Bob Russell 


From: 	 Mike Mullins 


Sent: 	 Thursday, August 2, 2018 8:41 AM 


To: 	 Dave Hughes; Bob Russell; Lou Nava 


Subject: 	 RE: SC High extra 


With holes - $388.00 


Thanks, 


MM 


From: Dave Hughes 


Sent: Thursday, August 2, 2018 8:00 AM 


To: Mike Mullins <mmullins@ocmcdonald.com>;  Bob Russell <brussell@ocmcdonald.com>; Lou Nava 


<lnava@ocmcdonald.onmicrosoft.com> 
Subject: Re: SC High extra 


Mike, 


Please change the price to include 6) 11/4" holes spaced every 9 3/16" along the top. 


Thanks 


Sent from my Sprint Samsung Galaxy S® 6. 


Original message -------- 


From: Mike Mullins <mmullins@ocmcdonald.com> 


Date: 8/2/18 7:45 AM (GMT-08:00) 
To: Bob Russell <brussell@ocmcdonald.com>, Lou Nava <lnava@ocmcdonald.onmicrosoft.com>, Dave Hughes 
<dhughesocmcdonald.com> 


Subject: RE: SC High extra 


MR 


Assuming the holes for the faucets will be field cut, here is your price - $260.00 


Thanks 


MM 


From: Bob Russell 


Sent: Wednesday, August 1, 2018 7:56 AM 


To: Mike Mullins <mmullins@ocmcdonald.com>; Lou Nava <lnava@ocmcdonald.onmicrosoft.com>; Dave Hughes 


<dhughes@ocmcdonald.com> 


Subject: FW: SC High extra 


1 


290/503







Page 1 of 1


August 15, 2018 OCM Job #08025
COR #04


Bartos Architecture
1730 S. Amphlett Blvd., Suite 225
San Mateo, CA 94402 Tel: (650) 340-1221


Cell: (417) 861-9733
Attn: Neal Sellers E-Mail: ns@bartosarchitecture.com


Re: Santa Cruz High School
Domestic Water Piping Replacement


Subj.: Underground Water


Gentlemen:


We respectfully request a credit change order in the amount of Six Thousand Nine
Hundred Twenty Dollars and 00/Cents ($6,920.00) to delete underground water line
per Drawings P1.0 and P2.0.


If this herein is not converted to a change order within forty-five (45) calendar days of the
Authorization to Proceed, an additional markup of 10% per annum will be accrued from the start
of this work until a change order is issued.


Should you have any questions or comments, please contact the undersigned.


Respectfully submitted,
O.C. McDonald Co., Inc.


Ray Sheik
Project Estimator


HLD/R


Cc: Job Folder


We recommend acceptance of this credit as a deductions from the scope of work. 
This work should be completed in a future project to replace existing campus main
loop.
Neal Sellers
Bartos Architecture
8.31.18


291/503







1. Project 2. COR No. 04


3. Change Order Requested by: 4. Date


5. Owner & Architect - Engineer Change Order Request No.


6. Material 1,408.00$


7. Equipment


8. Material / Equipment Total 1,408.00$


9. Tax (Santa Clara County) @ 9.000% 126.72$


10. Overhead % of Material and Equipment 15.00% 230.21$


11. Material Profit -$


12. 9.05 Hours @ 97.68$ per hour 884.00$


13. 9.05 Hours @ 103.80$ per hour 939.39$


14. Hours @ per hour -$


15. Hours @ per hour -$


16. Hours @ per hour -$


17. Hours @ per hour -$


18. Hours @ per hour -$


19. Hours @ per hour -$


20. Labor Total 1,823.39$


21. Overhead % of Labor 15.00% 273.51$


22. Labor Profit -$


23. Equipment Rental -$


24. Subcontracts: Air / Water Balance


25. Insulation


26. Concrete Pad 800.00$


27. Trenching 1,800.00$


28.


29. Subcontracts Total 2,600.00$


30. Overhead % of Subcontracts 15.00% 390.00$


31. Subcontract Profit -$


32. Permit and Fees -$


33. Indirect Costs for this Change Order Request -$


34. Change Order Request Subtotal (Items 6 - 31) 6,851.83$


35. Bond Premium 1.00% 68.52$


36. Total Price of Change Order Request 6,920$


37. Time Extension Required: Days


38. Submitted by: Date


39. For Cost Breakdowns See Attached Sheets


Santa Cruz HS Domestic Water Piping Replacement


CHANGE ORDER REQUEST CALCULATION SHEET


Local 62 JM


Local 62 FM


O.C. McDonald Co., Inc.


1150 West San Carlos Street


San Jose, CA 95126


Tel: (408) 295-2182 • Fax: (408) 295-0626


www.ocmcdonald.com


Bob Russell August 15, 2018


Bartos/Owner


292/503







"on Cr qMmq  
mbalb, 


ED 


 


EJ.C.fl1EJOflRI.D comPAIiY1  inc. 
SIflCE 196 


PROJECT 	 COST ESTIMATE 
IT 


 


H: 
BID DATE 


QNTY DESCRIPTION 
MATERIAL LABOR 


UNIT EXTENSION UNIT EXTENSION 


/ o - 	" 	C '-i"  .1.7. )71 •1 / / 	'/ U 


va/ye 57d 7d 2 


/ 67 ovvffe4f,- 6--  


293/503







ORIGINAL CREDIT MEMO 
GRAINGER ACCOUNT NUMBER 	 810122564 


CREDIT MEMO NUMBER 	 9858166979 


INVOICE DATE 	 07/26/2018 


ORIGINAL INVOICE 	 9810177064 


AMOUNT DUE 	 578.00CR 


P0 NUMBER: 31245 
CALLER: LOU NAVA 
CUSTOMER PHONE 4082952182 
ORDER NUMBER 1327078811 
INCO TERMS: FOB ORIGIN 


GRAINGER 
	


PAGE 1 


2261 RINGWOOD AVE. 
SAN JOSE, CA 95131-1717 
www.grainger.com  


SHIP TO 


	 7 ohla-r . 


O C MCDONALD 
115OWSAN CARLOS ST 
SAN JOSE CA 95126-3440 


BILL TO 
O C MC DONALD 
P0 BOX 26560 
SAN JOSE CA 95159-6560 


Pay invoices online at, 
www.grainger.com/in  voicing 


THANK YOU! FEI NUMBER 38.1150280 
FOR QUESTIONS ABOUT THIS CREDIT MEMO CALL 1-800-472-4643 


P0 
LINEN 


ITEM # DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL 


6CHJ8 1 578.00 57800 
VALVE ENCLOSURE UNHEATEDR8. 22 IN. 


MANUFACTURER # L01 1019022 


Delivery #4029885153 	Date Shipped:07/26/201 8 
Carrier: UPS GROUND 	No:of Pkgs: 	WI; 32.000 
RETURNED TO: SAN JOSE BRANCH 732 
2261 RINGWOOD AVE,SAN JOSECA 95131-1717 


THIS PURCHASE IS GOVERNED EXCLUSIVELY By GRAINGER'S TERMS OF SALE, INCLUDING:(/) 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION REMEDIES, AND (II) CERTAIN WARRANTY AND DAMAGES LIMITATIONS AND 
DISCLAIMERS IN EFFECTAT THE TIME OF THE ORDER, WHICH ARE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 
!EREIN. GRAINGERS TERMS OF SALE ARE AVAILABLE AT WWW.GRAINGER.COM  
~RODUC T RETURN INSTRUCTIONS ARE AVAILABLE AT VP4W.GRAINGER.COM/RE  TURNS 


INVOICE SUB TOTAL 	 578.00 


These Items are sold for domestic consumption. If exported, purchaser assumes full responsibility for 
export controls. DIversIon contrary to US law prohibited. 


NO PAYMENT DUE - THIS CREDIT MEMORANDUM FOR YOUR RECORDS 	 I CREDIT AMOUNT 	$578.00 


A 	N.ÜRAYMENT DUE - PLEASE DEDUCT THIS CREDIT FROM YOUR NEXT REMITTANCE 	A 


BILL TO; REMIT TO: 
GRAINGER 


00 MC DONALD DEPT. 810122564 
P0 BOX 26560 PALATINE, IL 60038-0001 
SAN JOSE CA 95159-6560 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 


1D122S9a5a16T?O:OOOS?8GO1ODOODDO1oDOODDu1DDDDOO1Oa2s.5L4 


X 	 ACCOUNT NUMBER 	DATE 	CREDIT MEMO NUMBER 	CREDIT AMOUNT 
810122564 	 07/26/2018 	 9858166979 	 578.00CR 


FOR COMMENTS OR CHANGE OF ADDRESS, ENTER INFORMATION ON REVERSE SIDE 294/503







Proposal & Contract: PSR Electric: Natural Bridges


modernization


Separator Page


295/503







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.10. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: PSR Electric Proposal and Contract for Demolition of Interior 
Lighting for the Natural Bridges Elementary School Modernization 
Project  


      
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the PSR Electric proposal and contract for demolition of interior lighting for the 
Natural Bridges Elementary School modernization project. 
 
Background: 
This proposal is for the demolition only of all interior lighting of the Natural Bridges Elementary 
School main building, A, B & C pods. The scope of work will include disconnection and removal 
of the interior light fixtures, disconnection of power to the fixtures and removal of all light bulbs 
and ballasts.   
 
Fiscal Impact: 
$15,000.00, Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.28% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
  
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 
 


296/503







297/503







298/503







299/503







300/503







301/503







Staff Report: Summer Professional Development


Separator Page


302/503







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1.                    
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Summer Professional Development  
      
MEETING DATE:  September 27, 2018 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Each year, many of our teachers use their summer time for professional learning, as being away 
from the classroom in the school year is difficult for both students and teachers alike. In spring, 
we shared professional development opportunities available with our certificated team. 
Working in concert with other local resources, the Office of Curriculum put together a list of 
options open to the various grade spans.  
 
We would like to thank the Santa Cruz City Schools certificated staff who attended spring and 
summer PD and our 2018-19 Santa Cruz Instructional Leaders for their hard work and 
continuous learning. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


Professional Development Title / 
Description 


Strategic Focus 
Area 


SCCS 
Goal # 


# of 
Partici- 
pants 


Funding source Total 


AVID Summer Institutes; 
6/27-6/29/18; 6/13-6/15/18; 8/1-8/3/18 


School 
Connectedness 


#1 
#2 
#3 
#4 


22 Title I/ 
LCFF/College 


Readiness 
(Restricted) 


$17,350 


Elementary and Secondary History 
Social Science Framework Training; 


6/11 or 6/12 


Academic 
Literacy 


#1 
#3 
#4 


23 Title II 
(Restricted) 


$1,264 


Leading w/ Learning WestEd ELA/ELD 


Training (TK - 8); 6/26 - 6/28 or  
7/31 8/2 


Literacy 
EL Progress 


#1 
#3 
#4 


12 Title III 
(Restricted) 


$12,279 
 


Reader's Workshop Training 
New York Teachers' College 


Literacy #1 
#3 
#4 


5 Title I / 
Donation 


(Restricted) 


$12,875 


303/503







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1.                    
 


Mathematical Mindsets with Jo Boaler 


Stanford; 6/12-6/13 
Math #1 


#3 
#4 


3 Title I 
(Restricted) 


$2,700 


Leading w/ Learning WestEd 
Supporting ELs in Math (Elementary & 


Grades 6-8); 6/26-6/27 or 8/1-8/2 


Math 
EL Progress 


#1 
#3 
#4 


8 Title III 
(Restricted) 


$1,631 


College Preparatory Math (CPM) 
Training for Integrated Math 1, 2, and 3 


Phase III; 6/11-6/12 8/6-8/8 


Math #1 
#3 
#4 


3 Title II 
(Restricted) 


$2,514 


Determining District Priority Standards 
in Integrated 1, 2, and 3 


Math #1 
#3 
#4 


9 EEFG 
(Restricted) 


$2,520 


Monterey Bay Area Math Project                               


UCSC McHenry 1st Floor; 6/19-6/21 
Math #1 


#3 
#4 


12 EEFG 
(Restricted) 


$2,600 


SVMI Summer Math Institute                                                                           


Shoreline M/S; 8/6-8/8 
 
 


Math #1 
#3 
#4 


12 S4C Gates 
Foundation 


Grant 
(Restricted) 


0 


NGSS Summer Science Teacher 
Leadership Academy, Seymour Center; 


6/11-6/15 
 


Academic 
Literacy 


#1 
#3 
#4 


23 CDE Grant 
(Restricted) 


0 


Evidence Based Counseling Training 
6/12 – 6/13 


All Strategic 
Focus Areas 


#1 
#2 
#3 
#4 


22 S4C Monterey 
Peninsula 


Foundation  
Grant 


(Restricted) 


0 


American School Counselor Association 
Conference 
7/14 – 7/17 


All Strategic 
Focus Areas 


#1 
#2 
#3 
#4 


6 Medical 
Administrative 


Activities 
(Restricted) 


$9,717 


Unpacking the standards through FOSS:  
the new science and literacy standards 


in action; 6/25 (3rd and 4th grade) 
8/15 (5th Grade) 


Academic 
Literacy 


#1 
#3 
#4 


10 Title IV 
(Restricted) 


$5,978 


304/503







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1.                    
 


 


Santa Cruz Instructional Leaders (SCIL) 


Meeting; 8/13-8/14 
All Strategic 
Focus Areas 


 


#1 
#3 
#4 


121 LCFF Base 
(Unrestricted) 


$2,009 


Guided Language Acquisition and 


Development (GLAD); 8/13-8/14 
EL Progress #1 


#3 
#4 


20 Title I/Title III 
(Restricted) 


$31,915 


FOSS CA NexGen K-5: Supporting 
Implementation. Invitational institute 


Lawrence Hall of Science; 8/19-8/20 


Academic 
Literacy 


#1 
#3 
#4 


3 Title 1 
(Restricted) 


$450 


Total:     $111,143 


 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 
 


305/503







Summer of 2018 
Professional Development
September 26, 2018


306/503







Summer PD & 4 Strategic Focus Areas


Academic Literacy


● NGSS & Science


● Social Studies/History


Mathematics


English Learner Progress


School Connectedness *Approximately 100 teachers participated in summer PD!
307/503







Summer PD


● Integrated ELD - All site & district admin


● Integrated ELD - Leading for Learning West Ed 


training


● Silicon Valley Math Initiative (SVMI) - All grade 


levels


● Multiple Next Generation Science Standards 


(NGSS) Trainings


● College Preparatory Mathematics (CPM) -


Integrated 1, Integrated 2, & Integrated 3 (High 


School)


● Mathematical Mindsets at Stanford


● AVID Summer Institute


● Secondary GLAD Training (Integrated ELD)


● Multiple Counseling Trainings


308/503







August 13th: Santa Cruz Instructional 
Leaders (SCIL) PD


● 120 participants comprised of 


teacher leaders, site and district 


admin


● Santa Cruz Instructional Leaders 


(SCIL) - lead teachers at each 


site that facilitate PLCs & 


support the implementation of 


their school’s instructional focus309/503







Collective Teacher Efficacy - John Hattie


Collective Teacher Efficacy 


refers to a staff's shared 


belief that through their 


collective action, they can 


positively influence student 


outcomes, including those 


who are disengaged and/or 


disadvantaged. 310/503







PLCs & the Cycle of Inquiry - 4 Critical Questions
What do we want 
students to learn?


How will we know 
they have learned it?


What will we do for 
those that didn’t learn?


What will we do for 
those that have learned?


311/503







Integrated ELD
...is our Tier 1 English Learner instructional focus in all grade 


levels, all classrooms, and all content areas.  In this session 


we will define and understand the key features of Integrated 


ELD as outlined in the ELA/ELD Framework, examine our 


district tool related to I-ELD, and discuss an 


example of I-ELD instruction.


312/503







Staff Report: California Assessment of Student


Performance and Progress (CAASPP) Test Results &


CAASPP Sample Problems


Separator Page


313/503







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: 2018 California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 
(CAASPP) Data 


       
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The 2017-18 school year marked the fourth year of California's statewide student assessment 


system. The following results are from the Smarter Balanced Assessments in grades three 


through eight, and grade 11, in English Language Arts (ELA) and Mathematics. The purpose of 


these assessments is to provide information regarding individual students’ level of proficiency 


as well as trends in school and district proficiency data in reference to the California Common 


Core State Standards. In addition, CAASPP assessment data is part of each school’s and our 


district’s California Dashboard, which is the accountability system California uses to monitor 


school and district progress in a number of different indicators. 


 


For each grade level and subject area, students receive a score from approximately 2000 to 


3000. The overall score falls into one of four achievement levels: Standard Exceeded, Standard 


Met, Standard Nearly Met, and Standard Not Met. Most of the tables and charts that follow 


report the combined percent of students who met or exceeded standard.  


 


Many acronyms are used to refer to state identified student groups in the tables and charts to 


save space. Low Income = LI; English Learner = EL; Students with Disabilities= SWD; Ever English 


Learner = EEL. The Ever English Learner subgroup is a relatively new subgroup being used by the 


state and includes students who are currently English Learners and those who are former 


English Learners and have achieved Fluent English Proficient Status (RFEP). 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


314/503







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.2. 


Table 1a: All Students - ELA - by SCCS, County, & State 


 


● Table 1a shows the average percentage of all SCCS students in both elementary and 


secondary meeting or exceeding the ELA standards compared to the average 


percentage of students meeting or exceeding the ELA standards in Santa Cruz County 


and the state of California. 


○ This graph shows that SCCS is doing much better than both the county and state 


when we are looking at the overall percentage of students meeting or exceeding 


the standard in ELA. 


 


Table 1a 


 


 


 


 


 


315/503







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.2. 


Table 1b: All Students - Math - by SCCS, County, & State 


 


● Table 1b shows the average percentage in of all SCCS students in both elementary and 


secondary meeting or exceeding the math standards compared to the average 


percentage of students meeting or exceeding the math standards in Santa Cruz County 


and the state of California. 


○ Similarly to ELA, this graph in Mathematics illustrates that SCCS is doing much 


better than both the county and state when we are looking at the overall 


percentage of students meeting or exceeding the standard in Math. 


 


Table 1b 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


316/503







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.2. 


Table 2a: All Students - ELA - by grade level and cohort, 2015-2018 


● Table 2a shows the percentage of all students in each grade level each year meeting or 


exceeding the ELA standards. It is possible to follow a cohort of students using this 


graph by moving over to the right one column and up one row (the same color of 


shading is used to aid in following a cohort). 


○ When looking at our district ELA CAASPP data by grade level, it is apparent that 


in general there has been a decline over the past four years in the average 


percentage of students meeting or exceeding the ELA standards. The exception 


to this is for 7th grade, which has increased 9% since we began taking the 


assessments in the 2014-15 school year. 


○ When looking at our district ELA CAASPP data by cohort it is apparent that it is 


harder to find trends. Some cohorts have steadily increased over the four years 


of this test, while others are stagnant, while others increase or decrease 


depending on the year. 


 


Table 2a 


ELA 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18 


11th 64% 56% 59% 58% 


8th 59% 65% 55% 58% 


7th 57% 60% 62% 66% 


6th 62% 62% 62% 59% 


5th 60% 64% 60% 52% 


4th 53% 53% 49% 50% 


3rd 50% 49% 50% 49% 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


317/503







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.2. 


 


 


 


Table 2b: All Students - Math - by grade level and cohort, 2015-2018 


● Table 2b shows the percentage of all students in each grade level each year meeting or 


exceeding the Math standards. It is possible to follow a cohort of students using this 


graph by moving over to the right one column and up one row (the same color of 


shading is used to aid in following a cohort). 


○ When looking at our district Math CAASPP data by grade level, it is apparent that 


in general, there has been a decline over the past four years in the average 


percentage of students meeting or exceeding the Math standards. The exception 


to this, like in ELA, is for 7th grade, which has an overall increase of 3% since we 


began taking the assessments in the 2014-15 school year (though has decreased 


over the past 2 years). 


○ When looking at our district Math CAASPP data by cohort it is apparent that it is 


harder to find trends. Some cohorts have steadily increased over the four years 


of this test, while others are stagnant, while others increase or decrease 


depending on the year. 


 


Table 2b 


Math 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18 


11th 37% 36% 33% 34% 


8th 51% 51% 42% 47% 


7th 47% 54% 53% 50% 


6th 46% 44% 46% 42% 


5th 42% 48% 48% 41% 


4th 43% 46% 37% 36% 


3rd 52% 50% 51% 47% 


 


 


  


318/503







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.2. 


Table 3a Low Income (LI) - ELA - by grade level and cohort, 2015-2018 


● Table 3a shows the percentage of our Low Income students (based on students 


receiving free or reduced lunch) in each grade level each year meeting or exceeding the 


ELA standards. It is possible to follow a cohort of students using this graph by moving 


over to the right one column and up one row (the same color of shading is used to aid in 


following a cohort). 


○ When looking at our LI students’ ELA CAASPP data by grade level, it is apparent 


that in general there is variance over the past four years in the average 


percentage of students meeting or exceeding the ELA standards.  


○ However, when looking at our LI students’ ELA CAASPP data by cohort it is 


apparent that in general, cohorts have increased in meeting or exceeding the 


ELA standards.  


 


Table 3a 


Low Income: % Pro & Adv 


ELA 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18 


11th 46% 41% 41% 43% 


8th 42% 46% 30% 33% 


7th 35% 33% 40% 42% 


 6th 33% 37% 39% 36% 


5th 30% 38% 38% 27% 


4th 24% 30% 27% 25% 


3rd 24% 25% 24% 23% 


 


 


  


319/503







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.2. 


Table 3b Low Income (LI) - Math - by grade level and cohort, 2015-2018 


● Table 3b shows the percentage of our Low Income students (based on students 


receiving free or reduced lunch) in each grade level each year meeting or exceeding the 


math standards. It is possible to follow a cohort of students using this graph by moving 


over to the right one column and up one row (the same color of shading is used to aid in 


following a cohort). 


○ When looking at our LI students’ Math CAASPP data by grade level, it is apparent 


that all grades have decreased  in the average percentage of students meeting or 


exceeding the Math standards, except in 11th grade where there is an increase. 


○ Similarly, when looking at our LI students’ Math CAASPP data by cohort it is 


apparent that in general, cohorts have decreased in meeting or exceeding the 


math standards.  


 


Table 3b 


Low Income: % Pro & Adv 


Math 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18 


11th 19% 22% 18% 24% 


8th 29% 32% 20% 23% 


7th 28% 32% 28% 26% 


6th 20% 25% 25% 19% 


5th 19% 18% 23% 15% 


4th 16% 27% 15% 12% 


3rd 31% 28% 28% 22% 


 


 


  


320/503







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.2. 


Table 4a Ever English Learners (EEL) - ELA - by grade level and cohort, 2017-2018 


● Table 4a shows the percentage of our Ever English Learner students (based on current 


ELs as well as all students that were formerly EL, but have reclassified as English 


Proficient) in each grade level for the past two years (the state has only been monitoring 


this group over the past two years) meeting or exceeding the ELA standards. It is 


possible to follow a cohort of students using this graph by moving over to the right one 


column and up one row (the same color of shading is used to aid in following a cohort). 


○ When looking at our EEL students’ ELA CAASPP data by grade level and by 


cohort, it is apparent that in general there is variance over the past two years in 


the average percentage of ELL students meeting or exceeding the ELA standards. 


 


Table 4a 


Ever English Learners: Pro & Adv 


ELA 16-17 17-18 


11th 30% 40%       


8th 23% 23% 


7th 32% 30% 


6th 26% 22% 


5th 26% 24% 


4th 16% 22% 


3rd 17% 19% 


 


 


  


321/503







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.2. 


Table 4b Ever English Learners (EEL) - Math - by grade level and cohort, 2017-


2018 


● Table 4b shows the percentage of our Ever English Learner students (based on current 


ELs as well as all students that were formerly EL, but have reclassified as English 


Proficient) in each grade level for the past two years (the state has only been monitoring 


this group over the past two years) meeting or exceeding the Math standards. It is 


possible to follow a cohort of students using this graph by moving over to the right one 


column and up one row (the same color of shading is used to aid in following a cohort). 


○ When looking at our EEL students’ Math CAASPP data by grade level and by 


cohort, it is apparent that in general there is variance over the past two years in 


the average percentage of EEL students meeting or exceeding the ELA standards. 


 


Table 4b 


Ever English Learners: Pro & Adv 


Math 16-17 17-18 


11th 16% 21% 


8th 15% 16% 


7th 23% 17% 


6th 16% 14% 


5th 17% 14% 


4th 12% 12% 


3rd 25% 22% 


 


 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 


322/503







Smarter Balanced Released 
Sample Performance Tasks 


Elementary School ● Middle School ● 
High School 


323/503







Grade 4 Performance Task 


1 


Animal Defenses 


1. Task Overview


2. Classroom Activity


3. Student Task: Parts 1 and 2


4. Task Specifications and Scoring Rubrics


Task Overview (20 minutes for classroom activity, 105 for performance task = 125 


total minutes) 


Classroom Activity (20 minutes) 


Evidence Statement 


In order to adequately prepare for the Animal Defenses constructed-response questions 


and performance task, students will: 


1. Be introduced to the concept of animal defenses.


2. Be engaged in a compare and contrast group activity.


3. Be reminded of the qualities of an explanatory article or essay.


The classroom activity is designed to take place BEFORE Part 1 and Part 2 of the 


performance task. The interaction increases students' basic understanding of the topic 


addressed in the constructed-response questions and the performance task, helps them 


access both assessment stimuli, and prepares students for the kind of thinking and writing 


they will be asked to demonstrate in the performance task.  


During the classroom activity, the teacher will first introduce the topic of the assessment 


and the video stimulus—"Animal Defenses"—used in the writing assessment. The teacher 


will lead a whole class discussion about animal defenses using examples from the video.  


Students may take notes based on their ideas and the ideas of their classmates. 


Students may refer to their notes from the classroom activity when they plan, draft, and 


revise a multi-paragraph explanatory essay in Part 2. 


Part 1 (35 minutes) 


Students will examine the sources and take notes. They will then respond to three (3) 


constructed-response questions. 


324/503







Grade 4 Performance Task 


 


2 


 


Part 2 (70 minutes) 


Students will have access to the sources they examined in Part 1. They will refer to their 


notes and their answers to the constructed-response questions to compose a full-length 


explanatory article. Students cannot change their answers to the constructed-response 


questions. They will pre-write, draft, and revise an article.  


Scorable Products 


Students will not generate scorable products during the classroom activity. Student 


responses to the constructed-response questions at the end of Part 1 and the article 


completed in Part 2 will be scored. Notes completed in Part 1 and pre-writing and drafting 


in Part 2 will not be scored.  


Teacher Preparation / Resource Requirements 


This is a computer-based test that requires an interface for each test-taker. The testing 


software will include access to spell check, but not to grammar check. The teacher should 


ensure that sufficient blank paper and writing tools are available for student note-taking. 


 


Teacher Directions for the Classroom Activity 


Introductory Classroom Activity (20 minutes)  


STEP 1: Orientation to the Topic (~4 minutes) 


Provide an introduction to the classroom activity by indicating that after this activity, 


students will be completing an assessment focused on the topic of animal defenses.  Write 


the word defense on the board and ask students what it means. (They may be helped by 


being reminded of uses of the term like "self-defense.") Be sure that students understand 


that a defense is a protection from a threat or harmful condition. 


Remind students that humans have to defend themselves too. Ask: "What are some of the 


things humans have to defend themselves from? Have you or someone you know ever had 


to find protection from a threat of some kind? What are some of the defenses that humans 


have created or used for protection?" 


STEP 2: Accessing the Stimuli (~13 minutes) 


 


1. Explain: "Now we will look at some animal defenses." Show the video "Animal Defenses" 


(3 minutes 5 seconds).   


2. Lead a whole class discussion about the video using the questions below (10 minutes):  


325/503







Grade 4 Performance Task 


 


3 


 


Question 1: In the video "Animal Defenses," what were the animals defending 


themselves against?   


Question 2: How do these defenses help the animals protect themselves against 


enemies? 


STEP 3: Clarify Expectations for the Writing Task (~3 minutes) 


Explain: "In a few minutes you will read an article and answer some questions about animal 


defenses from both the article and the video we just saw. Then you will write an explanatory 


essay in response to a particular question."   


Explain what students are expected to do in their explanatory essay: 


An explanatory essay: 


□ Explains information clearly  


□ Is well organized and stays on the topic 


□ Provides evidence from the sources to support your main idea 


□ Uses clear language that suits your purpose 


□ Follows rules of writing (spelling, capitalization, punctuation, and grammar) 


 


Answer questions that students might have about the task. Students will keep their notes 


from this classroom activity for the "Animal Defenses" assessment. 


Teacher Directions for Parts 1 and 2 


Part 1 (35 minutes) 


Students should receive the sources, directions, questions, article assignment, and any 


other material related to the task. They should receive the constructed-response questions 


in Part 1 and the article assignment in Part 2. 


1. Initiate the online testing session.  


2. Alert the students when there are 15 minutes remaining in Part 1.  


3. Alert the students when there are 5 minutes remaining in Part 1.  


4. Have students write their names on any notes. Collect all student notes.  


5. Close the testing session. 


Stretch Break  


  


326/503







Grade 4 Performance Task 


 


4 


 


Part 2 (70 minutes) 


1. Initiate the testing Part 2.   


2. Allow students to access the sources, their notes, and their answers to the 


constructed-response questions presented in Part 1. They will not be allowed to 


change their answers. 


3. Once 15 minutes have elapsed, suggest students begin writing the article.  


4. Alert the students when 30 minutes remain.  


5. Alert students when 15 minutes remain and suggest they begin revising their 


articles. 


6. Close the testing session.


327/503







Grade 4 Performance Task 


 


5 


 


Student Directions for Parts 1 and 2 


Part 1 (35 minutes) 


Your task 


You will read an article and watch a video about what animals do to defend themselves 


from danger. Then you will answer three questions about what you have learned. In Part 2, 


you will write an article that explains how some animals defend themselves.  


Steps to follow 


In order to plan and write your article, you will do the following:  


1. Examine two sources. 


2. Make notes about the information from the sources. 


3. Answer three questions about the sources. 


 


Directions for beginning 


You will now examine two sources. Take notes on both sources. You may use the graphic 


organizers to organize your notes if you like. You will want to refer to your notes while 


writing your article, but your notes will not be scored. You can re-read the article and watch 


the video as often as you like.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


328/503







Grade 4 Performance Task 


 


6 


 


NOTES 


 


SOURCE 1: "Animal Roll-Ups" (Ranger Rick article) 


 


Animal Type of Defense 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


NOTE: Your notes will not be scored. 


 


 


 


 


 


329/503







Grade 4 Performance Task 


 


7 


 


NOTES 


 


SOURCE 2: "Animal Defenses" (National Geographic video) 


 


Animal Type of Defense 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


NOTE: Your notes will not be scored. 


 


 


  


330/503







Grade 4 Performance Task 


 


8 


 


Research Questions 


After examining the research sources, use the remaining time in Part 1 to answer three 


questions about them. Your answers to these questions will be scored. Also, your answers 


will help you think about the research sources you have read and viewed, which should help 


you write your explanatory article.  


You may click on the source buttons to refer back to the sources when you think it would be 


helpful. You may also refer to your notes. Answer the questions in the spaces provided 


below them. 


 


1. What does the article "Animal Roll-Ups" tell you about why some animals curl 


up? Use details from the article to support your answer. 


 


2. Think about the armadillo and the hedgehog described in the article "Animal 


Roll-Ups.” In what way are their defenses similar or different? Explain your 


answer using details from the article. 


 


3. In the video "Animal Defenses," the puffer fish and the crab were both 


successful in protecting themselves from the same enemy—the sea otter. Do 


the puffer fish and the crab have the same type of defense? Explain your answer 


and include details from the video in your response. 


 


Part 2 (70 minutes) 


You will now have 70 minutes to review your notes and sources, plan, draft, and revise your 


article. You may use your notes and refer to the sources. You may also refer to the answers 


you wrote to questions in Part 1, but you cannot change those answers. Now read your 


assignment and the information about how your article will be scored; then begin your 


work. 


Your Assignment 


Your class is preparing a museum display that will include photos of a variety of animals 


and interesting facts about them. You have been asked to write an article for the museum 


display explaining about animal defenses.  


  


331/503







Grade 4 Performance Task 


 


9 


 


In your article 


Choose one animal from the article "Animal Roll-Ups" and one animal from the video 


"Animal Defenses." In your article, identify your two animals, explain how each animal 


protects itself from its enemies, and explain how the two animals’ defenses are similar to 


or different from one another. Include details from your sources. 


Now begin work on your article. Manage your time carefully so that you can:  


 plan your article 


 write your article 


 revise and edit for a final draft 


 


Word-processing tools and spell check are available to you. 


 


Type your response in the space provided. Write as much as you need to fulfill the 


requirements of the task; you are not limited by the size of the response area on the screen. 


REMEMBER: A well-written explanatory article: 


 has a clear main idea 


 is well-organized and stays on the topic 


 provides evidence from the sources to support your topic 


 uses clear language that suits your purpose 


 follows rules of writing (spelling, punctuation, and grammar) 


 


 


Source Information: 
 


 


Stimulus #1 


Read this article about animals that roll up to defend themselves. 


“Animal Roll-Ups” by Kathy Kranking, from Ranger Rick Magazine. Copyright © September 


2011 by the National Wildlife Federation. 


Stimulus #2 


Now watch this video about animals and how they defend themselves. 


“Animal Defenses.” Teachers’ Domain. 26 Sept. 2003. Web. 18 Sept. 2012.Sep. 2012. 


332/503







Grade 4 Performance Task 


 


10 


 


Task Specifications: 


Title: “Animal Defenses”  


Grade: 4 


Claim(s): 2: Students can produce effective writing for a range of purposes and 


audiences. 


4: Students can engage in research/inquiry to investigate topics and to 


analyze, integrate, and present information. 


Primary Target(s): These claims and targets will be measured by scorable evidence collected. 


Claim 2 4: COMPOSE FULL TEXTS: Write full informational/explanatory 


texts on a topic, attending to purpose and audience: organize ideas by 


stating a focus, include structures and appropriate transitional strategies 


for coherence, include supporting evidence (from sources when 


appropriate to prompt) and elaboration, and develop an appropriate 


conclusion.  


8: LANGUAGE AND VOCABULARY USE: Strategically use language and 


vocabulary (including academic and domain-specific vocabulary) 


appropriate to the purpose and audience when revising or composing 


texts. 


9: EDIT/CLARIFY: Apply or edit grade-appropriate grammar usage and 


mechanics to clarify a message and edit narrative, informational, and 


opinion texts. Claim 4 2: INTERPRET AND INTEGRATE INFORMATION: 


Locate information to support central ideas and subtopics; select and 


integrate information from data or print and non-print text sources. 3: 


ANALYZE  INFORMATION/SOURCES: Distinguish relevant-irrelevant 


information (e.g., fact/opinion). 


CCSS/Standard(s): W-8, W-9 


DOK: 4 


Difficulty: Medium 


Score Points: Up to 10 


Task Source: SBAC / CTB / Revisions by Stanford Center for Assessment, Learning, & 


Equity (SCALE) 


Item Type: Performance Tasks 


Target-specific 


attributes (e.g., 


accessibility issues): 


Students with visual impairments may need alternative formats to access 


written texts, graphic stimuli, and video or audiovisual material. 


Students with physical or other impairments may need to be provided with 


appropriate alternative means to entering lengthy text using a keyboard. 


Grade level of stimuli: 3/4 


Stimuli: Animal Roll-Ups: Informational article 


This article talks about animals that roll up to protect themselves from 


predators.   


Animal Defenses: Educational video 


This National Geographic video talks about animals and their different 


333/503







Grade 4 Performance Task 


 


11 


 


defenses. 


How this task 


contributes to sufficient 


evidence for the claims: 


In order to complete the performance task, students 1. Analyze and select 


information from multiple sources 2. Answer various questions about 


research and the evidence the authors present as support 3. Write an 


explanatory article, attending to purpose and audience 4. Organize ideas 


by stating and maintaining a focus 5. Develop a topic, including citing 


supportive evidence, details, and elaboration consistent with the sources, 


purpose, and audience 6. Effectively organize ideas, appropriate 


transitions, and include a conclusion for coherence 7. Adhere to 


conventions and rules of grammar, usage, and mechanics 8. Control 


language for purpose and audience 


 


  


334/503







Grade 4 Performance Task 


 


12 


 


Scoring information for questions: 


 
1. Claim 4, Target 3 


 


2-point Research (Grades 4–5) 


Evaluate Information/Sources Rubric (Claim 4, Target 3) 


2 


The response gives sufficient evidence of the ability to distinguish relevant 


from irrelevant information such as fact from opinion. 


 


The response includes detailed information from the text about how some 


animals roll up to defend themselves rather than for other purposes (such as 


keeping warm). The response is supported with relevant details from the text. 


1 


The response gives limited evidence of the ability to distinguish relevant from 


irrelevant information such as fact from opinion. 


 


The response includes limited information from the text about how some 


animals roll up to defend themselves rather than for other purposes (such as 


keeping warm). The response is supported with limited relevant details from 


the text. 


0 


A response gets no credit if it provides no evidence of the ability to distinguish 


relevant from irrelevant information such as fact from opinion. 


 


The response does not include an explanation of how some animals roll up to 


defend themselves rather than for other purposes (such as keeping warm) or 


confuses the reasons why animals roll up. The response does not include 


relevant details and may be vague, incorrect, or completely absent. 


 


  


335/503







Grade 4 Performance Task 


 


13 


 


 


Sample 2-Point Response: 


The information in the article tells about many animals that roll up in different ways. Many 


animals roll up to protect themselves from danger. For example, the armadillo rolls up into 


a ball by pulling its ears and legs into the ball and has armor covering it. Some animals, like 


the red fox, curl up to keep warm. The stone centipede rolls up into a ball to protect her 


eggs.  


Scoring note: The response could also mention the pill bug, hedgehog, or wheel spider. 


 


Sample 1-Point Response: 


The article “Animal Roll-Ups” did a good job of explaining how animals roll up. It also 


explains why they roll up. The pill bug rolls up like an armadillo. 


 


Sample 0-Point Response: 


I liked reading about animals that roll up. 


 


  


336/503







Grade 4 Performance Task 


 


14 


 


2. Claim 4, Target 2 


 


2-point Research (Grades 3–5) 


Interpret & Integrate Information Rubric (Claim 4, Target 2) 


2 


The response gives sufficient evidence of the ability to locate, select, interpret, 


and integrate information within and among sources of information. 


 


The response is a thorough explanation of how the defenses of the armadillo 


and the hedgehog are similar or different. The response is supported with 


relevant details from the text. 


1 


The response gives limited evidence of the ability to locate, select, interpret, 


and integrate information within and among sources of information. 


 


The response is a limited explanation of how the defenses of the armadillo and 


the hedgehog are similar or different. The response is supported with limited 


details from the text. 


0 


A response gets no credit if it provides no evidence of the ability to locate, 


select, interpret, and integrate information within and among sources of 


information. 


 


The response does not relate to the similarities or differences of the defenses 


of the armadillo and the hedgehog. The response does not include relevant 


details and may be vague, incorrect, or completely absent. 


 


  


337/503







Grade 4 Performance Task 


 


15 


 


 


Sample 2-Point Response: 


Armadillos and hedgehogs defend themselves in similar ways because they both try to fool 


their enemies and protect their bodies. Armadillos curl up into a ball and pull their head and 


tail inside their armor. Hedgehogs also curl up into a ball and hide their soft parts under 


their sharp spines. These defenses help the animals protect themselves. 


 


Sample 1-Point Response: 


Armadillos and hedgehogs curl up into balls to defend themselves. 


 


 


Sample 0-Point Response: 


I enjoyed reading the article. 


 


3. Claim 4, Target 2 


 


2-point Research (Grades 3–5) 


Interpret & Integrate Information Rubric (Claim 4, Target 2) 


2 


The response gives sufficient evidence of the ability to locate, select, interpret, 


and integrate information within and among sources of information. 


 


The response is a thorough explanation of whether or not the puffer fish and the 


crab have the same type of defense. The response is supported with relevant 


details from the video. 


1 


The response gives limited evidence of the ability to locate, select, interpret, 


and integrate information within and among sources of information. 


 


The response is a limited explanation of whether or not the puffer fish and the 


crab have the same type of defense. The response is supported with limited 


relevant details from the video. 


338/503







Grade 4 Performance Task 


 


16 


 


0 


A response gets no credit if it provides no evidence of the ability to locate, 


select, interpret, and integrate information within and among sources of 


information. 


 


The response does not include an explanation of whether or not the puffer fish 


and the crab have the same type of defense. The response does not include 


relevant details and may be vague, incorrect, or completely absent. 


 


Sample 2-Point Response: 


The puffer fish and the crab have very different types of defenses. The puffer fish puffs up to 


make itself so large that an enemy can’t bite it. It also makes itself hard to bite with 


thousands of prickles on it. The crab has sharp claws that it snaps at the otter in the video, 


and this keeps the otter away from it. They have very different responses, but they are both 


successful at defending themselves. 


 


Sample 1-Point Response: 


The puffer fish puffs up to make itself so large that the otter can’t bite it. The crab in the 


video uses its claws to snap at the otter. In these ways they are different. 


 


Sample 0-Point Response: 


Otters like to try to eat puffer fish and crabs. 


 


  


339/503







Grade 4 Performance Task 


 


17 


 


Rubric and scoring information for full-write: 


      4-Point  


Informative-Explanatory  


Performance Task Writing Rubric (Grades 3–5) 


Score 4 3 2 1 NS 


S
ta


te
m


e
n


t 
o


f 
P


u
rp


o
s
e


/
F


o
c
u


s
 a


n
d


 O
rg


a
n


iz
a


ti
o


n
 


The response is fully 


sustained and 


consistently and 


purposefully focused: 


 controlling idea or 


main idea of a topic 


is clearly stated, 


focused, and strongly 


maintained 


 controlling idea or 


main idea of a topic 


is introduced and 


communicated 


clearly within the 


purpose, audience, 


and task 


 


The response has a clear 


and effective 


organizational structure 


creating a sense of unity 


and completeness: 


 consistent use of a 


variety of transitional 


strategies to clarify 


the relationships 


between and among 


ideas 


 logical progression of 


ideas from beginning 


to end 


 effective introduction 


and conclusion for 


audience and 


purpose 


 


The response is 


adequately sustained 


and generally focused: 


 controlling idea or 


main idea of a topic 


is clear and mostly 


maintained, though 


some loosely 


related material 


may be present 


 some context for 


the controlling idea 


or main idea of the 


topic is adequate 


within the purpose, 


audience, and task 


 


The response has an 


evident organizational 


structure and a sense of 


completeness, though 


there may be minor 


flaws and some ideas 


may be loosely 


connected: 


 adequate use of 


transitional 


strategies with 


some variety to 


clarify the 


relationships 


between and among 


ideas 


 adequate 


progression of ideas 


from beginning to 


end  


 adequate 


introduction and 


conclusion 


The response is 


somewhat 


sustained and may 


have a minor drift in 


focus: 


 may be clearly 


focused on the 


controlling or 


main idea, but 


is insufficiently 


sustained, or 


 controlling idea 


or main idea 


may be unclear 


and/or 


somewhat 


unfocused  


 


The response has an 


inconsistent 


organizational 


structure, and flaws 


are evident: 


 inconsistent use 


of transitional 


strategies 


and/or little 


variety  


 uneven 


progression of 


ideas from 


beginning to 


end  


 conclusion and 


introduction, if 


present, are 


weak 


 


The response may 


be related to the 


topic but may 


provide little or no 


focus:  


 may be very 


brief 


 may have a 


major drift 


 focus may be 


confusing or 


ambiguous  


 


The response has 


little or no 


discernible 


organizational 


structure: 


 few or no 


transitional 


strategies are 


evident 


 frequent 


extraneous 


ideas may 


intrude 


 


Insufficient, 


illegible, in a 


language 


other than 


English, 


incoherent, 


off-topic, or 


off-purpose 


writing 


 


  


340/503







Grade 4 Performance Task 


18 


4-Point 


Informative-Explanatory  


Performance Task Writing Rubric (Grades 3–5) 


Score 4 3 2 1 NS 


E
v
id


e
n


c
e


/
E


la
b


o
ra


ti
o


n
 


The response provides 


thorough and convincing 


support/evidence for the 


controlling idea or main 


idea that includes the 


effective use of sources, 


facts, and details:  


 use of evidence from


sources is integrated,


comprehensive, and


relevant


 effective use of a


variety of elaborative


techniques


The response clearly and 


effectively expresses 


ideas, using precise 


language: 


 use of academic and


domain-specific


vocabulary is clearly


appropriate for the


audience and


purpose


The response provides 


adequate 


support/evidence for the 


controlling idea or main 


idea that includes the 


use of sources, facts, 


and details: 


 some evidence from


sources is  included,


though citations


may be general or


imprecise


 adequate use of


some elaborative


techniques


The response 


adequately expresses 


ideas, employing a mix 


of precise with more 


general language:  


 use of domain-


specific vocabulary


is generally


appropriate for the


audience and


purpose


The response 


provides uneven, 


cursory 


support/evidence 


for the controlling 


idea or main idea 


that includes partial 


or uneven use of 


sources, facts, and 


details: 


 evidence from


sources is


weakly


integrated, and


citations, if


present, are


uneven


 weak or uneven


use of


elaborative


techniques


The response 


expresses ideas 


unevenly, using 


simplistic language: 


 use of domain-


specific


vocabulary that


may at times be


inappropriate


for the audience


and purpose


The response 


provides minimal 


support/evidence 


for the controlling 


idea or main idea 


that includes little 


or no use of 


sources, facts, and 


details: 


 use of


evidence from


the source


material is


minimal,


absent,


incorrect, or


irrelevant


The response’s 


expression of ideas 


is vague, lacks 


clarity, or is 


confusing:  


 uses limited


language or


domain-


specific


vocabulary


 may have little


sense of


audience and


purpose


Insufficient, 


illegible, in a 


language 


other than 


English, 


incoherent, 


off-topic, or 


off-purpose 


writing 


341/503







Grade 6 Performance Task
Student Directions 


Robots Narrative Performance Task 


Task: 
Your school's technology club is building a new website. The club sponsor is also your 
English teacher, and he has encouraged everyone to research a topic related to technology 
for an upcoming project. Since you saw a movie about robots recently, you want to know 
more about what real robots can do. During your research, you have found three articles 
about robots. 


After you have reviewed these sources, you will answer some questions about them. Briefly 
scan the sources and the three questions that follow. Then, go back and read the sources 
carefully so you will have the information you will need to answer the questions and 
complete your research. You may click on the Global Notes button to take notes on the 
information you find in the sources as you read. You may also use scratch paper to take 
notes. 


In Part 2, you will write a story on a topic related to the sources. 


Directions for Beginning: 
You will now examine several sources. You can re-examine any of the sources as often as 
you like. 


Research Questions: 
After examining the research sources, use the rest of the time in Part 1 to answer three 
questions about them. Your answers to these questions will be scored. Also, your answers 
will help you think about the information you have read and viewed, which should help you 
write your 
story. 


You may click on the Global Notes button or refer back to your scratch paper to review your 
notes when you think it would be helpful. Answer the questions in the spaces below the 
items. 


Both the Global Notes on the computer and your written notes on scratch paper will be 
available to you in Part 1 and Part 2 of the performance task. 


1 


342/503







Grade 6 Performance Task
Part 1 


Sources for Performance Task: 


Source #1 
The following is an article about several robots and the jobs they perform. 


Meet the Robots 
by Lucas Langley 


If you think of robots as a thing of the future, think again. Robots do many jobs today. They 
work in mines and on farms, they help doctors and save lives, and even explore volcanoes. 
Here are some robots that are hard at work. 


Gemini-Scout 
Gemini-Scout is a remote-controlled robot that does search-and-rescue work in mines 
under the ground. The robot is less than two feet tall and has wheels which enable it to go 
up and down stairs and make tight turns—it can even roll through water! Gemini may be 
small, but it is strong and can easily carry food, water, and other supplies. In real 
emergencies, Gemini can even drag an injured person to safety. 


Wherever it goes, Gemini-Scout constantly collects information. For example, it tests the 
air for gases and then tells miners when the air is safe. The robot also has a thermal 
camera, a special camera that locates heat energy to produce images that help it find 
miners who are trapped underground. 


Once the robot finds the trapped miners, the miners can use the robot's two-way radio to 
talk with the rescue team. This robot was built to be easy to use because its remote control 
operates like a remote control used for many video games. If you've ever played a video 
game, you would probably know how to use Gemini-Scout. 


Dante 2 
Although Dante 2 isn't saving lives directly like Gemini-Scout, its job 
is just as interesting and important. Dante 2's job is to climb into 
volcanoes to gather information for scientists. Like a spider, this 
robot has eight legs, which can help it climb the steep walls of the 
volcano while secured with a rope. Dante 2 is also built to survive 
extreme heat. When a volcano is too dangerous for scientists to 
enter, Dante 2 goes instead. 


Once in the volcano, Dante 2 looks for vents, or holes, in the crater. 
Then the robot collects information about the gases that come out 
of the vents. In the past, scientists could not learn as much about 
volcanoes, but Dante 2 is changing that. Now scientists can study a 
volcano up close while remaining at a safe distance. 


2 


343/503







Grade 6 Performance Task


Dante 2 (NASA) 
Mr.Gower 
At first glance, Mr. Gower looks like a small metal cabinet on wheels, but its job is just as 
important as Dante 2 and Gemini-Scout. Mr. Gower is a robot that moves throughout a 
hospital, helping doctors and nurses bring medicine to patients. The body of the robot is a 
stack of locked drawers that store medicine. Nurses and doctors can unlock the drawers 
and get the medicine they need for their patients. 


Mr. Gower can be programmed to go anywhere in the hospital. It can ride elevators, steer 
through hallways, and even move around things that get in the way. The robot is so strong 
that it can pull 500 pounds. Mr. Gower is battery powered, and after charging for only two 
hours, the robot can deliver medicine for twelve hours without stopping. 


Not only does it work long days, but Mr. Gower can talk. It has been programmed to say 
hundreds of phrases like "Calling elevator" or "Your delivery is here." Mr. Gower reduces the 
amount of time doctors, pharmacists, and nurses spend walking around the hospital, 
allowing them to use their time to focus on other important tasks. 


Agribots 
Agribots may not save lives, but many farmers find them very useful. An agribot is a robot 
that picks fruit. It might pick berries, oranges, grapes, or apples. Agribots are not yet widely 
used, but farmers are very interested in what these robots can do. Because picking a 
strawberry is different than picking an apple, agribots come in all shapes and sizes. Some 
have giant arms that are towed behind trucks, while others are able to move around on 
their own. In Japan, there is a strawberry-picking robot that can sense the color of the 
berries. This helps the robot know when each berry is ripe. 


At the Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT), scientists are working to grow cherry 
tomatoes with no human help at all! They have created a greenhouse full of plants that are 
cared for by small agribots. The agribots are like robot farmers. Every plant has sensors 
that tell the robots what the plant needs. If a plant is too dry, a robot will water it. When a 
robot senses that a tomato is ripe, it uses a mechanical arm to pick the tomato. Agribots 
may seem unusual now, but one day they may be common on farms. 


No matter how large or small a robot's job, one thing is for certain—robots are here to stay. 
Because robots are dependable and tireless, they are valuable tools, and as technology 
advances, they will be capable of doing increasingly complex jobs. 


References 


Dillow, C. (2011). Rescue robot just made for mine disasters. NBC News. 
Retrieved from 
http://www.nbcnews.com/technology/rescue-robot-just-made-mine-disasters-121251 


3 


344/503







Grade 6 Performance Task


Leary, W. E. (1994). Robot completes volcano exploration. The New York 
Times. Retrieved from 
http://www.nytimes.com/1994/08/03/us/robot-completes-volcano-exploration.html 


Bares, J., & Whittaker, W. L. Dante II. Carnegie Mellon: The Robotics 
Institute. Retrieved from 
http://www.ri.cmu.edu/research_project_detail.html?project_id=163&menu_id=261 


Rivers, C., & Boston, S. (2004). Robot delivers medications at shock 
trauma center. University of Maryland Medical Center. Retrieved from 
http://umm.edu/news-and-events/news-releases/2004/robot-delivers-medications-at-
shock-trauma-center 


Fields of automation. (2009) The Economist. Retrieved from 
http://www.economist.com/node/15048711 


Image of Dante 2 by NASA. In the public domain. Retrieved from 
http://www.nasa.gov/images/content/260941main_photographers-03.jpg 


Source #2 
The following is an article about robots at play. 


Robots That Play Well with Others 
by Lisa Langston 


About 50 years ago, the author Isaac Asimov wrote a story called I, Robot. The story is set 
in the future, when robots take care of children. The main character loves her robot 
babysitter, Robbie. Unlike the child's parents, Robbie always has time to play. Robbie and 
the child have adventures together; Robbie is an endless source of fun! 


When the story was written, it was only a fantasy. Now it is close to coming true because 
today robots can do all kinds of work. They assemble electronic gadgets, guide trains on 
tracks, and sort trash. Today's robots can play as well as work―robots sing, dance, and 
even play music. A Japanese robot can even play the piano with its two mechanical hands. 


Many playful robots are made to copy animals too. Some robots play the way animals play 
while other robots play with animals. For example, moviemakers have designed huge 
robotic apes and dinosaurs to be in movies, but these kinds of robots aren't made only for 
movies. Robot animals can live with you. You can buy a robot pet, such as a dog, a seal, or 
even a dinosaur. These robot pets have a lot in common with real pets. They want your 
attention and you can teach them tricks. There is even a new version of a robot pet that 


4 


345/503







Grade 6 Performance Task
has fake fur so you can pet your robot just like you pet your dog or cat. There is one 
difference, though―you don't need to take them outside or feed them! 


Other robots help people play with live animals. One company, I-Pet Companion, has made 
a robot that lets people play with kittens, but from a distance. When you log on to the 
Internet, you can control the robotic pet from far away. The robot is put in a room full of 
kittens, and it drags a piece of string for the kittens to chase. When it's your turn, you can 
control the robot to pull the string this way or that way while the kittens jump after the 
string as you push the controls. 


Some robots even play all by themselves. College students in Oregon have created robots 
that can play hockey or shuffleboard on their own. All year, the students work hard to 
design the robots. Then, the robots play the game without anyone controlling them. They 
grab the puck, turn, twist and compete to score, and as part of the final test, the robots 
must push the puck to the goal without being told what to do. 


Even though there are no robots quite like Robbie, today's robots can still offer hours of 
fun. Who knows, maybe robots in the future will make Asimov's fantasy into a reality. 


References 


Taylor, A. (2011). Robots at work and play. The Atlantic. Retrieved from 
http://www.theatlantic.com/infocus/2011/04/robots-at-work-and-play/100052/#img06 


Lerner, E. (2012). Robotic hockey teams face-off at Penn Engineering. 
Penn Current. Retrieved from 
http://www.upenn.edu/pennnews/current/2012-01-26/latest-news/robotic-hockey-
teams-faceoff-penn-engineering 


Cole, G. (2011). Robots at play. Corvallis Gazette-Times. Retrieved from 
http://www.gazettetimes.com/news/local/article_be8aab10-90dd-11e0-9473-
001cc4c002e0.html 


Hornyak, T. (2010). Piano player bot tickles the ivories in Taiwan. 
CNET. Retrieved from http://news.cnet.com/8301-17938_105-20020139-1.html 


Kee, E. (2012). Smart fur might see more sentient robotic pets. 
Übergizmo Retrieved from 
http://www.ubergizmo.com/2012/03/smart-fur-robo-bunny/ 


5 


346/503







 Grade 6 Performance Task 
 
Source #3 
Here is an article on self-driving cars from the National Public Radio website (NPR.com), 
published on February 17, 2012. 
 


When the Car Is the Driver 
by Steve Henn 


 
This week the state of Nevada finalized new rules that will make it possible for robotic self-
driving cars to receive their own special driving permits. It's not quite driver's licenses for 
robots—but it's close. 
 
The other day I went for a spin in a robotic car. This car has an $80,000 cone-shaped laser 
mounted on its roof. There are radars on the front, back and sides. Detailed maps help it 
navigate. 
 
Do people notice it's a self-driving car and gawk?  
 
"We get a lot of thumbs up," says Anthony Levandowski, one of the leaders of Google's 
self-driving car project. "People drive by and then they wave. I wish they would keep their 
eyes on the road." 
 
Levandowski is in the passenger seat with a laptop showing him what the car can see. 
Chris Urmson is behind the wheel. But his hands are in his lap and the steering wheel is 
gently turning back and forth, tracing the contours of California's busy Highway 85. 
 
"And it can adjust the speed. If there is a particularly tight corner, it will slow down for 
that," Urmson says. "It adjusts speed to stay out of blind spots of other vehicles. It tries to 
match speed with traffic." 
 
Urmson has been working on this technology for close to a decade. His first car managed 
to travel just 11 miles on a dusty road. Google's vehicle is a giant leap forward. 
 
"When we got this on the freeway and it was doing 70 miles an hour and just smoothly 
driving along the road, you could taste it—the technology," Urmson says. "You could really 
feel the impact and how it's going to change people's lives. It was just amazing." 
 
While he was talking, a motorcycle cut us off. The car saw the move coming, and we hardly 
even noticed. 
 
Google's fleet of robotic cars has driven more than 200,000 miles over highways and city 
streets in California and Nevada. Google did this testing in kind of a legal limbo1. These 
cars aren't forbidden, but, "There was no permission granted for any of that to happen by 
anybody," says Steve Jurvetson, a venture capitalist2 and robotic car enthusiast. 
 


6 
 


347/503







 Grade 6 Performance Task 
 
"It's essential that there be a place to do tests," he says. "There's two ways to do it—the 
seek-forgiveness strategy and the seek-permission strategy. Frankly, the 200,000 hours I 
think that have been driven here in California—that's a seek-forgiveness strategy. Right?" 
 
If anything [had gone] wrong, Google would have had a huge amount of explaining to do. 
So last year, the company hired a lobbyist3 in Nevada. 
 
"The state of Nevada is close [to California], it's a lot easier to pass laws there than it is in 
California," Levandowski says. 
 
He says Google convinced the state Legislature to pass a law making robotic cars explicitly 
legal. But the Legislature went further than just creating a place to test these cars—it 
ordered the Department of Motor Vehicles to create basically a driver's license for these 
robot cars. 
 
"I thought it was great," says Bruce Breslow, director of the Nevada DMV. "My grandfather 
took me to the 1964 World's Fair in New York City many times. And they were promising 
me the car of the future as an 8-year-old, and I thought to myself, this finally could be it." 
 
Starting March 1, companies will be able to apply to test self-driving cars on Nevada roads. 
 
"The test vehicles will be Nevada's first red license plate since the 1940s," Breslow says. 
Think of it like a learner's permit—those bright red plates will let everyone know there's a 
student robot driver behind the wheel. 
 
"And eventually when these vehicles are sold, it will be the first ever neon green license 
plate that the state of Nevada will ever issue—green meaning go, and the future's arrived," 
Breslow says 
 
Google says it will probably be years before cars like this go on sale. But Jurvetson, the 
venture capitalist, says he's convinced this technology could save thousands of lives 
"today, already, right now." 
 
Robots are never distracted. They don't text or drink or get tired. They see things no human 
can. 
 
"That front radar catches [a signal that] bounces off the ground," Jurvetson says. . . . 
[Therefore] no human will ever have the amount of information that these cars have when 
they are driving." 
 
While Nevada may be the first state to create a licensing system for self-driving cars, it 
won't be the last; Hawaii, Florida and Oklahoma are already following suit. And Jurvetson 
says one day we may be asking ourselves if humans should still be allowed to drive. 
 
1 legal limbo: when the law isn't clear on a specific issue 


7 
 


348/503







 Grade 6 Performance Task 
 
2 venture capitalist: businessperson who invests money into startup or small companies 
3 lobbyist: a person who tries to influence laws or government policies by government 
officials on behalf of a group or individual who hires them 
 
"When the Car is the Driver" by Steve Henn, from National Public Radio. Copyright © 
National Public Radio. 
 


1. Explain what Source #1 and Source #3 say about how robots are able to save lives 
by paraphrasing the information while avoiding plagiarism. 
 


2. Many robots are designed to do normal tasks that improve people's lives or jobs. 
Provide two pieces of evidence from different sources that support this idea and 
explain how each example supports the idea. Cite evidence for each piece of 
information and identify the source title or number. 
 


3. Click on the boxes to show the claim(s) that each source supports. Some sources 
will have more than one box selected. 


 
 Source #1: Meet the 


Robots 
Source #2: Robots 
That Play Well with 
Others 


Source #3: When 
the Car Is the Driver 


Robots are more 
reliable because 
they don't get tired. 


   


Robots could serve 
as a substitute pet 
when a person has 
an allergy to 
animals. 


   


Robots often say 
time and energy. 


   


 
  


8 
 


349/503







Grade 6 Performance Task
Part 2 
You will now review your notes and sources, and plan, draft, revise, and edit your writing. 
You may use your notes and refer to the sources. Now read your assignment and the 
information about how your writing will be scored; then begin your work.  


Your Assignment:  
Your technology club is ready to launch its website. Your English teacher is making the 
website into a class project. For your part in the project, you are assigned to write a story 
that is several paragraphs long about what happens when you get a robot of your own.  


In your story, you have just received your new robot. You are excited to turn it on and see 
how it works. You press the button to turn on the robot. Write a story about what happens 
next. When writing your story, find ways to use information and details from the sources to 
improve your story. Make sure you develop your character(s), the setting, and the plot, 
using details, dialogue, and description where appropriate.  


Narrative Story Scoring:  
Your story will be scored using the following: 


1. Organization/purpose: How effective was your plot, and did you maintain a logical
sequence of events from beginning to end? How well did you establish and develop a 
setting, narrative, characters, and point of view? How well did you use a variety of 
transitions? How effective was your opening and closing for your audience and purpose? 
2. Development/elaboration: How well did you develop your story using description, details,
dialogue? How well did you use relevant details or information from the sources in your 
story? 3. Conventions: How well did you follow the rules of grammar usage, punctuation, 
capitalization, and spelling?  


Now begin work on your story. Manage your time carefully so that you can 
• plan your multi-paragraph story.
• write your multi-paragraph story.
• revise and edit the final draft of your multi-paragraph story.


Word-processing tools and spell check are available to you. 


For Part 2, you are being asked to write a story that is several paragraphs long, so please 
be as thorough as possible. Type your response in the space provided. The box will expand 
as you type.  


Remember to check your notes and your prewriting/planning as you write and then revise 
and edit your story. 


9 


350/503







Grade 8 ELA Sample PT Item Form C2 T7 


Version 1.0 


ELA.08.PT.2.07.161 C2 T7 
Sample Item Id: ELA.08.PT.2.07.161 


Title: Robot Pets  
Grade/Model: 8/3 


Claim(S): Primary Claims 
1: Students can read closely and analytically to comprehend a range 
of increasingly complex literary and informational texts. 
2: Students can produce effective and well-grounded writing for a 
range of purposes and audiences. 
4: Students can engage in research/inquiry to investigate topics and 
to analyze, integrate, and present information. 
 
Secondary Claim 
3: Students can employ effective speaking and listening skills for a 
range of purposes and audiences.  


Primary Target(S): These claims and targets will be measured by scorable evidence 
collected.  
 
Claim 1 
8. KEY DETAILS:  Identify explicit text evidence to support 
inferences made or conclusions drawn about texts 
11. REASONING & EVALUATION:  Apply reasoning and a range of 
textual evidence to justify inferences or interpret author’s 
presentation of information (author’s line of reasoning; point of 
view/purpose; relevance of evidence and/or elaboration to support 
claims, concepts, ideas) 
12: ANALYSIS WITHIN OR ACROSS TEXTS: Analyze one or more 
texts to determine how connections are made among 
topics/information presented; or how conflicting information or 
presentation format reveals author interpretation of the topic  
 
Claim 2 
7: COMPOSE FULL TEXTS: Write full arguments about topics or 
texts, attending to purpose and audience: establish and support a 
claim, organize and cite supporting (text) evidence from credible 
sources, and provide a conclusion 
8. LANGUAGE & VOCABULARY USE: Strategically use precise 
language and vocabulary (including academic and domain-specific 
vocabulary, figurative language) and style appropriate to the purpose 
and audience when revising or composing texts 
9. EDIT AND CLARIFY:  Apply or edit grade-appropriate grammar, 
usage and mechanics to clarify a message and edit narrative, 
informational, and argumentative texts 
 
Claim 4 
2. ANALYZE/INTEGRATE INFORMATION: Analyze information 
within and among sources of information (print and non-print texts, 
data sets, conducting procedures, etc.)  
3. EVALUATE INFORMATION/SOURCES: Use reasoning, planning, 
and evidence to gather and select information to support inferences, 
interpretations, and analyses  


  


351/503







Grade 8 ELA Sample PT Item Form C2 T7 


Version 1.0 


Secondary 
Target(s): 


  


These claims and targets will be observed but not scored.  
 
Claim 2 
10. TECHNOLOGY: Use tools of technology to gather information, 
make revisions, or produce texts 
 
Claim 3 
4. LISTEN/INTERPRET: Analyze, interpret and use information 
delivered orally or visually 
 
Claim 4 
1: PLAN/RESEARCH: Conduct short research projects to explore a 
topic, issue or problem, analyzing interrelationships among concepts 
or perspectives 
 


Standard(s): Primary Standards 
 
Reading 
RI-6,8, W-2d, W-3d, L-3a, L6 
Writing  
W-1a, W-1b, W-1c, W-1d, W-1e 
W-4, W-5, W-6, W-8, W-9 
L-1, L-2, L-3 
Research 
L-6 
W-2d, W-3d, W-8, W-9 
WL-8, WL-9 


DOK: 4 
Difficulty: Medium/High 


Score Points: TBD 
Task Source: Testing Contractor  


How This Task 
Addresses The 


Sufficient Evidence 
For The Claims: 


In order to complete the performance task, students 
1. Identify an author’s attitude  
2. Identify the types of evidence the author uses to support his 


or her claims 
3. Further analyze information sources and evaluate evidence 


through discussion with other students in order to formulate a 
conclusion 


4. Write an argumentative essay effectively demonstrating  
• a clearly-established argumentative claim 
• presentation of relevant supporting evidence, details, 


and elaboration consistent with the claim, sources, 
purpose, and audience  


• effective organization of ideas  
• adherence to conventions and rules of grammar, usage, 


and mechanics 
• control of language and tone for purpose and audience 


 
Item Type PT 


  


352/503







Grade 8 ELA Sample PT Item Form C2 T7 


Version 1.0 


Target-Specific 
Attributes (E.G., 


Accessibility 
Issues): 


Students with visual and hearing impairments will need to be 
provided with transcripts of video material. Students with visual, 
hearing, and speaking impairments will need to be effectively 
integrated into small group work.  


Stimuli: Sources (2 articles, 3 videos; presented in the order in which 
they are used) 
 
Article 1 
Metro Daily News                                                      June, 2011 
 
The Rise of the Robot Pet 
by Elena Soto 
Nanto City, Japan, is facing a challenge that’s typical of cities across 
the country. The city has a large (and growing) elderly population and 
a shortage of younger people to care for them. But Nanto City is 
approaching this problem in an unusual way. Over the course of 12 
years, and at a cost of $10 million, Japan’s National Institute of 
Advanced Industrial Science and Technology has developed a robotic 
animal—a baby seal named Paro—to help ease the burdens of Nanto 
City’s older residents. These are people who not only struggle with 
physical illness but often also with feelings of sadness, loneliness, and 
isolation. 
 
By all accounts, Paro is helping. Informally, nurses report that their 
elderly patients treat Paro like a family pet, covering him with 
blankets and trying to feed him snacks. A more formal study by Dr. 
Takanori Shibata, Paro’s creator, discovered a 50% increase in brain 
activity in certain patients after spending 20 minutes with the seal.  
 
And seals are not the only robotic animals making an impact. Senior 
citizens who spent time with Aibo, a robotic dog whose name means 
“pal” in Japanese, played with him and told him their thoughts and 
feelings. They treated him much like a real, live dog. Though there 
have been few formal scientific studies to date, those that have been 
conducted point to a number of benefits of robotic pets. These include 
lowered stress levels and increased happiness. One study at the 
University of Missouri revealed that levels of cortisol, a stress 
hormone, fell in adults when they patted Aibo.  
 
Other robot animals can act as guides for people with vision 
problems, detect fires and rescue people, and assist military troops. 
These are the robot “working animals.” But some robot animals exist 
purely for amusement. These robo-pets are, to put it simply, fun. 
There are baby chickens that chirp and kittens that purr. Many robo-
pets behave like babies and “grow up” under the delighted eyes of 
their owners. Some, like Pleo, a cuddly dinosaur, learn new tricks and 
change their behaviors as appropriate for their “age.” As one happy 
customer on Amazon.com explained, “The little critter is the cutest 
creature I've ever seen... He's a baby dinosaur that's warm-hearted, 
gentle and really strikes a chord with all who meet him.”  
 
Remarkably, these robo-pets seem to develop their own, unique 
personalities. Some scientists call these animals “social robots.” Their 


353/503







Grade 8 ELA Sample PT Item Form C2 T7 


Version 1.0 


existence is possible, in part, because scientists have begun to learn 
more about how the human brain learns and responds, and to apply 
this knowledge to the rapidly changing field of robotics. Thus the 
robo-pets are becoming ever more realistic—and engaging. 
 
Scientists have known for years that real dogs, cats, and other pets 
can do a lot to improve people’s lives. Now they’re finding out that 
robotic pets can trigger the same feelings of well-being and affection 
that real animals can. Though robo-pets aren’t cheap—it cost $10 
million to develop Paro—the many benefits they offer may soon 
outweigh the costs. And they never shed, or need to be cleaned up 
after, or demand to be taken outside for a walk! 
 
Video 1: Fugitsu’s cute teddy-bear robot shows what it can do, May 
2010.  http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=AwWeN1ARy74 
--This is an introduction to the Fujitsu robot teddy bear. (1:58) 
 
Video 2: Pleo: Robot, pet or both? December 2007 
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=F6LCEFr8SxQ 
--The host of a technology show provides an introduction to a specific 
robot pet. (3:10) 
 
Article 2 
Technology Trends Quarterly                                Fall, 2010 
 
Love In the Time of Robots 
by Frank Mullin 
Just as the sun will rise tomorrow morning, so too will robots rise in 
our society. This is not to say that robots will soon become our evil 
overlords, no matter what they say in the movies. Rather, robots are 
rising in their use and usefulness. For decades we have built our 
robots to perform the three Ds: things that are too dull, dirty, or 
dangerous for us to do. In many ways, we are now dependent on 
robots. But now, there is relatively new area in which robots are 
making advances—into our hearts.  
 
One of the strongest bonds many people have is with their pets. 
Given the complexity of emotions involved in such relationships, it 
seems unlikely that a robotic pet could ever truly replace a biological 
one. But robotic pets are becoming increasingly affordable and 
lifelike. They can be soft and cuddly. They can respond appropriately 
to a loving stroke or a sharp voice command. As the technology of 
robotic pets improve, so too will their abilities to interact. For many 
people, robotic pets may seem to offer all of the pros with none of the 
cons of biological pets. And that may just be the problem. 
 
Humans have long shown the ability to bestow love upon inanimate 
objects. Ask yourself if you have ever loved a car, or your laptop 
computer, or a teddy bear. Viewed in that regard, it is not difficult to 
imagine feeling the same love for a robotic pet. After all, a robotic cat 
might actually exhibit more affection than a real cat. But it is that 
show of affection that may be most troubling. When a nuzzle is given 
by an aloof biological cat, the owner may feel a rush of pride at 


354/503







Grade 8 ELA Sample PT Item Form C2 T7 


Version 1.0 


having earned such an honor. But what of a robotic cat? Would the 
owner still feel pride, knowing in the back of her mind that that 
aloofness was coded into the cat by some computer programmer?  
 
There are, however, some people who may not be aware of the 
computer programmer’s hand: children. Kids love their stuffed 
animals, so it makes sense that they would love robotic pets even 
more if those pets seemed to love them back. Again, though, the 
trouble here lies in the simulation of love. In 2001, Sherry Turkle, a 
professor at the Massachusetts Institute of Technology, performed an 
experiment where children were observed interacting with a robot. On 
one occasion, the robot malfunctioned and the subject, a young girl, 
assumed that the robot no longer liked her. The girl became sad and 
withdrawn. “Can a broken robot break a child?” Turkle wrote in her 
book Alone Together. “We would not consider the ethics of having 
children play with a damaged copy of Microsoft Word or a torn 
Raggedy Ann doll. But social robots provoke enough emotion to make 
this ethical question feel very real.” 
 
No matter how lifelike a robotic pet may seem, it is still just a 
technologically advanced machine. Numerous research studies have 
found that advanced technologies, such as mobile phones and the 
Internet, often lead to social isolation. It is not hard to imagine that a 
very lifelike robotic pet, while providing an elderly woman with 
comfort and companionship, might also cause that woman to isolate 
herself from human interaction. As one commenter noted in an online 
forum on robots, “In a few years we’ll never have to leave the 
house!” 
 
Finally, there is the matter of responsibility. Many children get their 
first experience with responsibility by caring for a pet. Biological pets 
have real needs, the neglect of which holds very real consequences. 
But what does a child learn about responsibility when the only need 
her robotic dog has is to be recharged occasionally? What lesson is 
learned if, when a child gets bored with his pet, he can stuff it in the 
back of his closet and forget about it?  
 
Tomorrow the sun will rise, and with it, more people will rise to greet 
their robotic pets. This may or may not be a bad thing. But before the 
robotic dog takes its place as man’s new best friend, it might be 
worthwhile to ask whether giving love to something that cannot love 
you back is truly a friendship at all. 
 
Video 3: Maya’s Human Interaction – Sensors (A Genibo-QD film), 
February 2010. http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=9b4jx5RzqAk 
--The Genibo robot dog displays some of its capabilities. (1:49) 


Acknowledgments: Articles have been rewritten but are based on information from the 
following sources: 
http://www.forbes.com/2005/06/08/cx_lr_0608japan.html 
http://robotsage.blogspot.com/2006/04/star-telegram-01222006-
robotic-pets.html 
http://www.livescience.com/596-move-rover-robotic-pet-friend.html  
http://www.gizmag.com/emotional-robot-pets/16409/   


355/503







Grade 8 ELA Sample PT Item Form C2 T7 


Version 1.0 


www.amazon.com  
http://books.google.com/books?id=oBb-
lt3l4oYC&lpg=PP1&dq=robot%20ethics&pg=PP1#v=onepage&q=robo
t%20ethics&f=false 
http://chronicle.com/article/Programmed-for-Love-The/125922/ 


Task Notes: Task Overview (195 total minutes): 
Title: Robot Pets 
Session 1 (60 minutes): Ultimately tasked with writing an 
argumentative essay on robots as pets, in this session students will 
read one newspaper article and watch two short videos, taking notes 
on these sources. They will then respond to three constructed-
response questions, one addressing reading comprehension and the 
other two the research skills of analyzing and evaluating information.  
Session 2 (45 minutes): Students will read a special interest 
magazine article and watch a third short video. Then working in small 
discussion groups, students will discuss how their opinions about the 
topic did or did not change as a result of the information presented in 
Session 2. Students will again take notes on both the resources and 
the views of other students.  
Session 3 (90 minutes): Finally, students will work individually to 
compose full-length argumentative essays on robots as pets, referring 
to their notes as needed. Prior to composing their full-length essays, 
students will be allowed access to the articles and videos they viewed 
on Day 1 and Day 2. Pre-writing, drafting, and revising will be 
involved.  
Scorable Products: Student responses to the three constructed-
response questions at the end of Session 1 and the essays completed 
in Session 3 will be scored. Secondary targets will not be scored. 
 


 Teacher preparation / Resource requirements 
The teacher should assure assure that sufficient blank paper and 
writing utensils are available for student note taking. Teacher should 
conduct standard preparation, registration, etc., for computer-based 
testing. The testing software will include access to spell check and a 
thesaurus, but not to grammar check. The teacher should also be 
prepared to form small, heterogeneous groups of 3 or 4 students for 
the second half of Session 2 on the second day. 
Teacher Directions: 
NB: Students should not be given the specific essay topic, audience, 
or any additional information about the essay, other than what is 
provided in sessions 1 and 2, until session 3 begins. 
 
Session 1 (60 minutes) 


• Initiate the online testing session. 
• Alert the students when 30 minutes have elapsed.  
• Alert the students when there are 10 minutes remaining in the 


session. 
• Make sure the students have put their names on any notes, 


collect all student notes, and close the testing session. 
Session 2 (45 minutes) 


• Initiate the testing session. 
• Halfway through the session, after students have received 


their small group assignment, form heterogeneous 3-to-4-


356/503







Grade 8 ELA Sample PT Item Form C2 T7 


Version 1.0 


person discussion groups. 
• Alert the students when 5 minutes remain in the session. 
• Make sure the students have put their names on any notes, 


collect all student notes, and close the testing session. 
Session 3 (90 minutes)  
Broken down as follows:  
25 minutes to review sources and notes and plan the essay 
45 minutes to write the essay 
20 minutes to revise the essay 


• Return notes to the students and initiate the testing session. 
• Allow students access to the articles and videos from Day 1 


and Day 2 for the first 25 minutes of the session.  
• Once 25 minutes have elapsed, restrict access to sources (but 


not notes) and instruct students to begin writing their essays.  
• Alert the students when 45 minutes have elapsed in the 


session.  
• After students have been writing for 45 minutes, alert them 


that there are 20 minutes remaining in the session and 
instruct them to begin revising their essays. It is acceptable if 
some students continue to write their essays rather than 
revise them. 


• Alert the students when there are 10 minutes remaining in the 
session. 


• Close the testing session. 
 
Student Directions: 
Session 1 (60 minutes) 
 
Your assignment:  
Your school is planning a technology fair for which one category of 
entries is writing about technology. You will read several articles and 
view several videos about a new technology, then write an 
argumentative essay about it.  
 
Steps you will be following: 
In order to plan and compose your essay, you will do all of the 
following in three sessions over the next three days:  
1) Read an article and watch two videos on the topic of robot pets, 
taking notes on these sources.  
2) Answer three questions about the sources. 
3) Read a second article and watch a video, taking notes on these 
sources. 
4) Participate in a discussion of the information in the sources with a 
small group of classmates, taking notes on your discussion.  
5) Plan and write your essay.  
 
Directions for beginning: 
You will now read an article from a newspaper and watch two videos 
related to the topic of robotic pets, taking notes on all of these 
sources. Take notes because you will use them in the other sessions. 
You can to refer back to any of the sources as often as you like while 
you are taking notes during this session and during later sessions on 
this task. Your notes and the sources will be your basis for writing 


357/503







Grade 8 ELA Sample PT Item Form C2 T7 


Version 1.0 


your final draft.  
 
(Article 1) 
(Video 1) 
(Video 2) 
 
Questions 
Use the remaining time to answer the questions below. Your answers 
to these questions will be scored. Also, they will help you think about 
the sources you’ve read and viewed, which should help you write your 
essay. You may click on the appropriate buttons to refer back to the 
sources when you think it would be helpful. You may also refer to 
your notes. Answer the questions in the spaces provided below them.  
 


1. Explain what the author’s attitude is toward robot pets in 
the article “The Rise of the Robot Pet.” Use details from the 
article you read to support your answer.  


 
2. The author of “The Rise of the Robot Pet” uses different 


types of evidence to support her claim about robotic pets. 
Identify two different types of evidence she uses and give 
an example of each.  


 
3. What can people learn about robotic pets from the videos 


“Fugitsu’s cute teddy-bear robot shows what it can do” and 
“Pleo: Robot, pet, or both?” that they would not learn from 
“The Rise of the Robot Pet”? Support your answer with 
details from the videos and the article.  


 
Session 2 (45 minutes) 
 
Now you will read an article from the magazine “Technology Trends 
Quarterly” and watch a video, “Maya’s Human Interaction,” taking 
notes on each.  
 
(Article 2) 
(Video 3)   
 
Next move to the area your teacher has assigned for your small 
group. Take your notes with you.  
 
Discuss as a group the following questions. You may refer to your 
notes. Write other people’s ideas in your notes, as well as new ideas 
you have during the discussion. 


1. What did you think about robotic pets at the end of Session 
1? 


2. How are real pets better than robotic pets? How are robotic 
pets better than real pets?  


3. What did you like about robotic pets?  
4. What didn’t you like about robotic pets?  
5. Did your opinion of robotic pets change after reading the 


article and seeing the video in Session 2? If not, why not? If 
so, how, and why? 


358/503







Grade 8 ELA Sample PT Item Form C2 T7 


Version 1.0 


 
Session 3 (90 minutes) 
 
Today you will have 90 minutes to review your notes and sources, 
plan, draft, and revise your essay. (You will have 25 minutes to refer 
back to the articles and videos and plan your essay, 45 minutes to 
write your essay, and 20 minutes to revise your essay.) While you 
may use your notes and refer back to the sources, you must work on 
your own. You may also refer to the answers you wrote to questions 
at the end of Session 1, but you cannot change those answers.  Now 
read your assignment and the information about how your essay will 
be scored, then begin your work. 
  
Your Assignment 
Remember, your school is planning a technology fair for which one 
category of entries is writing about technology. Write an 
argumentative essay to make a claim for or against robotic pets. Your 
essay can be read by students, teachers, and community members 
who attend the technology fair. Support your claim with details from 
what you have read, viewed, and discussed with some of your 
classmates.  
 
How your essay will be scored: The people scoring your essay will 
be assigning scores for 


1. establishing a claim  
2. presentation of relevant evidence – how well you provide 


support and elaboration for your claim with specific 
information from the sources and how well you stay on topic 
throughout the essay 


3. organization – how well your ideas logically flow from your 
statement of focus, to supporting ideas, to concluding 
statement(s)  


4. conventions – how well you follow the rules of grammar and 
mechanics (spelling, punctuation, capitalization, etc.)  


5. language, tone, purpose, audience – the appropriateness 
of your language and tone for your purpose and audience 


6. content – the accuracy and relevance of the information you 
use from the sources. 


 
Now begin work on your essay. Manage your time carefully so 
that you can:  
 


• plan your essay 
• write your essay 
• revise and edit for a final draft 


 
Word-processing tools, thesaurus, and spell check function are 
available to you. 


359/503







Smarter Balanced 
Argumentative Writing Rubric (Grades 6–11) 


Smarter Balanced Argumentative Writing Rubric (Grades 6–11)  1 


 


Sample Generic 4-point Argumentative Writing Rubric (Grades 6-11) 


Statement of Purpose/Focus and Organization Development: Language and Elaboration of Evidence 
Score 


Statement of 
Purpose/Focus Organization Elaboration of Evidence Language and Vocabulary 


Conventions 


4 


The response is fully 
sustained and 
consistently and 
purposefully focused: 


 claim is clearly stated, 
focused and strongly 
maintained 


 alternate or opposing 
claims are clearly 
addressed* 


 claim is introduced 
and communicated 
clearly within the 
context 


The response has a clear 
and effective 
organizational structure 
creating unity and 
completeness: 


 effective, consistent 
use of a variety of 
transitional strategies 


 logical progression of 
ideas from beginning 
to end 


 effective introduction 
and conclusion for 
audience and purpose 


 strong connections 
among ideas, with 
some syntactic variety 


The response provides 
thorough and convincing 
support/evidence for the 
writer’s claim that 
includes the effective use 
of sources, facts, and 
details. The response 
achieves substantial 
depth that is specific and 
relevant:  


 use of evidence from 
sources is smoothly 
integrated, 
comprehensive, 
relevant, and concrete 


 effective use of a 
variety of elaborative 
techniques 


The response clearly and 
effectively expresses 
ideas, using precise 
language: 


 use of academic and 
domain-specific 
vocabulary  is clearly 
appropriate for the 
audience and purpose 


The response 
demonstrates a strong 
command of conventions:  


 few, if any, errors  are 
present in usage and 
sentence formation 


 effective and consistent 
use of punctuation, 
capitalization, and 
spelling 


 


 


360/503







Smarter Balanced 
Argumentative Writing Rubric (Grades 6–11) 


Smarter Balanced Argumentative Writing Rubric (Grades 6–11)  2 


 


Sample Generic 4-point Argumentative Writing Rubric (Grades 6-11) 


Statement of Purpose/Focus and Organization Development: Language and Elaboration of Evidence 
Score 


Statement of 
Purpose/Focus Organization Elaboration of Evidence Language and Vocabulary 


Conventions 


3 


The response is 
adequately sustained 
and generally focused: 


 claim is clear and for 
the most part 
maintained, though 
some loosely related 
material may be 
present 


 context provided for 
the claim is adequate 


The response has an 
evident organizational 
structure and a sense of 
completeness, though 
there may be minor flaws 
and some ideas may be 
loosely connected: 


 adequate use of 
transitional strategies 
with some variety 


 adequate progression 
of ideas from 
beginning to end  


 adequate introduction 
and conclusion 


 adequate, if slightly 
inconsistent, 
connection among 
ideas 


The response provides 
adequate 
support/evidence for 
writer’s claim that 
includes the use of 
sources, facts, and 
details. The response 
achieves some depth and 
specificity but is 
predominantly general: 


 some evidence from 
sources is  integrated, 
though citations may 
be general or 
imprecise  


 adequate use of some 
elaborative techniques  


The response adequately 
expresses ideas, 
employing a mix of 
precise with more general  
language  


 use of domain-specific 
vocabulary is generally 
appropriate for the 
audience and purpose 


The response 
demonstrates an adequate 
command of conventions:  


 some errors in usage 
and sentence formation 
may be present, but no 
systematic pattern of 
errors is displayed 


 adequate use of 
punctuation, 
capitalization, and 
spelling 


 


 


361/503







Smarter Balanced 
Argumentative Writing Rubric (Grades 6–11) 


Smarter Balanced Argumentative Writing Rubric (Grades 6–11)  3 


 


Sample Generic 4-point Argumentative Writing Rubric (Grades 6-11) 


Statement of Purpose/Focus and Organization Development: Language and Elaboration of Evidence 
Score 


Statement of 
Purpose/Focus Organization Elaboration of Evidence Language and Vocabulary 


Conventions 


2 


The response is 
somewhat sustained and  
may have a minor drift in 
focus: 


 may be clearly focused 
on the claim but is 
insufficiently sustained 


 claim on the issue may 
be somewhat unclear 
and unfocused 


The response has an 
inconsistent 
organizational structure, 
and flaws are evident: 


 inconsistent use of 
basic transitional 
strategies with little 
variety 


 uneven progression of 
ideas from beginning 
to end  


 conclusion and 
introduction, if present, 
are weak 


 weak connection 
among ideas 


The response provides 
uneven, cursory 
support/evidence for the 
writer’s claim that 
includes partial or uneven 
use of sources, facts, and 
details, and achieves 
little depth: 


 evidence from sources 
is weakly integrated, 
and citations, if 
present, are uneven 


 weak or uneven use of 
elaborative techniques  


The response expresses 
ideas unevenly, using 
simplistic language: 


 use of domain-specific 
vocabulary may at 
times be inappropriate 
for the audience and 
purpose 


The response 
demonstrates a partial 
command of conventions: 


 frequent errors in usage 
may obscure meaning  


 inconsistent use of 
punctuation, 
capitalization, and 
spelling 


 


 


362/503







Grade 11 Performance Task 
  


 


 1 


Nuclear Power: Friend or Foe? 
 
1.  Task Overview 


 
2.  Classroom Activity 


 
3.  Student Task: Parts 1 and 2 


 
4.  Task Specifications and Scoring Rubrics 


 


Task Overview (20 minutes for classroom activity, 120 minutes for performance task = 140 total 


minutes) 


Classroom Activity (20 minutes) 


Using visual stimuli (chart and photo), the teacher invites students to share prior knowledge of 


nuclear power. By way of class discussion, and in order to contextualize the examination of stimuli 


in Part 1, students are reminded of two basic understandings about nuclear power: 1) that it is one 


among several ways that societies produce electricity and 2) that its use is controversial.  


Part 1 (50 minutes) 


Students examine and take notes on the stimuli, a series of Internet sources that present both sides of 


the nuclear debate. Constructed-response questions call upon the students to summarize and evaluate 


the presented sources.  


Part 2 (70 minutes) 


Students refer to their notes as needed to compose a full-length argumentative report. Students are 


allowed access to the stimuli they examined in Part 1. Pre-writing, drafting, and revisions are involved.  


Scorable Products 


Student responses to the constructed-response research questions at the end of Part 1 and the report 


completed in Part 2 will be scored. Notes completed in Part 1 and pre-writing and drafting in Part 2 will not 


be scored. 


  


363/503







Grade 11 Performance Task 
  


 


 2 


Teacher Preparation / Resource Requirements  


This is a computer-based test that requires an interface for each test-taker. The testing software will 


include access to spell check, but not to grammar check. The teacher should ensure that sufficient blank 


paper and writing tools are available for student note-taking. Ideally, the teacher has access to a projector 


and PowerPoint-like software for presenting images in the introductory Classroom Activity, but these 


images can also be distributed as handouts.  


Teacher Directions for the Classroom Activity  


Introductory Classroom Activity (20 minutes)  


 Present on a projector (or distribute a handout of) the pie chart on the production of electricity in 


the U.S. (see attached).  


 After giving students a moment to look at the chart, ask, “What do you think this chart is telling 


us? What would you guess that its title or caption is?”  


 After taking a few responses, affirm or state that the chart provides data on where electricity 


comes from in the United States.  


 Invite students to briefly define the various kinds of energy sources that appear on the chart: 


hydroelectric, renewables, nuclear, etc.  


 Ask, “Which of the sources accounts for just over 19% of America’s electricity?”  


 After a student has identified nuclear power, ask, “What do you know about nuclear power? How 


does it produce electricity?”  


 While students share what they know about the technology of nuclear power, show them the 


photograph of the functioning nuclear power plant, the Susquehanna Steam Electric Station in 


Pennsylvania (see attached). (Explain that the white emissions are steam.)  


 If students do not know anything about nuclear power technology, tell them that it comes from a 


device (a nuclear reactor) that creates a chain reaction that breaks up the nucleus of an atom so 


that it produces energy. Usually heat from this process is used to generate electricity.      


 Say to the students, “In the performance task that you are going to participate in today, you will learn 


more about nuclear power and the debate over its pros and cons. Eventually, you will need to take a 


position on whether we should encourage or discourage the use of nuclear power, and you will defend 


your point of view in an argumentative report. It is important to know that, as the pie chart indicates, 


nuclear power is one way that our country currently gets its electricity. Some people support it and think it 


might even be a bigger piece of the pie. Others oppose it and would like to see it disappear from the pie 


chart altogether.”   


  


364/503







Grade 11 Performance Task 
  


 


 3 


Teacher Directions for Parts 1 and 2 


Part 1 (50 minutes)  


Students should receive the sources, directions, questions, report assignment, and any other material 


related to the task. They should receive the constructed-response questions in Part 1 and the report 


assignment in Part 2. 


 


1. Initiate the online testing session. 


2. Pass out the note-taking guide, reminding the students that its use is optional and unscored. 


3. Alert the students when there are 25 minutes remaining in Part 1.  


4. Alert the students when there are 5 minutes remaining in Part 1. 


5. Have students write their names on any notes. Collect all student notes.  


6. Close the testing session.  


Stretch Break 


Part 2 (70 minutes)  


1. Initiate the testing Part 2. 


2. Allow students to access the sources, their notes, and their answers to the constructed-response 


questions presented in Part 1. They will not be allowed to change their answers. 


3. Once 15 minutes have elapsed, suggest students begin writing the report. 


4. Alert the students when 30 minutes remain. 


5. Alert students when 15 minutes remain and suggest they begin revising their reports.  


6. Close the testing session. 


 


Student Directions for Parts 1 and 2 


Part 1 (50 minutes)  


Your task 


You will conduct some research on the pros and cons of nuclear power and then write a report arguing 


your opinion on the use of nuclear power for generating electricity.  


Steps to follow 


In order to plan and compose your report, you will do all of the following:  


1. Review and evaluate the results of an Internet search on the pros and cons of your topic.  


2. Make notes about the information from the sources. 


365/503







Grade 11 Performance Task 
  


 


 4 


3. Answer two questions about the sources.  


Directions for beginning 


You are chief-of-staff for your local congresswoman in the U.S. House of Representatives. She has 


called you into her office to outline an urgent project.  


“I have received advance notice,” she says as you sit down, “that a power company is proposing to build a 


nuclear plant in the southeastern corner of our state. The plan will be announced to the public tomorrow 


morning, and citizens and journalists will want to know what my position is on this controversial issue. To 


be honest, I am not sure how I feel about it. We currently don’t have any nuclear power plants in this state, 


so I haven’t taken time to consider the issue deeply.”  


“I need you,” she continues, “to conduct a brief survey of the pros and cons of nuclear power. Summarize 


what you have learned and report back to me this afternoon.”  


Back in your office, you enter “nuclear power pros and cons” into a Google search engine, and it returns 


what looks like a promising mix of articles, videos, and data charts. You must review and evaluate these 


sources and summarize their arguments—both pro and con—before reporting back to the congresswoman. 


You have been provided with and are encouraged to use a note-taking guide that will help you gather and 


process your findings.  


Research Questions  


After you have reviewed the research sources, answer the questions below. Your answers to these 


questions will be scored. Also, they will help you think about the sources you have read and viewed, which 


should help you write your report. Answer the questions in the spaces provided below each question.  


1. From the sources you have reviewed, summarize 3 major arguments that support, and 3 major 


arguments that oppose, the use of nuclear power for generating electricity. For each of the arguments, 


cite at least one source that supports this fact or point of view.  


 


Argument / Fact in Favor of Nuclear Power Source Supporting This Argument 


1.  


2.  


3.  


Argument / Fact in Opposition to Nuclear Power Source Supporting This Argument 


1.  


2.  


3.  


 


 


2. Evaluate the credibility of the arguments and evidence presented by these sources. Which of the 


sources are more trustworthy and why? Which of the sources warrant some skepticism because of bias 


366/503







Grade 11 Performance Task 
  


 


 5 


or insufficient evidence?  


 


Part 2 (70 minutes)  


You will now have 70 minutes to review your notes and sources, plan, draft, and revise your report. You 


may use your notes and refer to the sources. You may also refer to the answers you wrote to the questions 


in Part 1, but you cannot change those answers. Now read your assignment and the information about 


how your report will be scored; then begin your work. 


Your Assignment  


Back in the congresswoman’s office, you start to hand her your notes on the pros and cons of nuclear 


energy, but she waves away your papers.  


“Some emergency meetings have come up and I don’t have time to review your research notes,” she 


says. “Instead, go ahead and make a recommendation for our position on this nuclear power plant. 


Should we support the building of this nuclear plant in our state, or should we oppose the power 


company’s plan? Be sure that your recommendation acknowledges both sides of the issue so that 


people know that we have considered the issue carefully. I’ll review your report tonight and use it for the 


press conference tomorrow morning.”  


Write an argumentative report that recommends the position that your congresswoman should take on 


the plan to build a nuclear power plant in your state. Support your claim with evidence from the Internet 


sources you have read and viewed. You do not need to use all the sources, only the ones that most 


effectively and credibly support your position and your consideration of the opposing point of view.  


 


Report Scoring 


Your report will be scored on the following criteria: 


1. Statement of purpose / focus and organization:  How well did you clearly state your claim on the 


topic, maintain your focus, and address the alternate and opposing claims?   How well did your 


ideas logically flow from the introduction to conclusion using effective transitions? How well did 


you stay on topic throughout the report? 


2. Elaboration of evidence:  How well did you elaborate your arguments and discussion of 


counterarguments, citing evidence from your sources?  How well did you effectively express ideas 


using precise language and vocabulary that were appropriate for the audience and purpose of your 


report?  


3. Conventions:  How well did you follow the rules of usage, punctuation, capitalization, and spelling?  


 


Now begin work on your report. Manage your time carefully so that you can:  


• plan your report  


• write your report  


• revise and edit for a final draft  


 


367/503







Grade 11 Performance Task 
  


 


 6 


Word-processing tools and spell check are available to you.  


 
Type your response in the space provided. Write as much as you need to fulfill the requirements of the 


task; you are not limited by the size of the response area on the screen.  


368/503







Grade 11 Performance Task 
  


 


 7 


Note-Taking Guide 


 


Research 
Source 


Published by . . . 
Arguments for 
Nuclear Power 


Arguments 
against Nuclear 


Power 


How reliable is 
the evidence 


from this 
source? 


     


     


     


     


     


     


 
  


369/503







Grade 11 Performance Task 
  


 


 8 


Source information: 


 


Nuclear power - Wikipedia, the free encyclopedia 


en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Nuclear_power  


Nuclear power is the use of sustained nuclear fission to generate heat and electricity. 


Nuclear power plants provide about 6% of the world's energy and 13– 14% …  


James Hansen on Nuclear Energy - YouTube 


www.youtube.com/watch?v=alrxqx_B34s  


Nov 16, 2010 - 1 min - Uploaded by Newsweek Magazine  


“NASA’s premier climate change expert believes that 


next-generation, safe nuclear power is an option which we need to 


develop. And it is being …”  


LETTER TO THE EDITOR: Against plans for nuclear power plant 


ottumwacourier.com/letters/.../Against-plans-for-nuclear-power-plant  


Mar 17, 2012 – I would like to comment on Mid-American Energy's intent to build a 


nuclear power plant in Iowa. We already have one nuclear plant in Palo, …  


Look inside Fukushima's meltdown zone a year later - YouTube  


www.youtube.com/watch?v=-6oQAyunXqk  


Feb 28, 2012 - 3 min - Uploaded by CNN  


CNN's Kyung Lah reports from the meltdown zone. ... Look inside 


Fukushima's meltdown …  


The Truth About Nuclear Power - Reason.com  


reason.com/archives/2011/03/25/the-truth-about-nuclear-power  


The chart here uses data compiled from various sources to compare 


the deaths per unit of energy produced. Deaths resulting from the 


production of nuclear power are over 4000 times less than the rate 


of death resulting from the production of energy from coal.…  


LETTER TO THE EDITOR: Nuclear a cost-effective energy source ... 


www.washingtontimes.com/.../nuclear-a-cost-effective-energy-source…  


Jan 3, 2012 – The truly rational view of Mario Salazar on nuclear power should be a 


lesson on dispassionately ... The Washington Times ... LETTER TO THE EDITOR: Nuclear a 


cost-effective energy source ... to the real alternatives of burning gas, oil and coal, and 


much more reliably than alternatives like wind and solar.  


370/503







Grade 11 Performance Task 
  


 


 9 


 


Source: U.S. EPA, eGRID, year 2005 data. 


 


 


371/503







Grade 11 Performance Task 
  


 


 10 


Task Specifications:  


Title:  Nuclear Power: Friend or Foe?  


Grade:  10/11  


Claim(s):  2: Students can produce effective and well-grounded writing for a 


range of purposes and audiences. 4: Students can engage in 


research/inquiry to investigate topics and to analyze, integrate, 


and present information.  


Primary Target(s):  These claims and targets will be measured by scorable evidence 


collected. Claim 2 7: COMPOSE FULL TEXTS: Write full persuasive 


pieces/arguments about topics or texts, attending to purpose and 


audience: establishing and supporting a claim, organizing and 


citing supporting evidence (from texts when appropriate) from 


credible sources, and providing a conclusion appropriate to 


purpose and audience. 8: LANGUAGE & VOCABULARY USE: 


Strategically use precise language and vocabulary (including 


academic and domain-specific vocabulary and figurative 


language) and style appropriate to the purpose and audience 


when revising or composing texts. 9: EDIT/CLARIFY: Apply or 


edit grade-appropriate grammar, usage, and mechanics to clarify 


a message and edit narrative, informational, and 


persuasive/argument texts. Claim 4 2: ANALYZE/INTEGRATE 


INFORMATION: Gather, analyze, and integrate multiple sources 


of information/evidence to support a presentation on a topic. 3: 


EVALUATE INFORMATION/SOURCES: Evaluate relevancy, 


accuracy, and completeness of information from multiple 


sources. 4: USE EVIDENCE: Cite evidence to support arguments 


or conjectures. 


 CCSS/Standard(s):  W-1a–e, W-4–9, L-1–3, L-6, RI-7, RLiteracy-7, WLiteracy-8–9  


DOK:  4  


Difficulty:  Medium  


Score Points:  Up to 10 


Task Source:  SBAC / Stanford Center for Assessment, Learning, & Equity 


(SCALE)  


Item Type:  Performance Tasks  
Target-specific attributes 


(e.g., accessibility 


issues):  


Students with visual impairments may need alternative formats to 


access written texts, graphic stimuli, and video or audiovisual 


material. Students with physical or other impairments may need to be 


provided with appropriate alternative means to entering lengthy text 


using a keyboard.  


Grade Level of Stimuli:  9–10  


 


372/503







Grade 11 Performance Task 
  


 


 11 


Stimuli:  Authentic Internet sources pre-selected and presented to the students 


as the top hits of a simulated Google search. Should present a range 


of media that includes text, video, and data charts. Collectively, the 


sources must provide an overview of the topic and present both sides 


of the controversy. Sources must also vary in terms of their credibility 


and reliance on evidence. See attached PDF for a draft of an example. 


Links are functioning and open actual Internet sources that could be 


used for this task.  


How this task contributes 


to sufficient evidence for 


the claims:  


In order to complete the performance task, students 1. Evaluate and 


select information from a series of sources 2. Write an argumentative 


report effectively demonstrating • a clearly-established claim about 


the topic • presentation of relevant supporting evidence, details, and 


elaboration consistent with the position, sources, purpose, and 


audience • effective organization of ideas • adherence to 


conventions and rules of grammar, usage, and mechanics • control 


of language for purpose and audience  


Task Notes:  This task attempts to address the challenge of assessing real-life 


research skills within the constraints of a standardized, on-demand 


test. The use of a simulated Internet search result pointing to 


authentic Internet sources allows the task designer to recreate the 


challenges posed by research in the real world: namely, most of it is 


now done on the Internet, which requires vigilance and skill in 


evaluating the reliability of what you find there. In this way, students 


are asked not simply to synthesize the stimuli, but to evaluate the 


credibility and reliability of the stimuli before synthesizing a subset of 


the presented sources.  


 


  


373/503







Grade 11 Performance Task 
  


 


 12 


Scoring information for questions: 


1. Claim 4, Target 4 


 


2-point Research (Grades 6–11) 


Use Evidence Rubric (Claim 4, Target 4) 


2 
The response gives sufficient evidence of the ability to cite evidence to support arguments 


and/or ideas. 


1 
The response gives limited evidence of the ability to cite evidence to support arguments and/or 


ideas. 


0 
A response gets no credit if it provides no evidence of the ability to cite evidence to support 


arguments and/or ideas. 


 


2. Claim 4, Target 3 


2-point Research (Grades 6–11) 


Evaluate Information/Sources Rubric (Claim 4, Target 3) 


2 
The response gives sufficient evidence of the ability to evaluate the credibility, completeness, 


relevancy, and/or accuracy of the information and sources. 


1 
The response gives limited evidence of the ability to evaluate the credibility, completeness, 


relevancy, and/or accuracy of the information and sources. 


0 
A response gets no credit if it provides no evidence of the ability to evaluate the credibility, 


completeness, relevancy, and/or accuracy of the information and sources. 


 


  


374/503







Grade 11 Performance Task 
  


 


 13 


Rubric and scoring information for full-write: 


4-Point  


Argumentative  


Performance Task Writing Rubric (Grades 6–11)  


Score 4 3 2 1 NS 


S
ta


te
m


e
n


t 
o


f 
P


u
rp


o
s
e


/
F


o
c
u


s
 a


n
d


 O
rg


a
n


iz
a


ti
o


n
 


The response is fully 


sustained and 


consistently and 


purposefully focused: 


 claim is clearly 


stated, focused, 


and strongly 


maintained 


 alternate or 


opposing claims 


are clearly 


addressed  


 claim is introduced 


and communicated 


clearly within the 


purpose, audience, 


and task 


 


The response has a 


clear and effective 


organizational structure 


creating a sense of 


unity and 


completeness: 


 consistent use of a 


variety of 


transitional 


strategies to clarify 


the relationships 


between and 


among ideas 


 logical progression 


of ideas from 


beginning to end 


 effective 


introduction and 


conclusion for 


audience and 


purpose  


 strong connections 


among ideas, with 


some syntactic 


variety  


The response is 


adequately sustained 


and generally focused: 


 claim is clear and 


mostly maintained, 


though some 


loosely related 


material may be 


present 


 context provided 


for the claim is 


adequate within 


the purpose, 


audience, and task 


 


The response has an 


evident organizational 


structure and a sense 


of completeness, 


though there may be 


minor flaws and some 


ideas may be loosely 


connected: 


 adequate use of 


transitional 


strategies with 


some variety to 


clarify the 


relationships 


between and 


among ideas 


 adequate 


progression of 


ideas from 


beginning to end  


 adequate 


introduction and 


conclusion  


 adequate, if slightly 


inconsistent, 


connection among 


ideas 


The response is 


somewhat sustained 


and may have a 


minor drift in focus: 


 may be clearly 


focused on the 


claim but is 


insufficiently 


sustained, or 


 claim on the 


issue may be 


somewhat 


unclear and/or 


unfocused  


 


The response has an 


inconsistent 


organizational 


structure, and flaws 


are evident: 


 inconsistent use 


of transitional 


strategies and/or 


little variety 


 uneven 


progression of 


ideas from 


beginning to end  


 conclusion and 


introduction, if 


present, are 


weak 


 weak connection 


among ideas  


 


The response may 


be related to the 


purpose but may 


provide little or no 


focus: 


 may be very 


brief 


 may have a 


major drift 


 claim may be 


confusing or 


ambiguous 


 


The response has 


little or no 


discernible 


organizational 


structure: 


 few or no 


transitional 


strategies are 


evident 


 frequent 


extraneous 


ideas may 


intrude 


 


Insufficient, 


illegible, in 


a language 


other than 


English, 


incoherent, 


off-topic, or 


off-purpose 


writing 


 


  


375/503







Grade 11 Performance Task 
  


 


 14 


4-Point  


Argumentative  


Performance Task Writing Rubric (Grades 6–11)  


Score 4 3 2 1 NS 


E
v
id


e
n


c
e


/
E


la
b


o
ra


ti
o


n
 


The response provides 


thorough and 


convincing 


support/evidence for 


the writer’s claim that 


includes the effective 


use of sources, facts, 


and details. The 


response achieves 


substantial depth that 


is specific and relevant: 


 use of evidence 


from sources is 


integrated, 


comprehensive, 


relevant, and 


concrete 


 effective use of a 


variety of 


elaborative 


techniques  


 


The response clearly 


and effectively 


expresses ideas, using 


precise language:  


 use of academic 


and 


domain-specific 


vocabulary is 


clearly appropriate 


for the audience 


and purpose 


The response provides 


adequate 


support/evidence for 


the writer’s claim that 


includes the use of 


sources, facts, and 


details. The response 


achieves some depth 


and specificity but is 


predominantly general:    


 some evidence 


from sources is  


included, though 


citations may be 


general or 


imprecise  


 adequate use of 


some elaborative 


techniques  


 


The response 


adequately expresses 


ideas, employing a mix 


of precise with more 


general language:  


 use of 


domain-specific 


vocabulary is 


generally 


appropriate for the 


audience and 


purpose 


The response 


provides uneven, 


cursory 


support/evidence for 


the writer’s claim 


that includes partial 


or uneven use of 


sources, facts, and 


details. The response 


achieves little depth: 


 evidence from 


sources is weakly 


integrated, and 


citations, if 


present, are 


uneven 


 weak or uneven 


use of 


elaborative 


techniques  


 


The response 


expresses ideas 


unevenly, using 


simplistic language:  


 use of 


domain-specific 


vocabulary may 


at times be 


inappropriate for 


the audience 


and purpose 


The response 


provides minimal 


support/evidence 


for the writer’s claim 


that includes little or 


no use of sources, 


facts, and details: 


 Use of evidence  


from sources is 


minimal, 


absent, 


incorrect, or 


irrelevant  


 


The response’s 


expression of ideas 


is vague, lacks 


clarity, or is 


confusing: 


 uses limited 


language or 


domain-specific 


vocabulary 


 may have little 


sense of 


audience and 


purpose 


Insufficient, 


illegible, in 


a language 


other than 


English, 


incoherent, 


off-topic, or 


off-purpose 


writing 


 


  


376/503







Grade 11 Performance Task 
  


 


 15 


2-Point  


Argumentative  


Performance Task Writing Rubric (Grades 6-11)  


Score 2 1 NS 


C
o


n
ve


n
ti


o
n


s
 


The response demonstrates an 


adequate command of 


conventions: 


 


 errors in usage and sentence 


formation may be present, 


but no systematic pattern of 


errors is displayed and 


meaning is not obscured 


 


 adequate use of punctuation, 


capitalization, and spelling 


 


The response demonstrates a 


partial command of conventions: 


 


 errors in usage may obscure 


meaning 


 


 inconsistent use of 


punctuation, capitalization, 


and spelling 


 


Insufficient, illegible, in a  


language other than English, 


incoherent, off-topic, or 


off-purpose writing 


 


  


 


377/503







 


 


 


 


378/503







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


379/503







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


380/503







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


381/503







SCCS 2018 CAASPP Data


382/503







CAASPP Basics


CAASPP: California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress’ Smarter 


Balanced Assessment is: 


● computer-based and computer-adapted (designed to allow for more precise 


measurement of student skills).


● given to students in grades 3-8 and grade 11.


● designed to gauge students’ performance in mathematics and English 


language arts/literacy as they develop grade by grade, including the ability to 


write clearly, think critically and solve problems.


CAASPP scores are part of our new accountability system called the California 


School Dashboard.  The Dashboard measures where students are “at” on the 


CAASPP assessments and how much they have grown.  
383/503







CAASPP Preliminary Data


Because the State has still not finalized the 2018 CAASPP 


results, these are preliminary data and we provide an update 


to the Board in writing if there are any significant changes.  


Consequently, we do not have State or County comparison 


data for 2018.


384/503







Table 1a: All Students - ELA - by SCCS, County, & State


385/503







Table 1b: All Students - Math - by SCCS, County, & State


386/503







Table 2a: All Students - ELA - by grade level and cohort, 2015-2018
Follow cohort with color shading except 11th grade


ELA 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18


11th 64% 56% 59% 58%


8th 59% 65% 55% 58%


7th 57% 60% 62% 66%


6th 62% 62% 62% 59%


5th 60% 64% 60% 52%


4th 53% 53% 49% 50%


3rd 50% 49% 50% 49%387/503







Table 2b: All Students - Math - by grade level and cohort, 2015-2018
Follow cohort with color shading except 11th grade


Math 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18


11th 37% 36% 33% 34%


8th 51% 51% 42% 47%


7th 47% 54% 53% 50%


6th 46% 44% 46% 42%


5th 42% 48% 48% 41%


4th 43% 46% 37% 36%


3rd 52% 50% 51% 47%388/503







Table 3a Low Income (LI) - ELA - by grade level and cohort, 2015-2018


Low Income: % Pro & Adv - Follow cohort with color coding


ELA 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18


11th 46% 41% 41% 43%


8th 42% 46% 30% 33%


7th 35% 33% 40% 42%


6th 33% 37% 39% 36%


5th 30% 38% 38% 27%


4th 24% 30% 27% 25%


3rd 24% 25% 24% 23%389/503







Table 3b Low Income (LI) - Math - by grade level and cohort, 2015-2018


Low Income: % Pro & Adv - Follow cohort with color shading


Math 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18


11th 19% 22% 18% 24%


8th 29% 32% 20% 23%


7th 28% 32% 28% 26%


6th 20% 25% 25% 19%


5th 19% 18% 23% 15%


4th 16% 27% 15% 12%


3rd 31% 28% 28% 22%390/503







Table 4a Ever English Learners (EEL) - ELA - by grade level and cohort, 2017-2018


Ever English Learners: Pro & Adv - Follow cohort with color shading


ELA 16-17 17-18


11th 30% 40%      


8th 23% 23%


7th 32% 30%


6th 26% 22%


5th 26% 24%


4th 16% 22%


3rd 17% 19%391/503







Table 4b Ever English Learners (EEL) - Math - by grade level and cohort


Ever English Learners: Pro & Adv - Follow cohort with color shading


Math 16-17 17-18


11th 16% 21%


8th 15% 16%


7th 23% 17%


6th 16% 14%


5th 17% 14%


4th 12% 12%


3rd 25% 22%
392/503







Strengths


● Our students are performing better than the State and County 


averages in ELA & Math 


● In 7th grade ELA all students as a whole & Low Income 


students have seen steady increases over the past four years


● Specific schools & grade levels have bright spots. Example: 


SCHS had an overall increase of 6% in Math and 9% in ELA 


(Grade 11)


393/503







Areas for Strategic Focus


● Grade level results have varied from year to year


● Overall, scores are relatively flat  


394/503







Next Steps
● Continue to train teachers in evidence based instructional practices (e.g., 


Teacher Clarity)


● Implement Integrated ELD K-12 with a focus on academic language


● Shift elementary instructional coaching model (modeled on Live Oak & San 


Luis Coastal Districts)


● Provide students with an aligned, guaranteed curriculum and assessments


● Increase Collective Teacher Efficacy through Professional Learning 


Community (PLC) facilitation training 


● Participate in College Preparatory Math (CPM) & Twilight Series Math teacher 


trainings


● Train SCIL leaders to better use MAP assessments to inform instruction


● Provide focused site professional development in mathematics and academic 


literacy 395/503







Our District’s CAASPP Results
Our district will study our results and set program and plan goals based on areas of growth, while areas of 


strength are noted to celebrate successes and build upon them.


CAASPP results are one indicator on the California School Dashboard (our new accountability system).  


Like any good evaluation tool, the Dashboard uses multiple measures in addition to the CAASPP 


academic results.  These include:  


● Academic Indicator (reported separately for English language arts/literacy and mathematics assessments)


● English Learner Progress


● Chronic Absenteeism


● Graduation Rate


● Suspension Rate


● College/Career Readiness (HS - includes Grade 11 assessment results)


● Basic Services and Conditions


● Implementation of State Academic Standards


● Parent Engagement 


● School Climate 


● Access to a Broad Course of Study


● Coordination of Services for Expelled Students


● Coordination of Services for Foster Youth


396/503







Coming up: The California School Dashboard 


Once released, we will present our District’s California 


Dashboard accountability results.


397/503







Staff Report: Long Term Debt Report


Separator Page


398/503







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 


1DODD_ATJEUB-D3F27FCB41D84EE1A5434AF7030E0821 


 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Staff Report:  Long Term Debt Report 
 
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018  
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Staff will present a report on the District’s long term debt obligations.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Total long term debt is $187,454,401.  The 2018-19 annual payment is 15,476,682. 
Of the total long term debt, $1,944,576 is funded by RDA funds. The remainder, $185,509,825, 
is funded by property taxes. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


 


 


399/503







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


LONG TERM DEBT REPORT


Board Meeting September 26, 2018


400/503







Long Term Debt Summary and 2018-2019 Annual Payment


Principal Interest


Total 
Amount 
Owed


Total Long Term Debt 128,949,831 58,504,569 187,454,401 


2018-2019 Annual Payment 9,957,587 5,519,095 15,476,682 


401/503







General Obligation Bonds
Secondary School District Debt Summary


Debt Description Principal Interest
Amount 
Owed


Date of Final 
Payment Funding Source


Measure H 1998 Election 2,333,971 4,546,029 6,880,000 2/1/2026 Property Taxes


Measure H 1998 Election 2013 
Refunding 27,265,000 6,240,056 33,505,056 2/1/2030 Property Taxes


Measure A 2016 Election 56,000,000 28,392,194 84,392,194 2/1/2043 Property Taxes


Total Amount Owed Secondary 85,598,971 39,178,279 124,777,250 


2018-2019 Annual Payment 6,695,099 3,669,376 10,364,475 


402/503







General Obligation Bonds
Elementary School District Debt Summary


Debt Description Principal Interest
Amount 
Owed


Date of Final 
Payment


Funding 
Source


Measure E 1998 Election 1,090,860 2,109,140 3,200,000 2/1/2026 Property Taxes


Measure E 1998 Election 2013 
Refunding 13,655,000 3,013,725 16,668,725 2/1/2030 Property Taxes


Measure B 2016 Election 27,200,000 13,663,850 40,863,850 2/1/2043 Property Taxes


Total Amount Owed Elementary 41,945,860 18,786,715 60,732,575 


2018-2019 Annual Payment 3,127,488 1,764,287 4,891,775 


403/503







Branciforte Middle School
Qualified School Construction Bond


Principal Interest Amount Owed


2018-2019 Annual Payment 135,000 85,432 220,432 


Total Amount Owed 1,270,000 407,607 1,677,607 


Funding Source RDA Funds


Date of Final Payment 05/01/2027


404/503







Long Term Debt Recap


District Debt Description Principal Interest
Total Amount 


Owed
Date of Final 
Payment Funding Source


Secondary Measure H 1998 Election 2,333,971 4,546,029 6,880,000 2/1/2026 Property Taxes


Secondary Measure H 1998 Election 2013 Refunding 27,265,000 6,240,056 33,505,056 2/1/2030 Property Taxes


Secondary Measure A 2016 Election 56,000,000 28,392,194 84,392,194 2/1/2043 Property Taxes


Elementary Measure E 1998 Election 1,090,860 2,109,140 3,200,000 2/1/2026 Property Taxes


Elementary Measure E 1998 Election 2013 Refunding 13,655,000 3,013,725 16,668,725 2/1/2030 Property Taxes


Elementary Measure B 2016 Election 27,200,000 13,663,850 40,863,850 2/1/2043 Property Taxes


Both 2010 Certificate of Participation (QSCB) 1,405,000 539,576 1,944,576 5/1/2027 RDA Funds


Total Amount Owed 128,949,831 58,504,569 187,454,401 


405/503







New Business: SecurAll: Hardware for District Card


Access Security System


Separator Page


406/503







   


                         


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Door Lock Hardware for the District-Wide Card Access Security System 
Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the SecureAll quote for door lock hardware for the district-wide card access security project. 
 
Background: 
This project is a district-wide safety program to replace all door hardware with a card access system 
that will allow for lock downs on site and remotely. This quote is for the material only for all doors 
district-wide. Multiple vendors were reviewed and the SecureAll product was determined to be the 
most state of the art and the most cost effective by District and Architectural teams. Purchase will be 
processed through the attached piggyback contract with Marin Community College District.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
$2,006,420.99  Total Materials Cost 
$308,309.31, Measure A Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 0.88% of the Soquel High School overall 
site budget 
$99,664.23, Measure B Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 0.90% of the Gault Elementary School 
overall site budget 
$181,940.16, Measure A Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 1.03% of the Mission Hill Middle School 
overall site budget 
$138,916.49, Measure B Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 0.74% of the Westlake Elementary 
School overall site budget 
$342,832.33, Measure A Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 1.06% of the Santa Cruz High School 
overall site budget 
$323,176.91, Measure A Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 0.99% of the Branciforte Middle School 
overall site budget 
$155,500.84, Measure B Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 1.11% of the Bay View Elementary 
School overall site budget 
$164,223.57, Measure B Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 1.10% of the Delaveaga Elementary 
School overall site budget 
$121,010.52, Measure A Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 0.90% of the Branciforte Small Schools 
overall site budget 
 


407/503







   


                         


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2. 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 
 


408/503







Sales Quotation 
        August 10, 2018 


                                                           


To: 


Mr. Trevor Miller 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


536 Palm Street 


Santa Cruz, CA.  95060 
 


Delivery terms: 


1) Delivery date is 90 days after approval.   


2) Payment terms are net 30 days from date of 


delivery.  Progress billing every 2 weeks. 


3) 1/3 downpayment required at signing. 


 


We are pleased to quote you the following for the Santa Cruz Unified School District security upgrade project: 


Item Quantity Description Unit Price Total 


1.  1389 SA-CDR-A&P, Electrified ANSI Grade 1 Clutched Cylindrical 
Lock - Interior + SA-UKN+Prox Card Reader 


$708.75 $984,453.75 


2.  578 SA-CDR-A&P, Electrified ANSI Grade 1 Clutched Cylindrical 
Lock - Exterior + SA-UKN+Prox Card Reader 


$793.75 $458,787.50 


3.  257 SA-PHR-S&P, Von Duprin Series 98/99 Rim Exit Device 
Retrofit Kit  - Exterior + Prox Card Reader 


$937.50 $240,937.50 


4.  220 (est) SA-ROU-O, Access Point, for redundant coverage $548.25 $120,615.00 


5.  1 SA-HW-4K-RM, SA-Guardian Castle Server +SAG-AS-Castle, 
SA Guardian Software Castle Perpetual License 


$19,545.00 $19,545.00 


6.  2 SA-UKR, U-Key Automatic Reader $395.00 $790.00 


7.  2 SA-APS, Auxilliary Power Supply $495.00 $990.00 


8.  2 SA-LST, Deadlatch Sensor Tester $295.00 $590.00 


9.  1 Client Computer, Keyboard & Monitor $3,300.00 $3,300.00 


10.  10 8 Port POE Switch $179.95 1,799.50 


11.  1 Installation and Maintenance Training N/C N/C 


12.   1 - A POE switch and POE cabling must be available to run 


the Access Points. A/P quantity is a best estimate; actual 
number will be determined at building site audit. 


  


13.   2 - Quote does not include installation.   


14.                                                                    Subtotal           $1,831,808.25 


15.                                             Est. Shipping & Handling  $9,750.00 


16.                                                        Sales Tax 9.00%  $164,862.74 


                                                                       Total $2,006,420.99 


     


We will be happy to supply any further information you may need and trust that you call on us to fill 


your order, which will receive our prompt and careful attention. 


 


Per:  Rick Schaffzin, CEO                                                                             Date: 8/10/18 


 


 


Approved: ___________________________          Date:_____________________ 


 


 


 


SecureALL Corporation 


695 Woburn Court 


Mountain View, CA.  94040 


Phone: 650-704-2725 Fax: 408-247-7114 


sales@secureallcorp.com 
 


 


409/503







 


 


Terms & Conditions of Sale 


ACCEPTANCE OF BUYER’S ORDER IS 
CONDITIONAL ON BUYER’S ASSENT TO 
THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS PRINTED 
BELOW. IF BUYER OBJECTS TO ANY 
TERMS BELOW, SUCH OBJECTION MUST 
BE IN WRITING AND DELIVERED TO 
SELLER WITHIN A REASONABLE TIME, 
NOT TO EXCEED TEN (10) DAYS OF 
RECEIPT OF THIS DOCUMENT. FAILURE 
TO MAKE SUCH A TIMELY EXCEPTION, OR 
ACCEPTANCE BY BUYER OF ANY GOODS 
DELIVERED BY SELLER HEREUNDER, 
SHALL BE CONCLUSIVELY DEEMED 
ASSENT TO THE TERMS AND CONDI-
TIONS BELOW. SELLER’S FAILURE TO 
OBJECT TO PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN 
ANY COMMUNICATION FROM BUYER WILL 
NOT BE A WAIVER OF THE 
PROVISIONS HEREOF. 
 
1. Taxes 
Prices include any taxes, now or hereafter 
enacted, applicable to the goods sold on 
this transaction. Taxes will be added by 
Seller to the sales price where Seller 
invoices the same to comply with law, 
and will be paid by Buyer unless Buyer 
provides Seller with a proper tax 
exemption certificate. 
 
2. Prices and Setoff 


Prices apply only to the quantity ordered 
and shipped hereunder.  Otherwise, 
Seller’s standard price in effect at time of 
a new order shall apply. 
 
Buyer grants to Seller the right at any 
time during the course of this contract to 
revise prices hereunder by Seller giving 
to Buyer written notice, such revised 
prices to apply to all goods thereafter 
shipped. 
 
If Buyer provides written objection within 
ten (10) days following notice of a price 
change established by Seller, Seller shall 
have the option of terminating this 
contract with no liability to Seller. 
 
Buyer waives any rights of setoff, except 
with respect to its claims against Seller 
which arise from transactions with the 
division at the address shown on the face 
hereof. 
 
3. Title and Delivery 
All shipments of goods shall be delivered 
F.O.B. Seller’s plant, and title and liability 
for loss or damage thereto shall pass to 
Buyer upon Seller’s delivery of the goods 
to a carrier for shipment to Buyer, and 
any loss or damage thereafter shall not 
relieve Buyer from any obligation 
hereunder. Buyer shall be liable for costs 
of insurance and transportation and for 
all import duties, taxes and any other 
expenses incurred or licenses or 
clearance required at port of entry and 
destination. 
 
Seller may deliver goods in installments. 


Shipping dates are approximate only. 
Seller shall not be liable for any loss or 
expense, whether by way of contract or 
tort (consequential or otherwise), 
incurred by Buyer if Seller fails to meet 
the specified estimated delivery schedule 
because of unavoidable production or 
other delays. 
 
All provisions of Paragraph 3 apply to 
both domestic and international  
shipments, except that title to goods 
shipped outside the U.S. shall pass at the 
point of destination; risk of loss or 
damage and all expenses associated with 
goods shipped outside the U.S. shall be 
the responsibility of the Buyer.  Not- 
withstanding, any other provisions of 
Paragraph 3 to the contrary, if Buyer is 
an international subsidiary of Seller, title 
shall pass at the point of destination and 
Seller shall be liable for loss or damage to 
such goods until receipt by Buyer at 
point of destination. 
 
4. Quantities 
Any variation in quantities shipped over 
or under the quantities ordered (not to 
exceed 10%) shall constitute compliance 
with Buyer’s order and the stated unit 
price will continue to apply. 


 


5. Terms and Method of Payment 


Where Seller has extended credit to 


Buyer, terms of payment shall be net 
thirty (30) days from date of shipment. 
The amount of credit or terms of payment 
may be changed, or credit withdrawn by 
Seller at any time. If the goods are 
delivered in installments, Buyer shall pay 
separately for each installment. Payment 
shall be made for the goods without 
regard to whether Buyer has made or 
may make any inspection of the goods. If 
shipments are delayed by Buyer, 
payments are due from the date when 
Seller is prepared to make shipments. 
Goods held for Buyer are at Buyer’s risk 
and expense. 


 


6. Contingencies and Force Majeure 
Seller shall not be liable for any delay in 
delivery or for non-delivery, in whole or in 
part, caused by the occurrence of any 
contingency beyond the control either of 
Seller or Seller’s suppliers, including, but 
not limited to, war (whether an actual 
declaration thereof is made or not), 
sabotage, insurrection, riot or other act of 
civil disobedience, act of a public enemy, 
failure or delay in transportation, act of 


any government or any agency or 
subdivision thereof, judicial action, labor 
dispute, accident, fire, explosion, flood, 
storm or other act of God, shortage of 
labor, fuel, raw material or machinery or 
technical failure where Seller has exer-
cised ordinary care in the prevention 
thereof. Seller may allocate production 
and deliveries among Seller’s customers. 


7. Substitutions and Modifications of 
Goods 
Seller may modify the specifications of 
goods designed by Seller, and substitute 
goods manufactured to such modified 
specifications for those specified herein, 
provided such goods substantially 
conform to this contract. Where Buyer 
orders goods subject to military 


specifications, Buyer agrees that Seller 


may supply goods which conform with the 
most current version or revision of the 
applicable military specifications. 


 


8. Legal Compliance 


Buyer, at all times, shall comply with all 


applicable federal, state and local laws 
and regulations. Export of the products 
covered by this quotation or acknow-
ledgment may be subject to export 
license control by the U.S. government. It 
is Buyer’s responsibility to obtain any 
licenses which may be required under the 
applicable laws of the U.S. including the 
Export Administration Act and regulations 
promulgated thereunder. 


 


9. Changes 


Any notice or instruction from the Buyer 


received subsequent to Seller’s acknow-
ledgment, including supplementary 
information contained in a confirming 
purchase order, which has the effect of 
changing the specifications, scope of 
work, or other terms, will be effective 
only upon an appropriate adjustment in 
the price and/or delivery date, and 
acceptance of any change by Seller in 
writing. 


 


10. Limited Warranty 
THE FOLLOWING IS IN LIEU OF ALL 
WARRANTIES EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR 
STATUTORY, INCLUDING, BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY 
OBLIGATION ON THE PART OF SELLER. 
 
Seller, except as otherwise hereinafter 
provided, warrants the goods against 
faulty workmanship or the use of 
defective materials, and that such goods 
will conform to Seller’s written 
specifications, drawings, and other 
descriptions for a period of two (2) years. 
Seller warrants that at the time of 
delivery, Seller has title to the goods free 
and clear of any and all liens and 
encumbrances. These warranties are the 
only warranties made by Seller and can 
be amended only by a written instrument 
signed by an officer of Seller. All 
warranties that Seller provides to Buyer 
are solely for Buyer’s benefit.  Buyer may 
not transfer or assign any of these 
warranties. 
  


Continued use or possession of goods 
after expiration of the applicable warranty 410/503







 
 
 
period stated above shall be conclusive 
evidence that the warranty is fulfilled to 
the full satisfaction of Buyer. Seller 
makes no warranty as to experimental or 
developmental goods or goods not 
manufactured by Seller, provided that as 
to goods not manufactured by Seller, 
Seller, to the extent permitted by Seller’s 
contact with its supplier, shall assign to 
Buyer any rights Seller may have under 
any warranty of the supplier thereof. 
 
Seller’s warranties as hereinabove set 
forth shall not be enlarged, diminished or 
affected by, and no obligation or liability 
shall arise or grow out of Seller’s 
rendering of technical advice or service in 
connection with Buyer’s order of the 
goods furnished hereunder. 
 


11. Product Application Indemnity 
Buyer agrees to indemnify and hold 
harmless Seller for all claims, whether 
arising in tort or contract, against Buyer 
and/or Seller, including Attorney’s fees, 
expenses and costs, arising out of the 
application of Seller’s products to Buyer’s 
designs and/or products, or Seller’s 
assistance in the application of Seller’s 
products. 
 
12. Exclusive Remedies 
If the goods furnished by Seller fail to 
conform to Seller’s exclusive limited 
warranty, Seller’s sole and exclusive 
liability shall be (at Seller’s option) to 
repair, replace or credit Buyer’s 
account for any such goods which are 
returned by Buyer during the applicable 
warranty period set forth above, provided 
that (i) Seller is promptly notified in 
writing upon discovery by Buyer that such 
goods failed to conform to this contract 
with a detailed explanation of any 
alleged deficiencies, (ii) such goods are 
returned to Seller, F.O.B. Seller’s plant, 
and (iii) Seller’s examination of such 
goods shall disclose to Seller’s satisfac-
tion that such alleged deficiencies actually 
exist and were not caused by accident, 
misuse, neglect, alteration, improper 
installation, unauthorized repair or 
improper testing. If such goods are non- 
conforming, Seller shall reimburse Buyer 
for the transportation charges paid by 
Buyer for such goods. If Seller elects to 
repair or replace such goods, Seller shall 
have a reasonable time to make such 
repairs or replace such goods. 
 
THIS IS THE SELLER’S ONLY LIABILITY 
AND BUYER’S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY FOR 
ANY CLAIM, WHETHER ARISING IN TORT 
OR CONTRACT, AND IN NO EVENT SHALL 
SELLER BE LIABLE FOR SPECIAL, COLLA-


TERAL, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL 
DAMAGES.  
 
13. Acceptance of Product 
Acceptance shall be presumed 
conclusively to have occurred thirty (30) 


 


days following delivery of product to 
Buyer, unless Buyer has accepted the 
product prior to that date. 


 


14. Patents 
Seller shall defend any suit or proceeding 
brought against Buyer insofar as such suit 
or proceeding is based on a claim that 
any goods manufactured and supplied by 
Seller to Buyer constitute direct 
infringement of any duly issued United 
States patent and Seller shall pay all 
damages and costs finally awarded 
therein against Buyer, provided that the 
Seller is promptly informed and furnished 
a copy of each communication, notice or 
other action relating to the alleged 
infringement and is given authority, 
information and assistance (at Seller’s 
expense) necessary to defend or settle 
said suit or proceeding. Seller shall not be 
obligated to defend or be liable for costs 
and damages if the infringement arises 
out of compliance with Buyer’s specifi -
cation(s), or from a combination with, an 
addition to, or a modification of the goods 
after delivery by Seller, or from use of 
the goods, or any part thereof, in the 
practice of a process. Seller’s obligations 
hereunder shall not apply to any 
infringement occurring after Buyer has 
received notice of such suit or proceeding 
alleging the infringement unless Seller 
has given written permission for such 
continuing infringement. 
 


If any goods manufactured and supplied 
by Seller to Buyer shall be held to infringe 
any United States patent and Buyer shall 
be enjoined from using the same, Seller 
will exert its reasonable efforts, at its 
option and at its expense, (i) to procure 
for Buyer the right to use such goods free 
of any liability for patent infringement or 
(ii) to replace such goods with a non-
infringing substitute otherwise complying 
substantially with all requirements of this 
contract or (iii) refund the purchase price 
and the transportation costs of such 
goods. 
 
If the infringement by Buyer is alleged 
prior to completion of delivery of the 
goods under this contract, Seller may 
decline to make further shipments 
without being in breach of this contract, 
and provided Seller has not been 
enjoined from selling said goods to Buyer, 
Seller agrees to supply said goods to 
Buyer, at Buyer’s option, whereupon the 
patent indemnity obligation herein stated 
with respect to Seller shall reciprocally 
apply with respect to Buyer.   
 
If any suit or proceeding is brought 
against Seller based on a claim that the 
goods manufactured by Seller in 
compliance with Buyer’s specifications 
and supplied to Buyer directly infringe 
any duly issued United States patent, 
then the patent indemnity obligations  
 


 
 
herein stated with respect to Seller shall 
reciprocally apply with respect to Buyer. 
 


The sale by Seller of the items ordered 


hereunder does not grant or convey or 
confer upon Buyer or Buyer’s customers, 
or upon anyone claiming under Buyer, a 
license, express or implied, under any 
patent rights of Seller covering or relating 
to any combination, machine or process 
in which said item might be or is used. 


 


THE FOREGOING STATES THE SOLE AND 
EXCLUSIVE LIABILITY OF SELLER FOR 
PATENT INFRINGEMENT AND IS IN LIEU 
OF ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS, IMPLIED 


OR STATUTORY, IN REGARD THERETO, 


AND IN NO EVENT SHALL SELLER BE 
LIABLE FOR SPECIAL, COLLATERAL, 
INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL 
DAMAGES. 


 


15. Termination and Cancellation 
a. Buyer may terminate this contract in 


whole, or from time to time, in part, 
upon thirty (30) days advance written 
notice to Seller. In such event, Buyer 
shall be liable for termination charges 
which shall include: a price adjustment 
based on the quantity of goods actually 
delivered and all cost, direct and 
indirect, incurred and committed for 
this contract; together with a 
reasonable allowance for prorated 
expenses and anticipated profits. 


b. If, in Seller’s judgment, the Buyer’s 
financial condition does not justify the 
terms of payment specified, Seller may 
cancel this contract unless Buyer shall 
immediately pay for all goods which 
have been delivered and pay in 
advance for all goods prior to delivery. 


 
16. Non-Waiver of Default and 
Collection Rights 
In the event of any default by Buyer, 
Seller may invoke any remedy provided 
by law or by the terms herein stated, and 
may decline to make further shipments or 
ask for payment ten (10) days prior to 
shipment. If Seller elects to continue to 
make shipments, Seller’s actions shall not 
constitute a waiver of any default by 
Buyer or in any way affect Seller’s legal 
remedies for any such default. 
 
In the event Seller resorts to a third party 
or to litigation in order to collect amounts 
due Seller, Buyer agrees to pay costs of 
collection for amount owed to Seller, 
including, but not limited to, attorney’s 
fees, court costs, and interest in the 
amount of 1% per month (12% per 


annum), from the date the amount is 
due. 


 
17. Applicable Law and Forum 
The validity, performance and construc-
tion of this contract shall be governed by 


411/503







 


 
the laws of the state in which Seller 
resides, as shown on the face hereof and 
such state shall be the only jurisdiction in 
which any suit may be brought against 
Seller regarding any dispute arising out 


of this transaction. 


 


18. U.S. Government Contracts 
If the goods to be furnished under this 
contract are to be used in the perform-
ance of a U.S. Government contract or 
subcontract, and a U.S. Government 
contract number shall appear on Buyer’s 
purchase order, those clauses of the 
applicable U.S. Government procurement 


regulations which are required by Federal 
Statute to be included in U.S. Govern-
ment subcontracts are incorporated 
herein by reference. 


 


19. Assignment 


This contract is binding upon and inures 


to the benefit of the parties and the 
successors and assigns of the entire 
business and goodwill of Buyer, or of that 
part of the business used in the perform- 
ance of this contract, but shall not be 
otherwise assignable, without the prior 
consent of Seller. 


 


20. Affidavits and Certificates 
No certificates of compliance, conform-
ance, or chemical analysis shall be 
provided unless Buyer’s detailed 
requirements are stated on the face of 
the Buyer’s order. Seller reserves the 


right to charge an additional fee for any 
such certificate. 


 


21. Sizes, Tolerances, Inspection and 
Samples 
Quotations are preferably made on the 
basis of Buyer’s prints. When quotations 
are made on the basis of samples or 
otherwise, the dimensions on which the  
quotation is based will be stated. USE OF, 
OR REFERENCE TO SAMPLES, SHALL NOT 
ENLARGE, AFFECT OR ALTER THE 
LIMITED AND EXCLUSIVE WARRANTY 
(PARAGRAPH 10) OR REMEDY 


(PARAGRAPH 12). 


 


Where Buyer requires samples from 
Seller to verify completion of fitting-up, 
Buyer will pay for such fitting-up within 
thirty (30) days after receipt of the 
samples, unless Buyer within such period 
gives Seller a detailed written description 
of any allowable variance from specifica- 
tions, in which case Buyer will promptly 
pay upon correction of such variances. 
 


The dimensions for quoting and manufac-
turing are the mean specifications and 
are subject to the normal tolerances for  


 


 


variations. 


 
22. Tools and Dies 
Unless otherwise provided herein, even 
though fitting-up charges may be 
specified, all tools and dies, including, 
without limitation, fixtures, gauges and 
assembly equipment manufactured for 
this contract, will be Seller’s property, but 
will be retained by Seller for Buyer’s non-
exclusive use; provided, however, that 
Seller may dispose of such tools and dies 
if Buyer does not order from Seller goods 
for manufacture there from within any 
one (1) year period. 
 
If any tools and dies manufactured by 
Seller are to become Buyer’s property, it 
must be specifically so provided on the 
face hereof. Any such tools and dies, or 
any materials, tools, dies and other 


equipment furnished by Buyer to Seller, 
shall be at Buyer’s sole risk and 
expense, and Seller shall not be liable for 
loss, damage, maintenance, repair or 
renewal, regardless of cause. If Buyer 
desires to withdraw such tools and dies 
from Seller’s plant, and if Seller consents 
to permit Buyer to withdraw them, for 
any reason, Buyer will first compensate 
Seller for any cost incurred with respect 
to them, including, without limitation, 
design and development costs. 


 


23. Severability of Terms 


If any phrase, clause or provision shall be 


declared void, the validity of any other 
provisions shall not be affected thereby. 


 


24. Release of Information 
Neither party hereto shall, without the 
prior written consent of the other party 
(which will not be unreasonably with-
held), publicly announce or otherwise 
disclose the existence of the terms 
publicity regarding this Agreement. This 
provision shall survive the expiration, 
termination or cancellation of this 
Agreement. 
 
25. Modification 


THESE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CONSTITUTE THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE PARTIES RELATING TO 
THE SALE OF THE GOODS DESCRIBED 
ON THE FACE HEREOF, AND NO 
ADDITION TO OR MODIFICATION OF ANY 
PROVISION HEREIN SHALL BE BINDING 
UPON SELLER UNLESS MADE IN WRITING 
AND SIGNED BY A DULY AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OF SELLER LOCATED 
AT SELLER’S APPROPRIATE ORDER 
ENTRY LOCATION 


 


  


 


 


412/503







New Business: Resolution 08-18-19 in Support of City of


SC Measure G


Separator Page


413/503







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 08-18-19 in Support of the November 6, 2018 Ballot 


Measure G Santa Cruz County Sales Tax Increase 
 
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Take action as appropriate. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Measure G one-half percent sales tax will provide funding for essential County services 
such as sheriff, fire, emergency response, local street maintenance and pothole repair, 
integrated mental health, substance use disorder and health care services, homelessness 
programs, parks, youth and senior programs, economic development and job creation, 
affording housing and other essential County services.  These essential services are important in 
supporting District students and families.  
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 
 


414/503







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
RESOLUTION 08-18-19 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT  
SUPPORTING THE NOVEMBER 6, 2018 BALLOT MEASURE G, AUTHORIZING A ONE-HALF CENT 


INCREASE ON THE SALES TAX ON TRANSACTIONS IN THE UNINCORPORATED AREA OF THE COUNTY 
FOR A PERIOD OF TWELVE YEARS 


  
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Santa Cruz County desire to submit to the voters of the County 
of Santa Cruz an election measure authorizing the Board to amend County Code to increase by one-
half cent for a period of twelve years the Retail Transactions and Use Tax (Sales Tax) for transactions in 
the unincorporated area of the County; and 


 
WHEREAS, the current Sales Tax in the unincorporated area was established in 1956 at 1.25% and has 
not been increased since; the current Sales Tax in the unincorporated area totals 8.5% and is lower 
than every city within the County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sales Tax will be enacted solely to raise revenue for the general governmental purposes 
of the County and not for purposes of regulation or of raising revenue for regulatory purposes, in that 
all of the proceeds from the tax shall be placed in the County’s general fund and be used for the usual 
current expenses of the County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz City Schools Board of Education has determined that it is in the best 
interests of the county and its residents to support Measure G authorizing this sales tax to provide 
funding for essential County services such as sheriff, fire, emergency response, local street 
maintenance and pothole repair, integrated mental health, substance use disorder and health care 
services, homelessness programs, parks, youth and senior programs, economic development and job 
creation, affording housing and other essential County services; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED THAT THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY 
SCHOOLS DISTRICT SUPPORTS THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ MEASURE G ON THE NOVEMBER 6, 2018 
BALLOT. 
  
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of September 2018, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
            
Claudia Vestal, Board President   Kris Munro, Board Clerk 
  


415/503







New Business: Resolution 09-18-19 in Support of City of


SC Measure H


Separator Page


416/503







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 09-18-19 in Support of the November 6, 2018 Ballot 


Measure H Santa Cruz County Housing Solution Bond 
 
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Take action as appropriate. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
If adopted by the voters, Measure H will provide $119 million to the local jurisdictions of Santa 
Cruz County to create affordable housing opportunities for local residents and workers. In 
addition, Measure H will also provide $21 million for the creation of facilities to address 
homelessness countywide.   
 
If passed, this measure would provide resources to support the development of workforce 
housing for Santa Cruz City Schools employees.   
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 
 


417/503







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
RESOLUTION 09-18-19 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT  


SUPPORTING THE NOVEMBER 6, 2018 BALLOT MEASURE H,  
THE SANTA CRUZ COUNTY HOUSING SOLUTIONS BOND 


  


WHEREAS, the affordable housing crisis in our county is well documented and has been reported in 
local and national media for many months; the crisis continues unabated. 
 
WHEREAS, the families of many students in our local schools have been directly impacted by the 
housing crisis. The high level of homelessness among local students is just one of many results of the 
housing crisis. Both homelessness and overcrowding affect student performance. 
 
WHEREAS, teachers and other school employees are also impacted by the crisis. This results in very 
high stress for employees and recruitment and retention challenges for local districts. 
 
WHEREAS, the primary source of affordable housing funds for past affordable housing development 
from local governments no longer exists due to the State’s action to end the Redevelopment program.  
 
WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz County Board of Supervisors voted unanimously to place the “Santa Cruz 
County Housing Solutions Bond”, now known as “Measure H.”, on the November ballot.  
 
WHEREAS, if adopted by the voters, Measure H will provide $119 million to the local jurisdictions of 
Santa Cruz County to create affordable housing opportunities for our local residents and workers. In 
addition, Measure H will also provide $21 million for the creation of facilities to address homelessness 
countywide. 
 
WHEREAS, the passage of Measure H will help thousands of Santa Cruz County residents, including 
many with children in our local schools, as it creates new affordable rental housing.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Santa Cruz City Schools Board of Education endorses 
Measure H and urges members of the education community of Santa Cruz County to support Measure 
H on the November 2018 election ballot. 
  


PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of September 2018, by the following vote: 


 


AYES:  
NOES:  


ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN: 
 


 


 


            


Claudia Vestal, Board President   Kris Munro, Board Clerk 


  


418/503







New Business: Resolution 10-18-19 in Support of


LGBQT+ Month


Separator Page


419/503







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 10-18-19 in Support of Celebrating the Month of 


October as LGBTQ+ History Month 
 
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Take action as appropriate 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Santa Cruz City Schools Board of Education supports the rights, freedoms and equality of 
those who are lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender and queer (LGBTQ+).  The Board also believes 
that all students deserve to feel safe and welcome in their schools and to see themselves 
represented in the curricula.  The Board has also adopted and supports the new Social Studies 
Framework, which includes the Fair, Accurate, Inclusive and Respectful (FAIR) Education Act.  
The FAIR Act mandates the inclusion of the political, economic, and social contributions of 
lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender and queer people in the social studies and history curricula 
in California public schools.   
 
In honor of the contributions of LGBTQ+ leaders, many districts are designating the Month of 
October as LGBTQ+ History Month.   
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


420/503







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
RESOLUTION 10-18-19 


            


Claudia Vestal, Board President   Kris Munro, Board Clerk 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT  


IN SUPPORT OF OCTOBER AS LGBTQ+ HISTORY MONTH 
 


WHEREAS, members of the Santa Cruz City Schools Board of Education support the rights, freedoms 
and equality of those who are lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender and queer (LGBTQ+);  
 
WHEREAS, all students deserve to feel safe and welcome in their schools and to see themselves 
represented in the curricula;   
 
WHEREAS, a number of LGBTQ+ historical events and people of all races have contributed to the 
history of equality for all people;  
 
WHEREAS, Sylvia Rivera and Martha P. Johnson were some of the significant individuals who stood up 
for LGBT Rights in the 1960s and at the Stonewall Riots in New York in 1969;  
 
WHEREAS, Harvey Milk was the first openly gay elected official in the history of California, and the 
passage of SB 572 (Leno) into law on October 11, 2009 officially recognizing May 22 as Harvey Milk Day 
in the State of California;  
 
WHEREAS, on April 8, 2003, the federal Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals ruled, in a case brought by local, 
Santa Clara County students (Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District, 324 F.3d 1130 [9th Cir. 
2003]), that school district staff were responsible for maintaining safe school environments and for 
equitable enforcement of nondiscrimination statutes and policies;  
 
WHEREAS, on July 14, 2011, the Fair, Accurate, Inclusive and Respectful (FAIR) Education Act was 
passed and signed into law that mandates the inclusion of the political, economic, and social 
contributions of lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender and queer people in the social studies and history 
curricula in California public schools;  
 
WHEREAS, on July 14, 2016, the State Board of Education passed a new History Social Science 
Framework that includes LGBTQ+ American history content to be taught in history and social science 
classrooms;   
 
WHEREAS, LGBTQ+ individuals continue to make noteworthy and important contributions to American 
history and society;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Santa Cruz City Schools celebrates the accomplishments of 
LGBTQ+ people in history, encourages all schools to celebrate October as LGBTQ+ History Month, and 
encourages teachers to teach lessons about LGBTQ+ history in their classrooms.   
  


PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of September 2018, by the following vote: 


 


AYES:     NOES:  


ABSENT:    ABSTAIN:  


421/503







New Business: Board Policy Updates – First and/or Final


Reading


Separator Page


422/503







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.4.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Board Policy Updates 
      
MEETING DATE:  September 26, 2018 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the revised/new policies as submitted for first and/or final reading and adoption.   


 
BACKGROUND: 
Policies are submitted through the GAMUT online board policy book updating process, which 
uses CSBA recommendations for review and change approximately six times per year in 
participating districts.  These recommendations reflect recent changes in education code 
and/or case law.  The policies have been reviewed by staff to ensure that any required 
customization for Santa Cruz City Schools has been included.   
 
The Policy Guidesheet provides a basic overview of the policy changes.  Proposed revised 
policies precede current documents for your review.  If a policy is submitted for deletion, there 
is no new policy for review.  If the policy is new to our district, there is no current policy for 
review.  
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


423/503







POLICY GUIDE SHEET 


May 2018 


Page 1 of 2 
 


 


 


 
BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 699) which (1) adds immigration status to the categories of 


characteristics that are protected against discrimination, (2) requires parent/guardian notification of their 


child's right to a free public education regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs, and (3) mandates 


that districts adopt policy consistent with a model policy developed by the California Attorney General, 


which includes a statement regarding equitable services. Policy also reflects provisions of the Attorney 


General's model policy and NEW LAW (SB 31) which prohibit districts from compiling or assisting in the 


compilation of a registry based on immigration status, religion, or other specified characteristics. 


 


BP 3514 - Environmental Safety 


(BP NEW to SCCS) 


Policy and regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 746) which provides that, if a community water 


system finds lead above specified levels in a school's potable water system, the district must notify 


parents/guardians, shut down fountains and faucets, and provide a source of drinking water to students. Policy 


also deletes details regarding district strategies that are duplicated in the AR.  


 


BP 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect legal requirements regarding toxic art and craft supplies, formerly in BP 6161.3 - 


Toxic Art Supplies. 


 


BP 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan 


(BP revised) 


Policy expands paragraph on the involvement of staff and community groups in plan development, consistent 


with U.S. Department of Education recommendation. Policy also adds training on staff responsibilities in an 


emergency or disaster, clarifies staff's legal obligation to serve as disaster service workers, and clarifies that 


board members are not considered disaster service workers.  


 


BP 4158/4258/4358 - Employee Security 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to add staff training on procedures for responding to an active shooter situation, condense 


options on pepper spray to recommend that any possession of pepper spray by employees require advance 


written permission, and reflect renumbering of legal cite pertaining to pepper spray.  


 


BP 5111 - Admission 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect state law prohibiting the collection of social security numbers or the last four digits 


of the social security numbers of students or their parents/guardians, unless otherwise required by law. Policy 


also reflects NEW LAW (AB 699) which prohibits districts from inquiring into students' citizenship or  


immigration status and the California Attorney General's model policy which provides that, under the limited 


circumstances when such information must be collected to comply with eligibility requirements for special  


state or federal programs, such information should be collected separately from the school enrollment 


process.  


 


 


 


424/503







 


POLICY GUIDE SHEET 


May 2018 


Page 2 of 2 
 


 


 


BP 5111.1 - District Residency 


(BP revised) 


Policy and regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 699) which prohibits districts from collecting 


information or documents regarding the citizenship or immigration status of students or their family 


members.  


 
BP 5125 - Student Records 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect the California Attorney General's model policy, developed pursuant to NEW LAW 


(AB 699), which (1) prohibits districts from collecting information regarding students' citizenship or 


immigration status, and (2) requires district staff to receive training in the gathering and handling of sensitive 


student information. Policy also reflects state law limiting the collection of students' social security numbers 


or the last four digits of the social security numbers, and NEW LAW (SB 31) which prohibits districts from 


assisting in the compilation of a list, registry, or database based on students' national origin, ethnicity, or 


religion.   


 


BP 5131.2 - Bullying 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 699) which requires districts to educate students about the negative 


impact of bullying based on actual or perceived immigration status or religious beliefs and customs. Policy 


also reflects the California Attorney General's model policy developed pursuant to AB 699, which requires 


staff training with specified components related to bullying prevention and response. 


 


BP 5145.3 – Nondiscrimination/Harassment 


(BP Revised) 


Minor revisions made in policy and regulation to reflect NEW LAW (AB 699) which prohibits 


discrimination based on immigration status. 


 


BP 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to define hate-motivated behavior and expand material related to collaboration, staff training, 


and enforcement of rules regarding student conduct. Policy also provides for the use of uniform complaint 


procedures when the behavior is determined to be based on unlawful discrimination. 


 


BP 6163.2 – Animals at School 


(New to SCCS) 


Policy is new to Santa Cruz City Schools and has been brought forward for adoption by Superintendent 


Munro. 


 


425/503







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities 
 


BP 0410  


Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 


 


The Governing Board is committed to providing equal opportunity for all individuals in district 


programs and activities. District programs, activities, and practices shall be free from unlawful 


discrimination, including discrimination against an individual or group based on race, color, 


ancestry, nationality, national origin, immigration status, ethnic group identification, ethnicity, 


age, religion, marital status, pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual 


orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or genetic information; a perception of 


one or more of such characteristics; or association with a person or group with one or more of 


these actual or perceived characteristics. 


 


(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 


(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 


(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 


(cf. 4033 - Lactation Accommodation) 


(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment) 


(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave) 


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 


(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 


(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 


(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 


(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 


(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 


(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 


(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 


 


All individuals shall be treated equitably in the receipt of district and school services. Personally 


identifiable information collected in the implementation of any district program, including, but 


not limited to, student and family information for the free and reduced-price lunch program, 


transportation, or any other educational program, shall be used only for the purposes of the 


program, except when the Superintendent or designee authorizes its use for another purpose in 


accordance with law. Resources and data collected by the district shall not be used, directly or by 


others, to compile a list, registry, or database of individuals based on race, gender, sexual 


orientation, religion, ethnicity, national origin, or immigration status or any other category 


identified above. 


 


426/503







(cf. 3540 - Transportation) 


(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 


(cf. 5145.13 - Response to Immigration Enforcement) 


 


District programs and activities shall be free of any racially derogatory or discriminatory school 


or athletic team names, mascots, or nicknames. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall annually review district programs and activities to ensure 


the removal of any derogatory or discriminatory name, image, practice, or other barrier that may 


unlawfully prevent an individual or group in any of the protected categories stated above from 


accessing district programs and activities. He/she shall take prompt, reasonable actions to 


remove any identified barrier. The Superintendent or designee shall report his/her findings and 


recommendations to the Board after each review. 


 


(cf. 1330 - Use of Facilities) 


 


All allegations of unlawful discrimination in district programs and activities shall be investigated 


and resolved in accordance with the procedures specified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint 


Procedures. 


 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


 


Pursuant to 34 CFR 104.8 and 34 CFR 106.9, the Superintendent or designee shall notify 


students, parents/guardians, employees, employee organizations, applicants for admission and 


employment, and sources of referral for applicants about the district's policy on 


nondiscrimination and related complaint procedures. Such notification shall be included in the 


annual parental notification distributed pursuant to Education Code 48980 and, as applicable, in 


announcements, bulletins, catalogs, handbooks, application forms, or other materials distributed 


by the district. The notification shall also be posted on the district's web site and social media 


and in district schools and offices, including staff lounges, student government meeting rooms, 


and other prominent locations as appropriate. 


 


(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 


(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 


(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 


(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


 


In addition, the annual parental notification shall inform parents/guardians of their children's 


right to a free public education regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs, including 


information on educational rights issued by the California Attorney General. Alternatively, such 


information may be provided through any other cost-effective means determined by the 


Superintendent or designee.  (Education Code 234.7) 


 


The district's nondiscrimination policy and related informational materials shall be published in a 


format that parents/guardians can understand. In addition, when 15 percent or more of a school's 


students speak a single primary language other than English, those materials shall be translated 


427/503







into that other language. 


 


Access for Individuals with Disabilities 


 


District programs and facilities, viewed in their entirety, shall be in compliance with the 


Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and any implementing standards and/or regulations. 


When structural changes to existing district facilities are needed to provide individuals with 


disabilities access to programs, services, activities, or facilities, the Superintendent or designee 


shall develop a transition plan that sets forth the steps for completing the changes. 


 


(cf. 6163.2 - Animals at School) 


(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 


(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district provides appropriate auxiliary aids 


and services when necessary to afford individuals with disabilities equal opportunity to 


participate in or enjoy the benefits of a service, program, or activity. These aids and services may 


include, but are not limited to, qualified interpreters or readers, assistive listening devices, 


assistive technologies or other modifications to increase accessibility to district and school web 


sites, notetakers, written materials, taped text, and Braille or large-print materials. Individuals 


with disabilities shall notify the Superintendent or principal if they have a disability that requires 


special assistance or services. Reasonable notification should be given prior to a school-


sponsored function, program, or meeting. 


 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 


(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 


 


The individual identified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures as the employee 


responsible for coordinating the district's response to complaints and for complying with state 


federal civil rights laws is hereby designated as the district's ADA coordinator. He/she shall 


receive and address requests for accommodation submitted by individuals with disabilities, and 


shall investigate and resolve complaints regarding their access to district programs, services, 


activities, or facilities. 


 


Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 


133 Mission Street, Suite 100 


Santa Cruz, CA 95060 


831-429-3410 x248 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


48980  Parental notifications 


428/503







48985  Notices to parents in language other than English 


51007  Legislative intent:  state policy 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


8310.3  California Religious Freedom Act 


11000  Definitions 


11135  Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state 


12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act 


54953.2  Brown Act compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act 


PENAL CODE 


422.55  Definition of hate crime 


422.6  Interference with constitutional right or privilege 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


4600-4670  Uniform complaint procedures 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1400-1482  Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act 


1681-1688  Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX 


2301-2414  Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act 


6311  State plans 


6312  Local education agency plans 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 


794  Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 


2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 


2000h-2000h-6  Title IX 


12101-12213  Americans with Disabilities Act 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.101-35.190  Americans with Disabilities Act 


36.303  Auxiliary aids and services 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


100.1-100.13  Nondiscrimination in federal programs, effectuating Title VI 


104.1-104.39  Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 


106.1-106.61  Discrimination on the basis of sex, effectuating Title IX, especially: 


106.9  Dissemination of policy 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Updated Legal Guidance:  Protecting Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students 


Against Sex Discrimination, July 2016 


CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies to 


Assist California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING PUBLICATIONS 


California Law Prohibits Workplace Discrimination and Harassment 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


429/503







Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Students, May 2016 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 


Dear Colleague Letter, May 26, 2011 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 


Notice of Non-Discrimination, Fact Sheet, August 2010 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Electronic Book Readers, June 29, 2010 


Nondiscrimination in Employment Practices in Education, August 1991 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS 


2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design, September 2010 


Accessibility of State and Local Government Websites to People with Disabilities, June 2003 


WORLD WIDE WEB CONSORTIUM PUBLICATIONS 


Web Content Accessibility Guidelines, December 2008 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Office of the Attorney General:  http://oag.ca.gov 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Department of Fair Employment and Housing:  http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 


Safe Schools Coalition:  http://www.casafeschools.org 


Pacific ADA Center:  http://www.adapacific.org 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 


U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Americans with Disabilities Act:  


http://www.ada.gov 


U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission:  http://www.eeoc.gov 


World Wide Web Consortium, Web Accessibility Initiative:  http://www.w3.org/wai 


 


 


 


 


430/503







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities 
 


BP 0410  


Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 


 


The Governing Board is committed to providing equal opportunity for all individuals in 


education. District programs, activities, and practices shall be free from unlawful discrimination, 


including discrimination against an individual or group based on race, color, ancestry, 


nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital, pregnancy, or 


parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity or 


expression, or genetic information; a perception of one or more of such characteristics; or 


association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. 


 


(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 


(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 


(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 


(cf. 4033 - Lactation Accommodation) 


(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment) 


(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave) 


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 


(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 


(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 


(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 


(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 


(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 


(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 


(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 


 


District programs and activities shall also be free of any racially derogatory or discriminatory 


school or athletic team names, mascots, or nicknames. 


 


Annually, the Superintendent or designee shall review district programs and activities to ensure 


the removal of any derogatory or discriminatory name, image, practice, or other barrier that may 


unlawfully prevent an individual or group in any of the protected categories stated above from 


accessing district programs and activities. He/she shall take prompt, reasonable actions to 


remove any identified barrier. The Superintendent or designee shall report his/her findings and 


recommendations to the Board after each review. 


 


(cf. 1330 - Use of Facilities) 


 


431/503







All allegations of unlawful discrimination in district programs and activities shall be investigated 


and resolved in accordance with the procedures specified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint 


Procedures. 


 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


 


Pursuant to 34 CFR 104.8 and 34 CFR 106.9, the Superintendent or designee shall notify 


students, parents/guardians, employees, employee organizations, applicants for admission and 


employment, and sources of referral for applicants about the district's policy on 


nondiscrimination and related complaint procedures. Such notification shall be included in each 


announcement, bulletin, catalog, handbook, application form, or other materials distributed to 


these groups and, as applicable, to the public. As appropriate, such notification shall be posted in 


district schools and offices, including staff lounges, student government meeting rooms, and 


other prominent locations and shall be posted on the district's web site and, when available, 


district-supported social media. 


 


(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 


(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 


(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 


(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


 


The district's nondiscrimination policy and related informational materials shall be published in a 


format that parents/guardians can understand. In addition, when 15 percent or more of a school's 


students speak a single primary language other than English, those materials shall be translated 


into that other language. 


 


Access for Individuals with Disabilities 


 


District programs and facilities, viewed in their entirety, shall be in compliance with the 


Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and any implementing standards and/or regulations. 


When structural changes to existing district facilities are needed to provide individuals with 


disabilities access to programs, services, activities, or facilities, the Superintendent or designee 


shall develop a transition plan that sets forth the steps for completing the changes. 


 


(cf. 6163.2 - Animals at School) 


(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 


(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district provides appropriate auxiliary aids 


and services when necessary to afford individuals with disabilities equal opportunity to 


participate in or enjoy the benefits of a service, program, or activity. These aids and services may 


include, but are not limited to, qualified interpreters or readers, assistive listening devices, 


assistive technologies or other modifications to increase accessibility to district and school web 


sites, notetakers, written materials, taped text, and Braille or large print materials. Individuals 


with disabilities shall notify the Superintendent or principal if they have a disability that requires 


special assistance or services. Reasonable notification should be given prior to a school-


432/503







sponsored function, program, or meeting. 


 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 


(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 


 


The individual identified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures as the employee 


responsible for coordinating the district's response to complaints and for complying with state 


and federal civil rights laws is hereby designated as the district's ADA coordinator. He/she shall 


receive and address requests for accommodation submitted by individuals with disabilities, and 


shall investigate and resolve complaints regarding their access to district programs, services, 


activities, or facilities. 


 


Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources - Personnel Issues 


405 Old San Jose Road 


Soquel, CA 95073 


(831) 429-3410 x233 


 


Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services - Student Issues 


405 Old San Jose Road 


Soquel, CA 95073 


(831) 429-3410 x248 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


48985  Notices to parents in language other than English 


51007  Legislative intent: state policy 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


11000  Definitions 


11135  Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state 


11138  Rules and regulations 


12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act 


54953.2  Brown Act compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act 


PENAL CODE 


422.55  Definition of hate crime 


422.6  Interference with constitutional right or privilege 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1400-1482  Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act 


1681-1688  Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX 


2301-2415  Carl D. Perkins Vocational and Applied Technology Act 


433/503







6311  State plans 


6312  Local education agency plans 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 


794  Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 


2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 


2000h-2000h-6  Title IX 


12101-12213  Americans with Disabilities Act 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.101-35.190  Americans with Disabilities Act 


36.303  Auxiliary aids and services 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


100.1-100.13  Nondiscrimination in federal programs, effectuating Title VI 


104.1-104.39  Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 


106.1-106.61  Discrimination on the basis of sex, effectuating Title IX, especially: 


106.9  Dissemination of policy 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Updated Legal Guidance: Protecting Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students Against 


Sex Discrimination, July 2016 


Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-


Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014 


Safe Schools:  Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING PUBLICATIONS 


California Law Prohibits Workplace Discrimination and Harassment 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Transgender Students, May 2016 


Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Students, May 2016 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 


Dear Colleague Letter: Electronic Book Readers, June 29, 2010 


Notice of Non-Discrimination, January 1999 


Protecting Students from Harassment and Hate Crime, January 1999 


Nondiscrimination in Employment Practices in Education, August 1991 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS 


2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design, September 2010 


Accessibility of State and Local Government Websites to People with Disabilities, June 2003 


WORLD WIDE WEB CONSORTIUM PUBLICATIONS 


Web Content Accessibility Guidelines, December 2008 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Department of Fair Employment and Housing: http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 


Safe Schools Coalition:  http://www.casafeschools.org 


434/503







Pacific ADA Center: http://www.adapacific.org 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 


U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Americans with Disabilities Act: 


http://www.ada.gov 


U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission: http://www.eeoc.gov 


World Wide Web Consortium, Web Accessibility Initiative: http://www.w3.org/wai 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  March 26, 2014 Soquel, California 


revised:  March 8, 2017 


435/503







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Environmental Safety 
 


BP 3514  


Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes its obligation to provide a safe and healthy environment at 


school facilities for students, staff, and community members. The Superintendent or designee 


shall regularly assess school facilities to identify environmental health risks and shall develop 


strategies to prevent and/or mitigate environmental hazards. He/she shall consider the proven 


effectiveness of various options, anticipated short-term and long-term costs and/or savings to the 


district, and the potential impact on staff and students, including the impact on student 


achievement and attendance. 


 


(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 


(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 


(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan) 


(cf. 3516.3 - Earthquake Emergency Procedure System) 


(cf. 3517 - Facilities Inspection) 


(cf. 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety) 


(cf. 5142 - Safety) 


(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings) 


 


Such strategies shall focus on maximizing healthy indoor air quality; monitoring the quality of 


outdoor air and adjusting outdoor activities as necessary; reducing exposure to vehicle emissions; 


minimizing exposure to lead and mercury; reducing the risk of unsafe drinking water; inspecting 


and properly abating asbestos; appropriately storing, using, and disposing of potentially 


hazardous substances; using effective least toxic pest management practices; reducing the risk of 


foodborne illness; and addressing any other environmental hazards identified during facilities 


inspections. 


 


(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations) 


(cf. 3513.3 - Tobacco-Free Schools) 


(cf. 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances) 


(cf. 3514.2 - Integrated Pest Management) 


(cf. 3516.5 - Emergency Schedules) 


(cf. 3540 - Transportation) 


(cf. 3541.1 - Transportation for School-Related Trips) 


(cf. 3542 - School Bus Drivers) 


(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 


(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management) 


(cf. 5141.7 - Sun Safety) 


436/503







(cf. 5142.2 - Safe Routes to School Program) 


(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 


(cf. 6163.2 - Animals at School) 


(cf. 7150 - Site Selection and Development) 


 


In developing strategies to promote healthy school environments, the Superintendent or designee 


may consult and collaborate with local environmental protection agencies, health agencies, water 


boards, and other community organizations. 


 


(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall provide the district's maintenance and facilities staff, bus 


drivers, food services staff, teachers, and other staff as appropriate with professional 


development regarding their responsibilities in implementing strategies to improve and maintain 


environmentally safe and healthy schools. 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall notify the Board, staff, parents/guardians, students, and/or 


governmental agencies, as appropriate, if an environmental hazard is discovered at a school site.  


The notification shall provide information about the district's actions to remedy the hazard and 


may recommend health screening of staff and students. 


 


(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


17002  Definition of "good repair" 


17070.75  Facilities inspection 


17582  Deferred maintenance fund 


17590  Asbestos abatement fund 


17608-17614  Healthy Schools Act of 2000, least toxic pest management practices 


32080-32081  Carbon monoxide devices 


32240-32245  Lead-Safe Schools Protection Act 


48980.3  Notification of pesticides 


49410-49410.7  Asbestos materials containment or removal 


FOOD AND AGRICULTURAL CODE 


11401-12408  Pest control operations and agricultural chemicals 


13180-13188  Healthy Schools Act of 2000, least toxic pest management practices 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


3543.2  Scope of representation; right to negotiate safety conditions 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


437/503







105400-105430  Indoor environmental quality 


113700-114437  California Retail Food Code, sanitation and safety requirements 


116277 Lead testing of potable water at schools and requirements to remedy 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


14010  Standards for school site selection 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8 


337-339  Hazardous substances list 


340-340.2  Occupational safety and health, rights of employees 


1528-1537  Construction safety orders; exposure to hazards 


5139-5223  Control of hazardous substances 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 13 


2025  Retrofitting of diesel school buses 


2480  Vehicle idling 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 


35001-36100  Lead abatement services 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 22 


64670-64679  Lead and copper in drinking water 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 24 


915.1-915.7 California Building Standards Code; carbon monoxide devices 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 7 


136-136y  Use of pesticides 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 15 


2601-2629  Control of toxic substances 


2641-2656   Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


1758  Food safety and inspections 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 40 


141.1-141.723  Drinking water standards 


745.61-745.339  Lead-based paint standards 


763.80-763.99  Asbestos-containing materials in schools 


763.120-763.123  Asbestos worker protections 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Indoor Air Quality:  Governing Board Actions for Creating Healthy School Environments, 


Policy Brief, July 2008 


Asthma Management in the Schools, Policy Brief, March 2008 


Food Safety Requirements, Fact Sheet, October 2007 


Sun Safety in Schools, Policy Brief, July 2006 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


School Site Selection and Approval Guide, 2000 


Indoor Air Quality, A Guide for Educators, 1995 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH SERVICES PUBLICATIONS 


Report to the Legislature:  Lead Hazards in California's Public Elementary Schools and Child 


Care Facilities, April 1998 


CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:  AIR RESOURCES BOARD 


438/503







PUBLICATIONS 


Facts about Truck and Bus Regulation School Bus Provisions, rev. March 22, 2011 


CALIFORNIA STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD PUBLICATIONS 


Frequently Asked Questions about Lead Testing of Drinking Water in California Schools; 


Updated for Assembly Bill 746/Health and Safety Code 116277, December 15, 2017 


DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT PUBLICATIONS 


K-12 Occupancy Classification and Load Factors, IR A-26, rev. April 18, 2012 


U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY PUBLICATIONS 


A Citizen's Guide to Radon:  The Guide to Protecting Yourself and Your Family from Radon, 


2016 


Healthy School Environments Assessment Tool, rev. 2015 


Indoor Air Quality Tools for Schools, rev. 2009 


Mold Remediation in Schools and Commercial Buildings, September 2008 


The ABCs of Asbestos in Schools, rev. August 2003 


How to Manage Asbestos in School Buildings:  AHERA Designated Person's Self-Study Guide, 


1996 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


AirNow:  http://www.airnow.gov 


American Association of School Administrators:  http://www.aasa.org 


California Air Resources Board:  http://www.arb.ca.gov 


California Building Standards:  http://www.bsc.ca.gov/codes.aspx 


California Department of Education, Health and Safety:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/fa/hs 


California Department of Pesticide Regulation:  http://www.cdpr.ca.gov 


California Department of Public Health:  http://www.cdph.ca.gov 


California State Water Resources Control Board:  http://www.waterboards.ca.gov 


Centers for Disease Control and Prevention:  http://www.cdc.gov 


Consumer Product Safety Commission:  http://www.cpsc.gov 


National Center for Environmental Health:  http://www.cdc.gov/nceh 


Occupational Safety and Health Administration:  http://www.osha.gov 


U.S. Environmental Protection Agency:  http://www.epa.gov 


 


 


 


439/503







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Hazardous Substances 
 


BP 3514.1  


Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 


 


 


The Governing Board desires to provide a safe school environment that protects students and 


employees from exposure to any potentially hazardous substances used in the district's 


educational program and in the maintenance and operation of district facilities and equipment. 


 


(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety) 


(cf. 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42 - Exposure Control Plan for Bloodborne Pathogens) 


(cf. 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety) 


(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 


(cf. 5142 - Safety) 


 


Insofar as reasonably possible, the Superintendent or designee shall minimize the quantities of 


hazardous substances stored and used on school property. When hazardous substances must be 


used, the Superintendent or designee shall give preference to materials that cause the least risk to 


people and the environment. 


 


(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations) 


(cf. 3514.2 - Integrated Pest Management) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all potentially hazardous substances on district 


properties are inventoried, used, stored, and regularly disposed of in a safe and legal manner. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall develop, implement, and maintain a written hazard 


communication program in accordance with 8 CCR 5194 and shall ensure that employees, 


students, and others as necessary are fully informed about the properties and potential hazards of 


substances to which they may be exposed. 


 


(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall develop specific measures to ensure the safety of students 


and staff in school laboratories where hazardous chemicals are used. Such measures shall include 


the development and implementation of a chemical hygiene plan in accordance with 8 CCR 5191 


and instruction to students about proper handling of hazardous substances. 


 


(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction) 


 


 


440/503







The Superintendent or designee shall not order or purchase for use in grades K-6 any arts and 


crafts materials containing a substance determined by the California Office of Environmental 


Health Hazard Assessment to be toxic. The Superintendent or designee shall not purchase any 


such toxic material for use in grades 7-12 unless it includes a warning label as specified in 


Education Code 32065 that identifies any toxic ingredients, warns of potential adverse health 


effects, and describes procedures for safe use and storage.  (Education Code 32064) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


32060-32066  Toxic art supplies in schools 


49340-49341  Hazardous substances education 


49401.5  Legislative intent; consultation services 


49411  Chemical listing; compounds used in school programs; determination of shelf life; 


disposal 


FOOD AND AGRICULTURAL CODE 


12981  Regulations re pesticides and worker safety 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


25163  Transportation of hazardous wastes; registration; exemptions; inspection 


25500-25520  Hazardous materials release response plans; inventory 


108100-108515 California Hazardous Substances Act 


LABOR CODE 


6360-6363  Hazardous Substances Information and Training Act 


6380-6386  List of hazardous substances 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8 


339  List of hazardous substances 


3203  Illness and injury prevention program 


3204  Records of employee exposure to toxic or harmful substances 


5139-5230  Control of hazardous substances, especially 


5154.1-5154.2 Ventilation 


5161  Definitions 


5162  Emergency eyewash and shower equipment 


5163  Control of spills 


5164  Storage of hazardous substances 


5191  Occupational exposure to hazardous chemicals in laboratories; chemical hygiene plan 


5194  Hazard communication 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 22 


67450.40-67450.49  School hazardous waste collection, consolidation, and accumulation 


facilities 


 


Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Science Safety Handbook for California Public Schools, 2012 


CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH HAZARD ASSESSMENT 


PUBLICATIONS 


441/503







Art and Craft Materials in Schools:  Guidelines for Purchasing and Safe Use, September 17, 


2016 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://cde.ca.gov 


California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment:  http://www.oehha.ca.gov 


Department of Industrial Relations, Cal/OSHA:  http://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh 


 


 


 


442/503







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Hazardous Substances 
 


BP 3514.1  


Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 


 


The Governing Board desires to provide a safe school environment that protects students and 


employees from exposure to potentially hazardous substances that may be used in the district's 


educational program and in the maintenance and operation of district facilities and equipment. 


 


(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety) 


(cf. 4119.42/4219.42/4219.42 - Exposure Control Plan for Bloodborne Pathogens) 


(cf. 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety) 


(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 


(cf. 5142 - Safety) 


(cf. 6161.3 - Toxic Art Supplies) 


 


Insofar as reasonably possible, the Superintendent or designee shall minimize the quantities of 


hazardous substances stored and used on school property.  When hazardous substances must be 


used, the Superintendent or designee shall give preference to materials that cause the least risk to 


people and the environment. 


 


(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations) 


(cf. 3514.2 - Integrated Pest Management) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all potentially hazardous substances on district 


properties are inventoried, used, stored, and regularly disposed of in a safe and legal manner. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall develop, implement, and maintain a written hazard 


communication program in accordance with 8 CCR 5194 and shall ensure that employees, 


students, and others as necessary are fully informed about the properties and potential hazards of 


substances to which they may be exposed. 


 


(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall develop specific measures to ensure the safety of students 


and staff in school laboratories where hazardous chemicals are used. Such measures shall include 


the development and implementation of a chemical hygiene plan in accordance with 8 CCR 5191 


and instruction to students about proper handling of hazardous substances. 


 


(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction) 


 


 


443/503







 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


49340-49341  Hazardous substances education 


49401.5  Legislative intent; consultation services 


49411  Chemical listing; compounds used in school programs; determination of shelf life; 


disposal 


FOOD AND AGRICULTURAL CODE 


12981  Regulations re pesticides and worker safety 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


25163  Transportation of hazardous wastes; registration; exemptions; inspection 


25500-25520  Hazardous materials release response plans; inventory 


LABOR CODE 


6360-6363  Hazardous Substances Information and Training Act 


6380-6386  List of hazardous substances 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8 


339  List of hazardous substances 


3203  Illness and injury prevention program 


3204  Records of employee exposure to toxic or harmful substances 


5139-5230  Control of hazardous substances, especially 


5154.1-5154.2 Ventilation 


5161  Definitions 


5162  Emergency eyewash and shower equipment 


5163  Control of spills 


5164  Storage of hazardous substances 


5191  Occupational exposure to hazardous chemicals in laboratories; chemical hygiene plan 


5194  Hazard communication 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 22 


67450.40-67450.49  School hazardous waste collection, consolidation, and accumulation 


facilities 


 


Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Science Safety Handbook for California Public Schools, 2012 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education: http://cde.ca.gov 


Department of Industrial Relations, Cal/OSHA: http://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  June 19, 2013 Soquel, California 


444/503







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan 
 


BP 3516  


Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 


 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that all district staff and students must be prepared to respond 


quickly and responsibly to emergencies, disasters, and threats of disaster. The district shall take 


all reasonable steps to prevent and/or mitigate the impact of a disaster on district students, staff, 


and schools. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall develop and maintain a disaster preparedness plan which 


contains routine and emergency disaster procedures, including, but not limited to, earthquake 


emergency procedures, and adaptations for individuals with disabilities in accordance with the 


Americans with Disabilities Act. Such procedures shall be incorporated into the comprehensive 


school safety plan.  (Education Code 32282) 


 


(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 3516.3 - Earthquake Emergency Procedure System) 


 


In developing the disaster preparedness plan, the Superintendent or designee shall involve 


district staff at all levels, including administrators, facilities managers, transportation managers, 


food services personnel, school psychologists, counselors, school nurses, teachers, classified 


employees. As appropriate, he/she shall also collaborate with law enforcement, fire safety 


officials, emergency medical services, health and mental health professionals, parents/guardians, 


and students. 


 


(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 


(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 


(cf. 3513.3 - District Police/Security Department) 


 


The plan shall comply with state-approved Standardized Emergency Management System 


(SEMS) guidelines established for multiple-jurisdiction or multiple-agency operations and with 


the National Incident Management System. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to employees regarding their 


responsibilities, including periodic drills and exercises to test and refine staff's responsiveness in 


the event of an emergency. 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


445/503







(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


The Board shall grant the use of school buildings, grounds, and equipment to public agencies, 


including the American Red Cross, for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other 


emergencies affecting the public health and welfare. The Board shall cooperate with such 


agencies in furnishing and maintaining whatever services the district may deem necessary to 


meet the community's needs.  (Education Code 32282) 


 


(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities) 


 


District employees are considered disaster service workers and are subject to disaster service 


activities assigned to them.  (Government Code 3100) 


 


(cf. 4112.3/4212.3/4312.3 - Oath or Affirmation) 


(cf. 4119.3/4219.3/4319.3 - Duties of Personnel) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


32001  Fire alarms and drills 


32040  Duty to equip school with first aid kit 


32280-32289  School safety plans 


32290  Safety devices 


39834 Operating overloaded bus 


46390-46392  Emergency average daily attendance in case of disaster 


49505 Natural disaster; meals for homeless students; reimbursement 


CIVIL CODE 


1714.5  Release from liability for disaster service workers and shelters 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


3100-3109  Public employees as disaster service workers; oath or affirmation 


8607 Standardized emergency management system 


CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 


Article 20, Section 3  Oath or affirmation 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


550  Fire drills 


560  Civil defense and disaster preparedness plans 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 19 


2400-2450  Standardized emergency management system 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act 


 


Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Crisis Response Box, 2000 


CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES PUBLICATIONS 


446/503







Active Shooter Awareness Guidance, February 2018 


State of California Emergency Plan, 2017 


School Emergency Response:  Using SEMS at Districts and Sites, June 1998 


FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY PUBLICATIONS 


National Incident Management System, 3rd ed., October 2017 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Guide for Developing High-Quality School Emergency Operations Plans, 2013 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


American Red Cross:  http://www.redcross.org 


California Attorney General's Office:  http://oag.ca.gov 


California Department of Education, Crisis Preparedness:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/cp 


California Governor's Office of Emergency Services:  http://www.caloes.ca.gov 


California Seismic Safety Commission:  http://www.seismic.ca.gov 


Centers for Disease Control and Prevention:  http://www.cdc.gov 


Federal Emergency Management Agency:  http://www.fema.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Emergency Planning:  


http://www2.ed.gov/admins/lead/safety/crisisplanning.html 


U.S. Department of Homeland Security:  http://www.dhs.gov 


 


 


 


447/503







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan 
 


BP 3516  


Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that all district staff and students must be prepared to respond 


quickly and responsibly to emergencies, disasters, and threats of disaster. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall develop and maintain a disaster preparedness plan which 


details provisions for handling emergencies and disasters and which shall be included in the 


district's comprehensive school safety plan.  (Education Code 32282) 


 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 3516.3 - Earthquake Emergency Procedure System) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall also develop and maintain emergency plans for each school 


site. 


 


In developing the district and school emergency plans, the Superintendent or designee shall 


collaborate with city and county emergency responders, including local public health 


administrators. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall use state-approved Standardized Emergency Management 


System guidelines and the National Incident Command System when updating district and site-


level emergency and disaster preparedness plans. 


 


The Board shall grant the use of school buildings, grounds, and equipment to public agencies, 


including the American Red Cross, for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other 


emergencies affecting the public health and welfare.  The Board shall cooperate with such 


agencies in furnishing and maintaining whatever services they deem necessary to meet the 


community's needs.  (Education Code 32282) 


 


(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities) 


 


School employees are considered disaster service workers and are subject to disaster service 


activities assigned to them. (Government Code 3100) 


 


(cf. 4112.3/4212.3/4312.3 - Oath or Affirmation) 


(cf. 4119.3/4219.3/4319.3 - Duties of Personnel) 


 


 


 


448/503







Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


32001  Fire alarms and drills 


32040  Duty to equip school with first aid kit 


32280-32289  School safety plans 


32290  Safety devices 


39834 Operating overloaded bus 


46390-46392  Emergency average daily attendance in case of disaster 


49505 Natural disaster; meals for homeless students; reimbursement 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


3100  Public employees as disaster service workers 


8607 Standardized emergency management system 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


550  Fire drills 


560  Civil defense and disaster preparedness plans 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 19 


2400-2450  Standardized emergency management system 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Avian Influenza, Governance and Policy Services Fact Sheet, April 2006 


911!  A Manual for Schools and the Media During a Campus Crisis, 2001 


CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION PUBLICATIONS 


Pandemic Influenza Planning Checklist, 2006 


CONTRA COSTA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 


Pandemic Flu School Action Kit, June 2006 


GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 


School Emergency Response:  Using SEMS at Districts and Sites, June 1998 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Practical Information on Crisis Planning: A Guide for Schools and Communities, May 2003 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


American Red Cross:  http://www.redcross.org 


California Department of Education, Crisis Preparedness:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/cp 


California Emergency Management Agency:  http://www.calema.ca.gov 


California Seismic Safety Commission:  http://www.seismic.ca.gov 


Centers for Disease Control and Prevention:  http://www.cdc.gov 


Contra Costa County Office of Education, Pandemic influenza resources: 


http://www.cccoe.k12.ca.us/about/flu/resources_flu_action_kit 


Federal Emergency Management Agency: http://www.fema.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Emergency Planning: 


http://www.ed.gov/admins/lead/safety/emergencyplan 


U.S. Department of Homeland Security: http://www.dhs.gov 


 


449/503







 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


450/503







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Employee Security 
 


BP 4158 4258, 4358 


Personnel 
 


 


The Governing Board desires to provide a safe and orderly work environment for all employees.  


As part of the district's comprehensive safety plan, the Superintendent or designee shall develop 


strategies for protecting employees from potentially dangerous persons and situations and for 


providing necessary assistance and support when emergency situations occur. 


 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 3515 - Campus Security) 


(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances) 


 


Any employee against whom violence or any threat of violence has been directed in the 


workplace shall notify the Superintendent or designee immediately. As appropriate, the 


Superintendent or designee shall initiate legal and security measures to protect the employee and 


others in the workplace. 


 


The Superintendent or designee may pursue legal action on behalf of an employee against a 


student or his/her parent/guardian to recover damages to the employee or his/her property caused 


by the student's willful misconduct that occurred on district property, at a school or district 


activity, or in retaliation for lawful acts of the employee in the performance of his/her duties.  


(Education Code 48904, 48905) 


 


(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 


(cf. 3515.4 - Recovery for Property Loss or Damage) 


(cf. 4156.3/4256.3/4356.3 - Employee Property Reimbursement) 


(cf. 5125.2 - Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees receive training in crisis prevention 


and intervention techniques in order to protect themselves and students. Staff development may 


include training in classroom management, effective communication techniques, procedures for 


responding to an active shooter situation, and crisis resolution. 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


The Superintendent or designee also shall inform teachers, in accordance with law, of crimes and 


offenses committed by students who may pose a danger in the classroom.  (Education Code 


48201, 49079; Welfare and Institutions Code 827) 


451/503







 


The Superintendent or designee may make available at appropriate locations, including, but not 


limited to, district and school offices, gyms, and classrooms, communication devices that would 


enable two-way communication with law enforcement and others when emergencies occur. 


 


(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies) 


 


Use of Pepper Spray 


 


Employees shall not carry or possess pepper spray on school property or at school activities. 


(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


 


Reporting of Injurious Objects 


 


The Board requires employees to take immediate action upon being made aware that any person 


is in possession of a weapon or unauthorized injurious object on school grounds or at a school-


related or school-sponsored activity.  The employee shall use his/her own judgment as to the 


potential danger involved and shall do one of the following: 


 


1. Immediately notify the principal or designee, who shall take appropriate action 


 


2. In the event of inherent danger, immediately call 911 and the principal 


 


(cf. 3515.7 - Firearms on School Grounds) 


(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments) 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


32210-32212  Willful disturbance, public schools or meetings 


32225-32226  Communication devices 


35208  Liability insurance 


35213  Reimbursement for loss, destruction or damage of school property 


44014  Report of assault by pupil against school employee 


44807  Duty concerning conduct of students 


48201  Transfer of student records 


48900-48926  Suspension or expulsion 


49079  Notification to teacher; student who has engaged in acts re:  grounds suspension or 


expulsion 


49330-49335  Injurious objects 


CIVIL CODE 


51.7  Freedom from violence or intimidation 


452/503







CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 


527.8  Workplace violence safety 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


995-996.4  Defense of public employees 


3543.2  Scope of representation 


PENAL CODE 


71  Threatening public officers and employees and school officials 


240-246.3  Assault and battery, especially: 


241.3  Assault against school bus drivers 


241.6  Assault on school employee including board member 


243.3  Battery against school bus drivers 


243.6  Battery against school employee including board member 


245.5  Assault with deadly weapon against school employee including board member 


290  Registration of sex offenders 


601  Trespass by person making credible threat 


626-626.11  School crimes 


646.9  Stalking 


22810  Purchase, possession, and use of tear gas 


WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 


827  Juvenile court proceedings; reports; confidentiality 


828.1  District police or security department, disclosure of  juvenile records 


COURT DECISIONS 


City of San Jose v. William Garbett, (2010) 190 Cal. App. 4th 526 


 


Management Resources: 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education, Safe Schools and Violence Prevention Office:  


http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss 


 


 


 


 (7/01  3/11)  5/18 


453/503







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Employee Security 
 


BP 4158  


Personnel 
 


 


The Governing Board desires to provide a safe, orderly working environment for all employees.  


As part of the district's comprehensive school safety plan, the Superintendent or designee shall 


develop strategies for protecting employees from potentially dangerous persons and situations 


and for assisting them in the event of an emergency situation. 


 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 3515 - Campus Security) 


(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees are informed, in accordance with 


law, regarding crimes and offenses by students who may pose a danger in the classroom. 


 


When violence is directed against an employee by any individual and the employee so notifies 


the Superintendent or designee, the Superintendent or designee shall take steps to ensure that 


appropriate legal measures are instituted.  When the employee notifies the Superintendent or 


designee of a threat of bodily harm, the district shall take appropriate measures to enable the 


employee to request assistance if a threat occurs on school grounds. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees are trained in crisis prevention and 


intervention techniques in order to protect themselves and students.  Staff development may 


include training in classroom management, effective communication techniques and crisis 


resolution. 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


The Board recognizes that access to two-way communications devices allows employees to call 


for assistance from their supervisor or law enforcement in the event of a threat of violence or 


medical emergency.  The district shall provide such communications devices in classrooms to 


the extent possible. 


 


(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies) 


 


Employees may possess pepper spray that meets the requirements of Penal Code 1203.7 on 


school property at school activities for their own safety. Any employee who is negligent or 


careless in the possession or handling of pepper spray shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary 


454/503







measures. 


 


(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


 


Reporting of Injurious Objects 


 


The Board requires school employees to take immediate action upon being made aware that any 


person is in possession of an injurious object on school grounds or at a school-related or school-


sponsored activity. The employee shall use his/her own judgment as to the dangerousness of the 


situation and, based upon this analysis, shall do one of the following: 


 


1. Confiscate the object and deliver it to the principal immediately 


 


2. Immediately notify the principal, who shall take appropriate action 


 


3. Immediately notify the local law enforcement agency and the principal 


 


(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments) 


(cf. 5144. - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


 


When informing the principal about the possession or seizure of a weapon or dangerous device, 


the employee shall report the name(s) of persons involved, witnesses, location, and the 


circumstances of any seizure. 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


32210-32212  Willful disturbance, public schools or meetings 


32225-32226  Communication devices 


35204  Contract with attorney in private practice or use of administrative advisor 


35205  Contract for legal services 


35208  Liability insurance 


35213  Reimbursement for loss, destruction or damage of school property 


44014  Report of assault by pupil against school employee 


44807  Duty concerning conduct of students 


48201  Transfer of student records 


48900-48926  Suspension or expulsion  Grounds for suspension or expulsion 


49079  Notification to teacher; student who has engaged in acts constituting grounds for 


suspension or expulsion 


49330-49335 Injurious objects 


CIVIL CODE 


51.7  Freedom from violence or intimidation 


455/503







CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 


527.8  Workplace violence safety act 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


995-996.4  Defense of public employees 


3543.2  Scope of representation 


PENAL CODE 


71  Threatening public officers and employees and school officials 


240  Definition of assault 


241.2  Assault on school or park property against any person 


241.3  Assault against school bus drivers 


241.6  Assault on school employee includes board member 


242  Definition of battery 


243  Battery; definition of "injury" and "serious bodily injury" 


243.2  Battery on school or park property against any person 


243.3  Battery against school bus drivers 


243.6  Battery against school employee includes board member 


245.5  Assault with deadly weapon; school employee includes board member 


290  Registration of sex offenders 


601  Trespass by person making credible threat 


626.9  Gun-Free School Zone Act of 1995 


626.10  Exceptions to bringing weapons on school grounds 


646.9  Stalking 


12403.7  Weapons approved for self defense 


WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 


827  Juvenile court proceedings; reports; confidentiality 


828.1  District police or security department, disclosure of  juvenile records 


 


Management Resources: 


CDE CORRESPONDENCE 


0401.01  Protecting Student Identification in Reporting Injurious Objects 


WEB SITES 


California Department of Education, Safe Schools and Violence Prevention Office:  


http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/ 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  May 25, 2011 Soquel, California 


456/503







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Admission 
 


BP 5111  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board encourages the enrollment and appropriate placement of all school-aged 


children in school. The Superintendent or designee shall inform parents/guardians of children 


seeking admission to a district school at any grade level about admission requirements and shall 


assist them with enrollment procedures. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall announce and publicize the timeline and process for 


registration of students at district schools. Applications for intradistrict or interdistrict enrollment 


shall be subject to the timelines specified in applicable Board policies and administrative 


regulations. 


 


(cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 


(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 


(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 


(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment) 


(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 


(cf. 5118 - Open Enrollment Act Transfers) 


 


All appropriate staff shall receive training on district admission policies and procedures, 


including information regarding the types of documentation that can and cannot be requested. 


 


The district's enrollment application shall include information about the health care options and 


enrollment assistance available to families within the district. The district shall not discriminate 


against any child for not having health care coverage and shall not use any information relating 


to a child's health care coverage or his/her interest in learning about health care coverage in any 


manner that would harm the child or his/her family.  (Education Code 49452.9) 


 


Verification of Admission Eligibility 


 


Before enrolling any child in a district school, the Superintendent or designee shall verify the 


child's age, residency, immunization, and other applicable eligibility criteria specified in law, the 


accompanying administrative regulation, or other applicable Board policy or administrative 


regulation. 


 


(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 


(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations) 


457/503







(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry) 


The district shall not inquire into or request documentation of a student's social security number 


or the last four digits of the social security number or the citizenship or immigration status of the 


student or his/her family members.  (Education Code 234.7, 49076.7) 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 5145.13 - Response to Immigration Enforcement) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


 


However, such information may be collected when required by state or federal law or to comply 


with requirements for special state or federal programs. In any such situation, the information 


shall be collected separately from the school enrollment process and the Superintendent or 


designee shall explain the limited purpose for which the information is collected. Enrollment in a 


district school shall not be denied on the basis of any such information of the student or his/her 


parents/guardians obtained by the district, or the student's or parent/guardian's refusal to provide 


such information to the district. 


 


School registration information shall list all possible means of documenting a child's age for 


grades K-1 as authorized by Education Code 48002 or otherwise prescribed by the Board. Any 


alternative document allowed by the district shall be one that all persons can obtain regardless of 


immigration status, citizenship status, or national origin and shall not reveal information related 


to citizenship or immigrant status. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall immediately enroll a homeless student, foster youth, 


student who has had contact with the juvenile justice system, or a child of a military family 


regardless of outstanding fees or fines owed to the student's last school, lack of clothing normally 


required by the school, such as school uniforms, or his/her inability to produce previous 


academic, medical, or other records normally required for enrollment.  (Education Code 


48645.5, 48850, 48852.7, 48853.5, 49701; 42 USC 11432) 


 


(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 


(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 


(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 


(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students) 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


234.7  Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status 


46300  Computation of average daily attendance, inclusion of kindergarten and transitional 


kindergarten 


46600  Agreements for admission of students desiring interdistrict attendance 


48000  Minimum age of admission (kindergarten) 


48002  Evidence of minimum age required to enter kindergarten or first grade 


48010  Minimum age of admission (first grade) 


48011  Admission from kindergarten or other school; minimum age 


48050-48053  Nonresidents 


458/503







48200  Children between ages of 6 and 18 years (compulsory full-time education) 


48350-48361  Open Enrollment Act 


48645.5  Enrollment of former juvenile court school students 


48850-48859 Educational placement of homeless and foster youth 


49076  Access to records by persons without written consent or under judicial order 


49076.7  Student records; data privacy; social security numbers 


49408  Information of use in emergencies 


49452.9  Health care coverage options and enrollment assistance 


49700-49703 Education of children of military families 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


120325-120380  Education and child care facility immunization requirements 


121475-121520  Tuberculosis tests for students 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


200  Promotion from kindergarten to first grade 


201  Admission to high school 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 


6000-6075  School attendance immunization requirements 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 5 


552a Note  Refusal to disclose social security number 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


11431-11435  McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 


COURT DECISIONS 


Plyler v. Doe, 457 U.S. 202 (1982) 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education, Regardless of 


Immigration Status, February 2017 


CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies to 


Assist California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION AND U.S. DEPARTMENT OF 


EDUCATION OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS JOINT PUBLICATIONS 


Dear Colleague Letter:  School Enrollment Procedures, May 8, 2014 


Fact Sheet:  Information on the Rights of All Children to Enroll in School, May 8, 2014 


Information on the Rights of All Children to Enroll in School:  Questions and Answers for 


States, School Districts and Parents, May 8, 2014 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education, Health Care Coverage and Enrollment Assistance:  


http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/hc 


California Office of the Attorney General:  http://oag.ca.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  


http://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 


U.S. Department of Justice:  http://www.justice.gov 


 


459/503







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Admission 
 


BP 5111  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board encourages the enrollment and appropriate placement of all school-aged 


children in school. The Superintendent or designee shall inform parents/guardians of children 


entering a district school at any grade level about admission requirements and shall assist them 


with enrollment procedures. 


 


Before enrolling any child in a district school, the Superintendent or designee shall verify the 


child's age, residency, immunization, and other applicable eligibility criteria specified in law, the 


accompanying administrative regulation, or other applicable Board policy or administrative 


regulation. 


 


(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 


(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations) 


(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the enrollment of a homeless or foster child or a 


child of a military family is not delayed because of outstanding fees or fines owed to the child's 


last school or for his/her inability to produce previous academic, medical, or other records 


normally required for enrollment. 


 


(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 


(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 


(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 


 


In addition, no child shall be denied enrollment in a district school solely on the basis of his/her 


arrest, adjudication by a juvenile court, formal or informal supervision by a probation officer, 


detention in a juvenile facility, enrollment in a juvenile court school, or other contact with the 


juvenile justice system.  (Education Code 48645.5) 


 


(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts) 


(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall not inquire into or request documentation of a student's 


citizenship or immigration status, and shall not deny a student enrollment in a district school on 


the basis of the citizenship or immigration status of the student or his/her parents/guardians. Any 


information obtained about a student's or parent/guardian's citizenship or immigration status shall 


460/503







not be shared without parent/guardian consent or a lawful judicial order, in accordance with laws 


pertaining to the confidentiality of student records. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


 


A student shall not be denied enrollment based on the parent/guardian's refusal to provide the 


student's or parent/guardian's social security number. During the enrollment process, students 


and parents/guardians shall be informed that disclosure of their social security number is 


voluntary.  (5 USC 552a Note) 


 


When enrolling in any district school, including a school in their attendance area, children whose 


parents/guardians reside within district boundaries shall be subject to the timelines established by 


the Board for open enrollment. Children whose parents/guardians do not reside within the district 


or who are not otherwise eligible for enrollment in the district may apply for interdistrict 


attendance in accordance with the timelines specified in applicable Board policies and 


administrative regulations. 


 


(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment) 


(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 


(cf. 5118 - Open Enrollment Act Transfers) 


 


The district's enrollment application shall include information about the health care options and 


enrollment assistance available to families within the district. The district shall not discriminate 


against any child for not having health care coverage and shall not use any information relating 


to a child's health care coverage or his/her interest in learning about health care coverage in any 


manner that would harm the child or his/her family.  (Education Code 49452.9) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


46300  Computation of average daily attendance, inclusion of kindergarten and transitional 


kindergarten 


46600  Agreements for admission of students desiring interdistrict attendance 


48000  Minimum age of admission (kindergarten) 


48002  Evidence of minimum age required to enter kindergarten or first grade 


48010  Minimum age of admission (first grade) 


48011  Admission from kindergarten or other school; minimum age 


48050-48053  Nonresidents 


48200  Children between ages of 6 and 18 years (compulsory full-time education) 


48350-48361  Open Enrollment Act 


48850-48859 Educational placement of homeless and foster youth 


48645.5  Enrollment of former juvenile court school students 


49076  Access to records by persons without written consent or under judicial order 


49408  Information of use in emergencies 


461/503







49452.9  Health care coverage options and enrollment assistance 


49700-49704  Education of children of military families 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


120325-120380  Education and child care facility immunization requirements 


121475-121520  Tuberculosis tests for students 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


200  Promotion from kindergarten to first grade 


201  Admission to high school 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 


6000-6075  School attendance immunization requirements 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 5 


552a Note  Refusal to disclose social security number 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


11431-11435  McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 


COURT DECISIONS 


Plyler v. Doe, 457 U.S. 202 (1982) 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education, Regardless of 


Immigration Status, February 2017 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION AND U.S. DEPARTMENT OF 


EDUCATION OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS JOINT PUBLICATIONS 


Fact Sheet:  Information on the Rights of All Children to Enroll in School 


Dear Colleague Letter:  School Enrollment Procedures, May 8, 2014 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  


http://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 


U.S. Department of Justice:  http://www.justice.gov 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


revised:  September 13, 2017 


462/503







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


District Residency 
 


BP 5111.1  


Students 
 


 


 


The Governing Board desires to admit all students who reside within district boundaries or who 


fulfill the district residency requirements through other means as allowed by law. The 


Superintendent or designee shall develop procedures to facilitate the receipt and verification of 


students' proof of residency. 


 


(cf. 5116 - School Attendance Boundaries) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall annually notify parents/guardians of all existing attendance 


options available in the district, including, but not limited to, all options for meeting residency 


requirements for school attendance.  (Education Code 48980) 


 


(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment) 


(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 


(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall require parents/guardians to provide documentation of the 


student's residency upon admission to a district school. A copy of the document or written 


statement offered as verification of residency shall be maintained in the student's mandatory 


permanent record.  (5 CCR 432) 


 


(cf. 5111 - Admission) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


 


When establishing students' residency for enrollment purposes, the Superintendent or designee 


shall not inquire into the citizenship or immigration status of students or their family members. 


 


(cf. 5145.13 - Response to Immigration Enforcement) 


 


A student's enrollment may be denied when the submitted documentation is insufficient to 


establish district residency. In any such case, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the 


parent/guardian in writing, including specific reasons for the denial. 


 


Investigation of Residency 


 


When the Superintendent or designee reasonably believes that a student's parent/guardian has 


provided false or unreliable evidence of residency, he/she may make reasonable efforts to 


463/503







determine that the student meets district residency requirements. An investigation may be 


initiated when the Superintendent or designee is able to identify specific, articulable facts 


supporting the belief that the parent/guardian has provided false or unreliable evidence of 


residency.  (Education Code 48204.1, 48204.2) 


 


The Superintendent or designee may assign a trained district employee to conduct the 


investigation. The investigation may include the examination of records, including public 


records, and/or interviews of persons who may have knowledge of the student's residency. 


 


If necessary, the Superintendent or designee may employ the services of a private investigator to 


conduct the investigation. Before hiring a private investigator, the Superintendent or designee 


shall make other reasonable efforts to determine whether the student resides in the district.  


(Education Code 48204.2) 


 


The investigation shall not include the surreptitious collection of photographic or videographic 


images of persons or places subject to the investigation. However, the use of technology is not 


prohibited if done in open and public view.  (Education Code 48204.2) 


 


Any employee or contractor engaged in the investigation shall truthfully identify himself/herself 


as an investigator to individuals contacted or interviewed during the course of the investigation.  


(Education Code 48204.2) 


 


Appeal of Enrollment Denial 


 


If the Superintendent or designee, upon investigation, determines that a student does not meet 


district residency requirements and denies the student's enrollment in the district, he/she shall 


provide the student's parent/guardian an opportunity to appeal that determination.  (Education 


Code 48204.2) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall send the student's parent/guardian written notice specifying 


the basis for the district's determination. This notice shall also inform the parent/guardian that 


he/she may, within 10 school days, appeal the decision and provide new evidence of residency. 


 


The burden shall be on the parent/guardian to show why the district's determination to deny 


enrollment should be overruled.  (Education Code 48204.2) 


 


A student who is currently enrolled in the district shall be allowed to remain in attendance at 


his/her school pending the results of the appeal. A student who is not currently enrolled in the 


district shall not be permitted to attend any district school unless his/her appeal is successful. 


 


In an appeal to the Superintendent of a determination that district residency requirements were 


not met, the Superintendent shall review any evidence provided by the parent/guardian or 


obtained during the district's investigation and shall make a decision within 10 school days of 


receipt of the parent/guardian's request for the appeal. The Superintendent's decision shall be 


final. 


 


464/503







Enrollment Not Requiring District Residency 


 


When approved by the Board and the appropriate agency, the district may enroll students from 


other countries who are in the United States on an F-1 visa or are participating in an international 


exchange program under the sponsorship of a government-approved agency. 


 


(cf. 5111.2 - Nonresident Foreign Students) 


(cf. 6145.6 - International Exchange) 


 


The district may enroll a nonresident student living in an adjoining state or foreign country in 


accordance with Education Code 48050-48052. 


 


District residency is not required for enrollment in a regional occupational center or program if 


there are openings in the program or class.  (Education Code 52317) 


 


(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


220  Prohibition of discrimination 


234.7  Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status 


35160.5  Intradistrict open enrollment 


35351  Assignment of students to particular schools 


46600-46611  Interdistrict attendance permits 


48050-48054  Nonresidents 


48200-48208  Compulsory education law, especially: 


48204  Residency requirements 


48204.1-48204.4 Evidence of residency 


48300-48317 Student attendance alternatives, school district of choice program 


48350-48361  Open Enrollment Act transfers 


48645.5  Former juvenile court school students, enrollment 


48852.7  Education of homeless students; immediate enrollment 


48853.5  Education of foster youth; immediate enrollment 


48980  Notifications at beginning of term 


52317  Regional occupational program, admission of persons including nonresidents 


FAMILY CODE 


6550-6552  Caregivers 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


6205-6210  Confidentiality of residence for victims of domestic violence 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


432  Retention of student records 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 8 


1229c  Immigration and Nationality Act 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


465/503







11431-11435  McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 


COURT DECISIONS 


Katz v. Los Gatos-Saratoga Joint Union High School District, (2004) 117 Cal.App.4th 47 


Plyler v. Doe, 457 U.S. 202 (1982) 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education, Regardless of 


Immigration Status, February 2017 


Legal Guidance Regarding International Student Exchange Placement Organizations, April 2014 


CALIFORNIA ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE PUBLICATIONS 


Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies to 


Assist California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION AND U.S. DEPARTMENT OF 


EDUCATION OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS JOINT PUBLICATIONS 


Dear Colleague Letter:  School Enrollment Procedures, May 8, 2014 


Fact Sheet:  Information on the Rights of All Children to Enroll in School, May 8, 2014 


Information on the Rights of All Children to Enroll in School:  Questions and Answers for 


States, School Districts and Parents, May 8, 2014 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Office of the Attorney General:  http://oag.ca.gov 


California Secretary of State, Safe at Home Program:  http://www.sos.ca.gov/safeathome 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www2.ed.gov/ocr 


U.S. Department of Justice:  http://www.justice.gov 


 


 


 


  


466/503







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


District Residency 
 


BP 5111.1  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board desires to admit all students who reside within district boundaries or who 


fulfill the district residency requirements through other means as allowed by law. The 


Superintendent or designee shall develop procedures to facilitate the receipt and verification of 


students' proof of residency. 


 


(cf. 5116 - School Attendance Boundaries) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall annually notify parents/guardians of all existing attendance 


options available in the district, including, but not limited to, all options for meeting residency 


requirements for school attendance.  (Education Code 48980) 


 


(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment) 


(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 


(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall require parents/guardians to provide documentation of the 


student's residency upon admission to a district school. A copy of the document or written 


statement offered as verification of residency shall be maintained in the student's mandatory 


permanent record.  (5 CCR 432) 


 


(cf. 5111 - Admission) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


 


When establishing a student's residency for enrollment purposes, the Superintendent or designee 


shall not inquire into a student's citizenship or immigration status. 


 


A student's enrollment may be denied when the submitted documentation is insufficient to 


establish district residency. In any such case, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the 


parent/guardian in writing, including specific reasons for the denial. 


 


Investigation of Residency 


 


When the Superintendent or designee reasonably believes that a student's parent/guardian has 


provided false or unreliable evidence of residency, he/she may make reasonable efforts to 


determine that the student meets district residency requirements. An investigation may be 


initiated when the Superintendent or designee is able to identify specific, articulable facts 


supporting the belief that the parent/guardian has provided false or unreliable evidence of 


467/503







residency.  (Education Code 48204.1, 48204.2) 


 


The Superintendent or designee may assign a trained district employee to conduct the 


investigation.  The investigation may include the examination of records, including public 


records, and/or interviews of persons who may have knowledge of the student's residency. 


 


If necessary, the Superintendent or designee may employ the services of a private investigator to 


conduct the investigation. Before hiring a private investigator, the Superintendent or designee 


shall make other reasonable efforts to determine whether the student resides in the district.  


(Education Code 48204.2) 


 


The investigation shall not include the surreptitious collection of photographic or videographic 


images of persons or places subject to the investigation. However, the use of technology is not 


prohibited if done in open and public view.  (Education Code 48204.2) 


 


Any employee or contractor engaged in the investigation shall truthfully identify himself/herself 


as an investigator to individuals contacted or interviewed during the course of the investigation.  


(Education Code 48204.2) 


 


Appeal of Enrollment Denial 


 


If the Superintendent or designee, upon investigation, determines that a student does not meet 


district residency requirements and denies the student's enrollment in the district, he/she shall 


provide the student's parent/guardian an opportunity to appeal that determination.  (Education 


Code 48204.2) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall send the student's parent/guardian written notice specifying 


the basis for the district's determination. This notice shall also inform the parent/guardian that 


he/she may, within 10 school days, appeal the decision and provide new evidence of residency. 


 


The burden shall be on the parent/guardian to show why the district's determination to deny 


enrollment should be overruled.  (Education Code 48204.2) 


 


A student who is currently enrolled in the district shall be allowed to remain in attendance at 


his/her school pending the results of the appeal. A student who is not currently enrolled in the 


district shall not be permitted to attend any district school unless his/her appeal is successful. 


 


In an appeal to the Superintendent of a determination that district residency requirements were 


not met, the Superintendent shall review any evidence provided by the parent/guardian or 


obtained during the district's investigation and shall make a decision within 10 school days of 


receipt of the parent/guardian's request for the appeal. The Superintendent's decision shall be 


final. 


 


Enrollment Not Requiring District Residency 


 


When approved by the Board and the appropriate agency, the district may enroll students from 


468/503







other countries who are in the United States on an F-1 visa or are participating in an international 


exchange program under the sponsorship of a government-approved agency. 


 


(cf. 5111.2 - Nonresident Foreign Students) 


(cf. 6145.6 - International Exchange) 


 


The district may enroll a nonresident student living in an adjoining state or foreign country in 


accordance with Education Code 48050-48052. 


 


District residency is not required for enrollment in a regional occupational center or program if 


there are openings in the program or class.  (Education Code 52317) 


 


(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


220  Prohibition of discrimination 


35160.5  Intradistrict open enrollment 


35351  Assignment of students to particular schools 


46600-46611  Interdistrict attendance permits 


48050-48054  Nonresidents 


48200-48208  Compulsory education law, especially: 


48204  Residency requirements 


48204.1-48204.2 Evidence of residency 


48300-48316  Student attendance alternatives, school district of choice program 


48350-48361  Open Enrollment Act transfers 


48852.7  Education of homeless students; immediate enrollment 


48853.5  Education of foster youth; immediate enrollment 


48980  Notifications at beginning of term 


52317  Regional occupational program, admission of persons including nonresidents 


FAMILY CODE 


6550-6552  Caregivers 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


6205-6210  Confidentiality of residence for victims of domestic violence 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


432  Retention of student records 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


11431-11435  McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 


COURT DECISIONS 


Katz v. Los Gatos-Saratoga Joint Union High School District, (2004) 117 Cal.App.4th 47 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education, Regardless of 


469/503







Immigration Status, February 2017 


Legal Guidance Regarding International Student Exchange Placement Organizations, April 2014 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION AND U.S. DEPARTMENT OF 


EDUCATION OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS JOINT PUBLICATIONS 


Fact Sheet:  Information on the Rights of All Children to Enroll in School 


Dear Colleague Letter:  School Enrollment Procedures, May 8, 2014 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Secretary of State, Safe at Home Program:  http://www.sos.ca.gov/safeathome 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www2.ed.gov/ocr 


U.S. Department of Justice:  http://www.justice.gov 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 10, 2016  Soquel, California 


revised:  September 13, 2017 


470/503







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Student Records 
 


BP 5125  


Students 
 


 


 


The Governing Board recognizes the importance of keeping accurate, comprehensive student 


records as required by law. The Superintendent or designee shall establish administrative 


regulations governing the identification, collection, retention, and security of student records. 


These regulations shall ensure the rights of authorized persons to have timely access to student 


records while maintaining the confidentiality of student records consistent with state and federal 


law. 


 


(cf. 3580 - District Records) 


(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology) 


(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 


(cf. 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall designate a certificated employee to serve as custodian of 


records with responsibility for student records at the district level. At each school, the principal 


or a certificated employee shall be designated as custodian of records for students enrolled at that 


school. The custodian of records shall be responsible for implementing Board policy and 


administrative regulation regarding student records.  (5 CCR 431) 


 


All appropriate personnel shall receive training regarding district policies and procedures for 


gathering and handling sensitive student information. 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


The district shall not collect or solicit social security numbers or the last four digits of social 


security numbers of students or their parents/guardians, unless otherwise required to do so by 


state or federal law.  (Education Code 49076.7) 


 


No information or documents regarding the citizenship or immigration status of students or their 


family members shall be collected, except as required by state or federal law or as required to 


administer a state or federally supported educational program. The Superintendent or designee 


shall not disclose student records to a person, agency, or organization for immigration 


enforcement purposes without parental consent, a court order, or a judicial subpoena. If a district 


employee receives such a request, he/she shall immediately report the request to the 


Superintendent. The Superintendent shall report the request to the Board in a timely manner that 


471/503







ensures the confidentiality and privacy of any potentially identifying information.  (Education 


Code 234.7) 


 


(cf. 5145.13 - Response to Immigration Enforcement) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall not compile a list, registry, or database based on students' 


national origin, ethnicity, or religious belief, practice, or affiliation, nor shall he/she disclose 


student information to federal government authorities for the purpose of compiling such a list, 


registry, or database for purposes of immigration enforcement.  Such information may only be 


compiled or exchanged with other local, state, or federal agencies if the information is 


aggregated and is not personally identifiable.  (Government Code 8310.3) 


 


Student Records from Social Media 


 


The Superintendent or designee may gather and maintain information from the social media of 


any district student, provided that the district first notifies students and parents/guardians about 


the proposed program, offers an opportunity for public comment at a regularly scheduled Board 


meeting, and gathers only information that directly pertains to school safety or student safety.  


(Education Code 49073.6) 


 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 


(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 


(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct) 


 


Contract for Digital Storage, Management, and Retrieval of Student Records 


 


The Superintendent or designee may enter into a contract with a third party for the digital 


storage, management, and retrieval of student records and/or to authorize a third party provider 


of digital software to access, store, and use student records, provided that the contract meets the 


requirements of Education Code 49073.1 and other applicable state and federal laws. 


 


(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


234.7  Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status 


17604  Contracts 


48201  Student records for transfer students who have been suspended/expelled 


48853.5  Foster youth; placement, immunizations 


48902  Notification of law enforcement of specified violations 


48904-48904.3  Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts 


48918  Rules governing expulsion procedures 


472/503







48980  Parental notifications 


48985  Notices in parent/guardian's primary language 


49060-49079  Student records 


49091.14  Parental review of curriculum 


51747  Independent study 


56041.5  Rights of students with disabilities 


56050  Surrogate parents 


56055  Foster parents 


69432.9  Cal Grant program; notification of grade point average 


BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE 


22580-22582  Digital privacy 


22584-22585  Student Online Personal Information Protection Act 


22586-22587  Early Learning Personal Information Protection Act 


CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 


1985.3  Subpoena duces tecum 


FAMILY CODE 


3025  Access to records by noncustodial parents 


6552  Caregiver's authorization affidavit 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


6252-6260  Inspection of public records 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


120440  Immunizations; disclosure of information 


PENAL CODE 


245  Assault with deadly weapon 


WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 


681  Truancy petitions 


701  Juvenile court law 


16010  Health and education records of a minor 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


430-438  Individual student records 


16020-16027  Destruction of records of school districts 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 


1232h  Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 26 


152  Definition of dependent child 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


11434a  McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act; definitions 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 16 


Part 312 Children's Online Privacy Protection Rule 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


99.1-99.67  Family Educational Rights and Privacy 


300.501  Opportunity to examine records for parents of student with disability 


 


 


 


473/503







Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education, Regardless of 


Immigration Status, February 2017 


CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies to 


Assist California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018 


FEDERAL REGISTER 


Final Rule and Analysis of Comments and Changes, Family Educational Rights and Privacy, 


December 9, 2008, Vol. 73, No. 237, pages 74806-74855 


NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS 


Data in the Cloud:  A Legal and Policy Guide for School Boards on Student Data Privacy in the 


Cloud Computing Era, April 2014 


U.S.  DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


IDEA and FERPA Confidentiality Provisions, 2014 


Joint Guidance on the Application of the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 


and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) to Student Health 


Records, 2008 


Balancing Student Privacy and School Safety:  A Guide to the Family Educational Rights and 


Privacy Act for Elementary and Secondary Schools, October 2007 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


National School Boards Association:  http://www.nsba.org 


U.S. Department of Education, Family Policy Compliance, 


http://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco 


 


 


 


474/503







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Student Records 
 


BP 5125  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes the importance of keeping accurate, comprehensive student 


records as required by law.   The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's 


administrative regulation and school site procedures for maintaining the confidentiality of 


student records are consistent with state and federal law. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall establish regulations governing the identification, 


description, and security of student records, as well as timely access for authorized persons.  


These regulations shall ensure parental rights to review, inspect, and copy student records and 


shall protect the student and his/her family from invasion of privacy. 


 


(cf. 3580 - District Records) 


(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology) 


(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 


(cf. 5125.2 - Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts) 


(cf. 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall designate a certificated employee to serve as custodian of 


records with responsibility for student records at the district level.  At each school, the principal 


or a certificated designee shall act as custodian of records for students enrolled at that school.  


The custodian of records shall be responsible for implementing Board policy and administrative 


regulation regarding student records.  (5 CCR 431) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


48201  Student records for transfer students who have been suspended/expelled 


48904-48904.3  Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts 


48918  Rules governing expulsion procedures 


49060-49079  Student records 


49091.14  Parental review of curriculum 


51747  Independent study programs 


56050  Surrogate parents 


56055  Foster parents 


CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 


1985.3  Subpoena duces tecum 


FAMILY CODE 


475/503







3025  Access to records by noncustodial parents 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


6252-6260  Inspection of public records 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


120440  Immunizations; disclosure of information 


WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 


681  Truancy petitions 


16010  Health and education records of a minor 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


430-438  Individual student records 


16020-16027  Destruction of records of school districts 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


99.1-99.67  Family Educational Rights and Privacy 


300.501  Opportunity to examine records for parents of student with disability 


 


Management Resources: 


FEDERAL REGISTER 


Final Rule and Analysis of Comments and Changes, Family Educational Rights and Privacy, 


December 9, 2008, Vol. 73, No. 237, pages 74806-74855 


U.S.  DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Joint Guidance on the Application of FERPA and HIPAA to Student Health Records, November 


2008 


WEB SITES 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Family Policy Compliance Office, 


http://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco/index.html 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


476/503







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Bullying 
 


BP 5131.2  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on student learning and school 


attendance and desires to provide a safe school environment that protects students from physical 


and emotional harm. District employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall 


not tolerate bullying of any student. 


 


No individual or group shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually 


harass, threaten, intimidate, retaliate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence 


against any student or school personnel. 


 


(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 


(cf. 5136 - Gangs) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 


 


Cyberbullying includes the electronic creation or transmission of harassing communications, 


direct threats, or other harmful texts, sounds, or images as defined in Education Code 48900.  


Cyberbullying also includes breaking into another person's electronic account and assuming that 


person's identity in order to damage that person's reputation. 


 


(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression) 


(cf. 6163.4 - Student Use of Technology) 


 


Strategies for addressing bullying in district schools shall be developed with involvement of key 


stakeholders, including students, parents/guardians, and staff, and may be incorporated into the 


comprehensive safety plan, the local control and accountability plan, and other applicable district 


and school plans. 


 


(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 


(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


 


As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee may collaborate with law enforcement, courts, 


social services, mental health services, other agencies, and community organizations in the 


development and implementation of joint strategies to promote safety in schools and the 


477/503







community and to provide services for alleged victims and perpetrators of bullying. 


 


(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 


 


Bullying Prevention 


 


To the extent possible, district schools shall focus on the prevention of bullying by establishing 


clear rules for student conduct and implementing strategies to promote a positive, collaborative 


school climate. Students shall be informed, through student handbooks and other appropriate 


means, of district and school rules related to bullying, mechanisms available for reporting 


incidents or threats, and the consequences for engaging in bullying. 


 


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 


 


As appropriate, the district shall provide students with instruction, in the classroom or other 


educational settings, that promotes social-emotional learning, effective communication and 


conflict resolution skills, character/values education, respect for cultural and individual 


differences, self-esteem development, assertiveness skills, and appropriate online behavior. 


 


(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 


(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 


 


Such instruction shall also educate students about the negative impact of bullying, 


discrimination, intimidation, and harassment based on actual or perceived immigration status, 


religious beliefs and customs, or any other individual bias or prejudice. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to teachers and other school staff to raise 


their awareness about the legal obligation of the district and its employees to prevent 


discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying of district students.  Such training shall 


be designed to provide staff with the skills to: 


 


1. Discuss the diversity of the student body and school community, including their varying 


immigration experiences 


 


2. Discuss bullying prevention strategies with students, and teach students to recognize the 


behavior and characteristics of bullying perpetrators and victims 


 


3. Identify the signs of bullying or harassing behavior 


 


4. Take immediate corrective action when bullying is observed 


 


5. Report incidents to the appropriate authorities, including law enforcement in instances of 


criminal behavior 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


478/503







(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


Based on an assessment of bullying incidents at school, the Superintendent or designee may 


increase supervision and security in areas where bullying most often occurs, such as classrooms, 


playgrounds, hallways, restrooms, and cafeterias. 


 


Intervention 


 


Students are encouraged to notify school staff when they are being bullied or suspect that another 


student is being victimized. In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall develop means for 


students to report threats or incidents confidentially and anonymously. 


 


School staff who witness an act of bullying shall immediately intervene to stop the incident when 


it is safe to do so.  (Education Code 234.1) 


 


When appropriate based on the severity or pervasiveness of the bullying, the Superintendent or 


designee shall notify the parents/guardians of victims and perpetrators and may contact law 


enforcement. 


 


The Superintendent, principal, or principal's designee may refer a victim, witness, perpetrator, or 


other student affected by an act of bullying to a school counselor, school psychologist, social 


worker, child welfare attendance personnel, school nurse, or other school support service 


personnel for case management, counseling, and/or participation in a restorative justice program 


as appropriate.  (Education Code 48900.9) 


 


(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 


 


Reporting and Filing of Complaints 


 


Any student, parent/guardian, or other individual who believes that a student has been subjected 


to bullying or who has witnessed bullying may report the incident to a teacher, the principal, a 


compliance officer, or any other available school employee. Within one business day of 


receiving such a report, a staff member shall notify the principal of the report, whether or not a 


uniform complaint is filed. In addition, any school employee who observes an incident of 


bullying involving a student shall, within one business day, report his/her observation to the 


principal or a district compliance officer, whether or not the alleged victim files a complaint. 


 


 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


 


When the circumstances involve cyberbullying, individuals with information about the activity 


shall be encouraged to save and print any electronic or digital messages that they feel constitute 


cyberbullying and to notify a teacher, the principal, or other employee so that the matter may be 


investigated. When a student uses a social networking site or service to bully or harass another 


student, the Superintendent or designee may file a request with the networking site or service to 


suspend the privileges of the student and to have the material removed. 


479/503







 


The student who is the alleged victim of the bullying shall be given an opportunity to describe 


the incident, identify witnesses who may have relevant information, and provide other evidence 


of bullying. 


 


Investigation and Resolution of Complaints 


 


Any complaint of bullying shall be investigated and, if determined to be discriminatory, resolved 


in accordance with law and the district's uniform complaint procedures specified in AR 1312.3. 


 


If, during the investigation, it is determined that a complaint is about nondiscriminatory bullying, 


the principal or designee shall inform the complainant and shall take all necessary actions to 


resolve the complaint. 


 


Discipline 


 


Corrective actions for a student who commits an act of bullying of any type may include 


counseling, behavioral intervention and education, and, if the behavior is severe or pervasive as 


defined in Education Code 48900, may include suspension or expulsion in accordance with 


district policies and regulations. 


 


(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation) 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students) 


 


Any employee who permits or engages in bullying or retaliation related to bullying shall be 


subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. 


 


(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards) 


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


32282  Comprehensive safety plan 


32283.5  Bullying; online training 


35181  Governing board policy on responsibilities of students 


35291-35291.5  Rules 


48900-48925  Suspension or expulsion 


48985  Translation of notices 


52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 


480/503







PENAL CODE 


422.55  Definition of hate crime 


647  Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy; misdemeanor 


647.7  Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy; punishment 


653.2  Electronic communication devices, threats to safety 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 47 


254  Universal service discounts (e-rate) 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 


106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 


110.25  Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age 


COURT DECISIONS 


Wynar v. Douglas County School District, (2013) 728 F.3d 1062 


J.C. v. Beverly Hills Unified School District, (2010) 711 F.Supp.2d 1094 


Lavine v. Blaine School District, (2002) 279 F.3d 719 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Final Guidance:  AB 1266, Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students, Privacy, 


Programs, Activities & Facilities, Legal Guidance, March 2014 


Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-


Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014 


Addressing the Conditions of Children:  Focus on Bullying, Governance Brief, December 2012 


Safe Schools:  Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 


Building Healthy Communities:  A School Leaders Guide to Collaboration and Community 


Engagement, 2009 


Cyberbullying:  Policy Considerations for Boards, Policy Brief, July 2007 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


California's Social and Emotional Learning:  Guiding Principles, 2018 


Health Education Content Standards for California Public Schools:  Kindergarten Through 


Grade Twelve, 2008 


Bullying at School, 2003 


CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies to 


Assist California K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


Guidance to Schools:  Bullying of Students with Disabilities, October 2014 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Bullying of Students with Disabilities, August 2013 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Guidance on Schools' Obligations to Protect Students from Student-on-


Student Harassment on the Basis of Sex; Race, Color and National Origin; and Disability, 


October 26, 2010 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 


481/503







WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education, Safe Schools Office:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss 


California Office of the Attorney General:  http://oag.ca.gov 


Center on Great Teachers and Leaders:  http://gtlcenter.org 


Collaborative for Academic Social and Emotional Learning:  http://casel.org 


Common Sense Media:  http://www.commonsensemedia.org 


National School Safety Center:  http://www.schoolsafety.us 


Partnership for Children and Youth:  http://www.partnerforchildren.org 


U.S. Department of Education:  http://www.ed.gov 


 


 


 


  


482/503







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Bullying 
 


BP 5131.2  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on student learning and school 


attendance and desires to provide safe school environments that protect students from physical 


and emotional harm. District employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall 


not tolerate bullying of any student. 


 


No individual or group shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually 


harass, threaten, intimidate, retaliate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence 


against any student or school personnel. 


 


(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 


(cf. 5136 - Gangs) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 


 


Cyberbullying includes the creation or transmission of harassing communications, direct threats, 


or other harmful texts, sounds, or images on the Internet, social media, or other technologies 


using a telephone, computer, or any wireless communication device.  Cyberbullying also 


includes breaking into another person's electronic account and assuming that person's identity in 


order to damage that person's reputation. 


 


(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression) 


 


Strategies for addressing bullying in district schools shall be developed with involvement of key 


stakeholders, including students, parents/guardians, and staff, and may be incorporated into the 


comprehensive safety plan, the local control and accountability plan, and other applicable district 


and school plans. 


 


(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 


(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 


(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


 


As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee may collaborate with law enforcement, courts, 


social services, mental health services, other agencies, and community organizations in the 


483/503







development and implementation of joint strategies to promote safety in schools and the 


community and to provide services for alleged victims and perpetrators of bullying. 


 


(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 


 


Bullying Prevention 


 


To the extent possible, district schools shall focus on the prevention of bullying by establishing 


clear rules for student conduct and implementing strategies to promote a positive, collaborative 


school climate. Students shall be informed, through student handbooks and other appropriate 


means, of district and school rules related to bullying, mechanisms available for reporting 


incidents or threats, and the consequences for engaging in bullying. 


 


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 


 


As appropriate, the district shall provide students with instruction, in the classroom or other 


educational settings, that promotes effective communication and conflict resolution skills, social 


skills, character/values education, respect for cultural and individual differences, self-esteem 


development, assertiveness skills, and appropriate online behavior. 


 


(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 


(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 


(cf. 6163.4 - Student Use of Technology) 


 


Staff shall receive related professional development, including information about early warning 


signs of harassing/intimidating behaviors and effective response. 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


Based on an assessment of bullying incidents at school, the Superintendent or designee may 


increase supervision and security in areas where bullying most often occurs, such as classrooms, 


playgrounds, hallways, restrooms, and cafeterias. 


 


Intervention 


 


Students are encouraged to notify school staff when they are being bullied or suspect that another 


student is being victimized. In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall develop means for 


students to report threats or incidents confidentially and anonymously. 


 


School staff who witness an act of bullying shall immediately intervene to stop the incident when 


it is safe to do so.  (Education Code 234.1) 


 


When appropriate based on the severity or pervasiveness of the bullying, the Superintendent or 


designee shall notify the parents/guardians of victims and perpetrators and may contact law 


484/503







enforcement. 


 


The Superintendent, principal, or principal's designee may refer a victim, witness, perpetrator, or 


other student affected by an act of bullying to a school counselor, school psychologist, social 


worker, child welfare attendance personnel, school nurse, or other school support service 


personnel for case management, counseling, and/or participation in a restorative justice program 


as appropriate. (Education Code 48900.9) 


 


(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 


 


Reporting and Filing of Complaints 


 


Any student, parent/guardian, or other individual who believes that a student has been subjected 


to bullying or who has witnessed bullying may report the incident to a teacher, the principal, a 


compliance officer, or any other available school employee. Within one business day of 


receiving such a report, a staff member shall notify the principal of the report, whether or not a 


uniform complaint is filed. In addition, any school employee who observes an incident of 


bullying involving a student shall, within one business day, report his/her observation to the 


principal or a district compliance officer, whether or not the alleged victim files a complaint. 


 


Within two business days of receiving a report of bullying, the principal shall notify the district 


compliance officer identified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. 


 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


 


When the circumstances involve cyberbullying, individuals with information about the activity 


shall be encouraged to save and print any electronic or digital messages that they feel constitute 


cyberbullying and to notify a teacher, the principal, or other employee so that the matter may be 


investigated. When a student uses a social networking site or service to bully or harass another 


student, the Superintendent or designee may file a request with the networking site or service to 


suspend the privileges of the student and to have the material removed. 


 


When a report of bullying is submitted, the principal or a district compliance officer shall inform 


the student or parent/guardian of the right to file a formal written complaint in accordance with 


AR 1312.3. The student who is the alleged victim of the bullying shall be given an opportunity to 


describe the incident, identify witnesses who may have relevant information, and provide other 


evidence of bullying. 


 


Investigation and Resolution of Complaints 


 


Any complaint of bullying shall be investigated and, if determined to be discriminatory, resolved 


in accordance with law and the district's uniform complaint procedures specified in AR 1312.3. 


 


If, during the investigation, it is determined that a complaint is about nondiscriminatory bullying, 


the principal or designee shall inform the complainant and shall take all necessary actions to 


resolve the complaint. 


485/503







 


Discipline 


 


Corrective actions for a student who commits an act of bullying of any type may include 


counseling, behavioral intervention and education, and, if the behavior is severe or pervasive as 


defined in Education Code 48900, may include suspension or expulsion in accordance with 


district policies and regulations. 


 


(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation) 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students) 


 


Any employee who permits or engages in bullying or retaliation related to bullying shall be 


subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. 


 


(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards) 


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


32282  Comprehensive safety plan 


32283.5  Bullying; online training 


35181  Governing board policy on responsibilities of students 


35291-35291.5  Rules 


48900-48925  Suspension or expulsion 


48985  Translation of notices 


52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 


PENAL CODE 


422.55  Definition of hate crime 


647  Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy; misdemeanor 


647.7  Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy; punishment 


653.2  Electronic communication devices, threats to safety 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 47 


254  Universal service discounts (e-rate) 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 


486/503







106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 


110.25  Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age 


COURT DECISIONS 


Wynar v. Douglas County School District, (2013) 728 F.3d 1062J.C. v. Beverly Hills Unified 


School District, (2010) 711 F.Supp.2d 1094 


Lavine v. Blaine School District, (2002) 279 F.3d 719 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Final Guidance: AB 1266, Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students, Privacy, 


Programs, Activities & Facilities, Legal Guidance, March 2014 


Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-


Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014Addressing the Conditions of Children: 


Focus on Bullying, Governance Brief, December 2012 


Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 


Building Healthy Communities: A School Leaders Guide to Collaboration and Community 


Engagement, 2009 


Cyberbullying: Policy Considerations for Boards, Policy Brief, July 2007 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Health Education Content Standards for California Public Schools: Kindergarten Through Grade 


Twelve, 2008 


Bullying at School, 2003 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


Dear Colleague Letter: Bullying of Students with Disabilities, August 2013 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education, Safe Schools Office: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss 


Common Sense Media: http://www.commonsensemedia.org 


National School Safety Center: http://www.schoolsafety.us 


ON[the]LINE, digital citizenship resources:  http://www.onthelineca.org 


U.S. Department of Education:  http://www.ed.gov 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  November 12, 2014  Soquel, California 


revised:   October 14, 2015 


487/503







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
 


BP 5145.3  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board desires to provide a safe school environment that allows all students equal 


access and opportunities in the district's academic, extracurricular, and other educational support 


programs, services, and activities. The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, 


unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying, 


targeted at any student by anyone, based on the student's actual or perceived race, color, 


ancestry, nationality, national origin, immigration status, ethnic group identification, ethnicity, 


age, religion, marital status, pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual 


orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or genetic information, or association 


with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 


(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 


(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 


 


This policy shall apply to all acts related to school activity or to school attendance occurring 


within a district school, and to acts which occur off campus or outside of school-related or 


school-sponsored activities but which may have an impact or create a hostile environment at 


school. 


 


Unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, may 


result from physical, verbal, nonverbal, or written conduct based on any of the categories listed 


above. Unlawful discrimination also includes the creation of a hostile environment through 


prohibited conduct that is so severe, persistent, or pervasive that it affects a student's ability to 


participate in or benefit from an educational program or activity; creates an intimidating, 


threatening, hostile, or offensive educational environment; has the effect of substantially or 


unreasonably interfering with a student's academic performance; or otherwise adversely affects a 


student's educational opportunities. 


 


Unlawful discrimination also includes disparate treatment of students based on one of the 


categories above with respect to the provision of opportunities to participate in school programs 


or activities or the provision or receipt of educational benefits or services. 


 


488/503







The Board also prohibits any form of retaliation against any individual who reports or 


participates in the reporting of unlawful discrimination, files or participates in the filing of a 


complaint, or investigates or participates in the investigation of a complaint or report alleging 


unlawful discrimination. Retaliation complaints shall be investigated and resolved in the same 


manner as a discrimination complaint. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate students' access to the educational program by 


publicizing the district's nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures to students, 


parents/guardians, and employees. He/she shall provide training and information on the scope 


and use of the policy and complaint procedures and take other measures designed to increase the 


school community's understanding of the requirements of law related to discrimination. The 


Superintendent or designee shall regularly review the implementation of the district's 


nondiscrimination policies and practices and, as necessary, shall take action to remove any 


identified barrier to student access to or participation in the district's educational program. 


He/she shall report his/her findings and recommendations to the Board after each review. 


 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


(cf. 1330 - Use of Facilities) 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 


(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 


(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 


 


Regardless of whether a complainant complies with the writing, timeline, and/or other formal 


filing requirements, all complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory 


harassment, intimidation, or bullying, shall be investigated and prompt action taken to stop the 


discrimination, prevent recurrence, and address any continuing effect on students. 


 


Students who engage in unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, 


intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, in violation of law, Board policy, or administrative 


regulation shall be subject to appropriate consequence or discipline, which may include 


suspension or expulsion when the behavior is severe or pervasive as defined in Education Code 


48900.4. Any employee who permits or engages in prohibited discrimination, including 


discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, shall be subject to disciplinary 


action, up to and including dismissal. 


 


(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards) 


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression) 


 


489/503







Record-Keeping 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of all reported cases of unlawful 


discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, to enable the 


district to monitor, address, and prevent repetitive prohibited behavior in district schools. 


 


(cf. 3580 - District Records) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


48900.3  Suspension or expulsion for act of hate violence 


48900.4  Suspension or expulsion for threats or harassment 


48904  Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct 


48907  Student exercise of free expression 


48950  Freedom of speech 


48985  Translation of notices 


49020-49023  Athletic programs 


51500  Prohibited instruction or activity 


51501  Prohibited means of instruction 


60044  Prohibited instructional materials 


CIVIL CODE 


1714.1  Liability of parents/guardians for willful misconduct of minor 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


11135  Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state 


PENAL CODE 


422.55  Definition of hate crime 


422.6  Crimes, harassment 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


432  Student record 


4600-4670  Uniform complaint procedures 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 


12101-12213  Title II equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 


794  Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


2000d-2000e-17  Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 


2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 


6101-6107  Age Discrimination Act of 1975 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


490/503







99.31  Disclosure of personally identifiable information 


100.3  Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin 


104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 


106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 


106.9  Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex 


110.25 Prohibition of discrimination based on age 


COURT DECISIONS 


Donovan v. Poway Unified School District, (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 567 


Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District, (2003) 324 F.3d 1130 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Updated Legal Guidance:  Protecting Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students 


Against Sex Discrimination, July 2016 


CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies to 


Assist California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018 


FIRST AMENDMENT CENTER PUBLICATIONS 


Public Schools and Sexual Orientation:  A First Amendment Framework for Finding Common 


Ground, 2006 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Students, May 2016 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 


Notice of Non-Discrimination, Fact Sheet, August 2010 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Safe Schools Coalition:  http://www.casafeschools.org 


California Office of the Attorney General:  http://oag.ca.gov 


First Amendment Center:  http://www.firstamendmentcenter.org 


National School Boards Association:  http://www.nsba.org 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 


 


 


 


  


491/503







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
 


BP 5145.3  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board desires to provide a safe school environment that allows all students equal 


access and opportunities in the district's academic, extracurricular, and other educational support 


programs, services, and activities. The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, 


unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying, 


targeted at any student by anyone, based on the student's actual or perceived race, color, 


ancestry, national origin, nationality, ethnicity, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital 


or parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, 


or gender expression or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or 


perceived characteristics. 


 


This policy shall apply to all acts related to school activity or to school attendance occurring 


within a district school, and to acts which occur off campus or outside of school-related or 


school-sponsored activities but which may have an impact or create a hostile environment at 


school. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 


(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 


(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 


(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 


 


Unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, may 


result from physical, verbal, nonverbal, or written conduct based on any of the categories listed 


above. Unlawful discrimination also includes the creation of a hostile environment through 


prohibited conduct that is so severe, persistent, or pervasive that it affects a student's ability to 


participate in or benefit from an educational program or activity; creates an intimidating, 


threatening, hostile, or offensive educational environment; has the effect of substantially or 


unreasonably interfering with a student's academic performance; or otherwise adversely affects a 


student's educational opportunities. 


 


Unlawful discrimination also includes disparate treatment of students based on one of the 


categories above with respect to the provision of opportunities to participate in school programs 


or activities or the provision or receipt of educational benefits or services. 


 


The Board also prohibits any form of retaliation against any individual who reports or 


492/503







participates in the reporting of unlawful discrimination, files or participates in the filing of a 


complaint, or investigates or participates in the investigation of a complaint or report alleging 


unlawful discrimination. Retaliation complaints shall be investigated and resolved in the same 


manner as a discrimination complaint. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate students' access to the educational program by 


publicizing the district's nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures to students, 


parents/guardians, and employees. He/she shall provide training and information on the scope 


and use of the policy and complaint procedures and take other measures designed to increase the 


school community's understanding of the requirements of law related to discrimination. The 


Superintendent or designee shall regularly review the implementation of the district's 


nondiscrimination policies and practices and, as necessary, shall take action to remove any 


identified barrier to student access to or participation in the district's educational program. 


He/she shall report his/her findings and recommendations to the Board after each review. 


 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


(cf. 1330 - Use of Facilities) 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 


(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 


(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 


 


Regardless of whether a complainant complies with the writing, timeline, and/or other formal 


filing requirements, all complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory 


harassment, intimidation, or bullying, shall be investigated and prompt action taken to stop the 


discrimination, prevent recurrence, and address any continuing effect on students. 


 


Students who engage in unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, 


intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, in violation of law, Board policy, or administrative 


regulation shall be subject to appropriate consequence or discipline, which may include 


suspension or expulsion when the behavior is severe or pervasive as defined in Education Code 


48900.4. Any employee who permits or engages in prohibited discrimination, including 


discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, shall be subject to disciplinary 


action, up to and including dismissal. 


 


(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards) 


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression) 


 


Record-Keeping 


493/503







 


The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of all reported cases of unlawful 


discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, to enable the 


district to monitor, address, and prevent repetitive prohibited behavior in district schools. 


 


(cf. 3580 - District Records) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


48900.3  Suspension or expulsion for act of hate violence 


48900.4  Suspension or expulsion for threats or harassment 


48904  Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct 


48907  Student exercise of free expression 


48950  Freedom of speech 


48985  Translation of notices 


49020-49023  Athletic programs 


51500  Prohibited instruction or activity 


51501  Prohibited means of instruction 


60044  Prohibited instructional materials 


CIVIL CODE 


1714.1  Liability of parents/guardians for willful misconduct of minor 


PENAL CODE 


422.55  Definition of hate crime 


422.6  Crimes, harassment 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


432  Student record 


4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 


12101-12213  Title II equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 


794  Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


2000d-2000e-17  Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 


2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 


6101-6107  Age Discrimination Act of 1975 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


99.31  Disclosure of personally identifiable information 


100.3  Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin 


104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 


494/503







106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 


106.9  Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex 


COURT DECISIONS 


Donovan v. Poway Unified School District, (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 567 


Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District, (2003) 324 F.3d 1130 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-


Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014 


Final Guidance Regarding Transgender Students, Privacy, and Facilities, March 2014 


Safe Schools:  Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 


FIRST AMENDMENT CENTER PUBLICATIONS 


Public Schools and Sexual Orientation: A First Amendment Framework for Finding Common 


Ground, 2006 


NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS 


Dealing with Legal Matters Surrounding Students' Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity, 2004 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Transgender Students, May 2016 


Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Students, May 2016 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 


Notice of Non-Discrimination, January 1999 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Safe Schools Coalition: http://www.casafeschools.org 


First Amendment Center:  http://www.firstamendmentcenter.org 


National School Boards Association:  http://www.nsba.org 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  November 12, 2014 Soquel, California 


revised:  March 8, 2017 


495/503







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Hate-Motivated Behavior 
 


BP 5145.9  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board is committed to providing a safe learning environment that protects 


students from discrimination, harassment, intimidation, bullying, and other behavior motivated 


by a person's hostility towards another person's real or perceived ethnicity, national origin, 


immigrant status, sex, gender, sexual orientation, religious belief, age, disability, or any other 


physical or cultural characteristic. The Superintendent or designee shall design strategies to 


promote harmonious relationships among students, prevent incidents of hate-motivated behavior 


to the extent possible, and address such incidents if they occur. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 3515.4 - Recovery for Property Loss or Damage) 


(cf. 5131- Conduct) 


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 


(cf. 5131.5 - Vandalism and Graffiti) 


(cf. 5136 - Gangs) 


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 


(cf. 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with regional programs and community 


organizations to promote safe environments for youth. Such collaborative efforts shall focus on 


ensuring an efficient use of district and community resources, developing effective prevention 


strategies and response plans, providing assistance to students affected by hate-motivated 


behavior, and/or educating students who have perpetrated hate-motivated acts. 


 


(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 


(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 


(cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools) 


(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 


 


The district shall provide students with age-appropriate instruction that includes the development 


of social-emotional learning, promotes their understanding of and respect for human rights, 


diversity, and acceptance in a multicultural society, and provides strategies to manage conflicts 


constructively. 


 


(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation) 


496/503







(cf. 6142.3 - Civic Education) 


(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes) 


(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 


 


As necessary, the district shall provide counseling, guidance, and support to students who are 


victims of hate-motivated behavior and to students who exhibit such behavior. 


 


(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the rules prohibiting hate-motivated behavior 


and procedures for reporting a hate-motivated incident are provided to students and 


parents/guardians. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall provide staff with training on recognizing and preventing 


hate-motivated behavior and on effectively enforcing rules for appropriate student conduct. 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


Complaint Process 


 


A student or parent/guardian who believes the student is a victim of hate-motivated behavior is 


strongly encouraged to report the incident to a teacher, the principal, or other staff member. 


 


Any staff member who is notified that hate-motivated behavior has occurred, observes such 


behavior, or otherwise becomes aware of an incident shall immediately contact the principal or 


the compliance officer responsible for coordinating the district's response to complaints and 


complying with state and federal civil rights laws. As appropriate, he/she shall also contact law 


enforcement. 


 


(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department) 


(cf. 5145.11 - Questioning and Apprehension by Law Enforcement) 


 


Any complaint of hate-motivated behavior shall be investigated and, if determined to be 


discriminatory, shall be resolved in accordance with law and the district's uniform complaint 


procedures specified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. If, during the investigation, 


it is determined that a complaint is about nondiscriminatory behavior, the principal or designee 


shall inform the complainant and shall take all necessary actions to resolve the complaint. 


 


(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


 


497/503







 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


32282  School safety plans 


48900.3  Suspension for hate violence 


48900.4  Suspension or expulsion for threats or harassment 


PENAL CODE 


422.55  Definition of hate crime 


422.6  Crimes, harassment 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


4600-4670  Uniform complaint procedures 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


100.3  Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin 


104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 


106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 


110.25 Prohibition of discrimination based on age 


 


Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Bullying at School, 2003 


CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies to 


Assist California K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Prohibited Disability Harassment, July 2000 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Association of Human Relations Organizations:  http://www.cahro.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Office of the Attorney General:  http://oag.ca.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 


U.S. Department of Justice:  http://www.justice.gov 


 


 


 


  


498/503







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Hate-Motivated Behavior 
 


BP 5145.9  


Students 
 


 


In order to create a safe learning environment for all students, the Governing Board desires to 


protect the right of every student to be free from hate-motivated behavior and will promote 


harmonious relationships among students so as to enable them to gain a true understanding of the 


civil rights and social responsibilities of people in society.  The district prohibits discriminatory 


behavior or statements that degrade an individual on the basis of his/her actual or perceived race, 


ethnicity, culture, heritage, gender, sex, sexual orientation, physical/mental attributes, or 


religious beliefs or practices. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 3515.4 - Recovery for Property Loss or Damage) 


(cf. 5131.5 - Vandalism and Graffiti) 


(cf. 5136 - Gangs) 


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 


(cf. 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 


(cf. 5149 - At-Risk Students) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with regional programs and community 


organizations to promote safe environments for youth.  These efforts shall be focused on 


providing an efficient use of district and community resources. 


 


(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 


(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 


(cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools) 


(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 


(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


 


The district shall provide age-appropriate instruction to help promote an understanding of and 


respect for human rights, diversity, and tolerance in a multicultural society and to provide 


strategies to manage conflicts constructively. 


 


(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation) 


(cf. 6142.3 - Civic Education) 


(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes) 


499/503







(cf. 6141.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 


 


Grievance Procedures 


 


Any student who believes he/she is a victim of hate-motivated behavior shall notify any staff 


member who shall immediately contact the Principal.  Upon receiving such a complaint, the 


Principal shall immediately investigate the complaint in accordance with school-level complaint 


process/grievance procedures as described in AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment.  A student who 


has been found to have demonstrated hate-motivated behavior shall be subject to discipline in 


accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation. 


 


 (cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


(cf. 5131- Conduct) 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 


 


Staff who receive notice of hate-motivated behavior or personally observe such behavior shall 


notify the Coordinator/Principal, Superintendent or designee, and/or law enforcement, as 


appropriate. 


 


(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department) 


(cf. 4158/4258/4358 - Employee Security) 


 


As necessary, the district shall provide counseling, guidance, and support to students who are 


victims of hate-motivated behavior and to students who exhibit such behavior. 


 


(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


32282  School safety plans 


48900.3  Suspension for hate violence 


48900.4  Suspension or expulsion for threats or harassment 


PENAL CODE 


422.55  Definition of hate crime 


422.6  Crimes, harassment 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


4600-4687  Uniform Complaint Procedures 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 


 


500/503







Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION LEGAL ADVISORIES 


California Student Safety and Violence Prevention - Laws and Regulations, April 2004 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS & NATIONAL 


ASSOCIATION OF ATTORNEYS GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


Protecting Students from Harassment and Hate Crime: A Guide for Schools, 1999 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS 


Preventing Youth Hate Crimes: A Guide for Schools and Communities, 1997 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Association of Human Relations Organizations:  http://www.cahro.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


National Youth Violence Prevention Resource Center: http://www.safeyouth.org 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 


U.S. Department of Justice, Community Relations Service: http://www.usdoj.gov/crs 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


501/503







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Animals At School 
 


BP 6163.2  


Instruction 
 


 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that animals can contribute to the district's instructional 


program by being effective teaching aids to students and by assisting individuals with disabilities 


to access district programs and activities.  In addition, instruction related to the care and 


treatment of animals teaches students a sense of responsibility and promotes the humane 


treatment of living creatures. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes) 


(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 


(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 


(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall develop rules and procedures to ensure that when animals 


are brought to school, the health, safety, and welfare of students, staff, and the animals are 


protected.  However, the district assumes no liability for the safety of animals allowed on 


district property. 


 


(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 


(cf. 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance) 


(cf. 5141.21 - Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions) 


(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


233.5  Instruction in kindness to pets and humane treatment of living creatures 


39839  Transportation of guide dogs, signal dogs, service dogs 


51202  Instruction in personal and public health and safety 


51540  Safe and humane treatment of animals at school 


CIVIL CODE 


54.1  Access to public places 


54.2  Guide, signal, or service dogs, right to accompany 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


810-996.6  California Tort Claims Act, especially: 


815  Liability for injuries generally; immunity of public entity 


502/503







835  Conditions of liability 


VEHICLE CODE 


21113  Public grounds 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 13 


1216  Transportation of property 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1400-1482  Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 


794  Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.104  Definitions 


35.136  Service animals 


COURT DECISIONS 


Sullivan v. Vallejo City USD, (1990) 731 F.Supp. 947 


 


Management Resources: 


FEDERAL REGISTER 


Rules and Regulations, September 15, 2010, Vol. 75, Number 178, pages 56164-56236 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Indoor Air Quality: Governing Board Actions for Creating Healthy School Environments, Policy 


Brief, July 2008 


Asthma Management in the Schools, Policy Brief, March 2008 


WEB SITES: 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


American Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals:  http://www.aspca.org 


Humane Society of the United States:  http://www.hsus.org 


U.S. Department of Education, Office of Civil Rights: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 


 


 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools, Santa Cruz CA 


Adopted:  


503/503





		Agenda 9-26-18 Final

		Minutes 9-12-18 Reviewed 


		Personnel Actions - Certificated 


		Personnel Actions - Classified 


		Purchase Orders, Bids &amp; Quotes Warrant Register

		8.1.3 Purchase Orders over $2500 list

		Budget Transfers 


		8.1.5 Budget Transfers Report August 2018

		Gift 


		Disposition of Surplus Property 


		8.1.7 Surplus MHMS furniture

		Community Advisory Committee (CAC) Member Approval_ Julie Lattin

		Resolution 11-18-19 GANN Limits Revised 


		8.1.9 Res Gann Limit 1718 1819 rev

		8.1.9 Gann Limit Calculation

		Out of State Travel_ Special Education 


		4th Quarter Investment Report 


		8.1.11 SC COE Report of 2017-18 Interest Rates

		8.1.11 SC Co Treasurer&apos;s Report qtr end 063018

		Revised Classified Job Description_ Campus Supervisor

		8.1.12 Campus Safety Supervisor

		Education Services_Curriculum_ MAP_CPAA Assessment Purchase Contract

		8.2.1. NWEA MAP Contract 09.26.18

		Education Services_Special Education_ Out of State Non Public School – Alpine Academy

		8.2.2. NPS OOS - Alpine Academy Contract 09.26.18

		Education Services_Special Education_ Out of State Non Public School – Logan River Academy

		8.2.3. NPS OOS - Logan River Contract 09.26.18

		Business Services_ MOU between SCCS_Cabrillo College_SCCAL

		8.2.4 MOU - SCCAL, SCCS and Cabrillo

		Business Services_ Consultant Service Agreement_ Jerene Lacey

		8.2.5 CSA Jerene Lacey Finance Consultant

		Business Services_Facilities_ Proposal &amp; Contract_ MBS Engineering_ Natural Bridges HeadStart – gas leak repair

		8.2.6. MBS Proposal NB Headstart Gas Regulator Vaul Leak

		8.2.6. MBS Contract NB Headstart Gas Regulator Vaul Leak (PE)

		Business Services_ Kleinfelder Proposal for DSA Closeout

		8.2.7. Kleinfelder Change Order#1 DLV Parking Lot and Shade Structure

		Change Order #2_ Andy&apos;s Roofing – Branciforte MS roofing project

		8.3.1. Andy_s Change Order #2 B40MS ReRoof (2)

		Change Order #1_ Andy&apos;s Roofing – Mission Hill MS &amp; Gault ES re-roofing projects

		8.3.2 Andy_s Change Order #1 MHMS _ GE Re-Roof Repair

		Change Order #2_ Andy&apos;s Roofing – Mission Hill MS &amp; Gault ES re-roofing projects

		8.3.3. Andy_s Change Order #2 MHMS _ GE Re-Roof Repair

		Contract Amendment_ Belli Architecture – HHS MPR Music modernization

		8.3.4. Belli Contract Amendment B40MS MPRMusic Modernization

		Change Order #1_ CRW Industries_ Branciforte Small Schools Lunch Shelter &amp; Playground Structure

		8.3.5. CRW Change Order #1 B40SS Lunch _ Shade

		Change Order #2_ CRW Industries_ Natural Bridges Gym modernization

		8.3.6. CRW Change Order #2 NB Gym Repair

		Career Technical Education Grant Submission_ Authorization to Proceed

		Quote_ Mobilflex_ Security Grills for Harbor HS locker improvement project

		8.3.8 Mobiflex Proposal Grills for HH Student Lockers

		Change Order #1_ OC McDonald_ Santa Cruz HS piping replacement – new boiler room

		8.3.9. OC Mcdonald Change Order #1 SCH Piping Replacement

		Proposal &amp; Contract_ PSR Electric_ Natural Bridges modernization

		8.3.10. PSR Electric Proposal Demo of Lighting NB Modernization

		8.3.10. PSR Electric Contract Demo of Lighting NB Modernization (PE)

		Staff Report_ Summer Professional Development

		8.5.1.1. Summer PD Report Presentation

		Staff Report_ California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) Test Results &amp; CAASPP Sample Problems

		8.5.1.2. CAASPP Performance Tasks 09.26.18

		8.5.1.2. CAASPP Math Performance Task 09.26.18

		8.5.1.2. CAASPP Report Presentation

		Staff Report_ Long Term Debt Report 


		8.5.2.1 2018-2019 Long Term Debt Report Presentation

		New Business_ SecurAll_ Hardware for District Card Access Security System

		8.5.2.2. SecureAll Proposal Ditrict Wide Card Access Security System

		New Business_ Resolution 08-18-19 in Support of City of SC Measure G

		8.5.4.1. Resolution 08-18-19 in Support of County Sales Tax Measure G on the 11.6.18 Ballot

		New Business_ Resolution 09-18-19 in Support of City of SC Measure H

		8.5.4.2. Resolution 09-18-19 in Support of 11.6.18 Ballot Measure H Affordable Housing

		New Business_ Resolution 10-18-19 in Support of LGBQT+ Month

		8.5.4.3. Resolution 10-18-19 in Support of LGBTQ History Month

		New Business_ Board Policy Updates – First and_or Final Reading

		8.5.4.4. May 2018 CSBA BP Updates Guidesheet BOARD

		BP 0410 Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities

		BP 0410 current

		BP 3514 Environmental Safety NEW

		BP 3514.1 Hazardous Substances

		BP 3514.1 current

		BP 3516 Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan

		BP 3516 current

		BP 4158 Employee Security

		BP 4158 current

		BP 5111 Admission

		BP 5111 current

		BP 5111.1 District Residency

		BP 5111.1 current

		BP 5125 Student Records

		BP 5125 current

		BP 5131.2 Bullying

		BP 5131.2 current

		BP 5145.3 Nondiscrimination.Harassment

		BP 5145.3 current

		BP 5145.9 Hate-Motivated Behavior

		BP 5145.9 current

		BP 6163.2 Animals at School NEW




